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Every day, all over the globe, people are
working to make the world safer and more
secure. Ultra is supporting those people
and what they do.
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DELIVERING FOR ALL OUR STAKEHOLDERS

Our 2024 goals

As part of our Facus, Fix; Grow transformation Employees = = .
Create a dynamic, inclusive and inspiring work envirnnment

to become ONE Ultra, we identified five key that attracts, develops and retains the best diverse talent pool.
stakeholder groups.
Customers

We sought feedback from each group before we Partner with custamers, delivering innavatiyr <olinns
amhbarker! on aur transformation. This feadback that create ‘win-win' outcomes for all parties.

formed the basis of our strategy and 2024 .
Suppliers

stakeholder gOB'S: Develop Group-wide partners with like-minded values that
provide best-value solutions, technical innovation and support

+ See more on p12-14 .
Mutudl Suecess, Tai wess il tes s 1

Communities

Conduct business in an ethical, safe and sustainahle way,
acting as a positive force and making an active contribution
B gur communities.

Investors
Deliver outstanding through-cycle value for shareholders,
through effeclive execution of Ultra's strategy.

Where we operate Our markets 5

PR e el ke dEe Tne ﬂve EVEb detence { Htra operates mainty as a Tier 3 (sub-systerm}

i ‘ and occasionzlly a Tier 2 systems provider, in

| the Maritime, CSISR/EW (Comimand, Control,
Comm.nications, Computars (C4) Intelligence,

3 A Reconnaissance (ISRYElectronic
niatary and commercial aerospace,
i al sensors markets.
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ONE ULTRA, DELIVERING

Agile player in growing markets
+ Market growth driven by reality
of near-peer activity and threats

+ Fourth year of organic revenue
yruwth, despite Covid-19

Focus driving order book

and pipeline

+ ONE Ultra strategy delivering
increased confidence

+ Strong technology base driving
record order book and sales
pipefine

+ Improved research and
develnpment alignment
in support of strategy

Growth and transformation
driving improving stakeholder
outcomes

+ Transformation delivering
ahead of plan

+ Continuous improvement
driving additional benefits

+ Operational and financial
improvement being delivered

Continuing ONE Ultra momentum

+ Accelerated technology
investment aligned with long-
term customer priorities

+ Additional growth accelerators
supporting innovation

+ Excellent future visibility and
strong balance sheet to
accelerate strategy

Forward-looking statement

This Annual Report contains certain forward-focking
statements with respect to the sperations, strategy,
performance, inancial condition and growth opportunities
of the Group. By ther nature, these statements involve
uncertainty and are based on assumptions and involve
risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause
actual results and developments to differ matenally

from those anuupated. The forward-looking staterments
reflect knowledge andinformation avaifable at the date

of preparation of this Annual Report and, ather

than inaccordance with its legal and regulatory obligations,
the Company undertakes no obhgation to update these
forward-looking statements. Nothing in this Annual Report
should be construed as a profit forecast.
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Acquisition of Ultra

RECOMMENDED OFFER
FROM ADVENT / COBHAM

In July 2021, Ultra received an ninsnlicited
approach and a number of subsequent
offers from Cobham Ultra Acquisitions
Limited {a wholly owned indirect subsidiary
of Cobham Group Holdings | imited,
ultimately owned by Advent International).
0On 16 August 2021, the Board of Directors
of Ultra and Cobham Ultra Acquisitions
Limited announced that they had resched
agreement on the terms and conditions of
arecommended all-cash acquisition of the
entire issued, and t0 be issued, ordinary

_share capital of Ultra. Under the terms

of the proposed acquisition, each Ultra
shareholder will be entitled to receive
£35.00, plus entitlement ta an interim
cash dividend of 16.2 pence per share
which was paid in September 2021.

In Cctober 2021, 99.86% of Lltra's voting
shareholders voted in favnur of tho
transaction. Completion of the acquisition

is conditional on, among other things,
certain foreign investment and antitrust
approvals, incfuding approval by HM
Government. All such approvals, other than
HM Gavernment's, have now been received.

On 13 January 2022, the Competition

and Markets Authority delivered its

Phase 1 Report to the Secretary of State

for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy.
Since then, both Ultra and Advent/Cohham
have beer: engaging constructively with

HM Government, including the Ministry of
Defence, with a view to ensuring that the UK's
natienai interests are appropriately protected
as part of the recormmended transaction.

The Board no longer expects completion

of the transaction in Q1 2022. Ultra will
update the market on any news as socn

as possible. The Ultra Board remains
committed to working with Advent/Cobham
and other refevant stakeholders to deliver

a successful clasing of the acquisition.

DIVIDEND STATUS

AThe Board has a progressive dividend
policy with a through-cycle target of circa two
times normalised cash and earnings cover.
Haowever, in view of the terms and conditions
set out In the announcement dated 16
August 2021 (relating to the recommended
cash acquisition of Ultra by Advent/Cobharm),
the interim dividend of 16.2p per share, paid
on 17 September 2021, will be the only 2021
dividend, and no final dividend will be paic
to shareholders while the acquisition
remains pending.
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Financial highlights

Order book

£1.3bn +22.2%
[2020: £1.1bny Organic; +22.0%
Revenue

£850.7m -1.1%
{(2020: £859.8m) Organic: +4.2%

Statutory operating profit

£105.9m -0.4%

(2020: £106.3m)

Underlying operating profit*

£129.6m +2.8%

(2020: £126.9m) Crganic: +8.0%

Statutury bdsic earrings per share

93.8p -20.5%

(2020: 118.0p)

—— R

Underlying earnindgs per share*

135.7p +3.9%

{2070 130 6p)

Statutory cash generated by operations

£134.2m -6.0%

(2020: £142 6m)

VInderlying operating rash fow®

£111.5m -4.0%

[2020: £116.1m)

Underlying operating rash ennversion*

86%

(20207 92%)

Taotal dividend per share®

16.2p -71.5%

(2020 56.9p)

“20271 was anoithier year of strategic, operational
and finanicial progress tor Ultra and was our fourtf
year of 10bust organic revenue growth. This was
achieved despite pandemicdriven operational

and supply challenges and significant translational
currancy headwinds,

Effective execution of uur ONE Ultra strategy is

creating new opportunities, and we enter 2022 with

nnother record £1.3bn order bouk. We continue to
deliver organic growth ahead of our core markets
and cur Focus; Fix; Grow transformation is driving

sustainable operational and financial improvement

and delivering better outcomes for all of our

stakeholders. Our continuous improvement focus is

uncovering additional improvement opportunities.

As a rewull, the Board renisgints very confident of Liltra's
ability tu deliver excellent value for all its stakehelders,
Thiz iu recognised aird 1s par L of the raticnale behind

Advent/Cobham’s interest in Ultra.

The Board remains cominitled W working with
Advent/Cobham and HM Government to deliver
a successful closing of the acquisition.”

‘Simon Pryce

Chief Executive

Ultra Annual Report
and Accounts 2021
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Ultra at a glance
Our Business Units

Maritime

What we do
We deliver leading multi-mission

soIUtIONS to prolect our five-eyes’

navies.

Qur markef-leading missinn systems
deliver duninanee inthe maritime

domairt. Our broad portfolio of

capabilities is operational on fieets

2022 addressable market

2021 Key performance figures

2022 total addressable market

£1.35bn

Revenue

£395.4m

{2020 £391.8m)

across the allied navies worldwide.

We develop advanced specialist

systems to deliver wa lighiing edge in
the modern maritime and underwater
battlespace. These provide critical
opcrational advantages W uur defence
custorners across surface, sub-surface

and unmanned platforms.

' 46%

of Groug
revenue

Core capabllltles

L.+

Soncbuoy Systems

We are world leaders inthe
manufacture and supply of
sonobuoys and anti-submarine
warfare (ASW) processing. Our
range of multi-static active (MSA)
acoustics use pattarns of active
source and passive receive
sonobucys and advanced signal
processing techniques to enhance
submarine detection probability
and increase area coverage.

Sonar Systems

Cur underwater warfare systems
overcome the unique challenges
of the undersea environment, Our
solutions span: integrated hull and
variable depth sonar systerns far
manned and unmanned platforms;
torpedo defence systems,
deployable underwater sensors;
and electronic warfare systems.

S-year market CAGR (20212026}

+2-4% p.a.

Organic revenue growth

+6.3%

Statutory operating profit

£58.3m

(2020: £55.9m)

Underlying operating profit

£59.4m

(2020; £58.6m)

Underlying operating margin*

15.0%

(2020: 15.0%0)

Naval Systems and Sensors

Qur systems and sub-systems are
designed to protect allied navies
from emerging threats and ensure
a critical operational advantage.
We provide acoustic and senar
systems, torpedo defence and
radar sensor solutions.

Signature Management and Power
We are proven turnkey system
developers of traditional
degaussing, advanced degaussing
and high temperature degaussing
systems and power conversion
solutions for naval applications.
Degaussing is the neutralisaton

of the magnetic field of a ship by
encircling itwith a conductor
carrying electric currents. We
provide a range of proven, high-
performance solutions for surface
and sub-surface applications
including field support that ensures
a mission-critical advantage for

our warfighters.
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Intelligence & Communications

What we do

We deliver the intelligence that

i ffun s dedsion-rmaxing 1in the most
challenging ervironments through
missinn-critical, multi domain
communications, command and control,
cyber security and electronic warfare,

2022 addressable market 2021 Key performance fiqures

2022 total addressable market
£3.5bn

S.year market CAGR {2021-2026})

+3-5% p.a.

Revenue

£241.3m

(2020: £241.0m)

Organic revenue growth
+5.5%

Statutory operating profit

£30.9m

Our innovative solutions provide
information advantage through the
intefligent application of integrated
technologies, combined with through-

life support service, ensuring that thnse
operating in highi-LUn 2dt environments

have the intelligence they need to carry
out their missions safely and effectively.

28%

of Group
revenue

2070 £330

Underlying operating profit

£379m

(2020: £33.5m)

Underlyinig sperating margin®

15.7%

(2020:13.9%)

Communications

QOur tactical communications include
multi-domain solutions that are
protected from the threat of data
compromise or amming. High-
capacity tactical radio and advanced
waveforms enable accurate timeline
exchange of vaice, video and data
for military and government
custamers worldwide,

Command, Control and
Intelligence {C21)

Proven Command and Control (C2)
technologies deliver information
advantage in near real-time,
allowing quick and informed
dedisions based on an accurate
picture of the situation on the
ground. Ultra delivers information
advantage across the operating
environment, enhanced by the
application of leading-edge artificial
intelligence (AL}, machine tearning
(ML) and cross-domain intelligence
capakbiiities.

‘ Cyber
" We deliver advariced, high-grade

cryptography, key management
and security soiutions that provide
the highest levei of protection
againstintrusion, Ultra’s capabilities
deliver iInformation assurance with
ground-breaking techneoiogical
solutions,

Specialist Radio Frequency

We suppoert improved threat
detection and identification, as well
asimproved enemy engagement
through the execution of complex
and ¢ritical operations at all levels
of the command structure. Gur
products are key enabiers for a
varlety of advanced systems,
including radar warning, surface
ship situaticnal awareness and
digital electronics warfare systems.

* Seepage 156 for definion
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Ultra at a glance
Cur Business Units
continued

Critical Detection & Control

2021 Key performance figures 2022 addressable markets
Revenue Underlying operating profit PCS: Encrgy:
£21 4 0 m £32 3 serviceable addressable market* Serviceable addressable market*
{2020 £2270m) (2070 C34.0m) £604| I l £870m

{2020: £5/9m) {2020: £1,188m)
Organic revenue growth {InAerlying oparating margin

Forensic Technology: S-year market CAGR (2021-2026)
-0_8% 1 5 1 % Total obtainable market**

(2020 15.0%) £252m 2-4% P.a.

(Z02U; ££19m}

Statutory operating profit

£29.7m

{2020: £30.0rm)

* Totatvalue of Ultra product Iines in accessible countries,
** Totalvalue of all possible opportunities for Ultra product lines giobally.

26%

of Gruup
revenue
.

Precision Control Systems (PCS)

3

We design and supply high-integrity mission- We are the world leader inthe design and supply |, We design, manufacture, supply and support
and safety-critical products and systems for the of highly sophisticated optical imagery systems, safety sensors and systems in nuclear and
most challenging situations, mainly in military together with database management and 1 selected industrial applications worldwide.
and commercial aerospace. data analytics software with our core focus

© As a global leader in highly regulated markets,
including nuclear, oil and gas and space, we
develop sensors, instrumentation and control
Core capabilities systerns for harsh environments and mission-
+Intellectual property in specialised algonthms critical applications.
that digitally cornpare the micrascopic markings
left behind on fired bullets and cartridge cases
+Experts in big data comparison and machine
learning algorithms
+Subject matter experts in the field of firearms
identification
+Almost 30 years of automated ballistic
identification provides credibility and an
installed base of systems
+Data and power management +Global leaders in the provision of iInnovative
+Position sensing and control technology that generates timely and
+5tores ejection and management quantifiable Crime Gun Intelligence (CGI) I
+Highly regulated industries ! 0 law enforcement agencies
+ Harsh environments requiring flawless reliabiliry | +Capabie of dehivering full turnkey solunions
. +Atrusted and strategic partner for cniminal |
justice agendles around the world in helping |
with the prevention and solving of gun crime |

¢ on preventing and solving gun crime for

Ourmanned and unmanned venicle systems enforcement agencies around the world.

and equipment improve vehicle reliability and \
performance, while reducing the burden on
operators and maintainers.

Core capabilities

+ Safety-critical, nuciear qualified instrumentation
and control technologies

+5ensors qualified to operate in regulated
nuclear plants

+ Experts in safety-critical design, reactor
physics and materials science

+Installed base In the UK Advanced Gas-cooled
Reactor (AGR) fleet as well as all other reactor
types in 17 countries across five continents

+ Strategic instrumentation and control partner
of NuScale for their small modular reactor (SMR})

Core capabilities

Atrusted supplier for mission- and safety-crincal
hardware and software solutions in bghly
regulated markets, providing systems and
products for use in harsh environments and
where high reliabulity 1s crucial.

Application-engineered mission and safety-critical
electronic systems in:
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Performance update

Another year of progress and delivery

Qur arder honk grew 22 2% year nn year to ovar £1.3bn (2020: £1.1bn), reflecting
the benefits of the ONE Ultra strategy and excellent dermand for Ultra's technology,

capability and innovative solutions.

We saw strong order intake on existing

programmes including:

+ORION radio orders worth $140m from
the US Marines, US Army and US Navy

+US Sonobuoy orders of $118m under
the ERAPSCO 5-year indefinite-delivery/
indefinite-quantity (IDIQ) contract

+F31m LK MaD Soncbuay arder; and

+%743m award tor MK54 lightweight
torpedo array kits.

We also delivered good new programme

wins including:

+£65m Cyber award for the UK MoD

+£60m order from the Indian Navy for
Integrated Anti-Submarine Warfare
Defance Systems

+ACAD $24m Forensic Technology contract
covering multiple states in Brazil, and very
strong order intake from cxisting customers
renewing o exlending service contracts

+Producuon award of over $3Um on the
Next Generation Surface Search Radar
prograrmme

+Contracts to provige integrated Command
and Control systems for Tunisiz and
Romania collectively worth $14m

Revenue declined 1.1% as a resuit of stronger
Pourd Sterling against the US Dollar, but on an
organic basis revenue grew 4.2% to £850.7m
{2020: £859.8m). Both the Maritime and
Intelligence & Communications Strategic Business
Units delivered arganic revenue growth
significantly above their markets, at 6.3% and
5.5% growth respectively. despite paniemie
related productivily and supply it Uisiupion
which led to come sales slipping out of the tast
quarter into 2022, with chip shortages particularly
impacting our soncbuoy Business Unit. In Critical
Detection & Contral, sofid sales into military
aerospace, excellent sales into the ballistic

*identification markets and same recovery

in business jets largely offset the cantinued
pandemicrelated weakness in commercial
aerospace, and revenue remained largely
flat organically for the year at £214.0m
{2020: £2270m),

Underlying operating profit increased
orgdnically by ¥.U% to £129.bm (2020: £126.1m)
with underlying operating margins improving
10 15.2% (2U2U: 14./4), supported by improved
Jeliviery ol L al s furmigilon benefits, good
operaraonal performance particutarly in

- Intelligence & Communications and Critical

Dewctlon & Control, a favourable product mix
and a £4m one-off licence of non-core 1P. These
were partly offset by operational challenges

ot some Mariime contracts, inetticiency caused
by tight supply chains, increased investment

into research and development (R&D), and £1.5m
of expensed cloud-based system imglementation
costs which would have been capitalised under
uur prowvioud accountiig pulicy. Underiying
earnings per share (EPS) increased 3;:9% to
135.7p per share.

Group statutory operating profit decreased

by 0.4% to £105.9m against a backdrop of a
strengthening Pound Sterling. Statutory profit
hefore tax recreased by 20.3% to £82.7m {2020:
L1UZ.4), due to 3 ane oftf loss an disposal of two
small loss-making nen-core businesses, the
professional fees incurred in relation to the
proposed acquisition of the Group, a provision
reflecting progress towards resolving a legacy
Ieeal rriarter and the net foss refating to the marlc
to market of foreign exchange hedges. Statutory
EPS decreased by 20.5% to 93.8p per share.

Uitra again delivered excellent cash generation
with underlying operating cash conversion at
86% (2020: 92%), ahead of our expectations,
driven by gocd collection and advance
payments. Cash conversion was lower than
atthe middle of 2021 due to the expected
unwind of a large early customer payment,
as flagged in our interim update. Statutory
cash generated by operations was £134.2m
(2020: £142.6m). We ended the year with

net debt* of £40.0m, net cash of £0.7m

when excluding lease liabilities. Since the year
end, Ultra completed the sale of some legacy,
niche, safety-critical product lines realising
net cash proceeds of £35m.

uttra’s long-term return on invested capital
(ROIC) increased to 21.2% (2020: 20.0%),
Exciuding the impact of goodwill and acquired
intangibles, ROIC was 66.1% (2020: 62.3%y),
reflecting the ability of Ultra's business model
to generate qgood returns on capital while
growing organically.

* Seenote 27



8 Ultra Arnual Report
and Accounts 2021

Strategic review
continued

GROW

Strategic update

'] An agile player in
growing markels

Market growth driven by reality of near-peer
activity and threats

The tragedy unfolding in tkraine demonstrates
the vital role that the defence industry plays in
maintaining stability and sustainahility in society
At Ultra we believe that the solutions we provide
are key 1o protecting the envirpnmental, social
and governance standards that those sodieties
demand and we are Increasingly focused on

providing them in as sustainable a way as possible.

The increase in the size and sophistication of
near-peer capabilities 1s evident, and amplifies

the need for allied defence investments in the
five-eyes’ nations, and across NATO. For example,
as Russia and China deploy advanced submarines,
investment into anti-submarine warfare by the
five-gyes nations s expected to Increase at over
5% per annum over the next five years.

Near-peer activityis also driving greater’
caoperation and alignment across the five-eyes’
nations, of which the recent AUKUS security pact
betwean the United States, the United Kingdom
and Australia is a prominent example. Ultra 1s very
well placed o take advantage of the opportunities
frorn the increased threat environment and
increased collaboration it creates, which 1S

likely to further enhance Ultra's opportunities

for growth in the medium to long term.

Multi-domain operations with increased
connectivity, interoperability and
interchangeability are of primary importance to
the battlespace of tomorrow, with irvestment
expected to grow more than 7% per annum in
the USA and UK over the next five years. Critical
programmes, such as the LS foint All-Domain
Command and Control (JADC2) initiative and the
UK's Multi-Domain [ntegration (MDI) programme,
seek to formalise this future common aperating
picture as well as integrate allied capabilities
across the ‘five-ayes’ nations and NATO

From land, sea and air to cyber and
electromagnetic domains, Ultra's technology and
capability 1s well situated to support key elements
of many of these vitat prograrmmes. Ulira's leading
command and control, cyber and communications
technologies, as well as our investments in
artficial intelligence and machine learning
solutions, 1n particular pasition Ultra to meet
growing demand for secure Interconnectivity

and mult-domam cognitive solutions.

Outside of defence, the drive far low-carbon
energy and domestic energy secunty provides
a supportve market for Ultra’s nuclear business,
while rising gun crime increases the need for
balistic identification solutions. The outlook for
military aerospace and recovery of commercial
aerospace also both remam strong given
expected procurements in new aircraft,
upgrading ageing fleets and the development
of Indigenous platforms.

Cutperforming: fourth consecutive year
of rabust organic revenue growth, despite
Covid-19

2021 marks the fourth year of robust organic
revenue growth for Ultra, having grown
organically by 18% sice 2018,

The total Maritime market grew by 3% and
[ntelligence & Communications market by 3.5%
In 2021, Over the next five years, we expect a
favourable market backdrop with compound
annual growth rates of 2-5% in our core markets
of Martime, Intelligence & Communications
and Cnitical Detection & Cantrol. [ncreasing
spend s forecast to be directed towards core
Ultra segments; ant-submarine products and
intelligent networking cormmunications which
enhance capabilities of existing defence assets.

2 Focus driving crderbook
and pipeline

ONE Ultra strategy delivering

As our Industry trends towards modular, scalable
and interoperable soluticns, our ONE Ultra focus
and collaboration is already driving increased
opportunity, our record and growing order book
and accelerated top line growth. Combining our
capabuiities atthe point of design o become a
multi-domain integrated sub-systems provider
gives us the potential to provide significantly
greater content on many more platferms.

We possess significant muft-mission, multr-
platform and mult-domain integration expertise
across a range of scalable selutions, inciuding
ADSI, ORION, REAP cormmurucation pods, RAIN,
Athena and intercperable crypto. Qur targeted
nvestment strategy has already seen Maritime
radars connected to I&C Situational Awareness
Platforms, and Air Defense Systems Integrator
{(ADSE connected to our tactical optical and
infrared sensars.

Ourimproved collaboration and focus 1s enabing
us to bid more effectively into the next-generation
radar and Ant-Submarine Warfare (ASW) spaces,
by combining capabilities from a number of our
Operating Business Units to provide technology-
leading and cost-effective sclutions. This is already
leading to new business - for example, our recent
£60m Indian Integrated Anti-Submarine Warfare
Defence System contract award. We are also
partnering more effectively with third parties and
government research agencies to provide leading-
edge solutions, such as developing a multi-static
capability to support the future needs of
unmanned ASW operations,

Facus is also drving more effective and targeted
technology investment. For example, we are
developing commeon Uitra solutions to interrogate
the big and complex data that our sensors and
sub-systems produre to generate acticnatle,
operationally relevant information. By applying

a standard approach to technologies, such as
artificial intelligence and machine learning,

we are developing solutions to give operators
exactly the insights they need, when they

need them, in a much-reduced timeframe

and at substanually lower cost.
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Strong technology base driving record

order book and sales pipeline

The strength of our technology base is driving
our record order book of £1.3bn, up 22.2% vs
2020 Our total sales pipeline has also grown
significantly to £13.5bn {2020: £11.4bn), based

on allidentified opportunities which we anticipate
dding on and have greater than 50% confidence
of winning aver the next nine years I addition,
our total IDIQ contract value is £1.1bn, which
measures the expected 'call-off and exercise

of existing IDIQ contracts

Many of our capabilities are core to military
modernisation efforts. An example is our
ORION radio system. Ultra has been the primary
US defence upper-tier radio supplier for over

50 years, providing the backbone of tactical
communications, a critical area for the move

to greater battlespace connectivity We are now
supplying our fifth-generation high-capaaty line
of sight radic system to the US Army, US Marines
Corps, Missile Defence agencies, US Navy and
Special Forces and we are already developing
the next-generation capability. Uttra is also well
positionad to provide both improved intelligence
to existing platforms and additional connectivity
across the battlespace to the arr defence tier as
the developer of the Air Defence Systems
Integrator (ADSI).

Improved research and development strategy
alignment in support of strategy

We are increasingly acting as a strategic adviser
on the specification and design of mission-led
solutions and Increasing our engagement with
research customers such as DARPA and DSTL.

The ongoing execution of our transformation
agenda continues to free up capacity to support
increased nvestmentin R&D, During 2021 we
invested an additional £3.1m in internally funded
R&D, an organic increase of 10.3% over 2020.
This takes our total customer and internally
funded R&D to ¢.£300m since 2016.

QOur key strategic investments into R&D during

2021 were:

+Development of artificial inteiligence and
machine learning capabilities to target key
strategic developments 2.g. embedding edge
processing and intelligence in our deployed
sensors, building ‘Course of Action’ generators
in our battlespace management afferings and
providing enhanced AI/ML algonthms far qur
submarine detection systems

+Investment In next-generation racko and satellite
communication technalogies and cognitive
networking capabilittes, incorporating adaptive
techniques, such as autonomous waveform
orchestration and adaption, to support resilience
in contested and congested environments

+ Next-generation of Ultra sonobuoys, enabling
Ultra to meet its customers’ needs once the
ERPASCO joint venture ends

+5mall SWaP microwave assembly building blocks
to support future electronic warfare and radar
applications

+ Design of an automated and modular
containerised ASW deployment solution for
manned and unmanned vesseis, including
future Unmanned Surface vehicles (USVs)

+Wearable soldier technology with enhanced
communications and sensor capability to
provide live real-time feedback of biornetric
and situational data, rotocraft health
monitoring and advanced controllers

+Key upgrades to the IBIS {Integrated Ballistic
[dentification System) platform, including
improved 3D resolution, traceable caiibration,
speed and weight improverments, and
development cf an automated triagé
solution for crime scene deployment

Growth and transformation
driving impraving stakeholder
outcomes

3

Transformation delivering ahead of plan,

. increased confidence

We continued to investin our Focus; Fix; Grow
transformation programme improving Ultra's
core processes 1o drive improved outcomes
for stakeholders Our 2021 actions delivered
marginally ahead of our plans and contributed
to margin improvements across the Group

In 2021 Ultra incurred £8.1m of operational
expenditure and spent £5.1m of capitat
expenditure on transformation-related activities
Key investments included implementing new best
of breed financial consolidation, HR and customer
relaticnship management processes and toals,
consolidating four manufacturing sites to two
and developing standard enterprise support
processes. We have continued to improve
programme governance and financial modelling
and continue to have confidence in delivering the
medium-term benefits and the Investment cost
as set cutin our mterim results announcement.

A brief summary of progress during the year

is shown overleaf,

Continuous improvement driving
additional benefits
Our facus on embedding ‘The Ultra Way' (Ultra's

H approach to continuous improvement) across

our business continues at pace and has delivered
new benefits during 2021. In the first half of the
year, we launched the Ultra Improvement Group,

. adedicated team to deliver Ultra Way activities

and train colleagues in the skills required to
ruN CONTiNUOUS IMProvermant processes
independently.

The Ultra Improvement Group has driven a
strong cadence of continuous improvement
activity, running 19 major sprints during 2021
The Ultra Way approaches developed by the
Ultra Irmprovement Greup are increasingly
well embedded across the Group, with
numerous teams also helding local continucus
improvement activities during the year. Benefits
from continuous improvernent in 2027 were
£3.3m, driven primanily by Ultra PCS through
nventory optimisation,
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3 Growth and transformation
driving improving stakeholder

outcomes
WORKSTREAM  GOALS PHIGRESS IN 2021
QOperating + [mproved customer alignment We embedded the new Strategic Business Unit (SBU) and Operating Business Unit {OBU)

Model

+ Better functional support

structure on 1 January 2021, centralised IT along functional lines and moved to a category-led
procuremant modeal.

Site Excellence

+Improved and optimised
warking enviroament

+ Increased sustainability

+ Hetter working practices

We successfully consolidated two operations activities in Naval Systems in North America
and made excellent progress upgrading our Cheltenham facility in the UK, which will enable
the consolidation of two of our PCS facitities into Cheltenham.

In addition, our Ferensic Technofogy business maved into a much improved facility in Montreal
and both vur Communications and Sonar businesses in Canada started projects to upgrade
their facilities in preparation for anticipated growth. Finally, we have now agreed the lease for
our new I&C UK site in Maidenhead, with an expected move completicn date of Q4 2023.

Nperational

Tenprowed utihzation, efMuen ey,

We Ihdde excenent progress standardising our MR, financial consolidation and sales processes

and Functional  productivity and dclivery with a view tu bolh improving their effectiveness and productivity. As a result, 2021 saw the
Excellence + Better collaboration to improve launch of our new ‘"MyHR,, Finance and Customer Relationship Management platforms. Qur
CUSTOMEr outcames approach Lo project management 1s Increasingly mature, and our Business Units are now
suppur Led by 4 harmonised global process ternplate with coverage across the majority
of our main fuartinns
Procurement  +Muore relivble supply chain i hee Brocurement team made good progress developing a new cperating model that
+ Better scale benefits enables Ultra o leverage its procurement spend, improving capability to drive savings
+Transparent data and standard aLuss key procuremnent categories, with 2021 cost savings and avoidance targets exceeded.
procurement processes We have appounled a team of Global Category Managers in line with the updated operating
madel, and ¢ new procuremenit leadership team has been formed, consisting of senior
menmber s [rorm each SBU, 1o help accelerate procurement benefits in 2022.
ONT Uitra F Towes Ling in peopte We nu eased investment in Group-wide feadership training and diversity and inclusion
Culture +Leadership and talent to initiatives for our peopile, to help them develop more robust and ambitious strategies
supuun LONE Ulird strategy whiile leading change and creating a continuous improvermnent culture and capability.
This is already having tangible benefits, with more robust strategies and execution plans,
improved chanye nanayerttent, factory and functional processes. We have also launched
impiuved systems and a culture to support the rich funnel of improvement ideas coming
front o Leanns dnd o programme to build continuous improvement capability and
cxpertise in the organisatiun.
Technnlngy  +More officiont IT infrastructure Our Miuusull 365 sulte of products s now well embedded across the organisation and the
Enablement rollout of our ‘UNet’ continues to progress well, providing our sites with efficient and best-

+lmproved collzboration
1 SLattdan d procussis supported
by standard applications

practice netwu hing sututivns that allow secure information exchange.

W have dlsu finalised the design and implementation of a new innovation management
platforrn designed 1o provide a space to propose, collaborate on and track new product
improvement and R&D concepts.

The Transfut maton Froject Management Gitice completed the redesian of our ChangePoint
pul Lluliv mdndygernent system, which is used to oversee, manage and execute delivery

ol vur transformation projects. |he new implementation provides our transformation
Loty with real-time monitaring ot project status, alongside robust stakeholder
reporting capabillities
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Operational and financial

improvement delivered

Our Focus; Fix; Grow transformation planis

not only delivering finanaial benefits. In 2020,

we consuired our stakeholder groups and defined
what extraordinary performance through our
ONE Ultra strategy would lock like. As a result,

we created key performance indicators with
specific targets that we use to manage our
business and ensure delivery.

Despite the pandemicrelated challenges we
have faced in the last couple of years, we continue
to work towards our 2024 stakeholder goals
with key 2021 measures showing good
improvements including:
+On-time delivery increased to 85.2%
(2020: 82.8%)
+Labour productivity increased in 8 out of 11
of our Business Units
+Average Net Promoter Score across the
Group marked as ‘Great’ or ‘Excallent’
+Reduced carbon emissions by per £m of
revenue by 24% vs 2019
+Number of open reles filled by internal
candidates up 107%
+Reduced our single-use plastic consumption
by more than 75,000 items
+Increased our Group community support fund
to more than £500.000 in the past two years

Continuing ONE Ultra
momentum

4

Accelerated technology investment aligned

to long-term customer priorities

with Ultra solutions already playing a key role in
the gathening and dissemination of nformation
across multiple dormains, and with an increasingly
interconnected ecosystem of solutions, we are
well positioned to help customers better leverage
this abundance of data to make faster, smarter
decisions in mission-critical scenarios. Taday, our
technolagy nvestments are focused on ensuning
that Ultra is an increasingly vital partner in the
shift to a cognitive and integrated battlespace.

2021 marked the first ful year of operation for
Uttra Labs, our advanced concepts and emerging
technolagies group. Ultra Labs' mission 1s 1o
accelerate nnovation and development In areas
of key strategic growth by leveraging disruptive
and advanced technologies. It provides a rapid
insertion capability to Ultra's considerable
engineening portfolio by nurturing a culture of
inrovation and driving deveiopment through
demonstration. Ultra Labs complements and
extends our OBU’s key offerings by providing
specialist A/ML, software and matenals

science personnel and by prowiding support

for entrepreneurship and the acquisition of

customer R&D from strategic sources. Ultra Labs

activities focus around three major Initatives

+ Cognitive Integrated Battlespace: Integrating
and augmenting our market-leading solutions
with hybrid, cleud native, advanced Al/ML to
develop enhanced solutions that reduce
operator cognitive burden, process big and
complex mult-domain data to gain cperationalty
relevant nsights, and prevent tactical surpnse.

+ Cognitive Integrated ASW: Integrating Ultra's
existing ASW systems to deliver asingle
multi-sensor, mult-domain and multi-platform
ASW farce demonstrater, enabling manned
and unmanned systems to work in concert to
provide our customers with a mosaic of
deployable ASW capabiity.

+ Modularised development platfarm: Rapid
development of mult-application modutar
soltions: a shared environment for collaborative
software development, creating modular,
interoperable and reusable IP. Leverages a
common Ultra UI/UX and integrating a muititude
of internal and external data sources to underpin
applications such as advanced geospatial
anomaly detection, correlation and fusion
engines, and next-generation analytics
platforms.

Additional growth accelerators

supporting innovation

2021 also saw the launch of a number of new
growth accelerators, designed to enhance Ultra’s
ability to respond quickly and efficiently to

emerging custormer needs, and to proactively
identify future needs.

Our new Ultra Feliows programme was launched
In Q4 2021 and has brought together eight of our
most experienced and respected tachnicaf leaders
to form a strategic working group operanng
across the whole of Ultra. As renownad experts
in their respective fields, the Uitra Fellows are
now working together to provide new, holistic
perspectives on all levels of our technology
strategy They will offer mentorship and guidance
0 our internal technical commurnity, while
cementing Ultra as a thought leader in mulo-
mission, multi-domam sclutions externally.

Qur Uitra Software Factory was also launched
during the year and Is a dedicated software
engineering function designed to help our
Business Units deliver secure, best-in-class
software for our most mission-critical solutions.
Ttwillimprove cur ability to deliver quality
software on a favourabie cost basis by deploying
a centrally managed team of developers working
virtually across our horme markets The intiative
will alsa facilitate offshonng for development,
testing and evaluation that willimprove cost
compettiveness and free up expert internal
resources for high-priority work

Excellent visibility and strong balance sheet
to accelerate strategy

In 2021 Ulera's order cover 15 78% (2020: 71%)
demonstrating our confidence of good growth
n 2022

Ultra's defence platform Efecycles prowvide
further long-term visibility as programmes move
from design, manufacturing, production and
aftermarket which can last anywhere between

5 and 30 years. Once a programme is won, this
typically results in strong revenue generation
for the whale platform life due to the custom-
designed solutions and Ultra’s long-term
reputation for excellence.

In addition to this excellent visibility, our positive
transformation progress increases cur ability to
add value to potential future acquisitions. We take
a disciplined and robust value-based approach

o any potential acquisitions. Opporturities

are only considered where we can accelerate
strategy defivery and create additional value for
stakeholders through enhanced growth and
operationai synergies. We now have the right base
and the vzlue discipline together with significant
financial capacity from our unlevered balance
sheet to supplement our organic growth and

a good pipeline of opportunity.,
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Working with our stakeholders (s172)

Stakeholder engagement

[n accordance with the reporting requirements of
the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018 and the
Companies {Miscellaneous Reparting) Regulations
218 for a separately idenufiable section 172
(s172) staterment, this section shows how the
Directors have performed their duty under s172
of the Companies Act 2006 to promote the success
of the Company, having regard to the long-term
consequences and the interests of all Ultra's
stakeholders when making therr decisions, Detadls
of how we have engaged with our stakeholders,
addressing our long-term goals for each, are set
outonpages 12 to 14. On pages 14 and 15 we set
out the principal decisions taken by the Board in
2021, show how these contribute o the success
of Ultra and describe how stakeholders were
considered, as well as the likely conseguences

of those decisions over the longer term.

Further information on how s172 has
been applied by the Board can be found
as follows:

The likely consequences of any decision
inthe long term

+ ONE Uttra strategy: pages 7-11
Transformation investment: pages 9-10

The interests of the Company’s employees

_|_

Supportirg our pecple: pages 32-37
Warkforce engagement: page 64

The need to foster the Company's business
relationships with suppliers, customers
and others

+ Stakeholder goals: pages 12-14

The impact of the Company’s operations
on the community and environment

=+ Protecting our planet pages 26-31

The desirability of the Company maintaining
a reputation for high standards of business
conduct
+ Transform our business: pages 9-10
Ethics Committee: page 64
Audit Committee report: pages 67-71

The need to act fairly between members
of the Company

+ Stakeholder goals: pages 12-14

7 ﬁgn\ Employees

2024 Goal; Creare a dynamic, inclusive
and inspiring work environment that
attracts, develops and retains the best
diverse talent pool,

Key performance measures
+68% engagement score - a goad result taking
account of Covd-19 pressures and the Advent
transaction causing uncertainty (2020 75.5%)
+ 170 roles filled by internal candidates (2020: 32)
+16.6% Group voluntary turnover (2020
below 10%;)

Stakeholder feedback

Employee feedback from our engagement

survey focused on:

+[mproved manager relationships, teamwork
and collaboration and understanding of
Ultra's strategy

+Increased pride of working for Ultra and
feeling that we make a difference

+Decline in number of emplayees intending
to stay with Ultra in the next 12 months

2021 progress

+Improving aur succession planning and taient
pipeline with leadarship, middie manager
and women in leadership traiming and
development courses

+Building on our compelling reward and
recognition programme for all employees, with
our new Reward book and relaunch of our
employee share schemes

+New Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Policy
launched and Uniguely Ultra diversity employee
focus group

+New working from home and wellbeing policies
and programmes plus new culture recognition
awards

+Transforming our business with new global
HR systems launched

+Held 19 major Ultra Way continuous
Improvement ‘sprints’

How Ultra engaged / responded to feedback
+Ultraview engagement survey including actron
plan follow-up feedback sessions offered to all

employees
+Leadership conferences
+Weekly newsletter, Uitranet sharing platform,
Ultra TV, monthly town hall meetings and packs
+Leadership training programmes
+Board and Executive Team site visits
+Ethics Committee site visits
+Strategic Business Unit roadshows
+Ultra Way continuous improvement sprints
+Annual Ant-Bribery and Corruption traming

Board engagement

Direct

+The Board review all 'speak up’ whistleblowing
reports made and follow up actions

+Board members met with employees at varicus
site wisits throughout 2021

+0ur CEQ and CFO held several tawnhall visits
with GEA

+'Ask the CEO emails

+Geeta Gopaian and Victoria Hull joined multiple
dversity ininatives throughout the year

Indirect

+Recerved and discussed results of Ultra's
employee engagement survey and in particular
employee retention during the proposed
acquisition of Ultra

+ Received and discussed feedback from our
independent Ethics Committee

+Our Board of Directors oversees our
programme to prevent bribery and corruption
and receives reqular updates on comgliance
with annual trairung

+

See page 64 for more irformation
on workforce engagement
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2024 Goal: To partner with customers,
delivering innovative solulions that create
‘win-win’ outcomes for all parties.

Key performance measures

+ Average Net Promoter Scare (MPSYof 52 across
Ultra, marked as ‘Great’ or ‘Excellent’ (20240 not
measured); benchmarking data shows that we
are well above the 75th percentile in our markets

+Total Group market share thased on arganic
ravenue and 2021 total addressable market in
each SBU) remained flat at 14% (2020: 149%)

+0On-time delivery increased to 85.2%

{2020: 32.8%)

+ Solutions Vitality Index (the percentage of
revenue driven by solutions developed in the
last five years} 15.0% {2020; not measured}

+ Labour productivity improved in 8 out of 11
OBUs versus 2020

Stakehaolder feedback
+Good communications and customer service

+Room for impraverment on lead times of
solutions

2021 progress

+L.aunched our new customer feedback tool
to monitor customer satisfaction with two
customear surveys during the year

How Ultra engages i
+0ngoing customer relationship management
o ensure our customers’ needs are met
+ Centrai SBU engagerment with key influencer \
relationships |
+Standardised customer feedback process
undertaken twice per year
[
|

Board engagement

Direct

+QOur CEG engages with key customers
directly and returns feedback to the Board

Indirect

+ Received feedback from Ultra's first customer
survey and discussed how to improve lead times
across Ultra

+Receved customer feedback during
presentation by SBU/OBU seniar
management tearns

o@a Suppliers

2024 Goal: Develop Group-wide partners
with like-minded values that provide
best-vaiue solutions, technical innovation
and support mutual success, fairness
and respect.

Key performance measures

+ First year of procurement savings through
ONE Ultra strategy

+ Totat cost of procurement {direct and indirect
procurement costs) redured versus 2020

2021 progress

+Through our ONE Ultra strategy and joined
up approach to suppliers we have reduced
procurement costs over the year

+ Late supplier deliveries were also reduced due to
this joined up approach to supplier relationships

How Ultra engages

+0ngong supplier relationship management
through our procurement reams, including
roll-out of Group-wide Supplier Code of Conduct

+Creating a dialogue with our key suppliers
- sharing our vision for procurement
transformation and listening to our
suppliers feedback

+Taking a global view of strategic categories
which allows us to collaborate with suppliers
across businesses and countries

Board engagement

Indirect

+Reviewed supplier practices, including the
approval of a revised Modern Slavery and
Human Trafficking Global Policy and approval
of Ultra's first Supplier Code of Conduct

+Continued review of supplier needs in
response to Covid-19, and the Ultra risk
profile monitored by the CRO

Direct

+ Continued review of procurement
transformation business case as Group-wide
approach to category management and
supplier, and their supply chain partnerships

Ultra Aqnuzl Report
and Accounts 2021
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@ Communities

2024 Goal: To conduct business inan
ethical, safe and sustainable way, acting
as a positive force and making an active
contribution to our communities,

Key performance measures

+Reduced 2021 carbon emissions by 21.7%
vs 2015 (Scope 1 and 2 only)

+Increased our Group community fund to over
£500,0001n the past two years

+More than 2,000 hours of community giving
m 2021

+Reduced our use of single-use plastic by
more than 75,000 items

Stakeholder feedback

+Ultra support for local communities through
our 'Giving back fund’ and 'Giving back days’
and community impact

2021 progress

+Improved our reporting of near-miss heatth and
safety reports to increase four times so we have
better data and information on areas we need
to imprave

+ ONE Ultra Packaging Palicy alongside Single Use
Plastics Policy launched in 2020 and expanded
onin 2021

+ONE Ultra Forces Charter was recogrised by
the Ministry of Defence in 2021 when Ultra
was awarded a gold award for being an
Armed Forces employer

How Ultra engages
+£200,000 annual Matched funding scheme
+Two 'Giving back days’ per employee each
year to volunteer in their [ocal community
+Group CSR Committee - with 17 members
across all our businesses and locations who
manage central funds and allocations
+Sigreficant veterans' and Armed Forces charities
engagement - for exampie, we became a
corporate sponsar of PupsdPatrniots who rescue
qualified shelter dogs and train them to offer
the best possible assistance o veterans with
Post-Traumatic 5tress (PTS) and Traumatic
Brain Injury (TBI)

Board engagement

Direct

+Received a presentation from our CSR
Committee Chair on progress of CSR minatives,
and discussed and approved sustanability
measures and goals for 2022 and 2024
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Working with our stakeholders (s172)
continued

LHJJ Investors

2024 Goal: Deliver outstanding through-
cycle value for shareholders, through
effective execution of Ultra's strategy.

Key performance measures

+Improved ROIC to 21 2% {2020: 20.0%)

+Improved order book growth to +22%
(2020 +5.9%)

+0rganic sales growrh was 4.2%

+Improved working capital turns to 12.3x

Stakeholder feedback

+Proposed acquisition of Ultra which 99.86%
of sharehclders voted for

+ Feedback regarding Ultra's progress towards
meeting the Hampton-Alexander target of
33% of women on the Board

2021 progress

+Core markets continuing tc grow, driven
by increasing near-peer threats

+Fourth consecutive year of robust arganic
revenue growth

+Operational and financial improvement
delivered for all stakeholders

How Ultra engages

+Significant shareholder engagement around
the acquisition of Ultra in addition to normal
practice [R actvities mcluding
+Results roadshows and mvestor mestings

with CEQ, CFO and Investor Refations

+Annual General Meeting
+Investor calls and briefings

Board engagement

Direct

+Private and institutional investor meetings
organised with Directors as requested

+Investor presentations by the CEQ and
CFO following annual results, with meetings
organised upon request after the recommended
offer from Advent was announced

+Engagement with shareholders regarding
Ultra's commitiment to meeting the Hampton-
Alexander targets (put on hold durning the
acquisition related offer period)

Principal board decisions

Offer from Advent

0On 16 August 2021, we announced that we had
reached agreement with the Beard of Cobham
Ultra Acquisitions Limited, a wholly owned
indirect subsidiary of Cobham Group Holdings
Limited {“Cobham") on the terms and conditions
of a recommended all-cash acquisition of the
entire issued, and to be issued, ordinary share
capital of Ultra by Cabham (the “Acquisition®).
Under the terms of the proposed Acguisition,
each Ultra shareholder will be entitled to
receive £35.00 per share ("Offer Price”). The
Offer Price represented a 63.1% uplift to the
mid-market closing share price of £21.56 as at
24 June 2021, being the last business day befare
the commencernent of the offer period.

Inreaching this decision, the Board
considered the implications of the Acquisition
for each stakeholder group, in particular

our employees, customers, suppliers,
communities and our ivestors. The Board
took into account Advent/Cobham's statements
and commitments to Uitra’s workforce -

for examnple, commitments around no site
closures - and only recommended the offer
once consultation with the pension trustees
was complete. The Board also agreed non-
financial terms and commitmentsin a
Cooperation Agreement which provides
undertakings to protect the interests of
Ultra's key stakeholders, including the UK
Gavernment, that would apgiy imrnediately
following completion of the Acquisition.

Hawving been advised by the Company’s
financial advisers that the terms of the
Acquisition were considered to be fair and
reascnable, the Board recommendead the
Acquisition to shareholders via a court-
sancticned scheme of arrangement {the
"Scheme”). The Scheme was overwhelrmingly
approved by the Company’s shareholders in
October 2021 and now awaits final Government
approval. The Ultra Board is committed to
working with Advent/Cobham and ather
relevant stakeholders towards satisfaction of
the outstanding conditions of the acquisition.

Further informaticn regarding the terms of
the Acquisition can be found in the Rule 2.7
Announcement and Cooperation Agreement,
both dated 16 August 2021, and in the Scheme
Document dated 8 September 2021, which are
available to download on cur website

www ultra.group
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Sustainability plan

Pratecting
our planet
and society

.

The Beoard recognises that the way we do
business is as mportant as what we de.
Sustainability is embedded in aur core business
goals which are measured though our KPIs and
therefore are directly linked with targets for
rermuneration and reward across our leadership
teams. We have made substantial progress
across all our four Positive Force pillars in 2021
+Protecting our planet and scciety
+Supporting our pecple

+@Giving back

+Daing the night thing

The Board has played a particularly active role
in supporting our Diversity, Equity and Inclusion
agenda with Board mermbers taking partin
Employee round-table discussions on gender
balance, personal experiences of beingin a
leadership role from a minority background
and women'’s leadership.

The Board also supported and endorsed the
extra wark which has been completed during
the year to establish a journey for Ultra to
beccme net zero and increased environmental
disclosure in our annual Sustainability Report,
they received reqular updates on progress from
Ultra's CSR Committee Chair and provided input
and quidance at each stage.

Supporting
our people

T

Long-term implications: The Board is aware
that Uitra's CSR goals are key to our future
success and has placed significant emphasis

on how Ultra can continually improve our
impact an our local communities, environment
and employees. Through our sustainability

plan explained on pages 24-41 and in our
separate Sustainability Report which can be
found on www.ultra.group, employees now have
the ability to give back to their local communities
through Utra's giving back framework, suppart
the environment through Ultra Health, Safety
and Environment initiatives, and take partin
regular health, wellbeing and diversity
improvements through employee resource
groups.

Doing the
right thing

eI




Our business model
How we create value for our stakeholders

What we do
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Who we work with What makes us different
q STy and UK ) + An agile player in growing markets with
opportunities for share gain
+ Sustainable technology and cost advantage
+ We work in the priority growth areas of
defence spend
+ Capabilities to address areas of future
customer focus:
- Maritime, near-peer threats, particularly ASW
- Multi-domain, real-time, on-demand, secure
information delivery in a contested environment
- Delivering greater functionality and capability
in a continually reducing size, weight and
power envelope
- Leading software, data processing and
algerithm capability
- Robust business model with good visibility
trom leng-term contracts and a lag to US
defence outlays
+ Asset-light and well diversified

Where we operate Our value proposition

+ ‘Five-eyes' defence (USA, UK, Canada, Ultra's strategy and goals are based around
Australia and New Zealand) in maritime, our five stakeholder groups:
communications and intelligence domains

+ Other defence markets where we can apply @ Employees
modular solutions

+ Other selected, highly requlated and harsh
environment detection and control markets &, Suppliers

&% Customers

& Communities

‘i Investors

For each group Uitra has a value-creation goal and
yearly targets to align the crganisation behind our
multi-stakeholder value-generation goals.

+ Working with our stakeholders pages 12-14
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Key performance indicators
How we measure our success

+We are actively overseeing performance of +0ur first resource allocation priority is
our Operating Business Units, with improving reinvestment into iInnovation through
operational aversight driving operational technology, people and capabiiities to
performance. ensure that we meet our purpose of

+Each Strategic Business Unit reports a monthly innovating for a safer tomorrow.

balanced scorecard to the Executive Team
for review. These include KPIs against our
2024 goals, amed atimproving performance
for employees, customers, suppliers,
communities and mvestors.

Organic and underlying measures are defined on
pages 145 and 146. See note 2 for recondiliations
o equivalent statutory measures.

FINANCIAL
KPI What is it and how are we doing? Associated risks Associated Relevance to Executive
{Principal rsks nkold) stakeholder goal Remuneration

Organic Qrganic order boak growth compared witn t1g prior year Defence Sector ' Strateqic object ves
order book  was+220% Cycle Risk (B (nvestors crtera
growth 7 220% & Geo-paliticsl Deliver outstanding,

20 IR 58% Risk through-cyde value for

19 T 10.7% sharehalders through

12 S 52% - effective execution of

17 16.5% Ultefs strategy
Organic Organicrevenue grawtn caompared w'th the orior year was Do, Programme « 1, Supply Chain ¥ [I ) Long-Term Incentive
reverue +4.260(2020" +5.2%) Ga Risk T Risk 0l tvstors Plar critera
grawth 21 - 42% Recruitment Deliver outstanding,

20 L] 52% @ and Retentian tnrough cyde value for

ik | 6.8% Risk snareholders through

8 T 22% effectve execution of

17 I -3.3% Ultra's strategy
Through- Underlying operating cash canvers'on s a s mple yet reliable Programme Average working capital

Risk .u|]|] nvestors Turrin arnuat bonus

cycle cash measure of cash generation, which represe s the ma or
. : element of tne Group's short-term incertive banus scheme
conversion Delver autstanding,

21 86% é Governance, thraugh-cycle value for
20 93% Compliance sharehelders traugh

9 73% &Contrals effective execution of

L e ——— 79% Ultra’s strategy

17 I 7%

ROIC A revised and simplified ROIT measure was established in Bid and Governance, -l Long-Term Incentive

2019.This 15 ca'culated as underlying operating profitas a @ Cantract Risk é Compliance ol trvestors Plan crteria

percentage of invested capita {average of opening and & Contrals

closing balance sheets). Invested capital s defined as net £1oy Pregramme ) Delver outstanding,

assets of the Group, excluding net debt and lease liabir'ty, Risk 8t i'.‘"‘:(ply Chain  mraugh-cyde value for

pensian ob.gations, tax and derivatives. This allows ROIC v RS shareholders through

to be calculated on the operat'ng assets of the business errec‘tuve execution of

5 Ultra's strategy.

withinthe contro. of management.

21 21 2%

20 I NV 20 0%

'9 IR 17.8%

15 16.2%
Organic 2 8.0% Bidand . SupplyChain ‘ m - Long-Term Incentive Flan
underlying 20 [ 5.2% E' ContractRisk 'wov Risk L0003 Investors and arnua borus criteia
operating 9 T 2.5% Do, Programme Recruitment Deliver outstanding,
profit 8 | o] -43% I'_.% Risk @ and Retention  through-cycle value for
growth 7 RN -7.2% Risk shareholders through

é Goverr.wance. effective execution of
Compliance

Ultra's strategy.
& Cantrols
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OPERATIONAL
KPI What is it and how are we doing? Associated risks Associated Relevance to
(Prircipal risks 1 bold) stakeholder goal Executive Remuneration
Employee The results of our employee ergagement survey @ Recruitment and ‘%2“9; Strateqic objactives
Retention Risk Employees criteria
Engagement . 57 7%
20 SR T, 7S 5% Creates dynamic nclusive
15 70.0% and inspirng work
o e : environment that attracts,
develops and retains the besr
Oon-time Perrantage of production cortracts delivered on time from Oo- Programme @ Strategic objectives
delivery threGroup L,—‘;’ Risk &8 Customers critea
21 ’ 85.2%  «f»s Supply Chain Partner w th tustomers as
20 T 525 16 Risk preferred s poiiers Evering
19 78 2% innovat ve solutians that
m Recruitment and create 'win-win’' cutcomes
@ Retention Risk for all parues
Healthand  The number of reportable accidents per ©,000 employees & Health and Strateg c objectives
Safety/near g Safety Risk @ Communines criteria
miss reports 21 _ 0-5% To conduct bus.ness in an
a 07% ethical, safe and sustainable
19 I - way, acting 25 3 posit e farce
12 S 0.6% and rraking an active
contrbution to sur
communities
Solution Total revenue of new solutions gve- the last five years o, Programme ‘:i Strategic objectives
vitality versus gverall Group revenue. Thisis a measure of our Ge Risk &1 Custorrers crtena
index ability to deliver rew solutions ard mvest iInthe rignt places
which deliver growth Thisreolaces our Internal R&D KFI Partner with custorers 2s
preferred suppliers deliver ng
n 5% innovanve solutions that
NOE previously measured create win-wn' Quitomes
for alt parties
Market Mar«et share of our addressable markets Our core focusis Bid and Contract Strateqic objectives
share or the Maritrne and [rtell gence & Commurications markets. [Ej Risk ﬁqiq‘_‘) Custorers criteria
Our addressable market share (measured using organic
revenue in the year) % Programme Partner witn customers as
+ Marmime; 30.4% (2020: 31 1%) Risk preferred supplers delivering
+ [rteligence & Communications 7.3% (2020: 7.5%) @ Recruitment and 'ﬂnovaf'ue SOIUF‘OnSIhat
. . Retention Risk create win-wirn' outcomes
+ Critcal Derectian & Contral 13.1% (2020'14.0%) for all psrties
Reducing Reducing Scdpe ~ 1o 3 greennause gas (GHG) emissions Governance, @ Strateqic objectives
emissions relative to 2019 basehne (Scove 1 and 2 ar y) for tC0.e/Em é Compliance Cormurnit s critera

of revenue. & Controls

OQurtarget for 202° was to reduce tC0e/4£m by 10% vs 2079, & Envirgnmental
and we delivéred a reduction of 24% vs 2079, Risk

21 13.8¢
b o 15.60

2 TSR 5.1

To conduct business nan
ethical, safe and sustainable
way, 3ctng as a positve force
and maring an active
CONENPUION TG Our
communines
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Our target markets

Maritime
Five-year expected market CAGR2 4%

Anti-submarine warfare is adapting to meet the
chzllenges of increased near-peer threats and
their sophisticated kinetir weapnns that are
capable of being launched from sea. This is
driving demand from aliied forces for anti-
submarine expendables, warfare systems

and surface/sub-surface system infrastricmre,
This relates both to new anrt existing capability
where Ultra is well represented. For example,
submarine hunting patrol aircraft like the P-R
where an additional 100+ aircraft are likely to be
procured over the next ren years This is driving
significant growth in Ultra’s rore marker

with US DoD sonar outlays likely ro pxreed

6% CAGR to 2025.

As Ullra's Lustomers seek to develop and

adopt a3 more integrated and distributed senscr
framework approach to undersea surveillance
and ASW, Ultra alsu has g unique position as

d lealet In Underwater pxpiendahles, sonar
systemns, sub-systems, surface radar markess
and supgpoartive mission technology, afl of which
wil! be needed to provide this architertiire

of tomorrow,

Finally, the recent estatlishment of the

AUKUS treaty and development of a mult-
domain architecture under ‘Project Overmatch’
{the Us Navy's contribution to the Pentagon's
Joint All omam Lommand and Contral effort)
dertiurislrsle the increasing Importance of both
juiniLinte upe abilivy and itiee chdngeaingy
withiin and auuss dllied furces, Ulra is well
positioned to suppeort this as a provider of
multi-sensor, multi-platform anti-submarine
warfare capability connecting all underwater
sensors in development of a commen operating
picture. From adaptive, unmanned platfarms
to hull mounted and expendable sensors, Ultra
is U ealitiy Uie nltastructure 1o optirise si7e,
weight and power while supporting sensing,
cannactivity and decision support applications.

Intelligence &
Communications

Five-year expected market CAGR 3-5%

Across the five-eyes’ nations, national security
forces are mowving to counter threats from
near-peer adversaries by reshaping defence
architectures to support multi-domain
operations. Ultra's customers are focused on
Joint, alt domarn operations which will largely
refrésh command and control infrastructures to
Create a single common operating picture that
enables real-time decisien-making across forces
and domains. As the future battlespace shifts to
amore contested envirotntent, selutions

that provide near-instantaneous situational
dwarenass and securé, resiient communications
to the war fighter are more critical. This change
will drive solutions thatwork acruss land, sea
and air platforms as well as new intelligence
aids that support rapid decision-making.

As rhe naxt generation of the integrated

" battlespace is constructed, decision support

niecharisins wilt be required w enable the

war fighter from the command centre to the
Laclical edge. Ultra's core competencies and
investments in communications systems

such as tactical radios, command and control
gystems and encryption capablilities give it a
highly competitive position to integrate solutions
across platforms and torces. In addition, Ujtra’s
investraents In advanced analytics and AUML
applications far intelkgence processing provide
it uvalive Uedision suppot LLdpdbilives ror tha
integrated Lalllespiacy.

Critical Detection
& Control

Five-year expected market CAGR 2-4%

Aerospace market trends

Despite the inpact of Covid-19, which
significantly impacted the commercial aercspace
industry, PCS's positions on mifitary platforms
such as the F-35 and the Eurofighter Typhoon
have helped mitigate the current trough in

the commercial agrospace market, which is
expected to recover with a 14.5% CAGR over

the next five years. The outlook for commercial
and military aerospace remains strong given

_expected procurements in new aircraft,

upgrading ageing fleets and the development
of indigenous platforms, Ultra’s innovative and
high-integrity control technolagies are ideally
sulted to the growing need for highly reliable,
mission- and safety-critical sensing and aircraft
control systems in an increasingly electric and
data-drniven operaung envirenment,

Forensic Technology market trends

Solving gun crime and providing investigative
leads spanning local, municipal, national and
international networks requires effective

and fast solutions. The latest innovations in

3D, guantum microscopy are unlacking the
petential for chjective methods to assist expert
conclusions in court on the potential match
between firearms and bullets. Ultra’s Forensic
Technology business remains the market leader
in helping its customers develop preventative
gun crime strategies which not only enable them
1o respond more quickly ta incidents but also
increase their lead generation abilities. The
provision of forensic technology intefligence
remains at the forefront of building these
strategies. In conjunction, Ultra is developing
artificial intelligence, machine learning and
cloud-based technotogies which are expected
t0 be gradually introduced to the market to
improve reliability, speed and results.

Energy market trends

Although Covid-19 has negatively impacted
the nuclear energy sector m 2020 and early
2021, global demand is expected to recover
and continue to increase in the medium and
long term. Coupled with a growing need to
decarbonise power generation and ensure
domestic energy security, thisis creating
increased investment need in the civil nudlear
power market. Ultra provides critical safety
systems and sensor capabifities o nuclear
facilities around the world to support that
investrment, safeguarding nudear workers
and the public, Ultra is also positioned at the
forefront of emerging technologies being
developed for increased efficiency and
decreased cost of nudear power generation,
such as advanced reactor technologies.

4
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Strategic Business Unit review

Maritime

Cur market-leading mission systems and application
engineering solutions deliver dominance in the maritime
domain. Our broad portfolio of capabilities is operational
on naval fleets across the USA, UK and allied navies
worldwide. We continue to develop advanced specialist
systermns to deiiver defensive warfighting edge in

the modern maritime and underwater battlespace.
These provide critical operational advantages to

our ‘five-ayas’ defence customers across surface,
sub-surface and unmanned platforms,

Performance summary
1 er book grew

YA Que
me market which
Oand 2021.
aw strong arder mtake for

tems from India,

v for the Canadian
mbatant, torpedo nase
ar-ays and orders for Next
Generation Surface Search Radar
{NGSSR]) for the US Navy,

verue grew 5.3% organically, with
increasing sales particularty of Next
Generation Surface Search Radar
and torpedo nose arrays. Demand
throughout the year was strong,
but sates growth was negatively
impacted by supply chain
interruption and extending lead
times, which were particularly
disruptive in the last quarter,

Underlying aperating profit grew
8.6% organically to £59.4m (2020:
£58.6m). Maritime's underlying
upeating tharginninmipgrovedd L 18,0%,
supported by improved operational
gearing in our growing Naval
Systems business, transformaticn
benefits and £4m of profit from a
one-off [Piicence, all partly offset by
H1 programme issues, a recurrence
of pandemic-related supply chain
interruptions in Q4 and £2.7m of
extra organic investment into
internal R&D, primarily to suppart
development of the next generation
of Ultra sonobuoys, Statutory
operating profit grew by 4.3%

to £58.3m (2020; £55.9m) and
statutory operating rmargin .
improved to 14.7%(2020; 14.3%). =

FINANCIAL RESULTS

? g
£m 2021 20205 TEIATe Qrowtr groar Tt
Ordar book 683.6 5396 5411 +26.7 +26.3
Reverue 3954 3313 3720 405 63
Underiying operating pro‘ic 59.4 S84 547 $14 2.6
Underlying operating margin T 15.0% 1 5.0% 14 7%
Statutory oparating profis a 58.3 55.9 4.3 T
Statutary Gperating margin 14.7% 12 2%

i
N
A
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ORDER BOOK

+ Sonar Systems continues to see strong
demand with key strategic orders wonn
2021, including the Indian Navy Integrated
Anti-Submarine War fare Defence Suite worth
<.£60m and continued crders under the
Canadian Surface Combatant programme.

+ Sonobuoy Systems was awarded ¢.£90m
of orders under the ERAPSCO S-year
Sonobuoy IDIQ as well as an important
continuation contract worth c.£30m for
sonobuays to the UK MaoD.

+Naval Systems and Sensors saw strong
arders on the Next Generation Surface
Search Radar production programme
far the US Navy, important new orders
under the US Navy NIXIE pregramme to
deliver clectro acoustic towed torpedo
countermeasure systems and continued
strong orders for countermeasure arrays.

+Signature Management and Power saw
continued demand for replacement SMAP
products on the UK Vanguard and US
Virginia class nudear powered submarines
in addition to the key strategic award on
the UK Submersible Ship Nuclear {Maritime
Underwater Future Capability}. Strong
demand continues for our Human Machine
Interface (HMI) capabilities, including a
major award cn US Army Bradley IFV, which
enables control interface systems for the
next-generation platforms.
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Strategic Business Unit review
continued

Intelligence & ORDELR DOOIC
Communications e e e

] o . ) ] organically by 35.4%. The larger orders
We are experts in mission-critical, multi-domain won in the year inciude:
intelligence, communications, command and cantrol, + Communications
cyber security and electranic warfare solutions. Cur Orders in 2027 were £140m with major
innovative solutions deliver information advantage contract wins including key orders fram the

; : o US Marines Core, US Army Net Mod and S
globally through the intelligent application of Navy ATCS contract. The OBU significantly

integrated technotogy. diversitied its customer base in 2021
+(2 & intelligence
Performance summary evenue g 1N1Ce Continues to expand its presence in
i ; ; the situational awareness space with
angeing sustainment awards for its ADSI
from the USAF and other key custormners
internatianally with a number of awards
including an award from the Taiwan Navy.
We were also awarded multiple contracts
G provide integrated command and
control systems for Tunisia and Rormania
collectively worth $14m ard $9m for
development of Marine Air Defence
Integrated System (MADIS) for Ground
Based Air Defence (GBAD) future
WE3PONS SyStem.
+Speciaiist RF
Continues to have a strong position on
key US DoD programmes providing key
s toe telermetry, tactical and electronic warfare
Alr Defence ofit are ' components to our prime partners with
1S) for ) ongeing awards for programme of record.
ce (GBAD) T . imr In addition, we were awarded a contract
: for EWST (Electronic Warfare Sirmulation
Technology)with Airbus for Germany
Defence forces in the amount of £5m.
+Cyher
Won £83n in orders with major contract
wing induding the UK MoD cantract.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

2320 ter
argan Organic
£m measure Growtn growth %

Order book 2386 +36.2 +354
Revenue 2287 +0.1
Underlying operating profit o314 +13.1

Underlying operating margm- 13.7%

Statutory operating profit +30.4
Statutory aperating margin
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Critical Detection
& CO ntro I gac\fr continued good top-up orders for the

. F-35 programme across HIPPAG, Engine
Precision Control Systems (PCS) designs and supplies Ice Protection System (ELPS), ELPS Harnesses
market-leading safety and mission-critical solutions, and newly introduced high pressure dynamic

; . ;. . ) i interconnects. [n addition, strang Typhoon
primarily to the military and commercial aerospace markets. platform ordars driven by the Quadriga

. . o o programme (Germany) and initial funding
Forensic Technology is the world leader in ballistic for new development activities on the

identification and forensic analysis solutions. A330 and A400M platforms.

Energy designs and supplies safety-critical sensors Forensic Technology

and systems, and selected products for nuclear and Elecer;‘leldTag OrdEFFfrom fheaUz EU;’EU of

. : : . cohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives

industrial applications. for additional 1BIS products and SafeGuard
services to be deliveraed in 2021 and 2022, as
well as multipte new orders from customers

1 in Thailand, the Netherlands, Chile and

primarty G ‘ Uganda for IBIS products and SafeGuard
services. In particular, Ultra FT won a $24m
order from Brazil tc deliver 37 new IBIS sites.
Contract extensions were also recaived from
the South African Police Service (SAPS} and
customers in _anada, UK, Australa and
Hong Kong.

Performance summary

Energy

Won a substantial new programme with
Costain supporting Atomic Weapons
Establishment for project MENSA Health
Physics System. Ultra Energy also won

initial contracts for design censultancy with
Kairos Power and USNC (Ultra Safe Nuclear
Corporation) positioning us in the emerging
Advanced Reactor market. Work has also
started with Blue Origin further establishing
Ultra in the rocket engines market.

with

tocom

FINANCIAL RESULTS

2020 for
arganic Organic
Em [uEEENTE Growth growth %

Order book _ 2870 +2.4 25
Revenue 2158 5.7 0.8

Underlyingbperating profit 339 5.0 -4.7

Underlying operating margin

Statutory operating profit 1.0
Statutory aperating margin
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A Positive Force
Qur commitment to a sustainable future

Introduction: A Positive Force
26 Protecting our planet and society

Qur Environmental strategy

" Climate change, energy and emissions !

Pallution, waste, biodiversity and habitat ' A

Positive

Qur technology and preducts
TCFD Compliance

32 Supporting our people
Builct the talent pipeline

Neveloping our poople

Compelling reward and recognition

Succeed through Diversity and Inclusion

Create a winning culture
Health and Wellbeing
Transform our business

QUR VISION

Our commitment to a sustainable future -

enabling us to conduct cur business in an ethical,
~safe and sustainable way. Ensuring we: protect
Donations and funding our planet and society, support our people
Corporate Uharity Hartnership and contribute pOSitiVEIy to the communities
in which we operate.

38 Giving back
Giving back framework

STCM framework
ONE Ul g Fuices Charter

. . : WHAT DOES ‘A POSITIVE FORCE' MEAN TO OUR ULTRA STAKEHOLDERS?
39 Doing the right thing St

Employee training Employees
Data privacy

Information security

Information assurance

" Qur CSR Committee
Ethics Committee
Supplier Code of Conduct

Working with our peopie and suppliers
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A POSITIVE FORCE

This year we have incorporated Governance,
‘Doing the right thing’ as our fourth critical pillar.
Animportant step in affirming that the way in
whirhwe rin husiness 1s ag important as what
wedo

The below commentary provides a summary
of Ultra's ESG activities in 2021, For rmore detail
please read aur 20021 Sustainability Report

on www.ultra.group

At Ultra we partner with our customers, applying
technology and innovation, to ailow them to
solve mission-critical prablems that protect the
societies inwhich we live, and make the world

a safer place This is why we exist ~ to Innovate

Sustainability 1s embedded in our care business
goals which are measured though our KPTs -
and therefore are directly linked with targets
for remuneration and reward across

today for a safer tomorrow.

Despite the global challenges of the past few

our leadership teams,

years, we have notlost sight or paca in our
ESG ambitions which focus on four key pillars.

WE MADE SUBSTANTIAL PROGRESS ACROSS ALL OUR FOUR POSITIVE FORCE PILLARS IN 2021

Protecting
our planet

and society

Qe n

Pratecting ol planet ncludes
both reducing our environmental
footpnint but also protecting the
socleties and world that we live in.
The ncrease of near-peer threats
1s amplifying the need %or allied
defence investments in the
five-eyes’ nations and Ultra 1s a key
part in creanng the technologies
that keep us all safe. Within the
environmental space we have
focused on our gicbal akgnment

0 IS0 14001 Environment and

150 50001 Energy Managemen:
Systemns, waste reduction and
carbon reduction plans, with Ulera's
commitment to and upcoming
signature of the Unred Nations
‘Race o Zero’ underpinning this.

+ 526

Supporting
our people

As part of our Supporting our
people pillar, Ultra was awarded the
highest lavel of employer
recognition, the UK Armed Forces
Covenant Employer Recognition
Schemne Gold Award. Together
with continued engagement

with veterans’ charities we have
established a Veterans Committee.
This further connects Veterans
and Reservists across the Group,
creating a global community and
aligns well with our ‘Uniguely

Ultra’ diversity equity and inclusion

' workstream, To strengthen these

activities, we are expioring
opportunities to further engage
with our customers’ navies
through two-way secondment
oppartunities.

+ p32

[n 2021, considerable pragress
has been made “hrough our
Giving back actrties. Commurity
voluntesring applications have
grown despite Covid-16 being
prevalent m most of our regions,
with a total of more than 2,000
hours contributed across all
territories in 2021, Where possitle,
the team onentatad evenis
centred around our four gillars
and mdludad environmental
clean-ups, iocal charity fundraising
and educaton outreach. In 2027,
Ultra contributed £312,000vi1a

a combination of employee
fundraising, Match Funding,

and local business donations.

[ the last two years this amaounts
ta mare than £500,000 to
chantable causes (including

the Ultra 2020 Covid-16 fund.

+ paz

Doing the
right thing

Carporate Governance is at the
heart of everythingwe do - so
In 2021 we included our Positive
Force fourth pillar - Daing the
right thing

Our addinonal focus in Hus area
demenstrates that itis not only
important what we do, but also
how we do it, in line with our
ASPIRE values e actively welcome
advancements n governance and
recognise its Increasing importance
In meeting with our obligations.

We recerve reqular corporate
governance updates from our
Company Secretanal team so to
ensure adherence to, and active
promaotion of, alt aspects of our
Code of Conduct, throughout
ourworkforce and supply cham.

We are actively pramoting our
fourth pillar as an integral part
of aur Positive Force framework

+ p39
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A Positive Force
continued

Protecting our society

We live In an ever-changing, unpredictable,
intercannected and risky world. Unfortunately, this
can be seen by recent gec-political events such as
Russia's invasion of Ukraine which demonstrates
defence taechnologies are needed to presarve
peace and democracy.

To protect our sodiety in a sustainable way, our
customers are seeking solutions to a constantly
increasing range of problems that the rapidly
expanding and evolving threat environment

is creating.

These defence technolagies help governments:

+Protect their sacieties from viclent invasion
and loss of freedom

+Preserve demacracy, tolerance and peace

+ Create, sustain and protect critical
infrastructures

+Create and protect systems which support
societies and protect culture

+5Secure space and protect national barders
for people and places to evolve

+Protect society by finding and prosecuting
perpetrators of gun crime,

At Ultra, we beileve that this 1s the very definition
of sustainability and what we partner with
customers to delver. Together with strong ethics,
values and high levels of oversight and regulation,
defence 1s therefore a key element in enabling the
free world.

Protecting
our planet

and society
. M

Carbon reduction (Race to Zero)

Ultra has made an internal cormmitment to
become a net-zero organisation. We are now
working to define the detailed ONE Uitra carban
reduction plan to achieve this. Once outhned,
we will become a signatory 1o the ‘Race to Zerg'
during 2022.

Since 2020 we have made progress on:

+Measurement and reporting of carbon
emissions Scope 3, see page 27

+ Quarterly environmental news bulletins across
the Group reporting plans, and progress

+Embedding the ONE Ultra approach of Avoid,
Reduce, Reuse, Recycle and Offset

+Meeting all reduction targets for waste and
single-use plastics

+Alignment and certification to [SC 14001 and
[SO 50001

+Reducing aur site footprint across our regions -
by 21,000 sq ft since 2019

Encouraging employees in the workplace

to reduce carbon emissions

[nitigtives include but are not imited to:

+Switching off ights when not needed and/or
installing light activating motion sensors

+Switching of f equipment, including PCs and
laptaps, when notin use

+Print only when necessary

+Elimination of paper copies of documentaticn
on our shop floors

+Avold, Reduce, Reuse and Recycle wherever
possible to eliminate waste

+Waorking with our customers and suppliers
to1dentify ways to reduce the environmentai
Impact

+Selecting sustainable matenals as part of our
product and building design and build process

+Environmentally friendly transportation. car
shares, electric cars, public transport, biking

+Sustainable equipment refurbishmenr or
replacement, lock for energy-efficient and
clean energy options

Climate Change, Energy

and Emissions

Our Environmental Strategy

During our secand full year of gur ONE Ultra

approach, we have focused on limiting the

adverse impact of our business on the

envircnment by .

- [ntroducing common measures across
Ultra to start o certify all our businesses

to global Ermvironmental and Energy
Management Standards

- Updating and implementing our Environmental
Palicies which aim to reduce our impact sn the
environment - continuing with a ONE Ultra
Packaging Policy

+Reducing our waste and carbon emissions
through sharing and implermenting ongoing
environmental rutiatives across our businesses

Cur environmental policy

Ultra's established environmental policy
addresses complhance with environmental
legislation, conformity with standards for waste
disposal and noise, the economical use of
materials and the establishment of appropriate
environmental performance standards. Progress
is monitored through annual reperting. Each
site plans and manages comnpliance with
environmental requirements and the processes
for the storage, handling and disposal of
hazardous or pallutant matenals are reviewed
on a continuous basis. Ultra 1s moving towards
a global [SO 14001 certification unifying our
erwironmental management sysfem across

our businesses.

[n 2021, Ultra has continued the process of
ahgning our businesses worldwide to the 1SO
50001 Energy Management standard, an
nternational standard recognising organisations
thatenhance ther energy performance by
implementing an energy management system
(ENMS) based on a model of continuous
improvement. This activity will further support the
reduction of Ultra's energy use, akility ta identify
naw ways 1o reduce emissions through our whole
supply chain and associated cost. The
arganisation will advance to global certfication
across every business in 2023.

2021 emissions

Greenhouse (3as Emissicns

In 2621 Ultra's measurad GHG emissions totalled

12,874 tonnes of CO, (tCO.e) which, relative to

revenue, equates to 15.3 tCO,e per £m of revenue

+5cope 1 (direct fuel consumption and business
vehicles) - 1,855 tCO,e (14.3%)

+5cope 2 {electrical power consumption) — 9,901
CO,e (76.3%)

+5cope 3 (grey fleat business miles and business
air rravel elements) - 1,217 tC0,e (9.4%)

This has resulted in a reduction to 11,756 tC0.e
in 2021 vs 15,010 tC0O,e 1N 2019 on a comparabie
basis, 1.e. Scape 1 and 2 only; Scope 3 not
meas.ired in 2019 (2020 not comparable due
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SECR AND ESOS COMPI TANIE

The Group falls irito e Sheanbigd Eneiygy
and Carbon Reporting {SECR) framework, as

well as the Energy Savings Opportunity Scheme

{ESOS). ESOS phase 2 was completed in 2019
with phase 3 due by December 2023.

We have reported all crission scurces under
the Cornpanies Act 2006 {Strateyic Report and
Director's Reports) Regulations 2013 A
required. The Group can report figures below,
zalculeled Lased v g GHG Prowoeol
Corporate Standard using emissicns factors
from UK government preduced cunver siun
2021 factor guidance. Reporting corresponds
with our financial year and reflects emissions
from the leased, owned and controiled as<ers
tor which the Group is responsible.

The Group mamntain Scope oine (1), twu (2} and
throe (2) emissiong, whicl i gene ated from
our offices, manufacturing siles i busiiess
owned or controlled vehicles, respectively. We
also generate Scope 3 emissions from vehicles
rovered under "groy ficet” (personal cars used
fur business purposesy, and tor the first time,
we have now included air travel.

We have calculated and reported our
ermnissions in fine with the GHG Protocal
Corporate Accounting and Reporting
Standard {revised edition).

The reporting period ks the financial year 2021,
e same as that coverad by the Annual Report
and Hinancial Staternents. The boundaries of
the GHG ventory are defined using the
operaticnal control approach. In general, the
emissions reported are the same as those
which would be repcrted based on a finanaal
controf boundary. Errussions for previous years
are retrospectively adjusted as and when more
accurate data is provided.

Recorded energy ronsumgtion during the
finanaial year was 43,479,318 kwh (13,4753
wivyhy, equating to 128/4tC0e, with a
nEngraphical consumption sphe of 269 LK
Badh USA and 9% in the rest of the world,

The following table provides 2021 and prior
year comparative data, neting that Scope 2
e issiul 15, whith in 2020 only iIncluded grey
fleet, were expanded in 2021 to also include
dh udvel:

Joral

Scape SCope 2 Swope 3 2MISSIoNS 1CO-2 per
Year e [Exals e 10 Ennrivei Uy
2020 1947 11,384 98 13,409 156
2021 1,855 3501 1217 12,974 123

o Covid 19} Refative 1o revenue, this rasuited in

13800 e/Em ravenue 0 2007 v 18 210 0edEm
revenie In 2079, & reduciion of 24% zgainst the
target of 10%

Figure 3 shows measured GHG emissions by
Scope far 2021 GRG Aigures ! and 2 show
combined Scope | and 2 emissions compared
with prior years for 2C0-e and =missicns relative
0 revenLe (Scope 2 data nat avaliakble ‘or prior
years) The dechning trend in emigsions from 2012
orwards raflects achion to reduce 2missions and
actvity changes resuiting fram Cowd-19 10 2026
{and 1o a lesser degrese 2021

Safety, Health, Environment specific standards
Uttra has developed a glebsl single enviranmental

management system (Enh1S). Ultra UK sites have
achieved (SO 14001 certificaticn Alignment
across our Narth America and Australia regions
has been completed with certification planned for
2022 Werecognise that most of the GHG Scope
and 2 1s contnibuted by energy usage. Real-time
data will enahle us 1o realise efficiencies ir
reduction of energy consumption

An environmental management sysiem {EnhIS)
tootkit has been developed and will e launchec
aCross the orgamisazion n 2022 This willk allow all
Ultra's UK businesses  align with 150 20007 35 3
first step, with cernification undertaken by year
end Implemeantation and aligniment across our
North America and Australiar reguons will be
ongoing durng 2022,

FIGURE 1

COMBINED SCOPE 1 AND 2 EMISSIONS FROM
ALL ULTRA BUSINESSES

25,000

2016

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

FIGURE 2

COMBINED SCOPE 1 AND SCOPE 2 INTENSITY
METRIC: tCO.e/EM REVENUE

20t

M7 2018 2019 2020 2029

FIGURE 3

TOTAL EMISSIONS BY SCOPEtCO.e

Scope 1

v Scope 2 = Scope 3
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A Positive Force Protecting our planet
continued

Energy efficiency measures undertaken 2021

The Group has been actively engaged in measures

to reduce its energy and emissions, throughout

2020 and the current reporting period, as follows:

+Moving our facilities to energy agreements
sourced from clean energy when they expire

+Replaang old halogen, T8 and wiefficient lamps
with low-energy LEDS

+Investing in PIR (Passive Infrared) detectors
connected to office lighting

+Replacing ageing office equipment with
energy-efficient products

+Expanding wdeo conferenang and online
meetings (as opposed o face-to-face meetings)

+Replaung older, naffruent boilers, along with
older electricity water heaters

+Revising our remote-working policies to enable
employees to have a mare flexible approach
to their working day, while meeting our
business needs

+Investing In Improvernents o our employee
connectivity and facilities which has
demonstrably improved our teams’ effectiveness

+A new company car Pelicy to encaurage lowering
Emissions

+Encouraging the move te hybrid and electric
vehiclas hy instigating the assoclated
Infrastructure

+Revised travel policias ta refocus our team on
essential travel only

+Formalised guidelnes addressing envircnment
and sustamability in building refurbishments/
relocations

Ultra 1s commutted to the Science Based Targets
Initiative framework and has summarised

our progress towards the Taskforce on Cimate-
related Financial Disclosures, as shown in the
sustainability governance section on page 29
of this report.

Pollution, waste, biodiversity
and habitat

Prevention of poliution

The markets in which we cperate are increasingly
focused on sustamnability and reduction of
pollution. This s partcularly evident in our
Energy business which makes critical sensors and
systems for nuclear power generation. We make
every effort, where pessible, to reduce adverse
environmental impacts. Prevention of pollution
at Ultra includes using resources and materiais
more efficiently, material and energy substitution,
as well as reusing, recovering and recycling as
much scrap and waste material as we can. We

set ourselves measurable targets for the focus
areas of decarbonisation, aircular economy and
transformation of the workforce. This ensures

an effective operationalisation of sustainability,
with clear responsibiliies and processes. These
activities are further reinforced by inttiatives

such as our single-use plastics reduction nitiative
and the creanon of a ONE Ultra Packaging Policy.

Protection of the environment, bicdiversity and
restoratian of natural habitats

Ultra recognises the importance of protection of
the environment, of biodversity, and the need for
conservation and restoration of natural habitats.
Ultra strives to nat enly limit our business impact
on the envirurinenL but alse support maintaining
biodversity

[n 2021, Ultra ectively supported maintaining

hiodiversity by:

+Continuing our Avord, Reduce, Reuse, Recycle
initiative across all our sites to reduce the
amount of waste we contribute to landfill sites

+5Supporting lecal animal crganrsations to help
preserve endangered species in our community
spaces through protection and development of
protected habitats - for example, the Kangarao
Pouch Arimal Orphanage

+5upporting bicdiversity partnerships locat to
our businesses - far example, employee
volunteering at local Wildlife Trust parklands

Ultra launched our ONE Ultra Single Use
Plastics Policy in 2020.

Single-use plastic 2021 progress

+ 21 single-use plastic initiatives and
improvements made giobally

+More than 36,000 face masks recycled

+Ultra has committed to eliminating
single-use plastic cutlery, plates, straws
and cups by the end of 2022

+Reduced our plastic consumption by
over 75,000 items

+Moare than £10,000 saved on purchasing
plastc cups, cutlery and baottles every year
gaing forward

+Several Ultra sites have moved vending
machines over to biodegradabie cups,
resulting in a reduction of 45,000
single-use plastic cups being used

Our technology and products

Our technology, products and

the environment

We are immensely proud of the wark we do to
protect miktary personnel, who risk their lives
to protect us. Through aur technology we keep
societies safe, make the jobs that aur military
personnel do less risky and ensure that we are
protecting our nauons. Technology is at the
heart of Ultra's mission to innovate today far

a safer tomorrow’

[n every market where we operate, Ultra's work
is about using our know-how and ingenuity

to protect and defend what matters. We know
that technology and harnessing technological
innovation is key to supporting sustainable
development We are investing in our engineering
teams across the Group, providing targeted
rraining in sustainability in design, and we are
always locking for new projects that support
sustainabie development. From a sustainability
perspective, often, our projects require us o

upgrade systems ar keep existing complex
systems operational for decades without having

a significant impact on our customers’ operatians.
This approach typically saves time and money, and
has a lesser impact on the use of the world's raw
matenals and production of wasre

Sustainable resources - our products
Oppaortunities to improve product differentiation
through impraved energy efficiency outcomes are
akey part of our systems design partnering with
customers and end users. Our ‘A Positive Force'
sustainability plan will seek to crystalise a wider
oppertunity to differentiate ourselves more widely
within eur sector, through living our values and
ermbedding envaronmment and sustanability
factors nto how we do business to meet the
needs of our communities as one of our five

key stakeholder groups.

Environmental considerations are made
throughout a product’s lifecycle, from concept
through to disposal. All Ultra businesses ensure
that theyr practices and processes consider the
environment - but we recognise that there is more
to do inour industry Ultra expects all suppliers to
futly comply with applicable laws and adhere to
internationally recognised environmental, social
and corporate governance standards. Adopting
procedures and practices to minimise any
negative impacts on the environment, we work
with suppliers to reduce the impact of our
products and to take account of environmental
factors in the materials and components used.
Controls are in place at sites to drive efficiency and
minimise waste, which is disposed of appropriately
using specialist contractors where necessary.

Those of our businesses that require use of
hazardous substances, e.g. radioactive sources, as
part of standard operations do so in line with local
and government legislation and security aspects,
which is monitored ciosely by compliance audits,
executed by requlatory bodies.
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TCFD COMPLIANCE

Compliance witl TCFD requirefients

Wa complywith the TCAS Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3)
anr wath the |CFDYs Recornmendations and
Recommended Disclostires as nurtined in the
narrative below, with the exception of the
following specific disclosures:

Strategy 2b: The organisarions’ disclosures should
reflect a Moiistic picture of the interdependencies
among the factors that affect their ability to create
value aver time. Organisations should describe the
#mpact of dimate-related isswes on thelr financial
performance (e.g. revenues, costs) and financiof
position fe.q. assets, liabilities). If cimate-refated
scengrios were used to inform the organisation’s
strateqy and financial planning, such scenarios
should be described.

Our climate risk assessment in 2021 ratified our
recognition and assessment of five core climate
risks for Ultra as identified below. Further work
is now needed with expert advice and widened
seenario testing to fully assess and disclose

the financial implications, especially in relaticn
to power and utilities costs, and the potential
costs ofimplernenting our cfimate strategy

and nat era plan. Thase preces ulwurk are
planned to start in H1 2022,

Strategy 2¢: Crgarnisations should describe how
resilient their strategies are (0 cimate-refated risks
and opporturities, taking infa consideration g
transition to o low-carbon economy consistent with

2°C or fower scenario and, where relevant to the
FItE I AU, SCCRaNOn consistont with fiu susedd
physical thimate-refated risks.

In 2021 risk assessment work was undertaken
which identified a potential exposure in the
medium term of some of gur operational sites
toincreased and more extreme weather events.
In order to finalise our site resilience strategies
for this risk, we will work with our site risk
engineering and insurance partnerin 2022 and
2023 to develop a site-by-site exposure and
control requirement plan based on a range

uf dinnule dhange conseyuence scendanos. THIS
will enable full assessment and disclosure of the
resilience of our strategy in refation to this risk.

Metrics and Targets 1b:; Organisations
should provide their Scope 1 and Scope 2
GHG emissions independent of a materiality
assessment, ane if appropriale, Scope 3
GHG emissions and the refated risks.

While Ultra fully discloses Scope 1and 2
emissions, we are in the process of expanding

our capability to fully disclose Scope 3 emissions.

Building on our Scape 3 disclosure of grey fleet
and air travel emissions for 2021, work is being
undertaken through 2022 to fully define

Scope 3 metrics appropriafe to Uitra and to
implement mechanisms necessary to monitor
and disclose thermn.

Metrics and Targets A¢: Organisations should
desctibe thei key « nnnte-reloted targets such
ws thuse rekited to GHG emissions, water usage,
energy usage, i Organisulivns distiusinyg
rrweddiurn-ierin or fong terem targets should

afso disclose associated interim targets in
aggreqate or by business ling, where avuiluble,

In 2021 Ultra marde an internal commitrment

to become a net-zera organisation and 1s now
working to define the detalled ONE Ultra carbon
reducticn plan to achieve this. We will not be
able to set hard long-term GHG emissions
targets, or the asscciated interim targets,

until this work and work ta expand aur Scope 3
metrics coverage completes during 2022, In the
meantime, we have set a year-on-year 10% GHG
reduction-relative-to-revenue target for 2022,
for Scope 1 and 2 and the efements of Scope 3
we are currently abie to measure.

Governance

Progress to date: The Ultra Board has overall
responsibility for how we identify and manage
climate-related risks, delegated to the CSR
{Corporate Soclal Responsibility) Committee
which oversees our climate change strateqy.
programme and goals. The Board considers
climate-related risks as part of its wider strategic
risk review whichis also taken intc account in
determination of risk appetite. In addition the
Chair of our CSR Committes presented on
C5R strategy, progamme and goals during the
year, with a cadence of future presentations
twice 3 year,

The risk framework 1s linked to the financial
statements testing with scenario and sensitivity
testing of relevant principal risks in support

of the viabiity and going concern statements
approved by the Audit Committee, While climate
risks are assessed as increasing, they do not yet
feature as a principal risk for the Group; however,
they will be included in this analysis if they are
assessed as a principal risk in the furire

The Group Executive Committee manages

our climate ambition and reduction targets and
has oversight of compliance and performance
against Ultra's dimate objectives thraugh the
business performance reporting process and
reports from the CSR Committee (three times
in2021).

The Group Chief Risk Officer and central Health
Satety and Environment team work closely with
the CSR Committee and suppart the businesses
in identifyirg and managing climate-related risks
and opportunities at Business Unit level.

—|— page 42
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A Positive Force Protecting our planet
continued

TCFD COMPLIANCE continued

Strategy

Assessrent of «lirmate change nislkchas been
undertaken lacking at the short term {1-2 years),
medium term (3-5 years) and long term (6 years
plus), with the timeframes identified in aach

of the risks outlined below. The process of risk
wentification is summarised under the risk
manaqement sectian helow

Progress to date: Although recognised as an
erneryent and increasing risk in the medium to
long term, our risk assessments indicate that
climate change is not yet a principal risk due to
the nature of our sector, mat kels and operational
footprint, but an area of cpportunity to mature
cur dimate and CSR agenda against a backdrop
of a low emissicns/intensity business. The
following key climate change risks/opportunities,
specific to Ultra have been identified:
+Risk: Stakeholder climate change and ESG
strategies have a reduced business and
investment appetite for businesses perceived
as imrmature in management of impacts of
climate change o nsufllidienitly committed to
stopping/reversing global warming (Medium
level risk for the short to long term). Mitigating
factors/strategies:
+ Develcpment of CSR and ESG strategy under
recently established CSR Committea inclyding
a net zero emissions aim 1o be launched
n 2022
+ Customer climate and ESG focus currently
Juw bul expected to Increase prograssively
post COP26
+ Supply chain - currently ESG immature -
new Code of Conduct for suppliers launched
Q12022
+ Ernployees/Communities adapting a high ESG
and climate focus, which aligns with launch
of Ultra’s new values and CSR strategy
+ Risk: Extreme weather events due ta climate
change threaten business continuity at our
operating sites (Low risk in the short term
rising rn Madium in the medium term if
we fuil W invest in resiience). Mitigating
factars/strategios:
+Expert risk engineering analysis indicates only
three minor sites i pulential flood risk areas
{taking into account an estimated 1-2 metre
sea fovel rise from up tu 2 degrees of giobal
warming); no sites in earthquake zones;
but some sites suljecl W potential storm
exposure midwest and eastern USA
1 Lowy Dusinss interrupoon impact due
to low intensity of core ops and long-
term business model
+Fffertive husiness continuity planning pruvern
In nperatinns through Cowd 10

+Networks/ infrastructure - Ultra has lnwer
risk profile due to operations’ grography,
lwnyg-term business model and proven
remate working capability
+Supply chain - low volume business model
with limned logistics challenges with proven
business interruption management through
Covid19
+ Risk: Casts ot pawer/utility supplies increase
due to climate change regulatory actions
{Low risk for medium to long term). Mitigating
factors/strategies:
+Low intensity operations with light electronics
assembly profile for power and utilities
consumption
+ONE Ultra strategy to crystalise efficiencies
in footprint and aperarions/power usage
+ Risk: Increased costs of implementing Ultra's
climate strategy or new “taxation” on Ultra own
residual emissions/activities (Low risk for the
medium ta long term). Mitigating factors/
strategies:

+ Low emission profile — law intensity oporations
+Ultra currently early in our CSR/ESG strategic
focus, but new emergent strategies under

CSR Committee will embed from 2022

¢ Clinate pusitive business in knergy nuclear
contribution

+Upporturity to mandate dimate/CSR factors
ln supply chain in new bupplie: Cotle ul
Conduct

Risk: Climate Lhdiige consequences increase

Geo-politicat disruption/uncertainty (Low risk/

potential opportunity in the long term}).

Mitigating factors/slrategies:

+Ultra tootprint and business model mitigates
potential pratectionism risks

+ Risk of general economic downturn offset
by pricritisation of deterrence and defence
in gec-politically unstable mes

+ Opportunity: One of Ultra's five Strategic
Business Units sensors and controls used
in the safe operation nf nuclear power
generative, This is recogrised as an :
opporfunity for possible future market growith
as nuclear energy plays a pai Lin the transition
away from fossil fuel gencration, as well as &
factor that may contribute positively to offset
unavaidable residual CO, emissions as part
of Ultra's net zeio aspiration.

| he work we have undertaken on climate
change strategy represents partial
compliance with TCFD, having identified
that we will need further review with expert
advice to fully articulate and implement

it pets o achieving et zero, and

Lu widet uur seenara teshing, | hese pieces
otwork are planned to startin H1 2022,

| —{— page 26

RIsk management

Risk assessment approach:
Ultra's general risk management framework,
embedded into the strategic planning prrcese
as outlined in the risk management section of
the Annual Report and Accounits, requires our
Business Units to 3ssess risk in relatinn rn the
delivery of their proposed strategy and
objectives. Consideration of climate risks forms
part of the risk considerations for this process.
From the outputs of this process, businesses’
perceptions of climate risk were focused on this
as one of several drivers of business interruption
risk through natural catastrophe iImpact on sites.
+ At carporate/functional level, Ultra refreshed its
climate-focused risk review, taking into account
the recognition of business interruption risk
from Business Units. In 2021 this review
included consideration of direct impacts from
asea level rise of 1 to 2 metres generated by
global warming of up to 2 degrees. None of our
major sites wou'ld be at direct risk from sea level
rise, with three minar sites potentially at risk of
floeding from cother extreme weather factors.
This process generated the full list of climate-
related risks identified above and stihstantiated
the overali assessment of climate change as an
Increasing emeraent risk bt nnt a prindip sl
risk for Ultra in the short term.
+As reported in the risk section on pages 42-46,
the Executive Team and the Board undertake an
annual exercise to set the risk appetite against
our principal nisks. While cimate change is not
yet a principal risk, the Board and Executive
Teamy's appetite tor all regulatory and
stakeholder compliance risks in 20271 (which
would include cliniale change) has been ser
at"Low”. Low Risk Apgetite is defined as "The
company takes caution and often accepts as
little risk as passible”, with the risk management
critenia being "Risk response actions are taken
even though prevention costs are greater than
expected incident costs”,

Risk management and assurance approach:

+ BUSINESSES report progress against in-year
abjectives (this would include repoerts by the
Energy SBU against future climate-related
business opportunities), incidents and changes
intheir nisk environment as an embedded
elernent of their business performance review
process. No climate-related incidents or issues
were emergent for 2021 from Business Units.
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+Among other environmental targets, a key
performance indicawr for 2 109 reduction
in like-for like greenhouse gas emissions tor
2021 {compared with 2019 a5 a pre-Cuvid-13
comparator}, While businesses responded to
Lhis cbjective and report on actions to the CSR
Committee, current manual processes only
allow for annual monitoring of the full GHG
performance indicator. Ultra is implermnenting a
new Health, Safety and Enwvironment software
solution in H1 2022 which will enabie a regree
of automation and in-year monitoring from
the end of 2022.

+ I he CRO has worked dlosely with CSR

Committee and teamin developing our CSR

strategy and framewaorks for its delivery, which

incorporates dimate change and emissions

considerations and which is reported in full

in our ESG report.

The approach to management of the external

stakeholder climate risk idontificd above 1

addressed at corporate fevel throngh

callahnration betwepn the 7RO, 73R, Cusiomer

and [nvestor Relatiens leams. Recnnnitinn of

this as o Medium level risk, fnnether with

Lhe apportunities forimprovernenl and

competitive differentiation in the future led to

the establishment of the £SR Committec and

the businesses commitment to ¢ CSR srrateqy

incorporating climate cbjectives.

+Focusing on business interruption from
extreme natural and weather events related to
clinate thange, our near-term increasing risk,
Ultra engaged in 2021 with a new site Insurance
partner across our global footprint on a
two-year basis, where risk engineering
expertise to address business interruption risks
was a key sefection criteria. Having had a review
of business interruption risk resilience in 2021,
recognising increased As part of tho site survey
process undertaken by our nisk engineoring
parther, we will specifically incorporate climate
change impact factors into assessment of site
resilience. Where risk engineering reports
recommend investment ta manage climate-
related risks such as flooding and extreme
weather, a business case will be prepared
for ailocatinn nf rapitgl funds as part mf e
capital expenditure appoval processes.

While complying with the baseline TCFD

regun eIk 0N fIsk managemant, wo will

be improviig wun 1isk miforemation year on year
through use of risk engineering partners as
identified above as part of a process of
cortiniians improvemaent in this areq.

+ page 42

Metrics and targets

Metrics
Recegnising Ultra's current climate risk
profile, metrics are focused un near-term
risks/apportunities:
+Measurement of CO, emissions fstakeholder/
complance risks), For 2021 and before, Ultra
has at minimum complied with regulatory
emissions reporting requirements, including
SLCR, UK ESOs and 1CFD, which includes all
Scope 1 and 2 emissions and, from 2020,
defined elernents of Scope 3 emissions. In
2021 Scope 3 emissions in relation to business
alr travel have been added o ‘grey fleet’
(personal cars used for business purposes)
in our coverage of Scope 3. We will continue
o expand cur Scope 3 emissions reporting
coverage inlive witl 1 egulatory requiremernits
and to support cur monitaring of pragress
aydii L U Ie Aspiration to achicve net zero
We miodilun delivery of mananement actions
aydil isL SILE 3K engineering reports which may
in the fuluwe inuude detions tonligate
clinale driven busingss inlerruption nsks
including investment in site protections.
+We support and monitor ESG assessments/
tatings of Uttra hy specialist ESG index
1arikillgs as an indicator of stakehoider
climate risk perceptions.
+We use standard business metrics relating
to cost, revenue, pruflt ete, to assess and
monitor business opportunities including
future opportunities in ocur energy business
driven by the transiticn away from fossil fuels
in power generation.

Targets

+For 2021, we set a GHG emissions reduction
target ul 10% refative to revenue against
reported emissiung in 2019 (2020 was
dizcounled gs unrepresentative due to
Covid-19}. The actual reduction of like-for-like
emissions reductions achieved in 2021 was
4.41CQ,e, delivering a reduction relative to
revenue fram 18,2 tCOe/Em revenue in 2019 to
13.8 tCOe/Em revenue in 2027, or a reduction
ol 240 aganal Lk 10% 14eriscope 1and 2
only as Scepe 3 was not reperted in 2019). 2021
represented a year of full operations At sitag
Bul with sume residual home working due to
Covid 179. Tuy 2022, we have set a turther 10%
reduction target relative to revenue against
20271 emissions.

I During 2021, Uitra has set an aspirational gnal
of achieving net zero emissions. In support
of this, Ulu 4 has engaged specialists ERM to
conduct an independlent gap analysis and
dimate strategy review in H1 2022, which is the
first slep to preparing a detailed milestone plan
for achievement of net zero, with a broader
target framework and KPIs to replace our
current relative annual 10% reduction targets.

We consider we are currently partially compliant
with the metrics and targets requirements of

© TCFD, with further work identified for 2022 to

2023, to enable us to expand our monitoring and
reporting coverage of Scope 3 emissions (beyond
the grey fieet and air travel implemented so far),
and tc develop hard targets to replace our
current year-on-year reduction targets.

+ pages 26-28
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A Positive Force
continued

Build the talent pipeline

Faving the nght talent at Ultra s crincat to
ourslccess. We have continued to invest in our
internal talent acquisition (TA) ream and expandad
glabally in the JSA, Canada and UK regions fo
support additional recruitment needs, which
has led to excellent outcomes in 2021
+ 776 offers accepted
+82% of offers extended are accepted
+Reduced UK agency spend by £431,522
+Added our Forensic Technology and
Comimunications Operaung Business
Units into our TA made!

The TAteam created and faclirated a Manager
Fundamental training called "The War for Hinng
and Retaining Talent What You Meed 1o Knaw to
Compere’ for all managers at Ulira, as well as
tranings for interviewang and partnering with the
TAteamn

We also invested in a racruitment campaign which
encourages employees 1o promote our open
positions on sodal media to attract the nght
talent. Thisresuited in additional Glassdaar
reviews, an Improved presence on LinkedIn

and addimonal referrals for our open positions

Additonally, we la.nched a new Global Referral
Programme that rewards our employees for
successfully refernng people to Ulra and allows
therm the option to donate ther referral payment
to alocal chanty

Supporting
our people

Developing our people

within Ultra, we have superks leaders who are
technically and operationally excellent, Fowever,
we also understand the chalkenging environment
that all global companies are now aperating in
post the global pandemic Couple thiswich the
ransforrmarnon agenda that we have over the
naxt few years, and the ask of our leaders going
forward will b2 much greater For this reason, we
have spent the past year focusing on developing
our leaders across the orgarusation, as well as
seeking out talented colleagues who we beliove
are our future

I 2021, we continued odr snvestment in
and further developed several key nitatives
to develop our diverse leadership team,
which include:
+Improving our operating madel, which lasnchecd
Injanuary 2021, Specifically, within the Mantime
and Intelligence & Communications Strategic
Busingss Units {3BUs), we created four
Operating Business Umizs {O8Us) in each SBU.
40% of leadership roles within these new QBUs
were filled with individuals who were new. This
has strengthened our leadershup and created
more bench strength for Ulira.
 Launching our Jitra ‘STAR leadership model,
which focuses on four key areas: Self, Thought,
Achieving through others, and Delivering
Results, which are underpinned by leadership
competencies. This framewark has been
used In designing a leadership development
programme but has also Been used m.
1. Assessing our current leaders
2. Competency-based interviews for all
leadership roles
3 Internal promation and hirng into
leadership roles
4. Qur 360-feedback proce ss whichhas been
designed and will be launchedin 2022

+1In 2021, we partnered mth Duke Corporate
Education to design an 13-menth leadership
development programme for four different
cohorts, Approximately 120 leaders, from top
exec tives to new and emerging leaders, have
raken pariin the DukesJltra Star programme
to date. [n 2021, the *our coharts have
completed several modules covering topics such
as leadership purpose, coaching, strategy,
nnovatien, presence, art of perception
and resilience. The pregramme 1s expected
1o complete for these first 120 paruapants
m Aprl 2022,

~1n 2020, we created the Manager Fundamentals
programme, and a community on our Group
intranet. Based an feedback gatherad through
focLs groups, we improved the programme in
2621 by intraducing live virtual sessions led by
leaders across Ultra, Our kick-off sessions were
cn-led by our Chief Executive, Simon 2ryce, and
our Chief Financial Officer, Jos Sclater. Cur focus
11 2021 was on our transformanon and the
crincal roke aur managers play in supporting
thar work, recruiting and retention, and
change management Arotal of 17 sessions
were offeredin 2021 with an average
attendance of 74 managers per $essian

+ Creating a mentor programme with a
comprehensve toolkit. This 1s currently
bemng tnalled with our Strategies for Success
development programme and our Programme
Managerment group. It will be launched ro the
wider arganisation in 2022

- ln October 2020, we launched Linkedin Learming
across the arganisation, enabling us to deliver
mare e-tearning content £a our ermnployees,
leaders and development groups, To date we
have hacf nearly £0% of our employees activate
therr icences and they have completed
approximately 3,000 courses,

= To help build 3 stronger pipeline of diverse
ratent, and to unlock the potential of women
in Jitra, we partnered with an external
organisation to create & programme called
Strategres for Success (S45). Our core focus
15 to shift the diversity In our senior leaderstup
and meet our 2024 stakehoider goal of having
“d0% of all leaderstap roles filled with 4
diverse candidate”.
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Compelling reward and recognition

In Q2 2021, we relaunched the Ultra Sharesave
schemes, this time including our Australia group,
which resulted in more participation from
empioyees. We were pleased 1o see that
participation doubled in the UK and Canada.

We were able to smoothly transition all employees
to this new plarform and assisted them with
getting adjusted to using a new administrator

In 2021 we contnued to improve our performance
management process. To help drive the cuitural
change desired across the organisation all senior
leaders’ and managers’ performance was
assessed aganst both strategic objectives {the
WHAT') a5 well as the degree 1o which they have
worked in line with cur ASPIRE values {the HOW").
We have run our mid year and end of year
pracesses through the myHR platform enabling
greater analytics and governance.

OURREWARD PHILOSOPHY

Drives high performance
s behavieurs and reinforces
our company values

Delivers consistent & fair
reward, supported by robust
palicies and practices

Competitive to attract, retain
and recognise the falent we need
to drive business performance

Career orientared supporting
breadth and depth of experiences

Transparent, simple to
understand and in compliance
with all applicable faws and
regulations

Incentivises and rewards short-
(¥  andlong-term performance
Bl thar generates value for our
stakeholders

with increased mobility across Ultra due

to the Oneliltra focus, we appointed a new
global mobility provider which will support
our ability to recruit and relocate prospective
and current empioyees, and for potential
graduate rotation programmes.

We also improved reward and recogrition
comimunicalions through our many internai
communication channels and various training
courses which were held to inform employees

of our new annual pay review process and bonus
processes. We alsc held senior leader reward
workshops to improve education and awareness
for end of year discussions and the myHR launch.
We also successfuliy delivered our recruitment
and retention award programme for critical
employees,

Finally, we created and launched a reward book
to explain our reward philosophy and provide
more Information on reward at Ultra, helping
with understanding and sharing the different
components of what we do, why we do it and
how we do it.

Succeed through
Diversity and Inclusion

For more information on our progress with
Diversity, Equity and Inclusion in 2021, please
visit our 2021 Diversity, Equity & Inclusion
report on www.ultra.group

Uniquely Ultra:

[ January 2020, we expanded upon our Diversity,
Equity and Inclusion {DED) plan. This was created
by the Uniquely Ultra team and underpins all

that we do.

Uniguely Ultra is guided in three core bekefs.
‘Be You. Be Open. Be Ultra’ Qur approach

is grounded in evidence-based design of
recruitiment, ocpportunity and progression. New
systems, processes, peopte and measures have

¢ enabled us to gather mare knowledge in order

to make data informed, smart interventions
that will help us move the dial on a number
of aspects of this agenda including pay equity.

Be You - We believe you get hetter ideas and
better outcomes when people can be themselves
at work. When they feel able to act and speak
naturally, knowing their colleagues have got

their back.

Be Open - We want Ultra to be famous as a place
where diverse talent thrives. We are not there yet,
but we will be if we are open and respectful with
each other and if we keep measuring and
improving what we do.

Be Ultra - We believe the most successful teams
are the ones that combine as many different
strengths, 1deas and perspectives as possible

- all working towards the same goal.

Qur Diversity strategy is split into three
strategic pillars:

Having a conversation (human moments):
Creating an environrment where people can speak
up with ideas, questions, concerns and even
mistakes Is vital to leveraging the benefits of
diversity, because it can helg make inclusion a
reality. Promoting awareness and understanding
through open digiogue in safe spaceswil be a
centinuous bullding black of cur strategy.

Adapting our business around our people
(human applications):

Ultra has begun a journey of critically
axamining and Improving our culture, norms
and approaches with a Dversity, Equity and
Inclusion lens.
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A Positive Force Supporting aur peopie
continued

Cur new Diversity, Eguity and Inclusion Policy

commits Yitra to

+Encourage equity, diversity and inclusion in the
workplace

+Create aworking environment free of bullying,
harassment, vicumsation and unlawful
diseTImINATInn, protect the dighity and respedt
far all, and where indmidual differences and
the contributions of all saff are recogmsed
and valued

+Train managers and all ather amployees about
their rights and responsibilities under the Equity,
Dwversity and Inclusion Poficy

+Take sericusly complaints of bhullying,
harassment, victimisation and LlawfLl
discrimination made by fellow emgloyees,
customers, suppliers, visitors, the pabhe and any
athers during the organisation’s work activities

+Take deciions concerrung staff based on mert

+Review emplayment practices and procedures
when nacessary o ensure fairness and tpdate
thern to consider changes m the law

+Monitor the make-up of the waorkforce with
infarmanion such as age, ethmic background,
and sexual orientation, Assess how the Equity,
Owersity and Inclusion Policy, and any
SLPROrTNg action plans, are warking in pracuce,
reviewing them annually, and considening and
taking action w address any 1ssues

Who we are and how we're doing

{individual humans):

e selected the Global Diversity and Inclusion
Benchmark (5DIB) as a powerful enabler of
strategic conversations and an effective planming
ool to help us deliver our diversity, equity and
nclusion objectives You can find thisinformation
n Figure 4,
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Gender analysis

Ultra emplayed 4,253 people at the end
of Decernber 2021. Inthe UK, our female !
representation remains steady at around 23%. !
Globally, we are improving with 28.6% of our
oolleagues women. In comparnison with the UK
defence indiistry and enginearing soctor as
awhole, Ultra has a slightly better proportian
of women working with us

We have seen further small improvements 1n

the gender balance across the lower and upper

quartifer of cur UIC business. This pefls < more

WOMON JOINING OF By peunuted ik our [

leadership frams and an incraac 2 in female talcnl

wilhe early career phase. Ultra's middle quartles

areaary Similar 1o st yea We beileve Lhe root

Lduses gre:

+Reflecting the deep expertise some of our work
requires, Ultra has a 10% higher proporuon of
over 505 emplayees than the national average.
Again, in ine with UK trends* people over 50
tend to have a larger pay gap.

+Caring for dependents 1s disproportionally
undertaken by women and this has increased
due to Covid-19. Consequently, employrment
changes are also likely o have an effect as
households move towards having greater canng
responsibilities, often from the mid-30s upwards.,
As a result, this has histoncally had an impact on
the number of women progressing into higher
paid jabs to the upper quartile.

+Ultra s an engineering business. The number
of women in engineering careers is slowly rising
but at 14.5%** it rernains low.

+A major proportion (~45%) of the wormen in Ultra
have operations fmanufacturing relared; roles.
We recagnise that transferring to higher paid
roles available within the business oftenrequires
additronal quaifications (normally a degree).
Balarcing & fuil-time job, dependent care and
adding qualification study is a significant
undertaking. We are committed o identifying
actions ta enable progression from these roles
into other roles in the organisation.

1
" UK natonal ~ean” Cif ce for Nat onal Statistics 2021
*¥ Engineenng LK

Our ONE Ultra business transformation
began in 2018. In that time, we have seen
an encouraging decline in the Ultra gender
pay gap. :
+Q0ur mean gender pay gap for 2021
IS 4. 796, A positive improvement of
7 percentage points on 2020 and
a 10.8 percentage points reduction
on our 2018 baseline.
+Our median gender pay gap Is 7.8
pereenlaye puits liwer than our
baselivie yedi atid @ 1.3 percentage
poine mprovement on 2020.
+Qur mean gender bunus pay gap has
clused sigriticantly trom 2018 by 14.4
percentage poinls. Year on year the gap
has reduced 12.3 percentage points.
+Similarly, the Ultra median bonus pay gap
has dropped from 48.8% to 20.4% since
our benchmark in 2018.
+1In 2020, this gap was 27.9%; in 2021
this gap fell by 7.5 percentage points
to 20.4%.

Create a winning culture

Employee engagement

We recewved participation from 74% of our
employee population (3,236) N our 2021
engagement survey We are pleased to see that
our averall company favourability has increased
from 59.2%in 2019 to 61.6%. The highest
favourability was shown in the categories

of ‘Manager Relationships’, "Teamwaork and
Collabaration’, and ‘Understanding the strategy
of my business’

The overall engagement index far Ultra was 67.7%;
this was a 2.3 percentage point decrease on the
2019 survey and a 7.8 percentage point decrease
on the 2020 pulse survey.

This was driven by:

+Progress in employees feeling proud to work for
Ultra with a +1.3pts score versus the main survey
n 2019

+Asmall decline in work giving our employees a
feeling of personal accomplishment (-0.9pts) and
employees recommending Ultra as a good place
towaork {-0.2pts)

Alarge decline of -10 1 pts In employees intending
to stay with Ultra for the next 12 months. This is
clearly disagpointing, although it reflects global
trends post the pandemic and uncertainty around
the acquisition of Ultra.

Flexible working

We are committed to creating a culture that allows
our colleagues to reach their potential, within an
inclusive and supportive environment. In the
particularly challenging environment of Covid-19,
our focus on providing a Covid-19-safe work
environment for our people has been a vital
pre-requisite to continuing cperaticns throughout
2020 as a critical defence and energy industries
suppher Beyond the basic prinaples of following
the advice and regulatory requirements in the
local junsdictions of our sites, we have modified
shop floor workplaces, shared areas, catenng
arrangements and shift patterns to implement
effective social distancing at sites and have
optimised remote homeworking for our people
wherever appropriate. Experience from managing
Cowvid-19n health and safety terms will be taken
forward to underpin the health and wellbeing of
peaple through the tail end of the pandemic, and
In terrms of health and safety support for 2 more
flexible approach to balance between home and
site warking, where that has benefits for our
business and people

Living our values

" Throughout the year we encourage our

employees to recognise those who are living our
values and celebrate each other. We received an
incredible 926 employee nominations from peers
for great work done across Ultra in 2021, [n
Decernber 2021, we held our first ever ASPIRE
recagnition awards designed to elevate the
awareness of our values and celebrate employees
who go the extra mile for aur customers, embed
CoNtiNUOUS IMprovement practices, create a great
culture within Ultra, and achieve outstanding
results for our projects and commuruties. Of the
26 finalists, 7 winners were selected towin a
business grant, perscnal cash reward and an
Ultra troghy.
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A Positive Farce Supporting our people
cantinued

Recognising technical talent

We now recagnise the deep technical tafent within
Ultra with the launch of the Ultra Feliows at the
end of 2021, Eight Ultra Fellows were selected
globally across the business. These Ultra Fellows
will support and inspire the development of
technical talent and skall withine Uie Lusiness and
our comrnunities and will share their knowledge
and expertse both internally and externally
through work such as mentoring and STEM
ergagement activities.

Heaith and wellbeing

mental health and welibeing

Across many of our sites, we have mental health
first aiders or Health, Security and Weliness
committees which are there to encourage people
1o talk more freely about mental health. We aiso
offer employee assistance programmes o

all employees, which provide access to advice
and counselling 24/7. We aim to promaote early
infervention to enable gquicker recovery, reduce
stigma and create a positive cuiture.

Ininatrves such as wellbeing biscut briefings,
actvities aligned to calendar events (World Mental
Health Day), and charitable team events have all
contributed to raising the impartance of wellbeing
and mental health. Weekly newsletters provide
additional support with efforts made to fink to

the science behind our physiological responses.

we moved guickly In the first few months of 2020
to pratect the health of our employees, including
recjuiring or encouraging office-based staff to
work from home, depending on the adwice of
local authorities. Our information technology ([T}
teams ensured that thousands of peaple could
work from home each day. Employees working
fram home took a health-based risk assessment
as part of our home-working ergonomics
programme. This gave them advice and, where
appropriate, supportin the provision of office
and IT equipment.

Ultra updated business continuity plans and
supperung guidance to ensure that the safety
and health of our warkers ar facilities remained

a priarity. These plans included robust cleaning
pregrammes, health screemng, sodial distancing,
and providing additional personal protective
equipment in accordance with local guidelines.

We also strerngthened our approach to mental
health. We provided resources to address the
challenges of remote working and to support
employees. We set up local Health and Wellbeing
pregrammes and awareness campaigns o
encourage employees ta pay attention to their
physical and mental wellbeing, and fa suppart
them as they did so.

Throughout the Covid-19 pandemic,
communication with all employees has been
moere important than ever before, Wa increased
comemunication thraugh multple channels to stay
connected with colleagues at home and in our
facilities by regularly communicating changes
through 1vs located on our production floors, in
weelly newsletters, and on our intranet {UftraNet},
and providing support during unclear times For
example, commurnicating the changes of the US
Cowd-19 Vaccination Mandate which impacted

& substantial portion of our employees and
Business Units. As we fearned of government
updates, we turmed them into pracnical

workable solutions and guided our

leadership teams through them.

Risk assessments were required to be submitted
for approval for all business travel to ensure the
safety of all employees.

We adapted to operating through online meetings
and trainings to continue development of leaders,
managers and high-potential employees.

Continuous improvement

Anew Ultra Improvement Group was launched
and 1s roling out our ‘Ultra Way' methodology
acrass Ultra.

The Ultra Way utilises a special set of tools and
skilis from decades of international best practices,
as well as the wealth of expertise and expernience
across Ultra. Atits core is a focus on our
customers, a behef in everyone's ideas, teamwork
and the support of leadership, and how everyone
at Ultra can think about iImproving everything we
do, every day.

ONE Safety initiative; Think Safe, Act Safe,
Be Ultra Safe

Safety is central to the responsible delivery of
our systems and products. We are comrmitted
o mamtaining the highest standards. To
strengthen this, Ultra’s Safety Committee was
established in 2020 and comprises a diverse
group of representatives from across the
business, demonstrating our commitment

o uphold safety above all else, improve
collaboration, share ideas and best pracnice
and embed safety throughout the Group.

The Committee made great progress in 2021,
establishing a cohesive approach to continuous
improvement, safer workplaces and to align
globally under Ultra’s ONE Safety imtiatives.
Local HSE representatives have been operating
at business level to improve alignment,
communication and engagement with greater
ermnployee involvement, supporting positive
change and enabling us to rmeet our safety goals

and targets. Alljoiners now attend health and
safety traning duning the onboarding process and
emplayees attend training at least every two
years, of more frequently depending on ther sole.
We expect the Ultra workforce to only start work
when all required safety measures arein place
and to Intervene when anything appears unsatfe,
or canditions change. We investgate incdents
and aim 1o learn from them, sharing findings

to improve safety performance across our
organisatton and our industry

Ultra seeks to connnually Improve on empioyee
engagement in this area, empowering the
workforce to speak up about hazards in our
workplace, encouraging safety suggestions
and input via improved interventions
delivered through monthly safety talks and:
+Toothox talks

+Intranet and UTV (Ultra TV)

+Guide packs

+ONE Ultra Safety resources

+Safety walls

A ONE Ultra Safety Culture initiative was launched
by the Committee in January 2021 In support of
our ASPIRE values, the mission is to develop a
culture of safety within Ultra that is inclusive,
inmovatve, accountatle, engaged and drives

its people, systerns and product.

Ultra's goal I1s to be the safest workplace possible:
+Create a strong safety culture

+A respansibility for us all

+Everyone Is invalved

+Focus on environmental and energy initiatives

Currently alt UK businesses have adopted and are
operating to a single global safety management
system proved compliant with 1SO 45001, The
management system has been modified for global
compliance purposes and North America and
Australian businesses will adopt and operate o it
through 2022 for [SO certifications in 2022 10 23

Inresponse to the Covid-19 pandemic, we took
additional steps to make workplaces safe for our
workforce and contractors. Ultra embedded
Covid-19 guiding principles to facilitate greater
social distancing, cleaning of workstations and
working from home where possible. Structural
changes included replacing door refease buttons
with sensors, installing Perspex screens and
repurposing meeting rooms tc accommodate
breaks and lunches aligned with social distancing
requirernents. Continueus improvement of sites
at alocal lavet has been established through risk
assessments and employee engagement.
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Personaf Safety Perforrnance - 2021
accident data

In 2021, Uitre had 19 externally reportable
incidents compared with 21 10 2020. Figure 5
shows aur number of reportable incidents
per 1,000 employees has reduced 10 0.4%

in 2021 (2020: 3.5%).

As aresult of our management of the

Covid-19 pandemic, we had fewer employees

on site compared with other years. However,
those able towork from home were typically from
the more benign office environmenes compared
with operations workstations. In addition to
overseang our Cowid-19 contrals, our HSE

teams also progressed the roll-out of our ONE
Ultra HSE programmes and this 1s reflected

In the downward trend in accidents.

Transform our business

In 2021, our first ever global Human Resources
Information System {HRIS), Workday, internally
branded as 'myHR’, went live within our HR
function in February and the rest of the business
n Aprit Since we launched the systam, there
have been over 20,000 successful transactions
completed We successfully launched our annual
perfarmance review and compensation process
in the system which will be completed during

Q1 of 2022.

We implemented a new HR Governance structure
overseeing all our processes and the myHR
platform 10 ensure that we are maintaining
consistency with our processes and have the
right people awning the processes. We have four
global process owners who cover the four major
functions within HR (Talent Management, Talent
Acquisition, Reward, and core HR) and manage
the processes within the system and outside of
the systerm. We held several training sessions for
employees, managers and HR teams o prepare
them to effectively utilise this new system and
improve the efficiency of these new processes

An HR Shared Serace team was created with

a team focusing on the maintenance @énd
development of myHR and two teams providing
HR transactional support to the Operating
Business Units who utilise the system

We also ran aur first global HR Cantinuous
Improvement sprint’ on Ultra’s onboarding
processin Q4 2021, which identified several new
opportunities to Improve how we onboard new
employees across our Group. We are canfident
this will improve the onboarding experience for
our new hires and hiring managers and improve
employee engagement and retention.

FIGURE S5

EXTERNALLY REPORTABLE INCIDENTS
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A Positive Force
continued

Giving back framework

[n 2021, Ultra faunched our first ever ‘Giving back’
framework. Every employee now has available up
10 two days per year o support activities within
their local communities.

Team applications have contnued to grow in Q4
2021 despite Covid-19 being prevalent in most
of cur regions with more than 2.000 hours
rontributed across the globe.

Donations and funding

Our matched fund of £200,000 was launched
inJune 2021. The aim of the fund was for Ultra
to match the local fundraising and/or support
lacal business teams worldwide to encourage
local activity.

Uttra's fundraising activities were slower in the
first half of the year due to Covid-15 lockdowns
but picked up strongty in H2 The full £200,000
fund was donated to worthy causes that were
important to our people in 2021,

in addition 1o this, E70,000 was raised by teams
and more than £30,000 was donated by our
businesses locally.

Our Covid-19 fund from 2020 contributed
£130,000 and further donations/supportin STEM
has resulted in Ultra donating aver £500,000

to charitable activities in the last two years.

Corporate charity partnership

Ultra’s charitable coverage is aligned with Ultra
ASPIRE values and key initiatives including but not
limited to. Diversity and Inclusion, Armed Forces
levelling up and wellbeing.

STEM framework

In 2021, a STEM working group was formed
which includes representatives from across our
businesses' including the technical community,
HR, CSR Committee and Uriquely Ultra, The
goal of our ONE Ultra STEM framewaork has been
to develop a consistent global standard to be
leveraged for shared rescurces, materials,

best practice and collaborative working. The
framework can also be flexed for use in any
iocal Business Unit to meet focal needs and
better align with business campaigns.

The new ONE Ultra STEM framework s due to
be launched in 2022 with armbassadors trained
across Ultra.

CONE Ultra Forces Charter

Significant veterans’ charities engagement
has continued throughout 2021

Ahighlight of our work in this area was Ultra baing
formally awarded the UK Armed Forces Covenant
Employer Recagnition Scheme Gold Award, the
highest level of employer recognition.

Progress has been made with our Veterans
Committee network which 15 growing in
membership with more than 20 volunteers across
the business offering their support to help drive
our Forres Charter Initiatives. To read our Forces
Charter, please wisit www.ultra.group.

Ultra s also a corporate supparter for Amearican
Humane’s Pups4Patriots programme thraugh
donation of funds previously planned for trade
show giveaways'. Following a pilot, this modal of
donations will be rolled out across all businesses
for major defence shows.
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Employee training

We have a zero-tolerance approach to bribery and
corruption anywhere in the world. we will walk
away from any business that we can't win fairly

or legally Our success is built on the trust of our ‘
customers, employees, investors and the general
public. We know the best way to gain and maintain
this trust is to demonstrate that we act ethically

and with intagrity in all of our business practices

We updated our anti-bnbery and corruption
manual and policy in 2020, which is consistent with
the UK Bribery Act, and the US Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act, and any breaches can leadto
dismissal ar terminanan of contract. The policy
guides our employees about what constitutes a
bribe and prohibirs giving or receiving any
excessive or improper gifts and hospitality.

Our Beard of Directors oversees our programme
to prevent bribery. They are supported by cur
Group Company Secretary, who has primary

and day-to-day responsibility for implementing
the poiicy and for monitoring its use and
effectiveness. Every year we launch Group-wide
ant-corruption and bribery training. In the
training we provide several challenging scenarios
1o help our peaple know what to do if they were
o come across issues such as bribery, fraud

and conflict of interest. We strive to ¢reate an
envirgnment inwhich our peaple feal Included
and confident to 'speak up’ and so provide a i
number of routes for them to seek help or
raise Concerns.

The traiming included a clear stance an non-
retaliation against sorneone who raises a concern
ingood faith.

To date, this training and refresher training has
been completed by 99% of our arganisation,
with refresher traiming duc to complete within
the whoie organisation by March 2022, New
emplnyees 3ra ranuired to complote the
training as part of their induction process.

Every two years we undertake global employee
traming on our Ultra Code of Conduct, which sets
the standards we expect all our employees and |
everyone who represents Jltra to adhere to. It
also sets the standards everyone dealing with
Ultra can expect us to demonstrate. Itis a guide
o dong the right thing, helping us to operate our
business responsibly, make ethical dedisions and
maintain our reputation. Alongside the Code of
Conduct, Ultra provided mandatory training and
certification for empicyees through our Learning
Management. System.

Doing the

right thing

We are pleased to report that there have been
no incidents of unethical behaviour or failure to
comply with regulations by Uitra employees

In 2021,

We are also pleased to see an increase In support,
awareness and feedback about our new Speak

Up whistleblower channel for employees to ask
questions or report concerns they think may be

a violation of our ASPIRE values and Code of
Conduct. Speak Up 1s an entirely independent,
anonymous and confidential reporting channel
that is available 24 hours a day, seven days a week.

Data privacy

2021 has been a pivotal year for data privacy
with the launch of Globai Data Privacy traning.
Supparting key transformatan initiatives,
including the iImplementation of the HRIS,
changes to Covid-19 workplace protocols, and
updating key imternal policies, ensure that Ultra
continues to fulfil obligations set out in data
privacy law. All joiners now attend data privacy i
traning during the onbearding process and
empicyees attend training every two years,
or more frequently depending on their role.

We believe that privacy can only be sustainable
when itis intentionally wover into everyday
operations and Ultra's Group Dara Protection
Cfficer oversees data privacy activity across Ultra
working with business teams to promote this
privacy by design ethos. A network of Privacy
Champicns in Operating Business Units

provides daily support. i

Internal palicy documents applying to Ultra
operations globally are reviewed annually with
recent updates to the Data Protection Palicy

and Employee Privacy Notices. As a National
Cybersecurity Alliance Data Privacy Day Champion,
Ultra is proud Lo publicise its commitment ta
privacy sustainability and empowering

ermnplayced 10 e spedl privacy, saleyuard

data and enable trust,

secure data management systemns, operating
Information security poiicies designed to prevent |
pollution of our digital soiutions. As technology
continues to improve, Ultra seeks to implement
energy-saving initiatives such as centralising key

[T sarvices, extending the life of [T equinment

and investing N cloud computing o reduce

power consumption.

Ultra tekes o proactive approach to building \

Adopting uncompramising access control,
multiple layers of security, clear roles and
responsibilities, transparent data privacy regimes,
and routine risk assessment and mitigation,

Ultra holds 1S0 27001 accreditation for identified
information security management systems
operated within our Business Units in accordance
with scope requirements.

Regular security audits and assessments take
place across Ultra's IT netwarks led by infarmaton
security and data privacy subject mater experts
to ensure Ultra practices are not just compliant
but are responsible and sustainable,

Ultra's current Privacy Notice can be found by
accessing www.ultra.group.

Information security

Ultra has its own in-house developed Cyber
security business called CORVID. As a unified Ultra
team, Corparate Security, Group Data Pratection
Officer, [nformation Technology (IT) and CORVID
work together to ensure that all Ultra information
15 protected 10 the highest standards, Compliance
with the diverse security and regulatory data
arotection requirements from around the world
default to the mast stringent requirements

and standards

CORVID was developed in 2013 to safeguard
Ultra's military, aerospace and crntical
infrastructure data, as well as that of its customers
and supgly chain. Ultra identified that traditional
cyber defences were unable to combat the
evolving complexity of cyber threats - CORVID
was creatad to provide a mare comprehensive
solution te the cyber problem.
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A Positive Force Daing the right thing
continued

The protection CORVID offered to solve Ultra's
cyber challenges was so successful that the
decision was taken to make the services available
commercially. We've been ieveraging our
echnologies, capabibities and peopie to defiver
industry-leading cyber protection for ourselves
and our customers from the start.

we'e based in Cheltenham and that’s not a
coincidence As a fast-growing hub for cyber
security in the UK, the talent and opportunities
here are unrivalled.

Ultra's Cybersecurity team continuously works on
natwork hardening, auditing, patch management
and access contral across dverse netwarks to
meet National institute of Standards and
Technology (NIST) 800-171 standards.

vulnerability scanning 1s perfarmed on a routine
basis and then reviewed jointly with Sequrity,

IT and CORVID. The reviews identify gaps and
vulnerabilites requiring mingation reducing our
attack surface, Internal audits are also performed
routinely for complance and insider threar
monitoring.

All joiners are provided secunty training during
the onboarding process and all employees attend
training annually Priviieged users on the network
are provided a more in-depth training focused

on thair specific role in the protection of

Ultra mformation.

Information assurance

Ultra operates in both pubhc and private sector
markets globally. We understand these markets
and the comprehensive legisiative and regulatory
security condimons and reguirements that

they demand.

Qur security subject marter experts waork closely
with government agendcies, the defence sector
and Industry clients carrymng out risk assessment,
treatment, and residual risk management
actuvities to ensure that the informatron systems
and technology we operate and supply, have the
appropriate security controls.

We ensure that the systems and technclogy we
deliver are secure by default and are protacted

in accordance with the relevant policy. In addition
to this, where required, we ensure that they

are aceredited to natonal standards by the
appropriate accreditation body

Ultra holds 18O 27001 accreditation for
identified information security management
systems operated within cur Business Units,
demanstrating compliance with scope
reguirements Ultra has a comprehensive
Group Information secunty governance
framework in place. This framework is based
around comprehensive, and ongoing, risk
assessment. Two key inputs, threat, and
vulnerability, are discussed in the section below.

Ultra has its own in-house security team that
delivers preventative and detective secunity
cantrols across all Ultra businesses. The team

has developed a comprehensive threat-hunting
framnework, designed to keep pace with the
techniques used by malicious cyber actors.

When the system raises alerts, Incident Response
Analysts follow precise play books to ensure
business impact is kept to a minimum., This system
and the procedures are subject to annual review
and accreditation by the internationally
recognised CREST organisation.

The team alsc carries out monthly vulnerability
scans of the Uitra internal and external [T estate.
The results of those scans are made avallable to
the indrrdual businessas through a dedicated
portal. The team also has regular meetings with
all businesses ta discuss their cyber posture.
Ultra has also developed a sophisticated and
intetigence-fueled system o provide ernail
protection service. All emails that reach the
user's inbox are clearly colour-coded alerting

of arvy potential issues.

Our CSR Committee

The CSR Committee 1s chaired by Rikki Douglas, VP
Business Development, Ultra Sonar Systems, and
15 supparted by Ultra's newly appointed Director
of Corporate Social Responsibility. The Cormmittee
camprises reprasentatives from acrass the
business and develops strategy recommendations
on sustainability for the Executive Team to review
and incorporate into Group strategy. For example,
our CSR Committee is leading Ultra's journey to
netzero and how this can be achieved, in addition
to our global Giving back days and STEM
frameworks

Our Executive Tearm is responsible for assessing
our environmental and social risks and
opportunities, including those relating © dnate
change, prior to sending it to the Board for
review and monitoring pragress through our
risk management process, gverseen by our
Chief Risk Gfficer.

Ethics Committee

An entirely independent Committee currently
made up of two independent individuals, Major
General {Retired) Tim Cross CBE and Simon Lowe,
who have vast combined experience wathin the
fields of athics, culture and governance.

We were locking for a thurd member of the
Cornmittee, to be basad in North America, to join
the Commiittee in 2021, but have delayed this
recruitment due to the recommended acquisition
of Ultra.
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The Committee aims to visit Ultra sites on

arotating schedule at least four umes a year

and has a formal remit to:

+ (et an ndependent view of how athically
we are behaving across our businesses

+Monitor alignment with best practice in our
business ethics and corpliance procedures

+Assess how our culture and values are
embedded throughout Ultra

+Review Speak Up reports and challenge
the integrity and independence of our
Speak up platform

The Ethics Committee meets with a diverse
group of employzes at each site wvisit, without
managerment present, and meets with
management separatety. Following the visits,
an independent, unbiased and unedited report
on the percened ethics and culture within the
business is provided to management. The
Committee challenges management where
necessary and, where applicable, provides
impartial advice on how ethical and cultural
matrers could be improved

The Comrmittee then provides honest, objective
feedback to the full Executive Tearm twice a year,
and annually te the Board.

Supplier Code of Conduct

Our suppliers are critical to our ability to run our
businesses. They are involved in almost every step
of our operations - and are often key to having

a positive impact on local communities and
achieving successful business cutcomes,

We are pieased to report that Ultra’s new Suppher

Code of Conductwas launched in Q1 2022, This

Global Supplier Code of Conduct applies to all

suppliers to Ultra and other partners who supply

products and services using contracts or

purchasing terms. Ultra expects all suppliersto

fuily comply with applicable laws and adhere to

mternationally recognised envirgnmental, sacial

and corperate gavernance standards. We also

expect our suppliers to implement the high

standards which Ultra lives by, which cover:

+Anti-bribery and corruption

+Callectve bargaining

+Comgpetitive behaviour and ang-trust

+Conflicts ofinterest

+Diversity, equity and inclusion

+Expart and impart contrals, sanctions and
obligations

+Fair pay and benefits

+Health, safety and environment

+Lobbying and palitical support

+Preventing facilitation of tax evasion

+Responsibly sourced matenais

+Safeguarding confidential information

+Slavery, human trafficking and labour
explojtation

+Working with stakeholders

[n support of the Implementation, awarenass
training will be provided to our top suppliers.

A full copy of our new Supplier Code of Conduct
can be found onwww.ultra.group.

Working with our pecple ‘
and suppliers

Human rights

We believe in our obligation to resgect core

human rights, protect individuals against abuse of
human nghts and take positive action to faalitate
enjoyment of basic human rights. This means ‘
respecting and observing equality and human 1
rights legistation and introducing palictes that ‘
promaote rights and freedoms for all. We value and
encourage diversity within our warkforce and our
talent acquisition pipelines support increased
reprasentation and inclusion.

ultra has zero-tolerance of bullying, harassment
and discrimination towards workers, including all
farms of physical, verbal or psychological abuse,
and we expect our supgliers to adopt the same
stance, We work collaboratively with our suppliers
to ensure that, like our own emgployses and
contingent workers, theirs are protected from
bullying, harassment and discrimination and

they and their supply chain can compete fairly
and have an egual chance of success.

Modern slavery

Modern slavery is a crime and a violation of

fundamental human rights, We believe that all

employment should be freely chosen and oppose

ail forms of slavery, human trafficking and labour

explartation. Ultra has a zero-tolerance approach

o modern slavery and we comply with applicable

labour, employment and modern slavery laws

We are committed to:

+Acting ethically and with integrity in all business
dealings and relationships

+Implementing and enforcing effective controls
to ensure modern slavery does not take place |
anywhere in our business or our supply chains

We expect our suppliers to adopt the same stance
and set out Ultra's expectations for compliance in
our Suppher Code of Conduct.

During 202?, we relaunched our Modern Slavery
and Human Trafficking Policy and adopted the
changes in the UK to comply with the Modern
Slavery (Amendment) Bill.

Conflict minerals

Ultra is commutted to working with suppliers

who ensure the responsibie sourcing of materials.
This means cur suppiiers must only providing
products rmade from matenials, ncluding
constituent minerals, that are sourced responsibly
and veritied as 'contlict free’ in accordance with
OFCD guidetines. We work with suppliers who can
provide Ultra with supporting data of their supply
chain of minerals We require all suppliers and
therr supply chain to be compliant with prevailing
lequslation in respect of conflict minerals as set
outnour Supplier Code of Conduct and supplier
management and qualification processes,

Collective bargaining

Ultra believes that individuals should be fres to
decide whether to join a trade union or other
equivalent organisation of their choice and @
bargamn collectively in support of their mutual
interests. This means we respect the Individual
choice of the worker and the relevant processes
and laws for collective representation and
consultation where applcable,
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Principal risks and uncertainties
We manage risk to support our ONE Ultra strategy

Principal risks and risk managernent

The identification and management of risk is
embedded into our ONE Ultra day-job processes
from the development of gur strategic plan

and businigss vbjeclives, through assessmertt
and pricing of business opportunities and
management of delivery programmes to the
management of our ONE Ultra transfarmartton
and CONtinUCUS IMprovement projects

The Board has overall responsibility for ensurmng
an effective system of sk management,
governance and Internal controls. The Board
reviews risk as part of its strategy review pracess
andl, as part of standard cadence in year, reviews
the Group’s key and emerging risks, and the
contrals and indicators rehed on to manage them,

The risk management framework underpins
Ultra's approach ta managing risk effectively. The
heart of the risk review and assessment process
15 embedded into Ultra's strategic planning
framewaork, which takes a 10-year horizon for the
formulation of our strategy and the identification
and assessment of associated risks, in the form
of changes to currently recognised risks and the
proactive identification of emergent risks The
process Involves facilitated risk reviews with
Business Units and functions, based on their plan
assumptions and scenarios. Emergent risks are
identifled both through testing the pians, with a
focus on new factors such as new operations or
mavrkets, and also from analysis of wider changes
ta the risk horizon and environment, such as
the anticipated impacts of cimate change. The
overall nsk framewaork then enables the consistent
measurement, contral and reporting of nisks
that can undermine the business model, future
performance, solvency or liquidity of the Group
and identifies:
+The causes and drivers of a risk and
accountability for its management
+Its potental consequences for Ultra through
analysis of the likellhood and consequences,
befare and after the impact of specific controls
+ Analysis of the speed to impact of risks to aid
prioriusation, recognising that itis often the
pace with which a risk crystallises that impairs
a business's ability to mitigate and control it
+Articulatnon of the specific conirols and
warning indicators n place or bemng funded and
implemented to manage and mitigate a risk

Day-to-day gwnership of nisk sits with business
and function management, under the monthly
review of the Executive Team to whom the Board
has delegated principal respansihility for nisk
oversight. The Board reviews the Group's key risks
as anintegral part of the annual strategic planning
process and also undertakes a structured risk
appatite review each year faclitated by the

Chief Risk Officar

Risk assurance

Ultra's management, Audit Committee and Board
receive INdependent assurance on our key risks
and contrals through Internal Audit reviews which
are conducted by PWC as our Internal Audit
service provider. The outputs of the risk review
process are a key driver in determining the
Internal Audit plan, alongside the wider critical
control frameworks we rely upon, with the plan
approved by the Audit Committee for the coming
year. Any changes to the plan in year require
approval by the Audit Committee Twace yearly
controls reviews are conducted across all five
$BUs and global shared services, chared by

the CFO with Internal Audit represented, to
provide additional assurance, oversight and
accountability for the management of risk and
controls. Completion of management actions
from Internal Audits and from the Control Reviews
are monitored centrally with progress reported
to the Audit Commuttee.

Additionally, as referenced in the Audit Committee
Reporton page 67,0 2021 a programme of
conrrol framewark reviews was presented to the
Executive Team and Audit Commuittee for specific
key risk and controls areas, based on the ‘three
lines of defence’ principles, including programme
managernent and bid and contract controls and
key comphance area controls. This process is naw
emiradded and a pricritised programme will also
be undertaken in 2022,

Risk appetite statement

The Group’s objective to generate long-term
sustainable valye for all stakehalders is reflacted
in Ultra's appetite for risk, which is set by the
Board taking intc account the balance between
risk and reward and our abrity to manage and
control risks through our people and processes.
Ultra has a low nsk appetite in stuations where its
culture, reputation or financial standing may bhe
adversely affected, including ali key compliance
areas. Where the safety of our people may be
compromised, Ultra has zero tolerance. However,
the Group does consider taking higher risks
where the opportnity I seen 1o outwelgh the
potential risks, provided appropriate levels of
mitigating controls are in place. The Executive
Team and Board assessed the speciic risk
appetite in relation to Ultra's key and principal
risks in 2021, assessing appetite as risk tolerant
(where greater nsk can be effectively managed 1o
deliver high return with established confidence),
risk balanced twhere additional investment in
controlis supported by the business case) or risk
averse (where Ultra invests to mmimise the risk
threat, in areas such as compliance risks) Risk
appefite assessments are reflected against

our principal risks.

Principal risks

[n line with guidance on risk reporting, we have
focused our statement on principal nisks to those
that are current and/or particular to Ultra, either
through the nature of our sector ar business
made!, or because factors or circumstances have
elevated more generic risks in Ultra’s current
business environment. Environmental and climate
change risks have been assessed and are growing
risk areas for Ultra, but as reported in more detail
In the TCFD table on page 29, are not yat principal
risks due to market, operations and geographical
footprint. In addition to the principal risks
dentified below, Ultra also actively manages risks
assessed as atiower, but not 1o say insignificant,
levels. These potential risks are often common to
listed businesses and include business
interruption nsks, fraud and financial control risks,
HSE risks {which are seen as a priority for
excellence) and risks associated with our legacy
defined benefit pension scheme which have been
reported on as principal risks in previous years.
Current uncertainty around British Governiment
approval of the recommended bid for Ultra by
Cobham is exacerbating short-term challenges in
recruitment and retention as identified in the
principal risks below. If the deal does not proceed
hecause consent ts withheld, this could have a
negative impact across several risks, through
prolonged uncertainty for stakeholders in the
short term, before strong business fundamentals
reassert themseives.

Key changes to principal risks from 2020 are:

+ Risks associated with the legacy defined benefit
pension scheme have diminished from being
a principal risk, with ageing and proactive
management such as Increased hedging.

+In commonwith many businesses as the world
moves to a post Covid-19 environment and
witnesses the start of major armed conflict in
Ukraine, rapidly increasing supply chain inflation
and disruption/ shortages has emerged as a
principal risk for Ultra.

+Challenges inretention and recruitment,
espedially of specialist engineers inlocal areas
of our operations has also escalated, reflecting
a changing labour market post Covid-15 and
uncertainty for Ultra while a decision on
clearances for the recormmended offer
for Ultra is awarted.



Strateg ¢ report Tiive tanie

Ultra Arnual Repart
and Accourts 202°

43

No signsficant change ¢ I

Defence Sector
Cycle Risk

Reducing risk  ~

Bid and
Contract Risk

Reducingris<
Programme
Risk

Defence spending by gavernments can fluctuate
cyclically depending on economic conditions,
change of government policy or political
considerations, budgetary constraints, and
changes to national and global threats.

Risk appetite: Tolerant

Potential Iimpact

Lower defence spending by the Group's

major customers in 2 down cycle could have

a material Impact on the Group's future results
and financial conditions.

Mitigation commentary/examples

+The Groun s geagraphically spread acrass
the USA, UK and international defence markets

+We invest in technelogy to help us access high
growth segments of the market.

+Many of our pragrammes are very long term,
which helps mitigate against short-term
changesin the defence cycle.

Comment, changes and outlook

Our focus s the defence markets, where we
believe we can grow at good returns on capital
In the medwm and long term. We have a
degree of tolerance o defence cycle risk and
are not seaking te diversify away from the
defence market However, we do seek to have
adiverse customer and programme base,
which provides resilience.

As mentioned above, we see growth in our
markets aver the medium term, driven by
the increasing threat of near peers,

- Across Ultra's businesses, a major propoeruon of

revenues are generated through contracts which
are long term in nature and subject to complex
terms and conditions. Contracts include
commitments relating to pricing, guality and
safety, technical and customer requirements
and praduct servicing.

Risk appetite: Balanced

Potential impact

Afailure to fully recogrise contract risks or to
anticipate technical challenges and estimate costs
accurately at the outset of a contract can lead to
unexpected liabilities, increased outturn costs
and reduced profitability.

Mitigation commentary/examples

+New and improved business hid and caontract
managerment processes

+Legal reviews of contract terms and conditions

+ Contract-specific risk assessments

+ Clear delegation of authority/escatation
criterra for approvals

+ Reviews of contract performance

Comment, changes and outlook
Balanced risk appetite, with additional controls
investment where justified

We have continued {0 invest in specialist resources
in commercial and legal spheres, improving our
bid competency and ability to align new contracts
with Ultra's risk appetite. This complements the
implementation of standardised bid and contract
policies pracesses and the pooling of capability
and the alignment of similar businesses under

the ONE Ultra banner.

Many of the programmes entered into by Litra

are complex, long term and subject to various

performance conditions which must be adhered

10 throughout the programme. Poor management

of such programmes brings risks related ta:

+ Delays in product development or launch
schedules

+ Failure 1o meet customer specifications or
predict technical problems

+Inability to deliver to contract terms

+Inahility to manage programme costs or
forecast accurately

Risk appetite: Risk averse

Potential impact

Ineffective programme management could
resultin damage to custamer relationships or
cancellation of a contract, resulting in claims for
loss and reputational damage. Poor performance
against a contract could also undermine the
Group's ability to win future contracts and could
result In cost overruns and significantly fower
returns than expected.

Mitigation commentary/examples
+Embedded programme management in
businesses
+ONE Ultra programme management pohicy
and procedures implementad through 2021,
replacing local diverse business approaches
+Formal review and escalation framework
+Review and approval of key programmes
by the Executive Team
+'Lessons learned’ and best practice sharing
+Inspection of programmes by customers

Comment, changes and outlook

Risk averse appetite for fallures on programme
managemeant drives investmeant in strong
controls for a key business process. Controls
improvements are impacting to reduce this nsk,
but thisis in the context of short-term challenges
for programmes over retention and recruitment
of specialist resources,

The standardisation of programme management
policies and taols was further enhanced in

20271 wirth a focus on controls and oversight.
Reorganisation effective from the start of

2021 brought alignment of spedialist resource
and simplified management structures
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Principal risks and uncertainties
continued

Reducingrisk  ~
% Geo-political
Risk
With our focus on the defence sector, geo-political
factors could lead to an unfavourable business
climate for defence spending orrestrict the access
of overseas suppliers to national markets,

Risk appetite: Balanced

Potential impact

Politcal change in @ major end customer country
such as the USA could impact revenue flows from
cancellation of defence programmes or reduction
in future programmes for palitical reasons, or

a change of supplier selection conditions an
defence contracts.

Mitigation commentary/examples

+The Group proactively monitors the political
environments affecting our key markets.

+We develop and maintain strong relationships
with customers, governments and stakeholders
differentiating through our domain expertise.

+ Diversified operations with loca! manufacturing
in our target market countries,

+ Dwversification of end customers in mulople
countries.

+Long-term nature of defence contracts and
domain expertise.

Comment, changes and outlock
Balanced risk appetite, with additional controls
investment where justfied.

Risk is mitigated in the short to medium term
with increasing poiitical pricritisation of defence
capability by multiple governments in the currert
period of global political instability and events,
including the Russian invasion of Ukrane.

Level sk (shortterm} ¢
Delivering
Change

=

Increasedrsk
Security and
Cyber Risks

@

The ability to continugously improve and
transform our business to deliver objectives in
complex technology markets is vital for business
suceess, Effective delivery of major or concurrent
change programmes with minimal effect on
business as usual Is a key component of Ultra’s
drive to deliver our strategy and supporting
operational improvement.

Risk appetite: Balanced

Potential impact

Transformation prograrnmes may not be
dehvered on time or costs may increase. The
expected benefits of change from programmes
may not be realised. Under-resourcang may lead to
rmanagament distraction from business as usual.
Structural change may impact employee morale,

Mitigation commentary/examples

+Change programme management proceduras
and contrals

+Robust governance around all programmes,
including strong steering committees, standard
reporting and executive level sponsorship

+Investment In dedicated professional
transformation resaurce and leadership

Comment, changes and outlook

Balanced risk appetite, with additional controls
mvestment where justified; increased current
investment reflects scale and scope of current
change activity.

| Programme risk decreased during 2021, as

a result of more mature programmes and
investment Into the finanaial madealling, which
was signed off by KPMG as part of the Qualified
Financial Benefits Statement which was
published with the mid year results,

As a key partner to aur customers and end
customers, Ultra has custody of classified
information and customer and its own intellectual
property. In circumstances where the incidence
and sophistication of cyber security crime
continues to risg, the effective management and
protection of information and Ultra's security

and [T systems Is necessary to prevent the
compromise of secure information, intellectual
property or aur pecple’s personal data.

Risk appetite: Risk averse

Potential impact

Reputanonal damage to Ultra as a highly regarded
partner N the event of compromise of classified
information or IR This could tead (o 10ss of business
opportunities with removal of government
approval to work on classified programmes.
Regulatory action ar crvil/contractual penalties
could result from ioss of personal data, a partner's
[P or classified informanon.

Mitigation commentary/examples

+Investment into Corwid Protect, Ultra's in-
house speciaiist cyber security rescurce

+Intellectual property is addressed in the bid
and contract management process and
protected through information security
policies, procedures and systems

+ Security clearance processes are in place
far all employees

+Established physical security processes are
implemented at all sites

+US defence business governance framework
in place using 55A and Proxy Board vehicles

+Independent security reviews by defence
departments and customers

Coemment, changes and cutiook
Focus on investment in strong controls for
3 key enabling capability; risk averse.

The focus of CORVID Protect as an internal
professional specialist cyber resource was
instrumental in enabiing secure, effective
remote working capabilities throughout
Covid-19, enabling 60% or more of staff to
work securely from home at peak lockdown
periods, despite an increased general business
cyber risk envirgnment, Tnvestment in and
implementation of improved, standardised
secure systems, continuing through 2022,

15 a key enabler of the ONE Ultra strategy.
This will drive mitigation of the increasing
levels of risk In the global cyber ervironment.
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Governance, Compliance
& Internal Controls

£

Reducing risk  ~,

Increasedrizk. A

ats

R Supply Chain

In commen with other businesses in our

sector, the Group operates in a highly regulated
environment acre$s multiple jurisdictionis and

15 subject to 2 range of regulatory, governance
compliance requirerments. New or retrospective
compliance changes (for example in Tax) or a
failure in the framework of Internal controls
couid resuit in penalties, liabilites or
reputational damage.

Risk appetite: Risk averse

Potential impact

Kay impacts fram speafic relevant controls/

events, all of which carry the potential for

reputational damage are:

+Financial rufes and standards complance -
fatlure to comply In key areas such as revenue
recognition could resutt In adjustments that
undermine results

+Breach of defence contractoer financial
compliance rules in a key market, such as the
USA or UK, could lead to financial/parudpation
penalties and or reputational damage

+Trade compliance - fallure ta comply with export
controls or defence spedific requirements, such
as US [TAR controls, could resultin requlatory
action and penaliies.

+Bid and contract requirements for some
government and defence contracts introduce
“Offset” compliance obligations requiring special
national Investment or operagons Constraints.
While typically very long term by nature, failure
to comply could lpad eventually to regulatary
action or penaltigs.

+Anti-bribery and corruption (ABC) ~ failure to
comply with mulople junisdiction rules in relation
to public sector contracts directly or through
intermediaries could resultin regulatory action
and penalties.

+Tax compliance - retrospective regulatory
changes could lead to significant unforeseen
liahilities.

Mitigation commentary/examples

+ Corporate and business level controls
polcies, pracedures, training and systems

+Internal expert corparate teams in key
functional areas

+ Builean IT systern controls

+ Controls and compliance reviews
by management and internal audit

+Specialist advisers

Comment, changes and outlook

As aninternational defence supplier, investment
In strong compliance controls s key to our
standing as a responsible and regutable supplier
to gavernments; risk averse.

Through 2021 we have continued to invest

in professional expertise and capabilities for
guidance and aversight in our key industry
compliance areas, incfuding trade compliance,
defence contractor compliance, offset
management and ABC. New ONE Ultra process
and systems in finance and key compliance areas,
with strengthened and hard-wired controls,
continued to roli out in 2027 as part of our
rransformation programmes.

2021 has seen continued mvestment in
professional rales and capabilities for guidance
and oversight in our key industry compliance
areas, Including trade compliance, defence
contractor compliance and ABC. While recognising
the increasing demands of the compliance
envircnment, the assessment of the net risk as
reducing reflects the marked improvements in
our compliance controls framework. New ONE
Ultra processes and systems in finance and key
compliance areas, with strengthened and
hard-wired contrals, will continue to roll outin
2022 as part of our ransformation programmes.

Specialist materials, components and power
and utlities costs increase matertally and/ar
shortages or outages are triggered by post
Cavid-19 supply chain issues and logistics
movement capacity challenges to meet
demand as global econormies recover.

Risk appetite: Risk averse

Potential impact

fncreased costs from supply chain and energy
costinflation, some of which may not able to
be passed on under contractual terms, could
Iimpact profits. Shortages or logistic delays for
materials and compenents post Covid-19 or
from emergent sanctions N response to the
invasion of Ukraine may impair delivery
timeframes, leading to penalties.

Mitigation commentary/exampies

+Introduction of aligned ONE Ultra procuremens
processes and organisation, increasing
negotiating power and improving
procurement expertise

+Proactive management of sourcing and stock
tevels of critical materials and components

+Use of contractuat terms or renegotiaton
to reflect increasing costbase in pricing
by agreement with customers

+Supply cham anealysis following events in Ukraine
indicate no direct supply chain imphications

Comment, changes and outlook

Risk-averse stance supports investment in
standardisation, controls and tools to proactively
manage supply cham risks.

As for many businesses, these supply chain nisks
are Increasing currently as global econornies and

" demand rapidly recover as the challenges of twa

years of Covid-19 pandemic subside. Supply
chain risks are exacerbated by the Russian attack
on Ukraine and conseguent global sanctions,
contributing to our assessment of this as an
INCreasing risk.
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Principal risks and uncertainties
cortinued

[t rsm L sk
Specialist Recruitment
and Retention

&

With our focus on the defence sector, geo-political
factors couid lead to an unfavourable business
chimate for defence spending w o resbict the auess
of overseas suppliers to national markets.

Risk appelile. Risk aver se

Potential impact

Trne combination of ghly compentive leoour
markets as economies recover from Covid-i9
and uncertainty for Uitra while a decision on
clearances for the recommended acquisition of
Ultra)s awaited, is driving specialist resourcing
gaps 0 our operations which, if enduring, could
start to impact customer programme deiivery

Mitigation commentary/examples

+Use of the newly developed ONE Ultra
culture and values as recruiting asset

I Cmbeddirigy of spetialnt HR 1Ak arnlisition
function to directly address Ultra’s recruitment
pricrities

+Proactve strategies to retain cnigcal specialist
employees targeted for individual focations
and arcumstances

Comment, changes and outlook

The quality of our people 1s a key asset and
difterentator for Ultra and, recogrising the
increasingly chalienging labour market condrtions,
We are Investing In our recruitment capabilities
and refention mMeasures 1o protedt and enhance
our specialist capalnlities fur cuswomer déelivery.

#  See note 2 ang defint on on page 136

STATFMENT OF GOING CONCERN

The Directors have a reasonable expectaton that
the Group has adequdle resources for a period
of atleast 12 months from the date of approval
ul Lhe fildnial sLdleents and bave theretore
assessed that the going concern basis of
accounring is appropriata in preparing the
financial staternents and that there are no
rnateriat uncertainties to disclose.

As referred to on page 14, the shareholders of Ultra
have approved the acquisiticn of the Group by way
of Scheme of Anangernent by Cobham Ultra
Acguisitions Limited, which is indirectly controlied
by Advent. The acguisition s condiional on
approval by Her Majesty’s Government, so the
Directors have considered going concern under
two scenarios: on an ordinary course basis and on
the assumption that the acquisiticn completes
within the going concern period.

No awquisiliun by Cobham

The Girectors have considered the Group's strong
liquidity pasiticn, available facilties and cash flow
forecasls and have a reasonable expectation that
the Group has adequate resources for a period of
at least 12 months from the date of approval of
the financial statements,

Ultra's cash and rash erpiivalents ag at 31
December 2071 were £ 138 Am and net debt was
£40.0m (net cash of F0 7mwhen excluding finance
lease liabilities), since then, Llltra’s net cash has
inereased firrner with the receipt of £34.8m on
24 January 2022 relating to the sale of non-core
aerospace assets, further strengthening the
Croup’s liquidity.

The Group's committed fending fachities amount
to £401.7min toral and comyprise loan notes in
issue o Prirna of £50m and $70m, and 2 revelving
il fality tRU F1 ot +<400m that s denominatod
in Sterkng, US Dollars, Canadian Dollars, Australian
Doltars or Frras The RCFis prowided by 2 aroup of
eight international banks and, in certain
acquisition scpnarios, permits an additional
£150m “accordion” which is uncommitied and
subject tolender consent. The Group alse has
access to 2 £5.0m and $2.5m overdraft The
financing taciities are used for balance sheet and
operational needs, Including the funding of
day-to-day working capital requirements. The
maturity prohie for the Group's committed
tending faciities 15 as tollows:

Farility Lapiny
RCF £50m November 2023
RCF £250m Novernber 2024
Pricoa £50m Octoher 2025
Pricoa 340m January 2026
rricoa $3lm January 2029

The Group's net debt as at 31 December 2021 also
includes £17.3m of borrowings {fair value) from
the Canadian Government uncler the Strateqic
Aerospace and Defence Initiative (SADI), which are
repayable over the period to 20639 (see note 23).

The Group’s financral covenants are that the ratio
of net consclidated total borrowings to adjusted
EBITDA* is less than three {x0.0 at 31 December
2021} and that the net interest payable on
borrowings Is covered at least three times

by underlying operating profit (x12.2 at 31
December 2021}, Stress testing has been
undertaken to identify the level of cash

outflow and reduction in profitability that would
be required over the going concern pericd to
breach the covenants; both an unbudgeted cash
outflow of £230m and an unbudgeted reduction
of £230m in adjusted EBITDA would be required.

- Though glokal macro-economic conditions

remain uncertain with continued uncertainty
arising from impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic,
stressed supply chains and inflation (detail an the
potential risks to the Group associated with this
are set out on page 45), the Group’s strong
liquidity, the long-term nature of Ultra‘s business
and its positioning in attractive sectors of its
markets, taken together with the Group's
torward order book, provide a strong level of
confidence inrespect of trading in the year

to come.

Completion of the acquisition of Ultra

On the assurnption that the acquisition of Ultra

completes dunng the going congern period,

noting the analysis above reqarding the Group’s

forward order book and stable nature of the

business, the Directors have also considered

the following:

+Advent have stated in the Scheme of
Arrangement that they infend Litra T thrive,
that they have ne plans to undertake any
material restructurings, thar rhey will nor
redeploy Ultra's fixed assets (save for some
limited exceptions) and that they will increase
investrent in research and developmert,

+Advent has secured long-term financing which
extends beyond the going concern and
long-term viahility assessment period and
provides sutticient quidity ta complete the
scharme of Arrangement, and repay the
Group's existing debt facilities f debt
repayment obligations are triggered by the
change of cantrol provisions described on
paye 50,

+The financing arrangad by Advent, the ferms of
which are avallable on Ultra's website, does not
inclucle any leverage or coverage covenants.
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+The Group’'s cash flows modeiled by
management support the ability of the Group
0 pay its debt service costs post acquisition in
both the operation of its existing strategy and
in stress-tested scenarios of flat revenue in
2023 onwards and 509% cash conversion, and
a 15% decline in revenues in 2023 onwards
and 70% cash conversion during the going
concern and viability periods.
The Directors note that they do not have
full visibility of the strategy, financing and
arganisational structure of the Group under the
awnership of Cobham and any material changes
hy the acquirer could, without mitigation, impact
the ability of the Group to cover interest
payments. Notwithstanding this uncertainty, the
Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Group has adequate resources for a period of at
least 12 months from the date of approval of the
financial statermnents should the transaction
complers, green the strengthof Lhe Group's
order book, foracast profitability and cash
generation for 2022 and onwards, and
knowdedge of the loan facilities putin
place by Advent to support the acquisition.

Going concern

Having assessed the Group's strong liquidity
and cash generation, risks, financing and
performance, the Birectars have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will continue in
operation and meet Its commitments as they fall
due aver the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the
Directars continue to adogt the going concern
basis in preparing these financial statements.

LONG-TERM VIABILITY STATEMENT

Ultra's prospects and viability

When reviewing the long-term prospects

of the Group, we consider:

i) The market

+Long-cycle defence markeats with stable
through-cycle growth

+Short and medium-term growth expected
in our core markets of Maritme, Intelligence
and Communications, Farensic Technglogy,
Energy and Military Aerospace

+Astrong order book and order pipelne,
providing forward visibility

+Capabilities in Ultra that position usto
grow above the markets

il) Strategy and business modef

+Focus; Fix; Grow transformation improving
efficiency

+Parenting advantage accelerating growth

+Rigorous resounue dflucation supporting
strong returns on capital

+Asset light business model delivering strong
cash flow

+ Diversified customer base providing resilience

Assessing Ultra's viability

The Board conducted the viability review for

a period of three years to Decernber 2024,

to coincide with 1ts review of its medium-term
farecasts from Ultra's strategic plan and giving
consideration ta the liquidation profile of the
existing order book, the significant majonity of
which is within three years, and the maturity
profile of the committed loan facilities.

The Directors have considered the potential
impact of the principal risks set out on pages 43
to 46 and have modelied scenarios to illustrate
the impact of the principal risks on the business
in & scenario where the Cobham acguisition
does nul complete. The long-term viability
modelling took into account: Ultra's financia!
projections and prospects; its robust balance
sheet, including available cash and committed
borrowings; key financial covenants and
headroom; its ability to raise new finance in
different financial market conditions; the
strength of the order book; the diversified
narire nfrha oy markets aod pruygi diimes on
which the Group operates; and the long-term
nature of many of these programmes. The
Board has cunsider ed the magnitude of
potential impacts resulting from uncertain
future events or changes in conditions, the
likelihood of their occurrence and the likely
effectiveness of mutigating actions that the
Directors would consider undertaking.

In particular, we have modelled the foliowing

scenarios:

i} Avery prolonged and deep downturn across
alarge proportion of the Operating Business
Urits (e.g. Defence Sector Cycle Risk,
Geo-political Risk), resultngina 15%
year-on-year decline in reveniues after 2022,
with undertying operating cash conversion
of 70%

iy Significant execution 1Ssues on one ar more
coniracts of programmes, inciuding supply
chan disruption, or growth constraints
arising from staff recruitment and retention
challenges {e.g. Bid and Contract Risk,
Pragramme Risk, Supply Chain Risk, Specialist
Recruitment and Retention Risk), resulting in
no revenue growth beyond 2022 and
underlying operating cash conversion
reducing to 50%

In addition, we have modelled the impact of
significant one-off cash outflows to show the
effect of simultaneous settlement of contingent
liabilties, contract liahilities or outflows arsing
fromthe Group's other principal risks such as
Security and Cyber Risks, and Governance,
Comphance and Internal Contrals risks.

There are a number of mitigating actions that
couid be taken, if necessary, such as a reduction
in dividend payments, and reductions in
nen-essential capital expenditure, reductions in
discretionary spend, and renegotiation of
lending agreements and associated cavenants.

Il the acquisition by Cobham completes during
the wviahility pericd, the Directors have less
certainty about Ultra’s strategy, financing and
organisational structure during the viability
period, but based on their knowledge of the
financing arranged by Advent, the cash-
generating potential of the Group, liguidity
modelling and Cobham's intention statements,
the Directors have a reasonable expectaticn
that the Company will be able to continue in
operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due
over the period to December 2024 whether or
not the acquisition by Cobham completes
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“During 2021, we delivered our fourth
year of organic revenue growth, grew
our order book to a record £1.3bn and
atthe same time improved underlying
operating margins and investment in
transformation and R&D. This is all
despite the cngoing impact of Covid,

Our statutory results were, however,
impacted by the strengthening of
Pound Sterling against the US Dollar.

We enter 2022 with 78% order cover
and when combined with our positive
transformation progress and strong
balance sheet we are confident of
further good growth in 2022

Jos Sclater
Chief Financial Officer

T Seedefintionon page 146
* Seenare 2 and defirtion on page 146

Ultra's 2021 results

Order book and revenue

Ultra's order book grew by 22.2% to £1,300.9m
(2020: £1,064 2m}; this represents organic growth
of 22.0%,

Revenue dechned by 1.1% to £850.7m (2020:

£859 8m) with organic growth of 4 2%, reflecting
continued strong growth rates in Maritime and
[ntelhlgence & Communications, partally offset by
organic decline in Critical Detection & Control and
a currency translation headwind due to the
weaker S Dollar year on year.

REVENUE

£m % mpact
020 853 5
Currency translation 1377} -4.4
Disposals (5.6) -0.6
2020 (for organic measure) 816.5 -5.0
Organic growth 34.2 +4.2
2021 850.7 -1.1

STATUTORY OPERATING PROFIT AND MARGINS
£m 2021 2020
Statutory operating profit 105.9 1063

Amorusation of
intangibles arising on

acquisition 9.8 126
Acquisition and
disposal-related costs 78 1
Significant legal charges
and expenses 6.1 33
Restructuring <osts
related to disposal - 28
Underlying operating
profit 129.6 126.1

Statutory operating profit decreased by 0.4% to
£105.9m (2020: £106.3m} and statutory cperating
margin remained at 12 4% (2020: 12.49). This
reflects the underlying operating performance,

as described below, as well as lower arortisation
costs as assets created by historical acquisitions
become fully amartised, partially offset by higher
acquisition and disposal costs and legal charges
and expenses, as described in the Profit before tax
section below.

UNDERLYING OPERATING PROFIT AND MARGINS

Underlying aperating profit Em % impact
2020 T 1ze0

Currency translation (4.8) -3.8
Disposals (1.3) -1.0
5620 (for arganic measure) ' 120.0 -4.8
Organic growth 9.6 +8.0
2021 ) 1296 128

Underlying operating profit was £129.6m (2020
£126 1), anincrease of 2.8% on the prior year.
Organic underlying profit growth was 8.0%,
driven largely by the strong sales in Manume
and Intelligence & Communications and some
margin expansion.

Ultra continued its programme of R&D, with total
spend {from customers and internal investmenty
in the year of £150.0m (2020 £144.2m}. Company-
funded investment increased organically by £3.1m
to £33.5m (2020 £31.8m) which represants 3.9%
of revenue (2020: 3.7%), while customer funding
increased ta £116 5m (2020 £112 4m). The overall
level of R&D investment in the year was 17.6% of
revenue {2020; 16.8%). The company-funded
spend was lower than originally emvisaged due 10
more active and return-based oversight of [R&D
nvestment and our engineers having to focus
more than anticipated on delivering programmes
In & resource-constrained and supply chain
challenged environment.



Strateqic repart L

Finance charges

Net financing charges increased by £1.4m to
£13.0m (2020: £11.6rn). This was driven by the
£1.8m change n fair value onloans from the
Canadian Government into the Comms hisiness,
which are structured such that repayments are
linked to revenue growth; the strong revenue
growth in the Communications business has
therefore led to an increase in the fair value

of the loan. The interest payable on borrowings
was coveredt 12.2 times (2020 14.7 times)

by underlying operaung profit,

Profit before tax

Statutory profit before tax decreased 20.3% to
£827m (2020 £103 7). Underlying profit before
tax was £116.6rm (2020: £114.5m), as set out befow:

£m 2021 7020
Statutory profit before tax 827 1037
Ameortisation of iIntangibles
arising on acquisition 9.8 12.6
Acguisiton and disposal
relared costs 78 i1
LossHgan) on disposals
net of related restructuring
Costs 24 {2.8)
Loss/gain) on dervatives 7.8 (3.4)
Significant legal charges
and expenses 6 33
Underlying profit beforetax 1166 1145

Armortisation costs dedined from £12.6m to £9.8m
as the customer relatonship and technalogy
assets created by historical acquisitions became
fully amartised. Acquisition and disposal-related
costs in the year were £7.8m (2020: £1.1my; the
bulk of this cost was incurred in refation 1o the
previously announced recommended offer for
the Group by Cobham Ultra Acquisitions Limited.
Anetlass of £2 4m arose from the divestment of
two non-core loss-rmaking businesses within the
Critical Detection & Control SBU (see note 30). The
netloss on forward forelgn exchange contracts
was £7.8m (2020: £3.4m gan), mainly driven by
the movement in the year's opening and closing
LSD/GBP spot rate. Significant legal charges and
expenses of £6.1m {20207 £3.3m) primarily relate
to progress being made towards resolving a
legacy legal matter.

As in 2020, transformation costs are included
in underlying profit.

Tax, EPS and dividends

The Group's 'underlying tax't rate in the year
decreasad to 17.1% (2020 19.0%). The statutory
tax rate apphcable to profit before tax1s 19.0%
{2020:19.0%).

Underlying EPS increased 3.9% to 135 7p (2020
130.6p), reflecting the Increase mn underlying profit
and reduced underlying tax rate. The weightad
average number of shares inissue was 71.Zm
(2020 71.0m). Basic EPS decreased to 93 .8p (2020

S R EETE Fl e RaT=ia 1

118.0p) reflecting the decrease in statutory profit
before tax. At 31 December 2021, the number of

© shares inissue was 71.4m(2020: 71 1m).

Uttra's dividend policy has A rthrnngh-cycle target
of crca two times normalised cash and earrmings
cover, However, In view of the rerms of the
proposed acquisition by Cobham Acquisitions
Limited, the iInterim dividend of 16.2p per share,
paid on 17 September 2021, will be the only 2021
dividend and the proposed 2021 final dividend
is therefore nil {2020: 41 5p) per share.
Consequently, the final full 2021 year dividend

is 16.2p (2020: 56.9p), which 15 covered 3.4 times
by underlying EPS.

Operating cash flow and working tapital
Statutory cash generated by operations was
£134.2m (2020: £142.6m). Underlying operating
cash flow was £111,5m (2020: £116.1m) resulung
in underlying operating cash conversion of 86%
{2020 92%). Cash conversion was lower than at
the middle of 2021 due to the expected unwind of
alarge early customer payrment, as flagged in our
interim update. We ended the year with net debt
of £40.0m, net cash of £0.7m when excluding
leases liabitiues.

Qur focus animproving working capital turn
has continued to be successful with the average
working capital turn for the Group Improving to
12.3x (December 2020: 10.1x). There was a small
working capital increase of £2 8m, with reduced
inventories and increased payables being offset
hy increased recevables Capital expenditure
increased in the year to £24.7m due to facility
upgrades and transformation initiatives

(2020: £22.1m).

Non-operating cash flow

The main non-operating and nan-underlying cash

items as set out in note 2 and in the statutory cash

flow statement were:

+Net cash inflow of £1.2m relating to disposals
(see note 30}

+ Dividend payments of £41.9m (2020: £38.7m)

+Tax paid of £5.7m (2020: £5 4m)

+A£6.8m (2020: £1.3m) cutflow on acguisition
and disposal related payments, predominartly
refating to costs incurred due to the proposed
acquisition of Lttra by Advent/Cobham

Conduct of business investigations

As previcusty announced, investigations
associated with conduct of business issues

in Algeria and the Philippines are ongoing, and
Ultra continues ta cooperate with the relevant
authorities. A provision has heen recognised
with respect to one of these matters.

Capital allocation

Qur capital allacation approach remains
unchanged. We aim to maintain our asset light,
high capital return business madel which will, in
turn, drive strong free cash flow.* Qur priorities
for capital discipline are listed in order helow:
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. Organic investment for operational
improvemant and to deliver value-creative
growth

[\

. Inargaric menyers and acquisiion investmeant
to accelerate strategy delivery, if itis value
creative on a risk-adjusted basis

3. Sustainable through-cycle dividend growth:
our palicy remains around 2x through-cycle
cash/earnings cover rato

4. Any excess, through-cycle capital to be
returned to sharehalders if it can't be deployed
within Ultra in the medium term to generate
strong retums

We ain to suppart these priorities by maintaiming
through-cycle gearing between 15 and 2.5x net
debt{ncluding pension and lease liabilities) 1o
adjusted EBITDA.

ROIC
ROIC increased to 21.2% (2020: 20.0%). The
calculation is set outini note 2.

Funding and liquidity

The Group's cammitted banking facilities amount
to F401.7m (2020; £401.2rm) in total. These
comprise the £300m revolving credit facility (RCF}
and £50m and $70m of Pricoa loan notes. £250m
of the RCF has a maturity to Novernber 2024 and
£50m has a maturity to Novemnber 2023, The
facility is denominated in Sterling, US Dollars,
Canadian Dollars, Australian Dollars or Euros. The
facihity permits an addtional £150m ‘accordion’
which 1s uncommitted and subject to lender
consent and can be used in certain acquisiion
scenarios. The £50m of Pricoa notes have an
expiry date of October 2025, $40m of notes
expire inJanuary 2026 and $30mn January 2029

The Groug's harrowings ar 31 December 2027
" alsoinclude £17.3m (fair value) from the Canadian
Government under the Strategic Aerospace and
Defence Initiative (SADI1), which are repayable
aver the periad te 2039 (see note 23},

The liquidity of the Group 15 strong; as at

31 Decernber 2027, the total berrowings drawn
from the RCF were £20.0m (2020 £20 Om),

aiving committed facllity headroom of £280.0m
(2020; £280.0m) in addition to £5.0m and $2.5m
of uncommitted overdrafts. The Group also held
£138.7m (2020: £84.1m) of cash for working capital
purpases, The facllities are used for balance sheet
and operational needs, including the funding of
day-to-day working capitai requirements.

The Group's main financial covenants are that
the ratio of net consolidated total borrowings/
adjusted EBITDA is less than three, and that the
net interest payable on horrowings is covered at
least three times by underlying operating profit
in certan acquisttion scenarios, the ratio of net
consolidated total borrowings/adjusted EBITDA
is permitted to be up to 3.5x for two consecutive
six-month periods. The covenants are under a




Ultra Anrual Report
and Accounts 2021

50

Financial review
continued

frozen Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(GAAP) basis I.e. excluding the impact of IFRS 16
lease habilities.

Ultra’s net debt at the end of the year reduced 1©
£40.0m (2020: £85 8m) including £40.7m (2020
£3/./m) of lease fiability. ‘Net debt to adjusted
EBITDA™ when including pension liabilities and
lease liabiities was 0.48x {2020: 1.05x). On a
covenant basis, which excludes pension liabilities
and lease liabilities, the figure 15 0 0x (2020; 0.34%).
Net interest payable on borrowings was coverad
12.2%(2020: 14.7x) by underlying operating profit

The LS Dallar borrowings represent natural
hedges against assets denominated in that
currency. Detalls of how Ultra manages its
iiquidity risk can be found in note 22 - Ainanaal
nstruments and finandial nsk management.

Change of control

The RCF and Pricoa agreements both include
change of control clauses that may resuft in early |
repayment of the cutstanding loan balances in the
event of the takeover of the Group. The RCF was
utlised by £20m as at 31 December 2021 but this
has subsequently been reduced to £nil, so the
armounts that may need ta be repaid following
change of control are the £101.7m of Pricoa loans.
The SADI agreements reguire consent of the
Canadian Minister of Innovation, Science and
Economic Development pricr to change of contral;
f consentis not granted the Minster could
potentially seek repaymentin full of the
outstanding loan balances (March 2022)

of C$36.0m (£21.0m)y and C$5.4m (£3.2m).

Interest rate management

Ta reduce the risks associated with interest
rate fluctuations and the associated volatility

in reported earnings, Ultra holds a mix of fixed
rate and floating rate debt. The majonty of debt
is currently at fixed rates of interest.

Foreign exchange

Ultra's results are affected by both the transiation
and transaction effects of foreign currency
mavements. The average US Dollar translation
rate in 2027 was $1.38 {2020: $1.28). By their
nature, currency translation risks cannot be
mitigated, but the transaction position is

actively rnanaged.

The majority of sales made by Ultra's businesses
are made in local currency, thus avoiding
transaction risk. However, this risk does arise when
businesses make sales and purchases which are
denominated in foreign currencies, most often I
when UK businesses transact in US Doltars. Te
reduce the potential volatility, Ultra attempts to
source in US Dollars a high proportion of the
products sold in US Dofars. For the remaining net
expense, the Group's policy 1s to hedge forward the
faresgn currency trading exposure in order to
ncrease certainty The expected flows are reviewad
ort a regular basis and additional layers of cover are
taken out so that, for 2022, 100% of the expected

exposure s covered, reducing to 70% of the
exposure for 2023 and around 50% of the
exposure for 2024 Exposure to other currencies
1s hedged as it arises on specific contracts.

I Anetinvestment hedge is in place to reduce

income statement volatility ansing from
revaluation of US Dollar borrowings held
on the UK balance sheet,

Post-employment obligations

Ultra offers Company-funded retirement
benefits to all employees Inits major countries

of operation. In the UK, the Ultra Electronics
Limited defined benefit scheme was dosed to
new entrants in 2003 and closed to future henefit
accrualin 2016 All staff who joined Uitra in the
UK since the defined benefit scheme was closed
to new entrants have been invited to become
members of the Ultra Electronics Group Personal
Pension Pian and, since Agril 2017, the Ultra
Electronics Geoup Rexible Reticement Plary
Under the terms of this defined contribution
scheme, Company payments are supplemented
by contnbutions from employees.

The Ultra Electronics Limited defined benefit
scheme was a contributory scheme inwhich

the Company made the largest elernent of the
payments, which were topped up by employee
contributions up until the 2016 closure ofthe
scheme to future acerual The scheme was
actuarially assessed using the projected unit
method at 31 Decernber 2021 when the net
scheme deficit, calculated in accordance with JAS
19, was £26.9m (2020: £56 6m). The present value
of the llabilities decreased by £19.3m to £403.9m
in 2021 primartly due to the 45bps Increase in the
discount rate. There was a £15 8m increase in
scheme assets, mainly driven by increases in
fund investment values,

Afull actuarial assessment was carried out as of
April 2019, the result of which was a funding deficit
of £77.2m representing a decrease of £37.2m
from the previous funding deficit of £114.4m

in Apri 2016, Following the completion of the
assessment, Ultra reached an agreement with

the pension scheme trustee board to mantan
the £11.0m per annum payment to eliminate the
deficit over the period to March 2025. The next
valuation will take place as of Apnl 2022

The scheme has a statement of investment
principles which includes a specific decdiaration on
socially responsible investment. This is delegated
to the Investment managers. Pension
management and governance is undertaken by
the pension trustees on behalf of the members.

The trustees include both Company-nominated
and employee-elected representatives. The
scheme investment strategy and the details
ofthe risks to which the scheme is exposed

are set out In noate 9.

Certain employees within our Communications
Business Unitin Montreal, Canada participate in a
defined benefit scheme. This scheme is closed to
new employees Regular payments continue to be
made, with both Company and employees making
contributions, so as to maintain a satisfactory
funding position. The Group's remaning Canadian
employees participate In a number of defined
contribution pension plans.

[nthe LUSA, Ultra offers a defined contnbution
401(k) retrement benefit plan to all full-ome
employees. Under this plan, Ultra provides
participating and contributing empioyees with
matching contributions, subject to plan and US
Internal Revenue Service limitations

2022 Financial guidance

Supperted by our strong order book and pipelinie,
we expect to see strong year-on-year organic
revenue growth driven primarily by Maritime and
Inteligence & Communications. We aleo expect
Critical Detection & Control to grow organically,
led by our Forensic Technology business.

We will contmue to invest into our Focus; Frx,
Grow transformation during 2022, with operating
expenditure expected to be between £8m and
£9m and capital expenditure expected to be
broadly flat at £7m We expect nvestment to
continue in 2023, before fallng sharply in 2024.

Since the Group 151 an offer period, we are not
providing profit or margin guidance for 20232.

We expect strong ROIC progression in 2022,
notwithstanding the increased investments
we are making into the business. Total capital
expenditure is expected to be between £25m
and £30m.

We continue to expect strong cash conversion
between 75% and 85% and far internal R&D to
be between 3.5% and 4.0% of Group revenue.

The underlying tax rate Is expected to be
around 19-20% (with the cash tax rate expected
o be c13%).

Jos Sclater
Chief Financial Officer
23 March 2022

Strategic Report

Qur 2021 Strategic Repart, from pages 1to 50,
was reviewed and approved by the Board on
23 March 2022.

Simon Pryce
Chief Executive Office
23 March 2022

* Seepage 56
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Our Executive Team

Louise Ruppel

Simon Pryce Jos Sclater

Mike Baptist OBE Thomas Link Andrew Puryear
Simon Pryce Louise Ruppel Thomas Link
Chief Executive Group General Counsel Prasident, Maritime
See page 52. and Company Secretary Thomas Link has worked for Ultra for over 26
Louise Ruppel joined Ultra in January 2019 years, focusing his career on anti-submarine
Jos Sclater She traned as a solicitor at UK City firm Slaughter warfare systems and maritime domain missions.
Chief Financial Officer and May, where she qualified into the corporate He leads a diverse portfolic of operating
department. She subsequently worked as an businesses located in the US4, Canada, the UK
See page 52. In-house lawyer at Merrill Lynch & Co, Ltd in and Australia, which deliver innovative solutions
London after which she was Company Secretary for customers arcund the world. Thamas holds
Steve Izquierdo and Group Legal Directar at First Group ple, a BS in Electrical Engineering from Purdue
Chief Human Resources Officer a glabal transport company, and General University and an M5 in Electrical Engineering
Steve Is a commercially expertenced HR leader Counsel and Company Secretary at from the University of Washington.
Manchester Airports Group

with over 20 years' cross-industry HR experience :
working within three top tier glabal organisations Dr Andrew Puryear

befare joiming Ultra as Chief HR Officer. He has 1 Mike Baptist OBE Chief Technology Officer
operated as an active member of many Executive President, Intelligence & Andrew has a background in electrical and
Boards for the last seven years and has led Communications ¢ computer engineering as well as extensive

through significant change and transformation
programmes across the businesses. Prior to
joining Ultra, Steve heid a number of rales within
PepsiCo including Head of HR for the UK business
as part of the Executive Team.

technclogy leadership experience In aerospace
and defence. He cniginally jomned Ultra in 2019 as
the Chief Technology Officer for the Intelligence
& Communications Strategic Business Unit.

Mike Baptist has been at Ultra for over 30 years
having joined as a developrment engineer in 1989.
His leadership has contnbuted to many of Ultra's
milestone achieverrents, driven by his passion for
technology and innavation. Mike is respensible for Andrew s the Chairman of the newly formed U5
the strategic growth and operational performance Departmert of Commerce Emerging Technology
of the Inteifiger)ce & Communications Strategic Tachnical Advisary Commuittee (ETTAC). He has
Business Unit. He has been a member of the served in the US Navy Reserves since 2012 asa
Ultra Executive Team since 2014 warfare qualified Engineering Duty Officer and a
foundmg member of a speciahised detachment
within the Navy Cyber Warfare Group.

Andrew graduated firstin his class from MIT with
a PhD In efectrical engineering with specialties in
information theory, analytics and cryprography.
He also holds an M5 in efectrical engineering
from Stanford and a BS in electrical engineering,
summa cum laude, from Texas A&M. He 1s also
amember of Tau Beta P1 and IEEE
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QOur Board

Geeta Gopalan A RN

paniel Shook A RN

Simon Pryce

Victoria Hull A RN

A Audit Committee
R Remuneration Commitiee
N MNomination Commitiee

Chair

Jas Sclater

Ken Hunzeker A RN

Tony Rice Simon Pryce . Jos Sclater
Chairman Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer

Appointed to the Board 18 December 2018

Tony Rice was CFO, and subsequently CEQ, of
Cable & Wireless Communications ple, CEO of
Tunstall plc and prior to that held a number of
senior roles in BAE Systerns pic including running
thelr Commercial Aircraft Business. More recently,
Tony was Chair of Dechra Pharmaceuticals ple
from 2016-2021 and 1s the Senior [ndependent
Directar at Halma where he has been a Board
member since 2014

Committees
Nomination {Chair)

Other key appointments

+Senior [ndependent Oirector of Halma ple

+Non-Executive Director of the Whittington
Hospital Trust

Skills and experience

Senior business management in the aeronautical
and electronics engineening sectors, Senior
Non-Executive roles in UK listed companies.

Appointed to the Board 18 June 2018

Prior to hus appoimntment, Simon was Group Chief
Executive of BBA Aviation plc for 10 years. Simon
qualfied as a Chartared Accountant before
working at the glebal nvestment banking firms
of Lazard & Co,, Limited and JP Margan, and

then at GKN plc.

Sirnan is a Fellow of the Royal Aeronautical Society
and a2 member of the Chartered Institute for
Securities and Investment. He 1s also a member
of the Council of the University of Reading.

QOther key appointments

+Non-Executive Director and Chair of the
Remuneration Committeg ar
Electrocomponents pic

| Skills and experience

Extensive expenience In international automotive,
engineering, defence and aerospace sectors.
Senior leadership and general managament
experience In large multinational listed companies.

Appointed to the Board ¢ December 2019

Jos has 20 years' experience in multinatonal
engineering, chemicals and consurner goods
husinesses. He has held senior finanaal, corparate
finanice, strategic, operationai and legal roles

In IC1, AkzoNobel, GKN and 8P, both in the UK

and Asia Pacific.

Skills and experience

Extensive experience in finance, strategic
planning, transfermation, mergers and
acquisitions {M&A) and driving aperational
and commercial performance.
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Geeta Gopalan
Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board 28 Apnl 2017

Geeta has worked in commercial and retail
banking as well as social investment and
community development in the third sector Her
executive roles included Chair Europe for Monitise
ple, and Director of Payments Services at HBOS.
Geeta also worked at Citigroup for 16 years,
during which time she was a Managing Director
for its UK retall bank and Business Development
Head of EMEA. She has experience coaching and
mentering as well as in-depth knowledge of the
digital economy, mobile and internet spaces

Committees
Audit, Nomination and Remuneration {Chair)

Qther key appointrments

+Non-Executive Director of Virgin Money UK plc

+Non-Executive Director of Funding Circle
Haldings plc

+Non-Executive Director of Wizink Bank S A

Skills and experignce

Seniar management in the financial services
sector digital economy and the sacial sector.

Victoria Hull
Senigr Independent Director

Appointed to the Board 28 April 2017

Victoria is a former Executrve Director and
General Counsel of Invensys plc and Telewest
Communications pic. She has considerable
international and domestic experience of legal,
commercial and governance matters, having
worked in global and domestic companies
operating at an Executive Committee or

Board level.

Cammittees
Audit, Namination and Rernuneration

Other key appointments

+ Non-Executive Director of IQE plc

+ Mon-Executive Director of Alphawave 1P
Group PLC

+Non-Executive Director and Chair of the
Remuneration Committee at Network
International Holdings plc

Skills and experience
Expenience across a diverse range of sectors.
Legal and Board-level experience.

| Ken Hunzeker
Independent
Non-Executive Director
Appointed to the Buard 1 |uly 2020

Ken is a US national, wath a strong military, defence
and US Government background. He retired from
the US Army in 2010, after 35 years' active service
During his military service, Ken was awarded the
Defence Distinguished Service Medal. After
retiring from the military, Ken held the position
| of CEO of VECTRUS, a US Government Services
Contractor which specialises in information
technology and network communicaton services.

Committees
Audit, Nomination and Remuneration

Other key appointments
+MNon-Executive Director of TRAX International

Skills and experience

Extensive military and defence experience,
including several rotes within the Pentagon
focused on developing and resourcing the US
Defence Services. He also served on multiple
tours n [rag working with Coalition Forces.

Daniel Shook
Independent Non-Executive Director
Appointed to the Beard 1 September 2019

Daniel1s currently Finance Director of [MI ple, the
spedialist engineering company, which he joined
in 2015. Prior to IMI, Daniel was Chief Financial
Officer and a memger of the Executive Board at
Borealis AG, the internaticnal chemical and
plastics producer. Prigr to joirung Barealis in
2007, he spent 12 years at the BOC Group ple,
the former FTSE 100 industrial gases company,
where he servedin a number of sentor finance
and management roles Including Finance Director
of the Tndustnal Special Products division and
Group Treasurer

Committees
Audit (Chair), Nomination and Remuneration

Other key appointments
+ Finance Director of IMI pic

Skills and experience

Extensive financial management experience
and extensive knowledge of complex process
manufacturing across arange of industrial
sectors.
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Chairman’s governance report

"Cur key focus as a Board was o
ensure that, nothwithstanding the
proposed Acguisition, the Company
continued to deliver on its strategic
objectives, KPIs and transformation
programmes.”

Tony Rice
Char

Dear Shareholder,

[am pleased to present my Chairman's Report.
This should be read in conjunction with the
cornpliance report on page 55, which shows how
the Company has complied with the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2018,

It has certainly been an interesting year in many
respects. We made good progress on our Focus;
Fix; Grow transformation jourriey with strong
Group performance, despite the distraction
caused by the ongeing pandemic and the
proposed acquisition by Cobham. As a Board we
continued to operate within our solid corporate
governance framework which underpins
everything we do, with a focus on ensuring our
operations kept running as business as usual
despite the corporate activity.

Proposed acquisition

On 16 August 2021, we announced that we had
reached agreement with the Board of Cobham
\Htra Acquisitions Lirited, a wholly owned indirect
subsidiary of Cobham Group Holdings Limited
“Cobham™ on the terms and conditions of a
recommended ali-cash acquisition of the entre
asued, and to be 1ssued, ordinary share capital
of Ultra by Cobham (the “Acquisition”). Under
the terms of the proposed Acquisition, each
Ultra sharehotder will be entitled to receive
£3500 pey share (“Offer Price”).

Dividend

In addition to the agreed Offer Price, under the
terms of the Acquisition, an intenm dividend of
18.2p per share was paid 1o sharehoiders on

the register of members as at 27 August 2021,
Inview of the terms and conditions set out in the
announcement dated 16 August 2021 (relating to

the recommended cash acquisition of Ultra by
Cobham Ultra Acquisitions Lirmited) the interim
dividend of 16.2p per share, paid on 17 September
2027, will be the only 2027 dividend. No final
dividend will Le paid to shareholders while the
Acquisition remains conditional on obtaining

UK Government approval.

Strategy

Cur key focus as a Board was to ensure that,
notwithstanding the proposed Acquisition, the
Cornpany continued to deliver on its strategic
objectives, key performance mdicators {(KPIs) and
transformation programmes. As we progressed
through our Facus; Fix; Grow journey, the Board
was impressed with the results of the
transformation workstreams, with demonstrakle
progress across our operational capabilities and in
our HR and ESG initiatives as described in cur
strategic report on pages 24 to 41,

Throughout the year, the Board recewved
presentations from senior managers across
the Group at Board meetings, Committes
meetings and at our annual dedicated strategy
day As always, the Board actively challeniged
management and was impressed with the
mindset, tearmwork and resiience shown

by our senior leadership team.

Covid-19

Covid-18 continued to pravide certain challenges,
but we have been fortunate that it has not
materially affected Ultra businesses. The Board
will continue to monitor the position, in particular,
with regard to any production and supply chain
1ssues. On behalf of the Board, T would ke to
express thanks to all of Ultra's workers for their
hard work and continued dedication to the
Company during this unprecedented time.

Our great people have continued to focus on
delivering sclutions to our customers despite the
challenges presented by the pandernic and the
uncertainty caused by the Acquisition. We have
demonstrated our agility as a business with
continued strong performance despite adversity.

Our Board

On 1 July 2021, Martin Broadhurst stepped down
from the Board following a nine-year tenure

on the Board. [would like to extend the Board’s
thanks to Martin for his hard worl, wise caunse!
and dilgence as an Independent Non-Executive
Director throughout fis time at Ulra.

As [ explainin more detail in the Nommation
Committee report on page 66, we commenced
a search for at least one further Independent
Non-Executive Director in 2027, but were forced
to put that on hold as a result of the Acquisition,
as it would not have been appropriate to bring
on a new Board member at a tme when the
Caompany s subject t a takeaver offer

Although Covid-19 did not materially affect
performance, travel continued to be disrupted
globaily. As a Board we endeavour o visit severa)

business sites each year but travel restrictions
meant that we were unable to visit any overseas
sites in 2021 However, we were fortunate 1o be
able rawsir rwo of our UK business sites - PCS and
SMaP - during the vear when it was safe to doso
We very much value the importance of visiting
sites, touring the facilities and seeing and hearing
fram our dedicated and talented people first-hand
what we do, and how we doit. Qur employees
always have a great sense of pride in showing us
the work they do, and we are fascinated by, and
proud of, the talent and technological capatilities
we have throughout the Group.

The Board cantinued to operate effectively
utiksing video-conferenang facilities when

! needed. Where possible, and when Covid-19

restrictions allowed, our UK-based Directors met
In person for Board and Committee meetings with
Ken Hunzeker, who resides in the US, joining
virtually. We were delighted when Ken was able to
fiy over InSeptember 2021 and jomn us in person
for the first time for the Board and Committee
meetings that month and to be present at the

 Court and General Meeting to approve the

Scherne on & Octaber 20271

Purpase, valugs and culture

Our renewed purpose, vision, mission, ASPIRE
values and brand, launched in January 2020,
continue t be embedded throughout the Group
In December 2021, Ultra held its first ASPIRE
Awards which showcased the phenomenal talent
through Ultra and demonstrated that there are
great people really living cur ASPIRE values
throughout Ultra This is very important to us as
a Board as we see our culture as a key enabier

o our success, with our values running through
everything we do.

Delivering for our stakeholders

2021 was another yaar of progress for Uftra and
we continued to deliver for ait our stakeholder
groups.

As regards our employees, we made significant
progress in aur reward and recognition
programmes, diversity and inclusion initiatives
and welibeing policies. Cur 2021 UltraView
engagement survey demonstrated a 68%
favourabie score, which was shghtly lower than our
73.2% engagemant score in May 2020, However,
given the uncertainty surrounding the proposed
Acquisition and ongoing Cowid pressures, we felt
this was a good result and hope to see an
impravement in the pulse survey engagament
score later this year given all the positive people
and talent imtiatives that are ongoing.

We completed aur first ever Net Promoter Score
survey with our top customers and I'm very
pleased that Ultra’s score was 52, the equivalent
of a‘good’ or ‘excellent’ ranking. We alsa delivered
our first year of procurement savings through our
ONE Ultra strategy for our Suppliers and launched
our first Supplier Code of Conduct.
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within our local Communittes [ am very proud
of the impact Ultra is having with aver £500,000
donated to local commurnity Causes in the past
two years, considerable progress with our
eMISSinng Eargets and ww gdsetd Sipport for
niirveterans and servi oy forces

For our Investors we grew our arganic order book
by an impressive 22% to £1.3bn and increased
qur return on invested capital (ROIC) to 21%
dermonstrating Ultra's future prospects and
increasing efficency improvements from our
Focus; Fix; Grow transformation,

Ervironmental and social governance
sustainabiiity 1s embedded In everything we do.
We published our first Sustainability Reportin
2021 and have continued to make progress
throughout the year regarding our ESG goals and
objectives, ncluding measuring and reparting on
carfan emissions and envircnmental initiatives.
We are working towards becoming a signatory

to the Race to Zero in 2022 because itis the

right thing to do to protect our planet for a

safer tomorrow.

Loaking ahead

While we await A decision from FHIM Government
on the Acquisition, we will continue to focus

on delivering on our strategic objectives and
rransformation workstreams with a very much
business as usual mindset, and believe the
Company 1s well positioned to continue to
deliver value for all our stakeholders.

Tony Rice
Chairman
23 March 2021

D s AR TET LT

Uftra Annual Report
and Accounts 20121

55

COMPLIANCE WITH THE 2018 UK CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE {THE "CODE")

Inrespect ot the year evnded 31 Decernber 2021,
Ultra was subject to the Code (available from
www.frc.arg.uk). Insofar as is practical, the
Company seeks to uphold the principles of the
Code in meeting its objectives to promote the
long-term sustainable success of the business
and to generate value for all its stakeholders,
contributing to wider society.

Throughaout the financial year ended

31 Decernber 2021, the Board considers that i,
and the Company, has complied with the
provisions of the Code with the exception of
provision 38 of the Code with respectto the
fact that the Chief Executive Officer’s pension
contribution exceeds the prevailing level for
the wider workforce. See page 77 for further
information. As disclosed, should the
Acguisition not complete, the Remuneration
Committee intends to revisit this matter.

Further details demonstrating how the
principles and s elevant provisions of the Code
have been applied can he found as follows:

Board leadership and Company purpose

Long-term value and

sustainability 54-55, 66
Culture 32-37.54, 64
Shareholder engagement 14,65
Employee engagement 12, 35-36,64
Other stakeholder engagement 12-14
Concerns 61,64, 71
Confiicts of interest 62,86

Division of responsibilities

Role of Chair 58
Division of responsibilities 58-60
Non-Executive Directors 52-53, 58-59, 61
Time cornmitments —E

Composition, succession and evaluation

Appointrnents and succession planning 66
Annual re-elaction —%
Skills, experience and knowledge 56-57
tength of service 52-53, 56
Evaluation 63
Diversity 56-57, 66
Audit, risk and internal control

Audit Committee 67
Integrity of financial statements 67-71
Fair, balanced and understandahle 7
Internal controls and risk

management 42-46, 70-71

External auditor 67,70
‘Principal and emerging risks 42-46, 7071
Remuneration

Policies and practices 72-85
Alignment with purpose, values 72-83

and long-term strategy

Independent judgement and discretion  72-84
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Board composition

BOARD SKILLS, EXPERIENCE & DIVERSITY

Refayvant 5ectors Geographies Exper ence Tenure
o Capital T
harkets & Public Leadership

Defence & Secur Ty & Energy UK & Morth fest of Firance & PLblie Sector & nlLarge Leagth of

Agrospace *ﬁ(_y‘ber Maraers Europe Amerlca‘u“ ) world leqal  Comgares Procuremcent  Jrganisat ons Military Service
Executive Directors:
Simon Pryce - 35vyears
Jos Sclater - 2years
Non-Executive Directors: ) L ) T
Tony Rice ) 3years
Geeta Gopalan L o 45years
Victoria Hull _ T 4.5 years
Daniel Shock s years
Ken Hunzeker T h 1.5yaars
BOARD BAME DIVERSITY BOARD TENURE DIVERSITY

v
i
i
i

B

’

A

A e

A White Caucasian T e | AD2years L
B BAME 1 B. 2-4 years 4 |
| €. 4+years 2
| 2
BOARD GENDER DIVERSITY i AGES
. A
C 1
A
AMale - 5 | A 45-54 T 2
B. Female 2 - B.5564 3

b C.55+ ) 2
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Board diversity policy

ABoard comprising the right balance of skills,
experience and diversity of gender and ethnicity
as well as diversity of thought is best placed to
support a company in delivering irs strategic
objectives. These factors, along with athers,

will be taken into consideration when seeking to
appoint a new Director to the Board and ali Board
appointments will always be made on merit.

Information regarding our diversity policy and
initiatives for the wider workforce can be found
on pages 32-37

Qur Beard composition and diversity

Our Board of Directors cansists af an
Independent Nan-Executve Chalrman, foue
further Independent Non-Executive Directors
and two Executive Directars. The Board
recognises the value of diversity in its broadest
sense and is commutted to supporting diversity
and inclusion in the boardroom, and threughout
the Company as a whole. All cur Directors have
relevant gqualities and competences that leverage
thesr different expenence and attributes and
collectively contribute to the proper governance
of the Company and the prowision of effective
and consiructive challenge to, and support

for, its Fnanagement team.

The Board is aware of the recommeandation

of the Parker Review Report to have at least
one Director from a non-white ethnic minority
by 2021 and s sausfied that the Board meets
this recommendation

[n our 2020 Annual Report and Accounts we
reported that we would take the Hampton-
Alexander target of a minimum 33% female
regresentation on the Board into account

while searching for at least one further Non-
Executive Directorin 2021. As set out above,

that search was paused once the Acquisition was
announced. Should the Acgquisition net complete
by the long stop date of 5 August 2022, we will
re-activate the search and will work towards

meeting that target during the remainder of 2022.

Further nformatian on our diversity initiatives to
build a streng pipeline of senior leaders can be
found on pages 32-37.

\

|
|

Fratca glale~ers

Board independence

The Board monitors its own independence and
cbjectivity on an ongoing basis and is confident
that all Directors act with Independent judgement.
Over half the Board are Independent Non-
Executive Directors and all our Non-Executive
Directors are considered to be independent
pursuant to the UK Carparate Governance Cade
2018 ("Cade”). The Chairman of the Board was
Independent upon appointment and holds regular
discussions with the other Non- Executive
Directors without Executive Directars present to
ensure that their views are impartial and free from
b1as Assuch, all Non-Executive Directors wilt offer
themselves for re-election at the Company's
Annual General Meeting in 2022,

Ultra Ar~ual Report
and ACtourts 2027
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Leadership

Led Ly the Chair, the Board 1s respnnsihie for
leading Ultra and has overall respansibility for
the management and conducl ol e business
in nrefer to generate long torm value for our
stakehnlders, The Board is also responsible for
apnravineg strareqic plans, financal statements, !
acquisitions and disposals. majar conrarts,
ProfRTEs and vapited erpuniditure, and Soshdes s
health and safety, environmentzl, lcgislative and
governance issues. The schedule of matters
resarved for the Board sats out matters which
are expressly reserved for the collective deaision
of the Board and cam be dow hoaled o Uie
Cornpany's website.

There Is a written statement of the division of
responsibifities between Charman and Group
Chief Executive, as well as a summary of the role
of Senior Independent Direcrar, whirh is also
avallabie 3 Uownlnad nn the { ampany's websito,

The appointment and removal of the Company
Secretary 15 a matter reserved for the whole
Board

+ ultra.group

DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

Chai

The Lhar 1s primarily responsible for the leadership and overall effectiveness
of the Board, while taking account of the interests of the Group's
sigkehulders, and promoting high standards of corporate governance.

{he Uhaw promotes a culiure of openness, debate and challenge amaong
the Board and ensures effective communication between our Executive
and Non-Executive Birectors and with our shareholders. In conjunction
with the Company Secretary, the Chair ensures that the Board receives
dear, accurate and omely information.

Chiiel Executive

Ihe Chret Executive 1s responsible for the averall leadership of the Group, the
effective management of the Group’s businesses and day-to-day operations,
and the implementation of Board strategy and policies agreed by the Board.
He 5 alse respensible for the management, development and succession
planning for the senior Executtve Tearn and leading the communication
prorrsmma vath sharchotders.

Chiel Financtal
Officer

Senlor Independent
Director

Nan-tExecutive
Directors

supports the Group Chief Executive in implementing the Group's strategy
and in the financial performance of the business. The Chief Financial Officer
Is responsible for tnanacial reporting and setting, and reporting on, finangial
Gudls, objectives and budgets, and for overseeing risk, internal controls and
Internal Auadit.

the Senior Independent Director provides a sounding board for the Chair
i serves as an intermediary for the Non-Executive Directors. where
necessary. The Senior Independent Drrector leads the Non-Executive
Durectors performance apgraisal of the Chair and is available to meet with
sliareholders, if and when necessdr y, if they have any concerns about the
business which have not been resolved through normal channels.

Nan-Executive Directors exercise independent judgement and constructively
Lhallenge Lhe Executive Lirectors and the senior management team,
scrutinising performance against objectives. They provide strategic guidance
to the Company, utilising their wealth of knowledge, insight and experience

in their spedialist areas and have a pivatal rofe in the appointment and
removal of bxecutive Directors and the Company’s corporate governance
framework as a whole.

Group General
Counsel arnd
Cunpany Secretary

The Group General Counsel and Company Secretary acts as secretary to the
Buard and faciitates eftective Board meeting managerment in ¢onjunction
with the Lhair, ensuring Board procedures are complied with and the Board
has the infarmation, time and resources it needs in order to function
effectively and etficiently. The Group General Counsel and Company
secretary advises the Board on all governance matters and assists the Chair
with induction programmes tor new Directors and annual Beard evaluations,
She dlso provides reguiar legal, governance and compliance updates to the
Ruard and fdciitates Board traming.
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Committees of the Board

To facilitate the effective discharge of its duties,
the Board has three Committees to which certain
key responstbilities are delegated. The terms of
reference for each Committee are avallable ro
download an the Company’s website,

Only Committee members are entitled to attend
each Committee meeting, although the Chair may
invite addmonal attendees ta join for allor part of
a meeting to provide additional information or to
bring specific expertise to the meeting to assist
the Committes in decision-rmaking and the
discharge of its duties,

Committee Chairs report to the Board on the
matters discussed and decisions made ar the next
Board meeting follawing any Comimittee meeting.
Wihere appropriate, Cammittee Chairs make
PECLAHTIETIET |(|ril‘|nﬂ§ T ThP Rmare! ter CortJm
matters which require Board approvals sucias
the appreval of anmual and hal e Tinarnicldl
statements and Director appointments,

Read mare about our Board on pages 52 10 53.
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OUR BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

BOARD

~ ras
AUDET REMUNERATION NOMINATION
COMMIETTEE COMMTITTEE COMMITTEE
Daruet Shaok Geeta Gopalan Tany Rire

(seeta Gopalan Victara Hull Geeta (inpalan

Vittora Hull Ken Hunzeker Victoria Hull
Ken Hunzeker Daniel Shook Ker Hunzeker
Daruel Shook

The role of the Board

Therole of the Board is to provide
entrepreneurial leadership and direction to
Ultra in promoting its long-term sustainable
success, taking inta account the interests uf all
stakehulder groups. The Board i1s responsible
for the appruval of the Group's strategy and
policies, the over sighil ol risk, coritrols and
rorparate grwernanca, and for setting and
MOonItoring a cuiture that encourages the
Group’s businesses to behave ethically and in
line with our values. The Board sets the Group's
risk appetite and satisfies itself that financial
controls and risk management systems are
robust, while ensuring the Group is adequately
resourced, and actively engages with, and
considers the needs of, all relevant stakeholders
in Board decisions,

Audit Committee

Oversees the Group’s internal financial
controls and risk management systems,
monitars the integrity of all formal reports
and announcements relating to the
Company's financial performance and
maintains appropriate relationships with the
internal and external auditors of the Group.

Remuneration Committee

Formulates and recomimends to the Board the
remuneration policy far the Executive Team
and the Chair, ensuring alignment with the
Company's long-term strategic goals and
having regard to pay and emgloyment
conditions across the Company.

Nomination Committce

Reviews the structure, size and composition
ot the Board and oversees succession
plarning, including the development of a
diverse pipeline of candidates for Directors
and senior management positions. Considers
nominatiens, and the process, for appointing
riew Board members.
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EXPOUTIVG [pAM

The Executive Team is responsible for delivering
our strategy, driving our operational and financial
performance and ensuring the Company
maintams a supportive culture where cur

people can thrive.

The Executive Team oversees the execution of the
(aroup’s strategy and defines the operating model
and prucesses hal suppor ! Thal dlelivery, The
team alse makes policy, priorusation and scarce
resource allocation decisions, taking inta account
Ihe needs of all stakeholders and the agreed
objectives and stakeholder goals.

The Executive Team meets formally at least
erght times a year, and aims to hold at least three
meetings each year at ane of our operational
sites in North America and at least one visit at

an aperational site in the U when Covid-18
restrictions permit. The Executive Team uses

the opportunimy T have a tour of the hosting
pusiness as well as an all-employee presentation,
Q&A session and meetings with the senior
management and high-potental teams.

This enables the Executive Tearmn to see the
preduction floors and meet with employees

o hear their views, first-hand, as part of the
Company's warkforce engagement strategy,

as discussed on page 64,

Due to Covid-19 travel restrictions, the Executive
Team was only able to make one site visitin North
Amenica in 20217, to Ultra SMaP in New York State,
United States. It also visited Ultra PCS in
Cheltenham, UK.

However, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer were able to visit a number of
other sites in the US and UK In 2021, Townhall
meetings were held at most sites. Itis planned
toresume full Executive Teamn site visits in 2022
if restrictions allow.

Ethics Committee
This is an entirely independent Committee

currently made up of two Independent individuals,

Major General (Retired) Tim Cross CBE and Simon
Lowe, who have vast combined experience within
the fields of ethics, culture and governance.

The Commirtee visits Ultra sites on a rotating

schedule at feast four times & year and has a

formal remit to:

+Monitor alignment with best practice in our
business ethics and compliance procedures

+Assess how our culture and values are
embedded throughout Ultra

+Review Speak Up reports and challenge the
integrity and independence of gur Speak up
platform

The Ethics Committee meets with a diverse
group of employees at each site visit, without
management present, and meets with
management separately. Following the visits, an
independent, unizased and unadited report on

THEROLE OF OUR EXECUTIVE TEAM

BOARD
~
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
-~
EXECUTIVE TEAM
' Fay ~
ETHICS COMMITTEE CSR COMMITTEE

the percetved ethics and culture within the
husiness 15 provided to management. The
Committee challenges management where
necessary and, where applicable, provides
impartial advice on how ethical and cultural
matters could be improved

Twao formal Committee meetings are held each
year, at which the Committee members meet
with at least one representative of the Executive
Team present, to receive relevant updates and
presentations from Ultra management. The
Committee then provides honest, objective
feedback to the full Executive Team twice a

year, and annually to the Board.

Further information on the waork carried out by
our Ethics Committee can be found on page 64.

Ethics Committee biographies

TimCross CBE

Major General {Retired) Tim Cross commandet]

everything from a smali Bomb Disposal Team in
Northern Ireland to a 30,000-strong division of

the UK Fiefd Army His operational deployments
included Kuwart/Irag (1990/91), Baghdad (2003)
and the Balkans three times inthe 1990s. A Lay

Minister in the Church of England, he now runs

a broad portfolio in business, academia and the
humanitanan/charity world

Simaon Lowe FCA

Simon is a feliow of the Institute of Charterad
Accountants. He was a partnerin a leading firm of
accountants for 29 years where he led some of the
firm's largest listed audits. He was a member of
Grant Tharmnton's Cversight Board and founded
and led the Grant Thornton Governance [nstitute
providing market-leading Insight into emerging
trends and practices among the FTSE 350, Heis

a frequent presenter and commentatar on all
matters related to corporate governance,
including company cuiture,

Carporate Sotial Responsibility (CSR)
Committee

The CSR Committee 1s chaired by Rikk Douglas,
Vice President Business Development, Sonar
Systems, and compnises representatives from
across the business Our CSR Cornmittee develops
strategy recommendations on sustainability for
the Executive Team to review and incorporate into
Group strategy Our Executive Team is responsible
for assessing our environmental and social risks
and opportunities, ncluding those relating to
climate change, prior to sending it to the Board

for review and monitoring progress through

our risk management process, overseen by

our Chief Risk Officer.

Throughout the year Ultra appointed a Group CSR
Director to focus on delivering against the Group's
sustainability objectives

CSR Committee Chair's Biography

Rikki Douglas

Rikki Douglas was apponted Chairperson for
Ultra Group’s CSR Committee in late 2019 and
has warked with Ultra for almost a decade.

She Is currently the Vice President of Business
Development in our Sonar Systems Cperating
Business Unit. Prior to this, Rikki specialised mn
nuclear instrumentation and contral, leading Sales
and Marketing for our Energy Strategic Business
Unit, which supparts nuctear power generation
worldwide. She holds an MPhys in Physics from
the University of Lancaster, an MS¢in Radiation
and Environmental Protection frorm the University
of surrey, and an MBA from The Open University
Inearly 2020, as part of her new role, Rikki studied
Business Sustainability Management at the
University of Cambridge. She is a strong advocate
for Liltra businesses having a positive mpactin
the communities in which we operate.
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How the Board operates

Board meetings

[n 20271, there were eight scheduled Board
meetings. Additional Board meetings were
scheduled in relation to the proposed Acquisition
{see page 2 far further information) as and

when required.

The attendance at the scheduled Board
and Committee meetings 1s depicted in the
table below.

Geeta Gopalan was unable to attend one of the
Board and Audit Committee meetings due to a
canflictin her diary when the Board meeting dates
were set Unfortunately, the Board’s diaries did
not allow an alternative date on which all Board
members could attend.

Ordmarily, the Board aims to meet at the
Company's head office in London with two Board
meetings per annum at the Company's businesses
in North Amernica and one Board meeting per
annum in a UK business. To comnadsa with the
Board meeting, each business provides a tour of
their facility together with a presentation, and the
Board takes tme to meet with employees acrass
arange of the business in addition to the senior
management teams.

Cowid-19 continued to impact travel in 2021, which
meant that the Board was not able to travel to
Morth America. When restrictions allowed, the
Board held one Board meeting at Ultra SMaP

in Rugeley, UK and ancther at Ultra PCS In
Cheltenham, UK Both meetings incorporated a
tour of the facilities and offered the opportunity
for the Board to meet employees from all levels of
the business, first-hand as part of the Company’s
waorkforce engagement strategy. See page 64 for
further infarmartion.

In conpuncuion with the Company Secreterial team,
farward-looking agendas are prepared for the
Board and its Committees to ensure that the
Board discharges its duties on a timely basis
throughout the year taking into account strategy,
forecast and budget planning and the Companry’s
financial reporting cycle. The Chair meets with the
Chief Executive and the Company Secretary in
advance of each Board meeting as part of the
planning process to ensure the agenda and
papers are appropriate for the meeting. High-
quality Board packs are distributed well in advance
of each Board meeting to ensure each Direcror
has the requisite time to review the management
infarmation.

Fimeroa s
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BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEETING ATTENDANCE 2021

Aarr Rersoneraton Mominat an Bosard

Board  Committes Cormmittee Comrmittee AGM Strategy Day
Total no. of meetings in 2021 8 5 3 2 1 1
Executive Directors:
Simen Pryce B/ n/a n‘a n/a m 1N
Jos Sclater 83 n/a n/a n/a 1M 11
Non-Executive Directors:
Tony Rice 878 55 33 207 111 141
Geeta Gopatan?® /5 45 3 242 143 1/1
Martin Broadhurst? 4a/4 212 22 M 171 rn/a
Victoria Hull &/8 5/5 33 212 171 1N
DamelShook 88 5/5 33w
Ee_rﬁﬂljgzmek_emr T T B/8 55 33 212 n/a mn

1 The total number of scneduted rieetings held during tne year {excluding tnose relating to the proposed Acquisition}
2 Geeta Gopa'anwas unacle to zttend one Board and Aadit Co~rnittee meeting due to a diary confict
3 Martin Broadhurst stepped down from the Bosrd on ' July 2027, prior tathe Board's strateqy day

Certain Executive Team members and seniar
rmanagers are Invited 1o present at Board
meetings periodically to provide the Board
with rmore detailed insights into their business
or business area This gives management the
opportunity to draw on the Board's experience
and expertise, which shapes strategy
development and implementation.

Minutes of meetings are circulated as soon as
practicable after the Board meeting for review
and are approved at the next meeting. Any
concerns that a Director may have which have
not been resalved would be recorded in the -
Board minutes, together with necessary actions
to resolve the situation,

Upon resignation, If any Director has any concerns
about the husiness, the Chair would ensure active
engagermentwith the resigning Director and
would ensure that the Board as a whole would
receve feedback of those concerns in the form
of a letter addressed to the Chaw.

Directors' induction and development

No new Directors joined the Board throughaut
the year However, a structured full and formal,
tailored, induction plan is in place which would
be utilised for any new incoming Director. The
induction programme s lad by the Chair in
conjunction with the Company Secrerary and
includes the provision of an information pack on
the Group and its businesses, meetings with the
other Board members, members of the Executive
Tearn and certan serior managers and visits to
Ultra sites to facilitate a better understanding

of the businesses.

The Board undertakes training in accordance
with an annual training programme set out at
the start of the year, when traming needs are
assessed as part of the Board evaluation process.
The prograrmme comprises presentations from
senior management, site visits and updates on
specific areas of interest, such as technology,
engineering, customer focus and HR matters, as
well as relevant defence markets and the polincal
environment, to further enhance the Board's
understanding of the business and our sector.

Legal, governance, risk and compliance traning

is also undertaken throughout the year through

a combination of online training and presentations
from the Group Counsel and Company Secretary
and external adwvisers.

Time commitment

The Nomination Committee has primary
responsibility for monitoring time commitments
of Directors and ensuring that each Non-Executive
Dyrector has the reguisite time (o discharge

their duties as Directors effactively. In addition,
the Momination Committee reviews requests

by Directors wishing to undertake new
responsibilities or directorships and considers
both the time commitments iInvolved and any
potential conflicts. The Board is satisfied that the
number of appointments held by each Directar
cutside Ultra 1s appropriate and that all Directors,
both Executive and Non-Executive, have

the requisite time to fulfil their obligations

to the Company.
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Conflicts of interest

Directors have a duty to disclose any potential
or actual conflict of Interast in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006. The Cormpany has
appropriate procedures i place W i aye
conflicts of interest to ensure that the influence
of any third party does not mpair judgements.
All Board members are required t2 report any
potential or actual conflict of interest that may
inzerfere with their abhity to actin the best interest
of the Company, No Board member would be
inchuded in a discussion surrounding a conflict
involving themselves Any decision to approve a
potential or actual conflict of interest would ke
minuted, together with the rationale behind the
decision and a recard would be kept. Ary
authorised conflict would he maintained

in a register and reviewed periodically.

Risk management and internal controls
Effective risk management is crucial to meeting
our strategic abjectives The Board has overall
responsibility for ensuring the Cormpany has a
framework of prudent and effactive controls,
which enabile risk to be assessed and

managed effectively.

During the year the Board monitared and
assessed the Group's risk management and
internal controls systems and carried aut a robust
assessment of the Group's emerging and principal
risks, including pracedures for managing and
mitigating risks. Risk appetite was also considerad
in conjunction with assessing the strategic risks

as partof the process, Further details of the
Company’s emerging and principal risks can

be found on pages 42 to 46.

Foliowing the appointment of a Chief Risk Officer
in 2019, risk management and internal controis
was a key focus area during the year. See page
70 of the Audit Committee report for further
Infarmation.

Investigations

As previously announced, investigations
associated with conduct of business 1Ssues in
Algeria and the Philippines are ongaing, and
Ultra continues to cooperate with the relevant
authorities.

Our Board in action

How the Board spent its time

The principal matrers consirered by the Board
dunng the year are summanised below.

Strategy

+Regularly reviewed progress on the
implementation of the strategic plan

+Maonitored progress on the implementaticn
of the new organisational design

+Reviewed how the Company’s missicn,
vislon and values are embedded throughout
the business

+Considered strategic matiers at a designatad

trategy day
+Received updates on M&A activity

Transformation

+Received regular updates on, and provided
strategic direction relating to, Ultra’s Focus;
Fix; Graw transformation journey

Financial and operational performance

+Received detailed and transparent operational
updates from the Chief Executive at each
scheduled Board meeting

+ Reviewed and discussed financial performance
against budget including exceptional items
and any deviations from expectations

+Reviewed and approved Group budgets

+Reviewed KPI progress

+Reviewed and approved the Company’s Tax
strategy

+Discussed and approved capital and resource
allocation

+Reviewed and approved:
+The Annual Repart and Accounts and

preliminary results announcement

+The interim resuits and press release
+The dividend policy

+ Receyved presentations from Strategic Business
Unit Presidents

+Recawed updates on the Group’s defined benefit
pension scherme and related governance

Board changes

+MNoted Martin Broadhurst resignation from the
Board effective 1]July 2021 following completion
of his nine-year Board tenure

Market analysis and major bids

+Received reports on market development and
industry trends

+Reviewed significant current and future bids

+Received customer feedback

Governance and risk

+ Discussed the ongoing impact of Cowd-19 on 1
the business Incluchng and operational risk
mitigation

+Monitored heaith and safety performance
across the Group (at each scheduled Board
meeating)

+Reviewed the Grovp's internal contral and risk
management framework and Grougp risk register

+Approved the Group's principal risks and
uncertainties

+Discussed the risk appetite of the Board

+Recelved reparts from the Charrs of the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees

+Recewed regorts from the Chairs of the Ethics
Committee and CSR Committee

+Receved regular updates on litigation matters,
requlatory compliance and corporate
governance developments fram the Company
Secretarial team

+Reviewed the Company’s anti-bribery and
corruption policy compliancestraining
programme

+Considered the Company's whistleblowing
procedure pracesses

+ Discussed the Board evatuation and agreed
actions as a result of the feedback

+Approved the Group's modern slavery
statement

+Approved the Group’s gender pay gap disclosure

Sustainability

+Reviewed and approved Ulrra's 2021
Sustainability Report and 2024 sustainabihity
goals

People and reward

+Approved the gender pay gap repert and
reviewed the Company’s initatves ta promote
female leadership

+Received an update on diversity and inclusion
nitiatives

+Reviewed progress relating to workforce reward
and recogninon

+Monitored culture and received feedback
regarding culture from the Ethics Committee

+ Considered the Company's workforce
engagement procadures

+Recelved feedback from the global employee
engagement survey

+Reviewed progress regarding the
Implementatian of the new Human Resources
Information Systern (HRIS)

Other

+ Extensive discussions regarcling the offer from
Cobham, iIncluding receiving advice from the
Company’s financial and legal advisers as
regards the terms and conditions of the offer
and the Board's fiduciary duties, consideration
of the potential impact on all the Group's
stakeholders, and the mechanics of the Offer,
including holding a Court and General Meering
t0 approve the proposed Acquisition



Governarce

Firzecial ssstemerss

Ultra Annua P.eportv
ard Accounts 2021

63

BOARD EVALUATION

Board Evaluation

The Board recognises that formal Board
evaluation is an important tool in assessing
Directors’ ndividual and collective performance
and ensuring that the Board effectiveness
continues o be effective. The Board carries aut
a farmal review of its performance and that of
its Committees and Directors every year, with
an external evaluation on a three-year cycle
and an internal evaluation, led by the Chair

in canjunction with the Cormpany Secretary,

In the two intervening years.

As a result of the Board and Committees’
externally faclitated evaluation in 2020,

a sumrmary of the key focus areas for the
Board in 2021, together with actions in 2021
are as follows:

PROGRESS AGAINST 2020 BOARD EVALUATION OBJECTIVES

Focus area for 2021 Actionsin 2021

Delivery of
transformation plans

The Board monitored the delivery of transformation plans as a
standard agenda item at each scheduled Board meeting, with

presentations from senior management invalved in transformation
workstreams. The Board constructively chaltenged management
and was pleased with the progress made throughout 2021,

Succession planning

Led by the Nomination Committee, in conjunction with the Chief HR

Officer, succession planning for the Board and Executive Team was
a key focus area. See page 66 for further information.

Leveraging experience
of Non-Executive
Directors

The Non-Executive Directors play an active role in supporting
management and advising in their relevant areas wherever passible
and the Chair has ensured that each of them has been given the

opportunity to contribute to Board debate during the year.

Recruitment of a further
Non-Executive Director

As set out on page 66, a search for a further Non-Executive Director
was commenced in 2021 but was paused once the Acquisition was

announced. Should the Acquisition not complete by the long stop
date of 5 August 2022, the search will be reactivated,

Board Evaluation 2021

Following the external evaluation in 2020, an
Internal evaluation process was carried out
for the Board and each of its Committees for
the year ended 31 December 20271 Directors
completed an anonymous questionnaire
online, which was constructed to encourage
respandents to provide honest feedback In
a confidential manner anline. Feedback was
then collated and a report was produced and
provided first to the Nomination Committes,

and then to the Board as a whole for discussion,

Overall feedback was very positive. All Directors
enjoy being on the Ultra Board and feel that
Board meetings are open and transparent

and that their contributions are valued.

The Chair received extremely positive feedback
and is thought fo be an excellent Chair who

15 inctusive and fosters an atmosphere of
openness and respect in meetings. Directors
commented that the Chair provides the

right level of support to the CEQ while also
constructively challenging when appropriate.
Relationships between the Board and the
managerment team were felt to be open

and transparent.

‘ Many Directors stated their desire for more
site visits, if Covid-19 restrictions allow, to
see operations first-hand and meet with
management and emplayees throughout
the Group to better understand the culture.

Directors noted the improvements rmade within
the risk management and internal controls
framework and would continue to keep this

as a focus area for 2022,

Succession planning would also remain a focus
area for the year ahead, pending the outcome
of the Acquisition,
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Our Board in action
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Workforce engagement

Qur talent is criucal 1o our success and we believe
that understanding the views of our workforce 1s
vital For the purpase of employee engagement,
we define cur workforce as employees with formal
contracts of employment.

The Board reviews s means of engaging with
the workfarce, noting the three specific methods
the 2018 Code recommends, on an annual basis.
Given Ultra's geagraphicai spread and numerous
pusinesses, we continued to use a compination
of methods to understand the views of the
workforce in 2021, as described in detall below.

As detailed on page 12, our UitraView global
employee engagement survey provides
employees with the opportunity to give
anonymous feedback and for Ultra's leaders to
listen to the employee voice and act accordingly
where appropriate. An in-depth analysis of each
survey's results is provided to the Board, together
with action plans which are discussed

Board site visits are an impertant means of our
Board engaging directly with the workforce, The
Board aims ta visit at least two North American
sites and at least one UK site on an annual basis
The Board always schedules time to meet with
employees when wisiting Ultra locations to ksten
to their views and gauge culture on a first-hand
hasis. Due to Covid-19 restrictions, the Board
was not able to travel to North America in 2021,
although the Board was fortunate (o visit SMaP
in Rugeley, UK and Ultra PCS in Cheltenham, UK.

Ken Hunzeker and Dan Shook, Non-Executive
Directors, were also able to visit Ultra Energy, Ultra
SMaP, and Ultra Specialist RF inthe UK and Ultra
Naval Systems and Ultra Cyber in the US during
2027. The Directors were then able to provide
feedback to the full Board following their visits.

Simon Pryce and Jos Sclater visit Ultra sites

when possible and aim to meet employees as

well as management at each visit. They often

hold townhall meetings with question and answer
sessions for direct engagement with ernployees.
Furthermore, employees can also engage directly
with Simon Pryce by using the ‘Ask the CEC’

ermail address.

Ultra 1s fairly unique with its own entirely
independent Ethics Cormnmittee {the "Commuittee™).
Se¢e page 60 for the format remit of the Ethics
Committe including committee members’
biographies. The Committee aims to visit at least
four sites every year on a rotational basis and
holds two formal meetings each year, At least one
representative from the Executive Team attends
edch meeting to provide the Committee with
Group updates and progress against Ultra's many
imitiatives, including the roll-out of our ASPIRE

values, Code of Conduct, and Diversity and
Inclusion initiatives, to enable the Commitiee
members to engage with employees on these
areas ta get their feedback.

In 2021, the Ethics Commuttee held its first
Di-annual meeting at Ultra Sonar Systerm's site in
Loudwarter and was able to link up virtually to meet
with Sonar management and employees based
in Dartmouth, Canada on the day. The second
meeting was held at Uitra PCS in Cheltenham.,
Holding the formal meetings at business sites
enables the Committee members to visit more
lecations and meet more management and
employees throughout the Group than they
would ordinarily reach through their ordinary
course site vIsits.

The Ethics Committee also held virtual site visits
at Ultra Forensic Technolagy, with attendance
from the business sites in Dublin (Ireland),
Montreal (Canada) and Florida (US), Ultra SMaP
In Yaphank {U5) and Ultra Sonobuoys based

in Columbia City (US).

In advance of each visit, the Committee members
are provided with a copy of the engagement
survey results together with any historic
Commirtee reports for the business, and are
rerminded of any Speak Up reports that have been
made by employees there. At each site visit the
Committee first receives a presentation from
senior management to get a better understanding
of the facility it is visiting. The Committee then
meetrs with a diverse selection of employees

from around the business, without management
present, to hear their views and insights.

The sessions are an open dialogue with our
Independert Committee members who receve
feedback regarding matters such as business
ethics, culture and the ways of warking. The
Committee members also aim to reinforce the
message that our Speak Up platform is completely
independent and anonymous 1o encourage our
workforce to Speak Up if they suspect any
wrongdaing ar if they have a concern.

Followtng wisits, the Committee then compiles an
honest, objective report that is forwarded to the
Executive Team. Where recomrmendations are
made by the Committee, these are reviewed

and acted on where appropriate. Any cause

for concern would be followed up as spon

as practicable

The Committee formally report back 1o the
Executive Team twice a year and presert ther
honest feedback regarding employees’ views and
the ethics and culture within the businesses, and
repart to the Board annually This mechanism

of workforce engagement allows the Board to
hear the views of our peaple from our entirely
independent Committee and the Board sees this
as an effective means of employee engagement,
which also assists the Board to monitor culture
through the Group.
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Investor engagement
HOLDERS BY GEOGRAPHY
AS AT G FEBRLARY 2022
G Fehruary 2022

%nvested cap tal
UK 62.78
North America 2105
Western Europe (exc. UK) 14.57
Other 1.60
Total 100.00
TOP10 HOLDERS
AS AT 9 FEBRUARY 2022

SFegruary 2022

% Currylative

invested % invested
Shareholder Snares capital cap tal
Goldman Sachs
collateral account 3480485 487 487
Awiva Investors 3379025 ) 473 9 _6_2
Vanguard Group 3,207,833 4.49 14.10
LJSB collateral
account 3173314 444 1 8,56}7
Bank of New York
stocklending
collateral account 2,857,686 399 22.53
Blackrock 2848113 359 2652
Invesco 2587513 362 3014
Santander
collateral account 2,500,000 350 3364
Société Générale 2,158,791 3.02 36.67
MFS Investment
Management 21454592 300 367

Simandal siatamerts

Ultra 1s committed to communicating openiy
with our shareholders and building long-term
relationships with all our stakeholders to ensure
that its strategy and performance are clearly
understeod.

Investor engagernent in 2021 can be broken
into two halves; before the recommended offer
for Ultra and after.

Before the recammended offer {January to
August) Ultra's Investor Relations programme,
managed by the SVP of Investar Relarions,
consisted of day-to-day contact with aur Investors.
The CEQ and the CFO supglement this
programme by way of regular meetings with the
Company’s Institutional investors. The Investor
Relations programme included presentations of
full year and interim results, investor roadshows,
guarterly updates and meetings with indrdual
investors. Live webcasts of results presentations
were provided and briefings for analysts and
investors took place in conjunction with these.

The Executive Team and SYP of Inyestor

Relztions made themselves available to investars
on &n ongoing basis N order to mantain an
open dialogue, resuiting m a number of ad hoc
meetings and calls taking place throughout the

' year. Throughout the year investor roadshows

ware attended by the CEQ, CFO and Investor
Relfations team. Gur Board members also
make themselves avallable to engage with
shareholders as required.

Once Ultra was In an offer penod, Ultra's ability

to engage with Investors was constrained. Any
engagement that did take place was chapercned
by the Company's financial advisers and reported
to the Takeover Panel. Investor meetings
thereafter were held on a reactive basis but mostly
consisted of Acquisition-related questions rather
than underlying business performance.

Board engagerrent with investars

The Board is presented with uncensored analyst
and investor feedback twice a year after the full
year and interim results investor roadshows.
The primary means of communicating with the
Company's shareholders are the Company's
Annual Report and Financial Staterments, Interim
Report and Annual Sustainability Report AN of
which are available or the Company’s website
and the Annual Reportis sent 1o all shareholdars
who elect to receive 1t in hard copy.

Furthermore, in accordance with Provision 3 of the
Code, all of our Committee Chairs are encouraged
3 seek engagement with aur major sharehalders.
In addition, the Chairman proactively offers to
attend meetings with key stakehclders.

Following the implementation of the Company's
Remunaration Policy 1n 2020, the top ten
shareholders were invited for a call with the
Remuneration Committee Chair to dicuss the
policy, and the Remuneration Committee Chair
is always available for consultation as and when
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required to discuss remuneration matters with
sharehelders. There was no engagement with
shareholders spacificaity on Ultra's Remuneration
Policy in 2021 as the Company continued ta
operate in accordance with the approved
Remuneration Pelicy. Furthermaore, throughout the
offer period, sharehoider engagement was limited
to a reactive approach rather than the preferred
proactive approach, as previously explained

The Board 1s kept up to date with changes In
shareholdings, analyst research reports, the
current short position an the stock and recent
industry news by the SYP of [nvestor Relations
at every Board maeeting

During the year our Chairman and Company
Secretary had engagement with a number of
investors regarding the composition of the Board.
The Board has been involved mn a number of
Diversity, Equity and Inclusion initiatives within
Ultra and our first ever Diversity, Equity and
Inclusion report was recently published and

can be downloaded from www.ultra.group

Through these regular, planned contacts and
engagements with investors, including
ancnymous feedback reports twice per year, the
Board has regular opportunities and allocated
fime to consider aii stakenolder views and discuss
changes that need tc be made.

Constructive use of the Annual General
Meeting (AGM)

The Annuyal General Meeting 1s the formal forum
10 meet with alt shareholders who wish to attend
1o hear their views and answer their questions
about the Group

AL our 2021 AGM 22 3% of investors voted

against the re-election of our Chairman and

Chair of the Nomination Committee, Tony Rice,
due to the Ultra Board comprising 25%

women {vs the 33% Hampron-Alexander target).
Ultra fully supparts the recommendations of

the Hampton-Alexander review and is committed
to working towards achieving the Hampton-
Alexander gender target as we continue to refresh
the Board, as discussed with shareholders during
H1 2021. Although a search for at least one further
Non-Executive Director commenced in 2021, this
was paused once the offer for the Company by
Cobham was announced. As a result of the Offer
for the Company, no further engagement has
taken place with investors on this matter.

Should the Acquisition not proceed, the

search will be re-commenced.

2022 AGM

If 20% of votes are cast aganst a resaiution

that has been recommended by the Board for
approval at any General Meeting, where possible,
the Company will comply with Provision 4 of the
Code In the consultation with shareholders

and communication of shareholder views and
actions as a resuit.
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Nomination Committee report

MEMBERS

Tony Rice (Chair)

Martin Broadhurst (stepped down 1 July 2621)

Geeta Gopalan
Victoria Hull

Ken Hunzeker
Daniel Shook

Attendance at meetings is detailed in the
table on page 61. The Committee’s terms
of reference are available at ultra. group.

MAIN RESPONSIBILITIES

+Regularly review the structure, size
and composition of the Board

+5Succession planning for Board and senior
management positions, ensuring that the
leadership needs of the Company are met
ta compete effectively in the marketplace

+Be responsible for identifying and
nominating for the approval of the Board,
candidates to fill Board vacandies as and
when they arise, taking into account the
balance of skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity of the Board

+Review the tirme comrmitment required frorm
Non-Executive Directors annually, taking
into account Board evaiuation feedback

+Review the independence of Non-Executive
Directors and any potential conflict of
interest for Board members

|
|
|
|
|

Dear Shareholder, |
[.am pleased to present the Nomination Committes
{("Cammittee") report for the year ended

31 Decemnber 2021. This report should be read in
canunction with the compliance report on page 55,
which shows how the Company has complied with
the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018,

Activity during 2021

+Assessed the balance of experience, skilis,
knowledge and diversity of our Board

+ Developed roie descriptions for at least one
new Independent Non-Executive Director.

+ Received an update from the Chief HR Officer
regarding the progress on arganisational
design and succession planning

+Considered succassion planning for the
Board and Seruor Leadership Team

+Recommended to the Board that Geeta Gopalan
be appointed as Chair of the Remunaration
Committee following Martin Broadhurst's
departure from the Board

+Commenced a search for at least one additional
Naon-Executive Director, which was later
postponed pending the cutcome of the
proposed Acquisition

+Considered the Non-Executive Director time
commitments to ensure that they can attribute
the necessary time to their roles

How the Nomination Committee operates

The Nominaton Cornmittee operates with 2
forward-looking agenda, prepared in conjunction
wnth the Company Secretanat, to ensure the
Committee’s duties are fulfiled on a timely

basis in accordance with the Group finanaal
reporting cycle.

Lastyear, we anncunced that Martin Broadhurst
would be stepping down from his role as
Non-Executive Director following his nine-year
tendre on the Board and I reported that we
would be looking to appoint at least one new
Non-Executive Director later this year,

We appointed Lygon* independent executve
search consultants ta assist us with our search,
who provided a list of potential candidates from
diverse backgrounds. However, following the
actvity regarding the potential acquisition in Q2
2021, we decided to postpone the appointment
for any further Non-Executive Director and
therefore curtailed the search process.

Board evaluation

Following an externally driven Board evaluation,
led by Clare Chalmers Limited, an internal Board
gvatuation commenced in 2027, led by the Chair
in conjunction with the Company Secretary.
Directors completed an online anonymous
questionnaire regarding performance of the
Board, and each of its Committees The results of
the evaluation were reviewed by the Nomination
Committee in Q1 2021 and are summarised on
page 63, |

The Normination Cammittee 1s satisfied that the
Board and Committee Evaluation process is
appropriate and was pleased with the results
of the evaluation process.

Leadership succession

Agreat deal of work was conducted over recent
years on organisational design and succession
planning throughout the Ultra Group, which
resulted in several changes to the Executive
Team in recentyears. In 2021, the focus was on
succession planning for those within the Executive
Team, including the CEQ and CFO, and ensuring
that we have the nght Sentor Leaders within the
organisation to fead Ultra through our change
programme, and potentially step inta Executive
Team rales in the future.

The Namination Commitiea receivad an
organisational design and succession planning
update from the Chief HR Officer in Q1 2021 and
was pleased with the great progress in this area,
noting that the talent within Ultra has improved
and we are seeing mare internal promotions.
Moreover, identification of high potentials within
the business has assisted with succession
planning for the Senior Leadership Team.

Diversity

Ultra s committed to treating everyone with
fairness, digrity and respect. We recognise that
figh-performing teams benefit fram diversity.
Selection, development, promoton and reward
will be based on ment without regard to personal
charactenistics includming, but not hmited to,
gender, race, olour, religion, sex, sexual
arientation, citizen status, national origin,

age, disability or genetic information.

We promate equality of opportunity across the
whole business and demanstrate this in our
approach to recruiting new Board members,
actively seeking candidates from a diverse range
of backgrounds including gender, tenure, skills,
experience and backgrounds in addition to softer
traits such as personality. This will always be a key
focus area for us when considering Board and
succession planning, notwithstanding that all
appointments will be based on ment and
candidates’ experience and business acumen.
See pages 56 for more Information on our
existing Board diversity.

The Nornination Cornmittee receved very
encouraging feadback from the Chief HR Officer
regarding diversity and inclusion inrtiatives and
results within senior management teams and the
wider workforce and was very pleased to see an
impravement in our gender pay gap in 2021, as
described in detail on page 34. However, we
recognise that there is still some way to go and wili
continue to keep this under review. Further details
on Ultra's initiatives to ensure that we maintain a
diversa and inclusive workplace are included
onpages 331034,

* The externai search firm engaged 1as no other cornechion
with the Company or .ndiadual D rectors
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Audit Committee report

MEMBERS

Daniel Shook (Chair}
Martin Broadhurst (stepped down 1 July 2021)
Geeta Gopalan

Victoria Huli

Ken Hunzeker

Attendance at meetings is detailed in the
table on page 61. The Committee’s terms
of reference are available at ultra.group

MAIN RESPONSIBILITIES

The Audit Committee supports the Board

in the following areas:

+ Qversee the Group's risk management
systems, including financial controls

+Agree the internal and external audit plans

+ Review all significant accounting
judgements

+Monitor the integrity of all formal reports
and announcements relating to the
Company's financial performance, and
consider any significant judgements by
management

+Recommend the half and full year financial
resuits to the Board

+Appoint the internal auditors, oversee the
appointment of the external auditors and
maintain an appropriate relationship with
the internal and external auditors of the
Group

+Report the findings and recommendations
of the internal and external auditors to
the Board

+Review the independence and effectiveness
of the internal and external auditors

Dear Shareholder,

[ am pleased to present the Audit Committee
report for the year ended 31 December 2021.
This report should be read in conjunction with

the compliance repert on page 55, which shows \
how the Company has complied with the UK
Corporate Governance Cade 2018,

Throughout a year where Ultra delivered excellent
performance despite the distractuions of the
proposed acquisition by Cobham and the ongaing |
pandermic, the Cormmittee continued to focuson
continuous IMprovements 1N our internal controls
and nisk management procedures, as explainad In
more detall on page 70,

Martin Broadhurst stepped down from the Audit |
Cornmittee durng the year and Twould like to

thank Martin for s contripution to the work of

the Committee over the course of his tenure,

Ultra's intenm results were released earlier than
planned on 19 July 2021 to update the market

on the stronger than anticipated performance for
the half-year to 30 June 2021 In order to update
our stakeholders regarding the benefits of the
ongoing transformation programme, KPMG ‘
was engaged as the independent reporting
accountant to prepare a Quantified Financial
Benefits Statement (QFBS) in accordance with Rule
28 of the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers.
The Audit Committee reviewed the QFBS in detall,
nctucing the management assurmptions that
supportad the QFBS, prior to its inclusion in the
interim results announcement 2021,

The Board considers all Audit Committee
members to be Independent Non-Executive
Directors. Tam currently Group Finance Director
of MU plc, a FTSE 250 company, and have
previously held diverse finance roles in several
large multinational companies. The Board 1s
therefore satisfied that [ have the requisite recent
and relevant financial experience to chair the Audit
Committee. Additionally, all Audit Committee
members have competence relevant to the sector
inwhich the Company operates. The biographies
of the Comrmittee members can be found on
pages 52-53.

The main responsioilines and activities of the
Audit Committee are set out below and detalled
throughout this report.

How the Audit Committee operates

The Audit Committee operates with a forward-

looking agenda, prepared in corunction with ;

the Group Finanaal Controller and Company \

Secretariat team, to ensure that the Committee’s

duties are fulfilled on a timely basis in accordance

with the Group financial reporting cycle. The

agenda s reviewed and updated as necessary

during the year to deai with matters as they

anise which are outside of the annual agenda. \
|
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The Commuttee held five scheduled meetings
throughout the year. The Chair of the Board, Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Finanaal Officer, Group
Financial Controller, Chief Risk Officer, the external
auditor (Deloitte and internal auditor {Pw)
attended parts of these meetings by invitation.

The Committee held separate meeungs with

the externai auditor and internat auditor wathout
management present, and the Audit Committee
Chair also met with the external auditor, internal
auditor and the Chief Fimanoial Officer and his
team outside the formal Commities sassions

External auditor

Deloitte LLP {"Delaitte”} continued as the
Company's external auditor in 2021 further to
re-gppointment at the Company’s Annual General
Meating in May 2021 fonathan Thamsan taak,
over from Alex Butterworth as Lead Partner i
accardance with professional practice guidelines
to rotate Lead Partners every five years. Jonathan
Thomson had been heavily involved in the 2020
audit process therefore the change was a smooth
transition and the Committee welcomed his fresh
eyes and approach.

The Committee has primary responsibility

far recommending the re-zppointment of

the external auditor to the Board before the
resolution 15 put to shareholders at the Company's
Annual General Meeting. The Committee beliaves
that it 1s in the best interest of its members for
Defoitte to remnain as external auditor during 2022
to leverage their knowledge and experience of the
Company while we are going through a period

of change and uncertainty regarding the future
shareholders of the Company. We therefore
recommend that Deloitte be re-appointed

as Company audwors for 2022,

As reported in last year's Annual Report, the Audit
Committee will lead an auditor tender process by
no later than 2023, which would be the maxrmum
term that Deloitte could remain as auditors. Any
auditor tender process led by the Committee will
ensure that there is a sufficent pool of high-
calibre firms to tender given the recent
independence requirements.
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Audit Cornmittee report
continued

ACTIVITY DURING 2021

Finandial statements and accounting policies

+Reviewed management's
significant issucs and judgernents

+Reviewed the Group's financial
statemicnts and the funnel
announcoment on the Group’s
financial performance

+Reviewed the Group's going
concerm and fony-term viability
statomont assumptionsg

Risl- management and internal control framewark

+Reviewed and provided oversight
of the Group's risk management
and internal controls processes

+Assessed the effectivensss ot the
Group's system of internal control
and nsk management

+Considered and recommencded to the Board for approval the Annual Report and Accounts, interim financiat
slaternenls, yudl fied finahaat benefits statement and related results announcements

+Discussed key accounting policies and practices adopted by the Group

+Heviewed key accaunting judgements and matters that required the exercise of significant managemeny
JutdypinnLses section on Significant Judgements considerad on page 69)

+Reviewed underlying assumptions and the ngour of the testing underpinning the going concern statement
and long-term viability statement (as set out on pages 46-47) prior to approving them

+ Considered repor Ls un Lthe risk management and internal controls environment and its effectiveness

+Discussad half-yearly internal controls reports from business and Shared Service Centre reviews, together
with actions arising fromfindings

+Reviewed the principal risks, the Group's risk appetite and risk metrics and considered their alignment with
the achiovernent of Ultra's strategic objectives

+Assessed the key controls in place and agreed future managernent actions to mitigate risks

1 Censcarad fuge e un koo o suupecied fraud

+Uversaw in-depth reviews ot specific controls areas Including financial controls/fraud, ant-bribery and
corruption and programme managernent

+Met with key finance leads as part of business reviews to further assess the controls environment

+(onsidered the ongoing impact of Covid-19 on Group risk profile

+ Heviewed the bid controls process and considerad ongoing workstreams relating to sales excellence and bid
activity

+ Received a report from the Chief Technology Officer on the Company's cyber security solution and cyber
controis framewaork

+ lurther details of the approach to risk management can be found on pages 70-71

External audit, engagement and policy

+Reviewed the scope and
effectivinicsy ol U exiernal
audit procoss

I Mrgatioted the toons of Lhie
external audiitor's appointment,
the scope, fees and independernice

+Ensured an effective audit partner
rotation process

Internal Audit

+Considered Deloitte's external audit planning report prior to the cornmencement of the 2027 audit

+Received reports from the external auditor on the outcomes of their audit process and the external audit
plan fur the year and discussed tindings and improvement areas

+Liscussed Ueluitle's letler to management and management responses ta that letter

+Reviewed e mdependence and effectiveness of the auditor, in conjunction with audit and non-audit fees,
and recommended the re-appomntment of Deleitte as auditor

+Reviewed Lead Partner candidate options and selected new Deloitte Lead Partner

+Appruved d evised exiertial alditar's engagement policy taking into account new Finandat Reporting Counci
{(FRO) slandards

+Reviowed the cffectiveness of the
Internal sudit function

+ Discnssed] conbrol issues identfied
Ly Internal Audit

+ Ay eed Ui 1isk-Uased Internal Audit plan for the year, monitored delivery of Internal Audiit against the plan
and reviewed L effectiveness of Internal Audit through oversight of a questionnaire-based affectiveness
review wilh siakeholders

+ Considered specific Internal Audit summary reports from the reviews and progress reports on the
hnplemeniation of remedial actions, noting the progress made in the control environmeant within the
Gruuy’, busingnises

Other

+Rocened Corporate gmernanu:
refontin piclaies

+ Reveived updales relaudny (o the Bels UK Lorporate Heporting and Audit Reform
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SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS CONSIDERED

hudgement area

Committee assessment

Lony-terrn contract
accounting

A signiticant proportion of Group revenue arises from long-term contracts, where revenue and profit recognition is based

on estimates. The Committee was updated on progress on key programmes. The Committee considered the key sources of
estimation uncertainty with respect to forecast cost to cornplete estimates. The Committee considered the disclasures made

in the Anpual Report with respert 1o eveniue tecognintion including the related accounting policies and key sources of estimation
uncertainty. The Commirtee discussed and engaged with the external auditor when considering all these matters. See disclosure
in note 3, and in the statement of accounting policics on pages 138-146.

Valuation and
impairment testing
of goodwill and
intanyible dssets

Recagnising the scale of the Group's goodwill and intangible fixed asset balances, the Committee discussed a report and analysis
from managernent and considered whether, given the future prospects of the acquired businesses, the value of goadwill held

on the balance sheet remains appropriate The Cammittag resdowed the rcthudoiugy and assurhplions used to support the
balance sheet carrying values of these assers, including the discount rates applied, and the furure groweth rate apphed into
perpatuity aftor the end of the sb ateyic plah penod. 1he Committee noted that the cash flows used were derived from the

2022 budaet and strategic plan (which in thar role as member s of the Bodard, Lommirtee members had proviously rovaved),
The Commitiec comsider ed e setsiomvty of the asset valuations to changes in assumptions The Cnmmittee concluded that

no disclosure of a koy soyrue of Bslimainn nncartamty was required for Uas e, The thethadalony b impairmoent teatineg
nsed By the Growpinget A in fota 13 10 L Sroup aweounLs, Nu inpdirments were identitied as a result of the review

The Committee discussed and engaged with the external auditor when considering all these matters

laxation

The Cormmittee cansidered the Group's key tax accounting judgements with respect to the gssessment, measurament and
recogrution of uncortain tax positions, primar 1y telated to intra-Group financing, and the associated disclosures n respert nf
these matters The ammittee concuded that nu Jisulusure of a crincal accounting judgement was required for this matter.
The Compmittee discussed and engaged with the external auditor when considering all these matters. See disclosure in note 10,

Conduct of business
matters

The Committee was Lipdaterd nn tha invastigations assodated witlwonduc L of Business matters (see note 33 on page 135).

The Cammittze considercd the judgements relaling 1o these matters, particularly around the reguirements of 145 37 Provigione,
Continnaat Lizbifities and Cnnfingent Ass=ls willi espect to providing lur setdement costs, and disclosure of contingent
liabiliies. The Committee considered the disclosures in the Annual Repart. The Committee discussed and engaged with the
external auditor when considering these matters.

Defined benetit
pension scheme

The Committee ronsiderad the actoanal assumptions used fun the stheitie vaiuation, the sensitivity of the valuation to changrs
inthose assympfians coerecd oo ling kevel afthe pension schiene aned e latniTes of the detined benefit pension scheme.
The Committee discussed and engaged with the external auditor when considering all these marters. See disclosure in note 29.

Proposed takeover
by Lobham Ultra
Acquisitions Limited

The Cammittee consider the rrearmant of casts associatcd with Lthe ropused acquisition; certain costs are contingent upon the
acquisition becoming effective (see note 331, The Committee considered the disclosures in the Annual Report. The Committee
discussed and engaged with the external auditor when considering these matters.
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Audit Committee report
continued

External auditor independence and objectivity
Inits assessment of the independence of the
external auditor, the Committee reviews the
independence and objectivity of the Company's
auditor through a combination of:

+{pen dialogue with the auditor

+Analysis of judgernents and findings

+Review of non-audit services

ir1s the policy of the Group that non-audit services
provided by Deloitte are restricted to reporting
required by law or regulaton, review of interim
financial information, reporting on regulatory
returns, reporting an gavernment grants,
repartng on internal financial cantrols when
required by law or regulation, and extended

audit or assurance work that is authonised by
those charged with governance performed

an financial or performance information or
controls where this workis closely Inked with

the audit work. The policy prohibits due diligence
assessments of potential acquisitions, consultancy
services assoclated with finangial restructuring,
remuneration censultancy, tax planning, Internal
Audit and actuanal services Any non-audit

fees In excess of £50,000, n aggregare, in any
financial yearwill be referred in advance to

the Chair of the Audit Commirtee for approval.

In 2021, Delaitte provided non -audit services fees
of nil(2020; £3,000) representing 0% (2020: 0.2%)
of the total audit fees. The Committee considers
that certain nen-audit services, In accordance
with the policy above, should be pravided by the
external auditor, because rts existing knowledge
of the business makes it the rost efficent and
effactive way for non-audit services to be carried
out. Befare commissioning non-audit services,
the Chief Financial Officer or the Chair of the
Committee, as appropriate, must ensure that
there 15 no 1ssue as regards to Independence

and objectivity and other potential providers

are adequately considered.

External audit effectiveness

The audit scope, approach and areas of focus
are agreed well in advance of the audit to ensure
a mutual understanding of expectations and
tmeframes. Following the 2020 audit, key
learnings were identfied and fed into the 2021
audit planning process to ensure angoing
contmuous imgrovement.

inorder to review the audit effectivenass

throughout the year, the Comimittee congidered:

+The gLality of the audit reports and ancillary
documents grovided by the external auditor

+ Feedback from the Chief Financial Officer and his
senior finance teams throughout the Group

+ The Committee's collective views from meetings
held with the external auditor

Based on these collective reviews, the Commitiee
concluded that Deloitte had applied appropriate
robust and objective challenge throughout the
audit process and were satisfied with the
performance of the sxternal auditor

Deloitte's 2020 audit of Ultra was selected for the
Financial Reporting Counal's Annual Audit Quality
Inspection, the outcome was pleasing and gives
comfart to the Audit Commitiee that our external
auditors are of a high standard.

Employment of former external auditors

Any ermployment of former employees of external
auditors would be considered on a case-by-case
basis and would take into account the Auditing
Practices Board's Ethical Standards on such
appointments. Such appointments require
approval by a combination of the Chief Financial
Officer, Audit Committee and Board, depending
on the seniority of the appointment.

Risk management and internal controls

The Audit Commuttee conducted a deep dive

Into internal controls and risk management
procedures in 2027, ‘Three lines of defence’
reviews were conducted in several areas, Including
ABC, Fraud, Health & Safety, Programme
Management, Trade and Export Compliance,

Bid Controls and Cyber Risk, Strategic risks were
assessed as part of the strategy process.

Due to the increasing threat of cyber secunty,
the Committee receved a report from the Chief
Technology Officer regarding the Company's
cyber security solution and cyber contrals
framework . In addition to internal cyber
penetration Testng conducted by the Ulera [T
team, penetration testing by an mdependent
externat firm is scheduled for H1 2022

The risk management framewaork was reviewed
and challenged by the Committee Strategic risk
assessments were carriad out with the businesses
as an embedded part of the 2021 strategy
process, The risk framework and Group rnsk
register were reviewed by the Committes and

the Board. The focus on nsk management will

be mantained in 2G22.

The Group's Internal controls framework includes
appropriate financial, operational and compliance
controls, and nsk management processes, which
wgether ensure the appropriate aversight of
financial reporaing processes, including the
preparation of consolidated Group accounts.

The cantrol ervironment within Ultra comprises
the folfawing:
+Group policies
+Group delegation of authorities
+Monthly finandial control checklists
+Sp-monthly contral review meetings
+Risk reviews/registers at Business Unit
and Group level

+Speaffic area subject risk reviews {Including
Anti Bribery and Corruption Risk and
Environmentat Risk)

+Specific contral framework reviews based on a
‘three lines of defence’ analysis (including key
compliance areas, Health and Safety Cantrols
Frarmework, Programme Management}

+Audit Committee training - audit and
governance reforms

+Bid precess reviews

+5Staff training

+Internal Audit (pravided by PwC)

+Speak Up platform for external support of
whistleblowing reparang

+Strategic Business Unit (58U} review of monthly
Operational Business Unit {OBU) performance

+5BU level performance reviews

+Executive Team oversight and challenge

+Group Board and Commuttee oversight and
challenge

+Other requlatory assurance actraties

The arrangements mclude procedures to

ensure the maintenance of records that accurately
and fairly reflect frransactions, to enable the
preparation of financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standerds
(IFRS} They alsa require reported data to be
reviewed and reconcled, with appropriate
monitoring internally and by the Audit Commictee
to ensure the integrity of the financial statements.

The tanaging Directors and Presidents, the
Finance Directors and the Vice Presidents Finance
of each business are required to give a formal
written representation to the Board each year

to confirm that they accept respansibility for
maintaining effective internal controls and that
they have disclosed full details of any fraud or
suspected fraud within their business

Every six months, each SBU Finance Director
meets the Chief Financial Officer and discusses
the internal controls processes and 15sues for
each business in ther SBU. This includes:
+Self-assessment against the finance manual
+8Balance sheet and contyols reviews, including
reviews of reconcikations
+Qutstanding internal and external audit points
+Segreqation of duties

Suminary resuits from these reviews are
discussed in the Internal Controls Improvement
Status Report, which is presented to the Audit
Committee twice a year. The internal controls
environment continued to be strengthened

in 2021 with further standardisation of policies
and processes. Emphasis continues to be

placed on tracking progress of umely delvery of
improvement actions arising from formal controt
reviews, including internal Audit reports. In 2022,
the focus will continue ta be on improving the
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comphance culture and on the programme
management transformation roll-out of core
processes and tools to enhance the consistency
of approach across the Group.

The prinapal nisks reparted i ths Anneal Report
are a prioritised distillation from a corporate level
register of key risks. The Committee assessed
these emerging and key risks facing the Company
in October and December 2027 and reviewed the
risk control and monitoring frameworks in place
1o effectively manage those risks.

Following a detalled review of the risk activities
and risk reporung processes during the year, no
significant failings or weaknesses were identified
in the review pracess; however, this will always be
an area of focus for continuous improverment.

As such, the focus for 2022 will be on embedding
and expanding the new process for reviewing key
control areas using the 'three lines of defence’ risk
model, and mapping of assurance around risk
controls and monitors

Internal Audit

Pw(C remained as Ultra's internal auchtor
throughout the year. The use of an experienced
external firm provides independent assurance on
the effectiveness of the system of internal comtral.
Arisk-based approach is taken by the Company
in determining its [nternal Audit plan, ensuring
that the plans dlearly linked 1 the Company’s
strateqgy and related nsks and is flexible enough
to highlight and address emerging risks as well
as testing established controls frameworks. The
Internal Audit plan and rescurces are considered
and monitored by the Committee, together with
allinternal control findings and remedial actions.

Any newly acquired operating business would be
audrted within a year of its acquisition date. Where
required, additionat audits are ident:fied during
the year in response to changing priorities and
requirements.

The Lead Partner from PwC reports directly to
the Charr of the Committes and presents the
findings to the Committee throughcut the vear.
Progress reports on follow-up remedial actions
are reported regularly to the Commuttee. PwC
confirms whether appropriate action has been
raken to address prior findings when it next visits
the business or function concerned.

The effactiveness of Internal Auditis assessed by
the review of Internal Audit reports, meetings with
the Chair of the Commuttee without management
betng present, an Internal Audit effectrvenegss
review guestionnaire process with stakehalders,
and views from senior managerment and the
Chief Financial Officer.

Fraud

The Committee 1s responsible for the oversight

of the nisks of fraud and the design and
implementation of Internal controls to prevent
ann detect fraud, The Committee manitors the
procedures in place to detect fraudulent activities
through the risk management and internal
controls framework and biannual conerols reviews,

Thera s a fraud reporting process in place that
farms part of the morithly business performance
reporting cycle. Any suspected fraudulent actaty
15 promptly reported to the Board and auditors
would be nformed accordingly Route-cause
analysis is undertaken, with key findings
communicated to the Business Units and policy
and processes improved as necessary. It1s
believed that the internal control framewark in
place, reinforced by regular audits and promotion
by executive leadership as part of the new Code of
Conduct, provides reasonable assurance against
substantial frauds being carried out. The
Committee believes there to be a low nisk of
significant misstatement of Ultra's finanaial
statements as a result of fraud

Whistleblowing

The Company has an independent, anonymous
and confidential, whistleblowing hotline,
externally-hosted by NAVEX Global which s
branded 'Speak Up’ Importantly, there Is a clear
message that the Company will not accept any
retaiiation in any form against someone who
reports any concern or violation in good faith.

Subject to any classified and/or securty
restrictions, alt Speak Up feedback is sent to Ultra's
Senior Independent Director and, ultimately, to
the Board. The Ethics Committee also receves
reports made via Speak Up. All reparts are
thoroughly investigated and corrective action s
taken If necessary. The Committee is satisfied that
the whistleblowing procedures and follow-up
investigative processes within the Company are
practical and appropriate for the Company.

Anti-bribery and corruption

The Carmpany has a zero-tolerance approach o
bribery and corruption anywhere In the world.
This message s emphasised in the Company's
emiployee Code of Conduct, which also incdudes
practical examples of corrupt behaviour that is
not tolerated, and points employeas to specific
policies containing more information on aspects
of anti-bribery and corruption (ABC).
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The Company's ABC manual, which was
consalidated from multiple policies In Q3

2020, underwent its first annual continuous
improvement review in 2021, with amendments
published reflecting enhancements to controls
and processes identified through use. ABC was an
area of specific controls and assurance focus, with
the controls framewark reviewed by the Executive
Team and the Audit Committee in 2021 and an
Internal Audit review of businesses compliance
with the framewaork in Q4 2021, building on an
audit of the policy and procedures conducted by
PWCin Q4 2020

The Company’s Soard memiers, officers and
other workers were required to complete
interactive, tallored, online ABC training provided
by NAVEX Global Core training was mandated for
all, with more advanced modules for those within
the Company cperating i a higher-risk.
environment. All of our Directors completed

the advanced ABC training madules. Third-party
ABC Risks training was mandated for workers
responsible for managing inrermediaries and
assoviated persons

In addition to this enhanced traiming, bespoke
in-person and virtual ABC training was delivered
hy the Company’s lawyers to senior management
ream members responsible for ABC oversight
across their businesses on an ad hoc basis.

Statement of compliance

The Company confirms that it complied
throughout the year with the provisions of the
Compettion and Markets Authonty’s Statutory
Audit Services for Large Companies Market
[nvestigation (Mandatory Use of Competitive
Tender Processes and Audit Committee
Responsibilities) Order 20714,

Fair, balanced and understandable statement
The Audit Committee, having reviewed the
documents and having heen additionally advised
by the external auditors, 1s satsfied that the
disclosures, as well as the processes and controls
undertying its production, were appropriate and
recormmended to the Board that the Annual
Report and Financial Statements 2021 are farr,
balanced and understandable. Furthermore,
they provide the information necessary far
sharehaolders and other stakeholders to

validly assess the Company's position and
performance, business model and strategy
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Directors’ remuneration report
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Geeta Gopalan
Chair of the Remuneration Comrmitiee

2021 was anather high-performing
year for Ultra despite some significant
distractions. Our KPIs show robust
growth despite pandemic challenges.

MEMBERS

Geeta Gopalan (Chair)

Victoria Hull

Daniel Shack

Ken Hunzeker

Martin Broadhurst (stepped down 1 july
2021

Aftendance at meetings is detailed in the
table on page 61. The Committee’s terms
of reference are avatlable at ultra.group

Dear Shareholder,

I am pleased to present our Directors’
remuneranon repert for the finanaal year ended
31 December 2021. This report should be read
in cengunction with the compliance report on
page 55, which demonstrates how the Company
has complied with the UK Corporate Governance
Code 2018,

During the 2021 financial year, the

Remuneration Committee sought to ensure that
all remuneration deasions were in ine with the
Directors’ Remuneration Palicy as approved by
sharehoiders in May 2020 and that Incentive plan
outcomes were aligned with strategic goals and
performance ouicomes applied in accordance
with thair rules and appropriately reflected the
interests and experience of sharehciders

Remuneration outcomes for 2021

2021 was another high-performing year for

Ultra despite scme significant distractions.

Our KPIs show robust growth despite pandemic
challenges. We are also seeng the benefits from
the transformation and continuous improvement,
Initiatives under the Fix; Focus; Grow strategy

The year began with continued uncertainty
wrought by the Cowvid-19 panderic but through
continued focus on strategic goals and the service
of customers, half-year results were good and
prospects for the full year were very positive. The
acquisition of Ultra was announced on 16 August
2021, and this added to the uncertamty within
which Ultra needed to maintain its high level

of performance However, despite these events,
Ultra has produced 3 strong set of full-year resuits
with organic revenue growth of 4,2% and organic
underlying operating profit growth of 8%

The uncertainty around the acquisition by
Cobham meant that the Committee convened
additional meetings to decide on the prinagles it
wouid apply In the event that the recommended
offer for Uitra completes, to the outcormes of the
2021 annual bonus, the targets for which had
been set at the start of the year, and the vesting
of the in-fight LTIP awards for 2019, 2020 and
2021 Since the offer has not completed at the
time of reporting, this reportis based on Ulra
operaiing I the orcinary course. Throughout
the year, the Remuneration Committee continued
o operate within its normal terms of reference.

Annual banus

The Committee considered the performance
metrics holistically and determined that
verformance against the financial metrics of
underlying operating profit and average warking
capital turn targets was above the maximum of
the performance range. Perfarmance against
the individual strategic objectives of the Executive
Directors coupled with their excellent individual
contributions in maintaining performance while
steering Ultra through the period from the
annouricement of the recommended offer,
resulted in 100% payaut of the 2021 annual
bonus plan.

Long Term Incentive Plan (LTEP)

The 2013 LTIP award was subject to four
equally weighted performance conditions.
+ Relative Total Shareholder Return (T5R)
+Return on Invested Capitat (ROICY
+Qrganc Operating Profit Growth?
+0rganic Revenue Growth-

The award was tested for performance at the end
of 2021 and based on Uitra's financial and shara
price performance over the full performance
period of the award, the vesting was determined
0o be 97.3%. Inlast year's report itwas noted that
the Committee had exercised discretion to adjust
the profit and ROIC outcome on the 20°8 LTIP

to reflect the change in accounting convention
whereby trransformaton costs were classified as
non-underlying and did not impact the Company's
reported underlying profit. As this issue also
impacts the 2019 award, the Committee has again

. exercised discretion to adjust the profit and ROIC

outcomes. The Committee reviewed the formulaic
outcome and considered it reflective of overall
business performance

Implementation of policy for 2022

The Committee considered salary increases for
the CEQ and CFC. In so doing, 1t took into account
the compettive positionng of current salaries, the
proposed increases for the generai workforce and
the excellent performance of the iIncumbents.

The Committee decided that there should be

no salary increase for the CEQ. The Commuttee
agreed that there should be a 3% increase in the
base salary of the CFO in fine with the budget for
all employee increases, to mantain 3 compebtive
positioning of total reward and reflecthis
significant contribution 1 the Group.
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The Committee has concluded that it would not be
appropriate to reduce the cash payment inlieu of
pension for the CEQ further at this time {current
cash allowance represents 14% of base salary)
The additional burden onthe business resulang
from the potential acquisition by Cobham and
the uncertamty over post-acquisition plans has
meant there Is a delay [0 the proposed review

of pensiens and benefits across the Group.

The Commuttee is mindful of Investor senyment
on this matter and remains committed tc align
contribution levels by 2023 should the proposed
acquisition not proceed.

Far 2022, the Commitiee proposes no change
to the structure and metrics of both the annual
bonus and LTTP nor to the bonus opportunity or
LTIP grant level. Targets for the 2022 bonus plan
hawve been set based on budgeted performance
and ahgnment with the current strategy

Recommended offer for Uitra by
Cobharm/Advent

During 2021, the Remuneration Committes
discussed extensively the implications of the
potential transaction on remuneration. The
Committee inmally considered the impact on
n-flight LTIP awards made in 2019, 2020 and 2021
As time progressed, the Committee considered in
detail the setting of targets for 2022 LTIP awards,
and the 2022 annual borws, in accordandce with
provisions in the Cooperation Agreement,

The Committee considered the targets fGr the
2022 benus and has retained the same metrics
and degree of stretch inthe targets.

The Committee decided to retain the same targets
for the 2022 LTIP as these reflect the long-term
nature of the business and change at this time

of uncertainty for the Group was not considered
appropnate
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Workforce engagement

Senlor managers take part in quarterly interactive
sessians with the Chief HR Officer which include
specific sessions oN remuneration siructures
thraughout the Group to promate opennass and
transparency The remuneratron sessions explain
how remuneration 1s aligned throughout the
workforce levels from the top down, and how
performance incentive schemes are aligned

with Ultra's strategy, purpose and ASPIRE values
Managers are Invited to ask guestions on
remuneration structures before cascading

the session down to their teams.

Ernployees are encouraged ta ask any questions
they have through the ‘Ask the CEQ' email address
and may ask questions aronymously through
Litra's Speak Up platform, with any remuneration
matters fed back ro the Comnuttee by the Chief
HR Officer. In addition, Committee members seek
direct feedback from employees at site wsits. This
was more imited in 2027 due to travel restrictions
but two such events tock place towards the end of
the year.

Board Changes

Martin Broadhurst stepped down from the
Board an 1 July 2021 after nine years of service
The Committee wishes ta thank him for his
valued stewardship.

The Committee will continue to oparate within

its terms of reference and in accordance wath our
Polcy during the coming year unless or unul thera
is a change in connection with the acquisioon of
Ultra by Cobham

Geeta Gopalan
Chair of the Remurnieration Committee

1 "he RCIC measdre for the 2013 awerds 15 as defined on
page 14&

2 Seepage 146 tor definton of organic measares Growth ratas
are guerzged ower Mg three year perfarmance per od
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Annual Report on Directors’ Remuneration

This section contains details of the remuneration paid and awarded to Executive Directors for the year ended 31 December 2021 Thus report has been prepared
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2016 and the Regulations.

Remuneration at a glance
Performance outcomes for the year ending 31 Devernber 2021

Name Metric Metric achieved Simon Pryce Jos Sclater

2027 Group - '

bonus PBT (40%) 40% % of max 100% 100%
AWCT (45%) h 450% % of base safary 150% 150%
Strategic Objectives (15%) T 1564 Outcome value £1,047.560 E65§,43é“

20"9 TP TSR (25%) o 25% % of max vesting 97.3% 97.3%
ROIC (25%) - 223%  No of vested shares 53600 25,020
O}Qanlc Underlying Cperating Profit Growth (25%)  25% Estimated value i 2023876 £795,129

—_____(-D-Féavnlc Revenue Growth (25%) 25% '

Estir ated value on vesting nas ceen calculated us ng asnara prca of £31 90 seing the average closing share pr ce over ine thrae ~onths to 3° December 2321 It snould be noted that the snare price during
this hire was, nfluenced by the confir—ed offer for Litra

Summary of Remuneration Policy and implermentation for 2022
The table below shows an overview of the Palicy and implementation for 2022 The Policy was approved by shareholders at the May 2020 AGM and the full Palcy
Is set outin our 2019 Report and Accounts which can be found on our wehsite (ultra.group).

Plan - Purpose and how it supparts strategy Simon Pryce Jos Sclit:r_

Base salary (effective Recognise the market value of the role and individual's £698,640 E448,654

1 April 2022) skilis experience and performance to ensure ability to
attract and retam talent

Benefits & pension Provide benefits and pension consistent with the role 124% 7.5%
and competitive emvironment

Group annual benus Qrives and rewards annual performance agamst Max. % of salary B 150% )
financial and non-financial metrics Performance metrics 859 financial: 15% non-financial

Deferral 1/3rd deferred nto shares
for 3 years

LTIP Drives and rewards main strategic objectives to deliver Grant level (% of base salary) 200% 150%
long-term va\'ue creation aligning Executives with Performance matrics Four metncs,
shareholders interasts equally weighted

Share ownership Alignment of nterests between Executives and % of salary 200% 200%

requirements sharehciders

Deferral

in accordance with the Policy, one-third of bonus awarded 1s deferrad into Ultra shares for three years dunng which dividend equivalents are payablein cash.
Executive Directors are required to retain 100% of post-tax shares received on vesting of the deferred bonus and from the LTIP until shareholding requirerments
are met Malus and clawback provisions apply to both the bonus and LTIP

Hoiding periods

Atwo-year post-vesting holding penod apphes to all LTIP awards, which is enforced through sale restriction in our share plans portal. This enforcement applies
fram 2021 onwards to all apphcable vestings including prior years. A post-employment holding period is applicable to shares vesting under the LTIP and
deferred bonus plans granted in 2020 and beyond equivaient to 100% of salary and apphes far one-year post-departure. The Company has obtaned written
agreement from Executive Directors that they agree and commit to the post-employment holding requirements which are zlso a stated requirementin the
grant documentatian
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Linking pay with strategy

We aim to deliver long-term, sustainable value
creation for all cur stakeholders through our
Focus; Fix; Grow strategy

The Committee believes that executives reward
should balarce the need to be agile and having
a longer-term facus, with strong alignment with
the KPIs and strategic priorities of the Group.
The Committee believes that the measures In
the Inconfive plans provide the night Calence
betwes Lhese aims.

The Remuneration Policy and implementation
in the context of the principles of the UK
Corporate Governance Code 2618 (“Code”)
The Committee believes that the current Policy
and implementation are Lonsistent with the

six factors cutlined in the Cude.

+Clarity - remuneration arrangements are
transparent and the Committee engages
regularly with shareholders,

+Simplicity - the purpase, structure and strategic
ahignrment of each element of pay is
uncomglicated, and operationally easy o
understand.

+ 15K = thier e s an appropriate mix of fixed and
variable pay, and financiat and non-finanaal
objectives. The Committee has the discrenon
to override formulaic outcomes, and malus
and clawback provisions are N glace.

+ Predictability - the range of possible pay
outcomes is set outin the performance
scenarta charts on the right.

PPropan linnallty  cxecutives ae mcenydvised
w achigve stretching targets over one- and
three-year periods, with clear links to the
delivery of the Gronip's strarogy,

+ Alignmenrt with culture - the Rolicy has been
designed to support the delivery of the Group's
long-term strategy, and the interests of its
shareholders and employees. As set out above,
the performan(e metrirs 11sad 1o datermine
variable pay outcornes du ety align with our
strategy with indwvidual performance considered
in the context of the Group's ASPIRE values.
Malus and clawback allow for adjustment of
outcomes for faliure to act in accordance with
company purpose, values and strategy.

Remuneration scenarios for Executive Directors

The charts on the right show the value of the
package each of the Executive Directors would
receive hased on 2022 base salary, benafits and
2022 annua! bonus and LTIP awards, assuming
the scenarios noted.
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7
Average working capital urn 00%

focuses on cash returns and
business efficiency

AWCT
45%
Qrganic prafit growth 1s a key
Internal performance measure
whigh deounsli dies that the
Artehtiona. revenuce s being o B
gained without profit margins TG
heing comprormised. profit
Jrowth
40%

Indradual strategic objecives
focus on key enatlers to drive
forward the strategy such as
ENgagarrent, SuccesyIun
planring and transformation
Annual bonus

Chief Executive L'000 3551
1R
53%
2110 43%
36%
818 255 32% 26%
g TUT%H ' 39% ﬂ 25% s 21%
Mimmum- Trarge[ Maximum Maxlmu;n + 5:3%_
sharc growth
Tinssd pay Annual | nng term
vanable pay variable pay
Notes.

TSR directly measures shareholder
returns relative to the FTSE 250 I
provides alignment between
executives and sharehaolders.

ROIC demonstrates how well the

%2\115 Company s performing ard heine
= Fin leyedd Lt Lhe medium to
lang terrr,
Crganic !
ravenue Urganic revenue growth targets
growth provides an indication of the rate
25% atwhich the Group's business

activity 1s expanding.

Qrganic profit grawth
dernonstrates that the addiianal
revenue is being gained without
profit margins being compromised.

TR

Chief Financial Officer £000
1,846
46%
1,206 36%
319% 17%
500 28% %
‘ 100% ! 1% N 7% i 3%
Mimum Targel_k - ﬁaé!mumﬂ Maximam + 500
shara aromith
- Hxed pay Annual Long-term
variatle pay variable pay

Fivad pay inclugc s P00 sl s dfary, and actual Lenehics dnd 12ens on kar the Chief Execuave the pension nas been calculared

at 14% of pase salary
Mimirum, Fixed pay ondy
Target, Fixed pay, target bonus and expected value of LTP

Maximum. Fixed pay, maximyn bonus and max:imum vesting under LTIP.
Maximum + 50% share price’ Max.mum olys 50% share pwsea groangh on LTI0
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Annual Report on Directors’ Remuneration
continued

Single figure of total remuneration (audited)

Total fixed Performance Total variable
Basic salary/fees Benefits* Pension? remuneration bonuys? LTIP remuneration Total
£'000 B 5300 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
2021 2020 o 2021 2320 2021 2022 - 2021 2020 2021 2020 20215- - 29207 2021 20290 2021_ 2&-2":’]
S Pryce 694 677 21 20 f01 114 216 811 1048 1017 2029 1408 3077 2425 3893 3236
| Sclater 433 45 17 17 32 32 483 474 €53 53 798 - 1452 528 1,934 1002
T Rice 27 202 - A - 227 22 - B N - . - 27 w
M Broadhurst® 33 64 - - L - 3 6d - - - N T N 33 ia
G Gopalar? 63 56 - - - 63 5 - - - - - - & %
v Hull &8 ol - - - - e & _ - - - - 68 &
K Hunzeker®s s o8 29 N Z I 28 - - - - - L = 28
b Shock 68 &4 - - - T 68 Ba - - - - - 7 s8 &4
Notes

t  Benefits: car cash allowance, e assarance, and privare medical nsarance No orher tiable benetits are payscle

2 Pension: Simon Pryce received a cash supplemant of 148 froee 1 Apr.l 7021 {reduced fror 16%) fons Scldfer rece ved & cash supole~ent ot 7 3% of vese salary

3 One-third of bonusisdeferted -t shares for vrae yogars,

4 The 2018 1TIP Mas been restatad to reflect the actual tlosng share prece of £23 07 onthe vesting date of 2 July 2027

5 Imeeshmated value of tne 2213 LTiP awardwn thvests an 6 Apr | 2632 Tne snare price used for rhese awards was £319C oe ng 'he average of the closing shace prce for tne thrae monrs prar o
31 Decarber 2021 The prepoit on of tne 20719 award yalue that s attributables 1o snare or.ce growth s 2,322 90 08% for S mon Fryce and £287, 222 a1 54% for jos Sclater ine proport o1 of tne awed
wvalue that s sttrbulaole ta share o ce growth Tay Se lugher than actudl as e snare price weas nfluenced oy (e confirmed sffer for Litrs

S Marur Broednurst stepped down from the Board on - fu)y 2021

7 Geetz Gopalan pecame Remuneraton Corem tree Charon - July 2027

8 kenHanzeker was appornted to e Board o0 ° July 2000

9 Benehts comprise the grossed up expenses for travel and accermadat on Lo attend Board reetings in the LK

Annual bonus for the year under review {audited)

Percentage of

Performance maximum
Measure Weighting Threshold* Maximum? achieved* outcome Overall bonus
Simon Pryce o paT 40% £102.4m £1161m £1130m 10000% T
AWCT? 45% 101 10.8 123 100.00% 100.00%
o Strategic? 15% n/a n/a 100.00% 100.00% L
Jos Sclater B FET ’ 40% £102.4m F116.1m £1180m 100.00% )
AWCT? 45% 101 10.8 123 100.00% 100.00%
Strategic? 15% na n/a 100.00% 100.00%

Lnderly ng prafitbefora tax

Average wor< ng capital tur

Raie speaific strateg € objectives

Targets were 31 al constant foreign excnange Fates lelat ve to 2020

W =

A

The maximum bonus opportunity for the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer for 2021 was 150% of base salary Pinancial measures comprise 85%
of the averall honus opper tunity and due to very strong financial results have paid out at maximum

The Executive Directors were also given challenging role-specific objactives which make up the remaining 15% of the annual banus opportunity. The
Remuneration Commitiee reviewed the outcomes against these strategic objectives which showed strong performance especially in terms of initiatives that
progress the Fix; Focus, Grow strategy; however, they also considered the context of the overall results achieved in a challenging year when both Execunve
Directors had successfully steered the Group through negotiations and 2 premium price offered for Ultra by Cobharn as well as maintaining good levels of
engagement with other stakeholders such as customers and employees. Having taken all factors into consideration, the Committee determined that the
outcome of the strategic objectives should be at maximum.
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Simon Pryce

Outcome

Orive transformation
+Sponsorship and execution of key transformation initiatives driving productivity,
sfficieny and growth. Ensure that benefits are fully realised

Transformation costs lower and delivered ahead of plan

Technolegy development
+ Effective development and execution of the technalagy road map

Key milestones an track, roadmaps complete

Customer engagement
+Develop senior cross SBU nfluence and customer relatonships

Salid engagerment with senior customers

Sales and bidding process
+Standardise sales and bidding processes

Bud process complete Sales process standardisation compiete

Leadership succession
+[mprove succession in leadership/critical roles

Goal ta improve 1-3-vear and 3-5-year cover by 10% achieved

Drive employee engagement
+Improve employee engagement across the organisation

Small decline in averall engagement index Influenced by Offer
uncertainty (see page 35)

ESG
+Rolt out and ensure delivery of A Positive Farce

Roll-out well recerved (see report page 24)

Jos Sclater

Outcome

Drive transformation
+5ponsorship and execution of key transformation iniatives diving productivity, efficiency
and growth Ensure that benefits are fully realised

Transformation governance process well embedded. Excellent
progress across project portfolio with added focus on costs
and benefits

Embed continuous Improvement (C1)
+Build the internal team, deliver SGC sprints and launch key continuous Improvement
tools and training

Improved bench strength of the team, SGC sprints run
throughout the year Significant CI cost savings achieved

Tax and pricing strategy
+Develop and implement naw tax and prang strategy

Tax strategy developed and performimg well Transfer pricing
policy agreed and implernented

Risk management
+Improve organisation structure on risk management and embed into the strategy
process

Risk review embedded intg quarterly business reviews

Financial forecasting
+Continue to iImprove cash and P&L forecasting internally

Process successfully changed to quarterly. Much improved
costwistbility. Mew chart of accounts launched on time and
ahead of budget

ESG
+Implernent new HS&E management system

Delivered to plan. All Iocal policies implemented

Tataloonas
Director * of maxamum % of salary E'000 7
Simon Pryce 100% 150% 1,048
Jos Sclater 100% 150% 653
Pension

Pension contributions for each Executive Director are paid as a cash allowance in lieu of partiapation in Ultra’s ©C pension plan. Simon Pryce's cash allowance
was £100,622 which equated to 14.5% of single figure base salary, the rate having been reduced from 16% to 14% as of 1 April 2021 Jos Sclater's cash allowance

was £32,473 which was 7 5% of base salary.
LTIP vesting for the year under review {audited)

The 2019 LTIP vested as shown below As outlined in the Chairman's statement and last year's report, at the point the 2018 awards were granted, transformation
costs were classified as non-underlying and did not impact on the Company's reported underlying profit Reflecting the transformation agenda, Ultra has
changed the accounting comvention such that transformation costs are taken above the line and therefore impact underlying profit. Asin 2027, the Committee
spent time considering the Impact of this change, nating that the rargets at the point the awards were made were setwithout knowing the accounting approach
would change. As indicated in last year’s report, the Committee determined that it would be appropriate for IULo exercise its discretion to adjust for these costs
in line wath the approach taken for the 2018 awards.
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Annual Repart on Remuneration
continued

. Weighting Threshald Stretgn Ourturn H Vesting
Total Shareholder Return 25% Median Upper quartile Upper quartie 25.0%
Measured against the canstituents of the FTSE 250 (exciuding
Investment Trusts) _ o 7
ROIC 25% 15.0% 25.0% 23.6% 22.3%
Average ROIC calculated on an annual basis over the three-year
performance period’ o N
QOrganic operating profit growth? o 25% 20% 5.0% 82% 250%
Organic revenue growth? 25% 2.0% 5.0% 5.4% - 250%
Tatal 97.3%

RCIC was gef ned as underlying speratng profr expressed as a percetane of average \nvested capitat(calculated 25 an average 3froe open ng and clos ng szlance sneets) Aversge nvasted capilal was

calculzted as net assels sfter adjusnag for excnange rate fluctustions) adjustad for srarrsst onend Mpair~ent cnarges ansing 31 acguirsc infargiole zssets and goadwill, ard e add-bac< of orner

nonr-underlying performance @S mEact ng e bakance shest

2 Sazpage 144 for defin £ on of srganmic measares Growth rates are averaged over the three-year perforrance perind The asove outtdras retlect the adiustent tor transformat an costs and atner

adjastments dererm ned by the Remuneraten Committee

As noted in the Dhrectors' Remuneration Repart, the Remuneration Cormmittee was provided with independent advice and verification of the autcome of the

performance conditions above.,

Share awards granted in 2021 {audited)

Annual LTTP awards were granted ta Simen Pryce and Jos Sclater in 2021. Detalls of the awards are shawn in the tabie below

Cacevalue b umber of Veshing at Westngat
Stheme Date of grant Bass ::fa'nﬁﬂ £200 shares’ mmqimld“ mMaxIrum Performance perﬂi
Simaon Pryce LTIP 15/03/2021  200% of salary 1,397 68,160 20% 100%  3yearsto 31 December 2023
Jos Sclater LTtP 16/03/2021  150% of salary 653 31875 20% 100%  3yearsto 31 December 2023

1 Face value s calcalared at the time of grant Js ng the verage of 1ne prev-ous fiue days m d marker price resultng ina grant prce of £20 50

2 Allawards were granted as nif cost options

The performance conditions applying to the awards are shown below:

Ferformance measures Weighting Targets Vesting %

Total shareholder retLirAﬁ‘-(TSR)‘ 5% TSR ranking of the Group against a comparator grgu;ﬁ_-

Below threshold Below rmedian 0%
Thraeshoid Median 5%
Strerch Upper quartile or above 25%
;etiﬁigﬁ ;we;ted capital (ROICY? 25% Return on invested capital T
Below thresheld <15% 0%
Threshald 15% 5%
Stretch 25% 25%
6rganic operating profit growth? o 25%  Annual growth in organic c;[:—l‘er;ting profit -

Below thrashold <4% 0%
Threshold 4% 5%
Stretch 8% 25%
Organic revenue growth? - 25%  Annual growth in organic revenue B

Below threshold <2 5% 0%
Threshold 2.5% 5%
Stretch 0% 25%

Measdred 3gaINst coastituents of tne FTSE 250 (exchuding 'mvostment frusts) Awards veston a straigt-ing baws between resngld and stretch

[

Tha RO measure will ze tne averege RGIC calculated an an annual basis cver the three year performance peried wnene ROIC S calculated as underlying operat ng grofit expressed as a percantage

of rvestad captallaverage of 0pen ng and <los.ng balance sheets) [nuested cap.tal's the net assats of tne Gioup, excluding net debt and lease Lability. gension oblgatians. tax and der vatves.

w

srd stetch

Growtn T2l gets are exprassed as annual growth rates and averaged over the tree-year per od See page 146 far definnions of organ © measares Awards vest in 3 straight-hme bas s oetween threshold
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Payments to past Diréctors (audited)

No payments were made to past Directors in 2021

Executive Directors’ service contracts and external appointments

External appeintments
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Simon Pryce 1s a Non-Executive Director of Electrocomponents ple Duning 2021, he earned fees of £75.025 in respect of this appointment. No other Executive

Directors held external appointments in 2021

Service contracts

Executive Directors have rolling contracts that can be terminated by either party giving appropriate notice,

Director Effactive dete af contract heotice penae
Simon Pryce B 18 June 2013 12 months
305 Sclater 9 Decemkber 2019 12 months

Statement of Directors’ shareholdings {audited)

Directors’ interests under the Ultra Electronics discretionary share plans

Actual $are

Earhest vest ng of
outstanding

Director Darz of grant pr ce at grant AL3T12420 Granted vested® Lapsed ALIvI2 awards

Simon Pryce B -

LTIP B 15/03/2021 2050 N 58,150 - - 63160 1500372024
04/06/2020 16.37 10410 - - - 0410 17/03/2023
17/03/2020 1637 72,867 s - - 72867 17/03/2023

T 1604/2019 1526 s5366 - - - 65366  16/0472022

02/0772018 1617 71,978 - 61181 10,797 — 020772021

Deferred bonus 15/0372021 2050 - 16529 - _ 16529 15/03/2024
17/03/2020 1637 9616 - - T 9616 170372023
16/04/2019 1526 4151 Z Z Z 4151 16/0472022

Jos Sclater! T T

LTIP C 532021 2050 - 31,875 - - 21875 15/03/2024
17/03/2020 1637 32,453 - - N 37453 17/03/2023
10/12/2019 2066 25,714 - - - 25714 16/04/2022

Deferred bors 7 5030 2050 T 3,528 - - 8588 15/03/2024

Recruitment /@Efd a i
10/12/2019 20.66 2016 - e - - 10h20021
101272019 2066 2018 f - 7 2018 1122022

* Jos Sclater joinet the Groapon 3 Decamcer 7079 His Recrairrent Award vests nequal ranches over threeyesrs subject to continued employment at the vesting date
2 The total valuz of oplions exerr sed oy Sir-on Pryce was £2,188.731 and by |3 Sddter F63.110

Drrectors’ beneficial sharsholdings as of 31 December 2021

Sharenold ng inu~ker of
sares beneficially neldt 55 ar

Director 3* December 2321
Simon Fryce T B h 62152
Jos Sclater - - o T T 5503
Martin Broadhurst' o 2,100
Geeta Gopalan -
Victoria Hull - o 1684
Ken Hunzeker o Z,OOO
Tony Rice T 15@
Daniel Shaok i 2,500

I Marnin Broadhurst stepped down from the Board on 1 Jaly 2237
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Annual Report on Remuneration
continued

Statement on sharehalding requirements

Under aur Policy, Executive Directars are required to build and maintain a shareholding equivalent to 200% of therr base salary. As of 31 December 2021, Smon
Pryce had achieved the requirement. Jos Sclater had not achieved the requirement; however, the Committee considers this acceptable due o his relatively

recent hire date meaning annual awards have not vested yet.

Sharenold:ng regurrement

Current holding

Carrent nolding % of
hase salery ( ncluding awards
unvestad and sub eclio

Director % of case zalary % of iase seldry Requirament ret continued e ploymient
Siman Pryce 200% 233.3% Yes 359.9%
Jos Sclater 200% 4(3,3% No 33.0%

Directors’ interests under the All-Employee share plan (51P)

Shares

Sncy acguied from
Interests as at atGdired  twrests as at 1January nteresrs as at
" January during the 31 December 2022010 ‘O March
Director 2021 yesr 2023 March 2022 022
Simon Pryce 223 20 303 15 318
jos Sclater 80 77 157 15 172

Directors’ Interests under the Save As You Earn share plan

Share opticns

Snsre opt ong
gogquvad om

Interests as at acquined  ateresrs asat 1january nteresis asat

1)anuary durngtne 31 December 2022010 "I Nerch

Director 202" year 2021 Margn 2022 20052
Simon Pryce 830 221 1,051 - 1051
Jos Sclater - 1,109 1,109 - 1,109

Total shareholder return (TSR) table and CEO remuneration

The graph below shaws the TSR performance of Ultra in comparison with the FTSE 250 Index over the past 10 years. The graph shows the value over the
measurement period of £100 invested at the start of the period in Ultra and in the Index. The Committee constders tha FTSE 250 to be the relevant Index
for the TSR comparison as Ultra 1s a member of the Index and the membership represents a broad range of UK-quoted companies.

£350
£300
£250
£200
£150
£100
£50
£0

3111272011 31/12/2013 311272015

Ultra Electronics — FTSE 250

3171212017

311272019

3141202027

This graph shows the value, by 31 December 2021, of £100 invested in Ultra on 31 December 2011, compared with the value of £100 invested in the FTSE 250

Index on the same date.
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The tabie below shows the remuneration of the CEO over this period.

Ultra Anrual Report 8 /I
and Accounts 2021

Total remuneration Annaat cenus LTiP o af
Director Yesr ended £ 000 af rrax payadt Fax paycul
SPryce 317127207 3893 100% 57 3%
5 Pryce T ) 31/12/2020 3235 T ggm 85%
S Pryce e 31/12/2019 1592 9 -
5 Pryce! ’ T 3171272018 T s 71% -
DCastes T D258 T 4 - -
DCasterr - 3171202017 81 - .
RSharma® 311272017 s - -
R Sharma ”_ 311272015 1194 32% N
R sharma o 3122015 1197 883 -
R Sharma B o 3112/2014 680 - -
R Sharma T 21122013 812 - -
RSharma 31/12/2012 o 597 R A
I CECfram 18]une 218
2 Execatve Cnairto 18 June 2018
3 ExecdtveChar from 13 Novermper 207 7
4 CEO o 1 Novermper 2017
Relative importance of spend an pay
The foliowing table shows the Group's actual spend on pay (for alf employees] relative to other financial indicators:
2021 2020 Change
£m £m 3
Staff costs'* - o 296.1 2365 +'3'4_
Drvdends:? T - B 16 404 713
Revenue - 85d.7 855.8 a1
Statutary profit before tax? o o 827 103.7 203

1 £157 (202027 Sy of stafl Costs relate to pay for the Executive Directors Plegsa note Mat 2020 has been restated to include Mat onal Insurence costs

o

w

Revenue and statutory prof ¢ Cetore tax are included 1o add furtner context ta ;e annJdal spend

4 2025 staff costs have been restated following a review of the persion related cnarges to the 'ncor @ state Mment 2020

Tne dividends elate o amoung; gayable nrespect of tne relevant imancial year Under re terms and conditions setodt in e arnounc e ant dated 16 Aagust 2027 {relating ko the recommended cash
acquisit on of Ultra by Cobham) na Fnal 2021 div dendw lEbe paid to snarehnlders wn.le the acquisition rema ns canditional on obtainng UK Govarnment acprovsl
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Annual Report on Remuneration
continued

Pay comparisons
Change in remuneration of Directors and employees

The following table illustrates the change, as a percentage in elements of the Directors’ remuneration from 2020 to 2031 and compares that to a comparator

group of employees of the Group In the UK, excluding the Directors. This group has been selected as it best reflects the remuneration environment of

the Nirecors,

Taxable Taxzble
o o Base salary benefits Bonus Base salary oenefits Borus
2021 2070

Executive Directors o T
Simon Pryce ) 2% 9% 3% 2% 4% 25%
Jos Scizter - T 2% 24% 0% 0% n/a
Non-Executive Directors
Tony Rice 12% n/a n/a A% n/a n/a
Martin Broadhurst ) - 47% n/a 7 nfa 1% n‘a ﬁ/;
Geeta Gopalan® - o 13% n‘a BRA 2% n/a wa
\Ectc??g HEE B B 12% o n/a na 108 _-r{;_a_ n/a
Ken Hunzeker” o 108%  100% a va  mwa a
Daniet Shook 6%" ’ n/a n/a 0% n/a n/a
Comparater Group
Parent company employees® n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
UK employees’ 3% 3% 24% 4% 5% 42%

Wart n Broadharst stepped down from the Board on - July 2021

Victor a Hafl pecame Senior [rdependent Director on * 3 May 2020
Ko Hunzeser jomed the Board 20 1 Jaly 2320

SO by =

£

not be replesentat.ve 13 provde o PErCeniage change in tner pay

Geeta Gopalan oecame Remuneraton Commiltee Charr on | July 202t

7 Asthe parent zorpaay nas few smployees, the Remuneration Cormittee has dewded o voluntarty disclose tie percentage change i remuneral on of all UK 2rployees of the Groap

CEQ pay ratio

Ken Hunzewer's taxable oenef ts are travel and accorrodanon for LK Board maet ngs As tmere was no travehin 2020 due o Cowvid travel restrictions 100% s shawn ratner (g the forula ccalclat on
The Regulat ors require disclosure of the cnange in remuneration of re er-ployees af tne parent company 4 the parent corany nas only seven serad-lavel employves s ofmer than the Cirectors. twould

Below 15 the outcome of the CEO pay ratio compared with representative UK employees utihsing Gption A in accordance with the Requlations. Option A was
chosen as it 15 the mast statistically accurare. We have also voluntarily disclosed a global ratio ta reflect the fact that just over haif of our emplayeas are located

outside the UK.

The calculations for the relevant representative employees have heen made based on those employed at 31 December 2021, To provide the comparable
figure for bonus we have used the expected 2021 bonus although this had not been paid at the ame of the calculation. Additionally. we adjusted the data
toreflect full-nme equivalent salaries for those employed on a part-ime basis and 11 5o doing we assumed a 37-hour week. No elements of rerunerazion

have beenomitted.

25t 7508

pricent ie Median pay pargentils

Year Metnod Data set pdy ratg 1atiz pay rano
2021 o Option A UK 13411 901 641

2021 B B OptionA__ Global 941 801 481

2020 Option A UK az1 747 411

2020 T " Gption A Global 761 631 a1

2019 o - OptonA UK 54:1 BETE 271

2019 B o Option A Global so1 31 191

Gur pay philosophy across the Group 1 based an six core prinaiples including consistenicy, fairness, transparency. compehntiveness and rewarding short- and
long-term perfarmance. Reward I1s Managed by reference to consistent external market benchmarks in all of our markets and indwidual performance 1s taken
account of In the indwdual's pay. Eligibiity for short- and long-term incentives is determined by seniority. The CEO receives alarger proportion of his reward in
variable pay and as such historal reward may vary significantly year by year depending on financial and indiidual performance. The Group has performed very
well in the last couple of years which has resulted in larger incentive payments. In particular, the 2015 LTIP has vested at near maximum and the share price that
has beer used o estimate the value of the vested shares (£3190) Is Influenced by the confirmed offer for Ultra share price which has resulted in a higher pay ratio
for 2021. The employees in the sample have typically also beneficzed from this improved performance in terms of short-term incentive but their total reward s
proportionately more fixed than atrisk, The Commitree believes the median pay ratio 1s consistent with the Group's pay philosophy and progression golicies.
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The table below shows the total pay and benefits and the base salary for the employee at each quartile of the UK sample.

383

25th 50t1 Fatn
£ } percent le percant fo oercentle
Total pay and benefits B T o 39060 43374 60814
Salary ) 27.013 39230 55384
Statement of shareholder voting
Votes cast at the 2021 AGM to approve the 2020 Directors’ remuneration report

Total number

Directors’ remuneraticn report vote - 2021 AGM ofvotes ¥ ot wotas cast
Vores for o ) 56,366,605 98 49%
Votes against 857,588 151%
Total votes cast {for and against) - 57228193 TH00%
Votes withheld - o 5965629
Total votes cast 63,193,822

“oral nurber

Directors’' Remuneration Policy vote - zuzq AGM _ - of votes % of votes cast
Votes for o 50910945 8151%
Votes against 11,545822 18.49%
Totalvotes cast {for and against) 62,456,767 100.008%
Vates withheld 0 160,704
Total votes cast 03,617471

Implementation of the Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors in 2022

Salary increases

Salary increases are effective from 1 April 2022 The increase for the Chief Financial Officer is at the level budgetad for the general workforce, which was 3.0%.

Executive Director salaries effective 1 Apnl 2022 are shown below.

2U22 salary

[murease
2021 salary  awarded from

L - o £000 000 Apnki022
S Pryce B 698,640 598,640 0.0%
| Sclater 448,694 435625 30%

Annual bonus for 2022

The maximum bonus for the Exacutive Directars in 2022 will be 150% of base salary. One-third of any bonus payable will be deferred into shares for three years.

The structdre of the 2022 bonus is unchanged from 2021 and will include up to 40% of the maximum for achieverment of an agreed profit target, up to 45%
payable for the achievernent af an agreed improvement in average working capital turn (AWCT) and up to 15% payable for the achievement of iIndividual
strategic targets. All targets and objectives have been developed in line with performance objectives for the Graup assuming that there 1s no acquisizion.

The Cammittee discussed the targets for 2022 10 ensure that they remain sufficiently stretching and continue to align with strategic goals. The Committee
discussed whether there should be any change to the targets, particularly to the positioning of threshold and maximum. As Ultra's business is based on

long-term contracting arrangements, the level of stretch is considered apprapriate in the current environment.

We have not disclosed actual targets as we consider these to be commeraially sensitive. We will disclose them retrospectively in the 2022 report.

No bonus will be paid if the Committee considers the Group's financial perfarmance to be unsatisfactory or there Is a negative event which, in ine with 1ts Policy,

would require the Committee ta adjust the formulaic outcome,

Should the acquisition for Ultra by Cobham proceed, the portion of the 2022 bonus relating t the penod from the start of 2022 until the date of the acquisition
will be dealt with by the Remuneration Committee in accordance with the terms of the Caoperation Agreement and exercising the discretion afforded ot
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Long-term awards to be granted in 2022

The Committee intends ta grart an annual LTIP award if the acquisition of Ultra has not been Court Sanctioned by 23 March 2022, which is permissible under
the terms of the Cooperation Agreement, Should the acquisition of Ultra by Cobham proceed, the Remuneration Cormmittee will determine the extent of vesting
In accordance with the terms of the Cooperation Agreement and exercising the discretion afforded to . Awards to the CEO and CFOwilt be 200% and 150%

of base salary respectively, which is consistent with the prior year, The measw es and Largels thatwaill apply to the awards are shown in the table below. 1he
Committee considered whether to retain the same targets and measures and concluded that with so much uncertainty over the acquisition and in external
markets, this was the best course of action Independent adwice was taken as well as input on industry growth and internal modelling to support this. Share
awards will be made at the appropriate time determined by the Remuneration Commyttes and based on the average closing share price for the five dealing
days preceding the date of grant.

Performance measures Weighting Targets . Vesting %
Total sharehaolder return (TSR)? 25% TSR ranlzrng of the Group against a comparator group

Below threshold Below median 0%
Thrashold Median 5%
Stretch Upper quartile or above 25%
Return on invested capital (ROIC)-2 25% Return on invested capital T

Below threshold <15% 0%
Thrashold 15% 5%
Stretch 25% 259,
@;ﬁ}goperati;é—pfgﬁt grthh’ 25%  Annual growth“in oréanic operating profit

Below threshold <40 0%
Threshold 4% 5%
Stretch 8% 25%
Organic revenue growth? 25% ‘NA—HBLI-N growth in organic revenue o

Below threshold <2.5% 0%
Threshold 2 5% 5%
Stretch 6% 25%

Measured agsinst cansutuents of the FTSE 255 (excluding invesument rrusts) Awards veston astraight-] ne basis between threshold and stretch

The ROXC medsure will pe 11 average ROIC calculated o0 anannual basis over the thrae-year gerformance period where RCIC s ralcudated as andertying ogerat ng proht expressed as a percentags

of nvestes cap talaverage of apening and closing balancs shaers; Invested czpital 5 the net assets of the Gioup, exclud rg ner debf and Zease Yab Iity, pens.on onligations, tax and der vares

Growin targers are expressed as 2nnuzl growth rates and averaged over the thrae-ysar per od See gage “46 for def rir ons of organic reasures Awards vest ina straight-| ne pasis cetween thresheld
ard streteh

r

w

Pensicn

As mentioned in the Chair's statement, the Committee has deaded not to reduce the CEC's annual cash allowance furtherin 2022, it had been the Committee's
Intention ta reduce the current 14% of base salary by 2% in 2022 and by a further 2% in 2023; however. this has been delayed pending the outcome of the
acqusition of Ultra by Cabham The CFO has a pension contribution rate of 7.5% which is aligned with the rate currently avallable for the majority of the

UK workforce.

Non-Executive Directors
Fee levels with effect from 1 April 2022 which are unchanged from 2027 are as follows:

Fees £'050
char o i 235
Non-Executive Director (base fee) i N 59
Senior Independent Director (addit\onalﬂfée-) o ' 10
C::Jr;\r;lnltge Cr-wgar(addltional fee) ST o 10

All Non-Executive Directors were appoinied under letters of appointment. All Non-Executive Directors are subject to annual re-appomtment at the Company's
Annual General Meeting:

Letter of appe ntment end date

Tony Rice ' ) o AGM 2022
Victona Hul T - 27/04/2023
Geeta Gopalan T o 27/04/2023
Darvel Shaok T . 01/09/2022

Ken hunzeker S T 0" /0712023
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The role and composition of the Remuneration Committee

Role

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for recommending ro the Board the Policy for Executive Directers and for setting the remuneration package for
each Executive Director. The Commuttee alsc has input o the remuneration arrangements of the Executive Team in conjunctior with the Chief Executive and
has oversight of the Policy and remuneration packages for other semor leaders, in particuiar the vanable elements. The Comrmittee ensures that remuneratiar
conditions for the senior team and the wider workforce are clear and consistent.

The Cammittee aims to align the Policy with the overall strategy of the Group, ensuring that remuneration reflects the nterests of our shareholders and other
stakeholgers governed by the Policy and our philasophy and values.

Dunng the year, the Committae met six imes {three of which were scheduled) and covered matters including:

Principal activities of the Committee

+Evaluatad the performance conditions n all execut ve incentive plans

+ Raviewed the annual gender pay gap data

+Reviewed the outcome of the CEQ pay ratio and other compar:son statistics

+Considered and agreed the annual pay increase for the CEQ, CFO and Executive Team

+ Reviewed the outcome of salary bonus and lang-term incentives for the senior management group as well as nominations for awards

+ Considerad the impact of change of control on in-flight share incentives, both discretionary and all-employee plans and how the Committes would
determine vesting, including consideration as to whether or not exercise of discretion might be appropriate

+ Discussed 1ssues around recruitment and retention and oversaw the approach and terms of retention initiatives across the Group inresponse to the
Offer for Ultra

+Agreed the approach and strategic objectves for the Executive Directors including speafic ESG-focused objectives

Compositicn

Martin 8roadhurst was Charr of the Committee until 1 July 2021 when the role was assumed by Geeta Gapalan. Danel Shook, Victona Hull and Ken Hunzeker
were members throughout the year The General Counsel and Company Secretary 15 the Secratary to the Committee. The Chair and Chief Executive attend
meetings by invitation except where matters directly relating to their own remuneration are discussed. Additionally, the Commitree may recelve presentations
on specific topics from the Chief Human Resources Officer, Group Reward Director, Chief Finandial Gfficer and the Independent Adviser.

Advice

Dunng the year, the Committee recaived independent advice on executive remuneration and share schemes from the executve compensatior practice at
Alvarez & Marsal Taxand LLP A&M are signatones 1o the Code of Conduct of the Remuneration Consultants Group AAM received fees of £72,472 (excluding
WAT) for advice to the Committee. In addit:on, A&M provided adwice on taxation matters relaung to all-employee share schemes totalling £25,757 (excluding
VAT), which is also considered to be independent.

2022 Annual General Meeting
The Committee encourages shareholders to vote .n favour of the Diractors’ remuneration report at the 2022 AGM. The Directors’ remuneration report was
approved by the Board an 10 March 2022 and signec on 1ts behalf by:

DacuSigned by:

Geeta Gopalan é(,(,\"a. éofal,am,

Chair of the Remuneration Cornmittes
FS0948868B9648C
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Directors’ report

For the year ended 31 December 2021

The Directors of the Company present their report
together with the audited consclidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Results and dividends

The Graup resiilts far the year ended

31 Cecember 2021 are set out on page 3
of the strategic report.

Anintenm dividend of 16.2 pence per share (2020
15.4 pence per share) was paid to sharehclders
on the register of members as at 27 August 2021,
An addimonal interim dividend of 39.2 pence per
share was also paid in 2020 (which was equivalent
to the final dividend declared in 2019 which was
withdrawn as a precautionary measure due to
Covid-19) was paid on 17 September 2021, In

view of the terms and conditions set outin the
armouncement dated 16 August 2021 (relating

t0 the recommended cash acquisiion of Ultra

hy Cobham Ultra Acquisitions timited), no final
dividend {2020: 41.5 pence per share) will be paid
10 sharehalders while the acquisition (see page 2}
remains pending.

Research and development

The Directors are committed to maintaining

a significant level of research and development
expenditure, During the year a total of £150.0m
(2020: £144.2m)was spent, of which £116.5m
(2020: £112 4 was funded by customers

and £33.5m {2020 £31.8m) by Ultra.

Political donations

Meither the Company nor any of 1ts subsidianies
have made any political donations dunng the
year (2020; £nil)

Directors and re-election

Detatls of the Directors serving during the year
are set out on pages 52-53 of the corporate
governance report.

If the proposed acquisition by Cobham has not
then complated and the Company remains
pubiicly listed Geeta Gopatan, Victoria Hull, Ken
Hurizeker, Simon Pryce, Tony Rice, Jos Sclater and
Danigl Shook will all stand for re-election at the
Company's Annual General Meeting (AGM) 2022.
See biographies on pages 52-53.

Directors and their interests

The Drrectors who served throughout the year
and to the dare of signing of this Repart, and
their interests in the shares and share options of
Ultra at the end of the year and as at 10 March
2022 are shown in the Annual Reporton
Remuneration (see pages 79t 30).

Post balance sheet events

The Group completed the sale of some legacy
aerospace product lines from the Critical
Detection & Control SBU, realising net cash
proceeds of £34 8m on 24 January 2022

{see note 35)

Directors’ indemnities i
In accordance with our Articles of Association i
and to the extent permitied by law, Directors i
are granted an indernnity from the Company |
in respect of liabitity incurred as a result of thar |
appointment to the Board. [n addition, the I
Company mantamns a Directors’ and Officers’ |
Iiability msurance policy. Nerther the indermnity |
provided by the Company nor the insurance golicy |
provides cover in the event that a Director is |
proven to have acted fraudutently or dishonestly |
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
I
|
I

Directars’ conflicts of interest

The Company has in place pracedures for
rnanaging conflicts and potential conflicts of
interest. The Company's Articles of Association
also contain provisions to allow the Direczors to
authorise conflicts or potential conflicts of Interest
so that a Diractor is not in breach of bus or her duty
under UK company law If Directors become aware
of a conflict or porential conflict of Interest they
should notify the Board 1n accordance with the
Company's Articles of Assaciation. Directors have
a continuing duty to update any changes t their
conflicts of iInterest. Directors are excluded from
the quorum and vote in respect of any matters in
which they have a confiict of interest. No matenal
conflicts were reported by Directors in 2021.

Independent advice

All Directors have access to the advice of the
Group General Counsel and Company Secretary
and, in appropriate circumstances, may cbtain
independent professional advice at the Company's
expense. No such requests were made in 2021

Branches

The Company and 1ts subsidianes have
estabiished branches, where appropriate,
10 a number of countnes outside the UK.
Their results are, however, not material

to the Group's financial results.

Contractual arrangernents

The Group contracts with a large numker of
customers In order to sell its wade portfoiio

of specialist capabilities to a broad range of
customers around the world, The Group's largest
customers are the US Department of Defense
and the UK Ministry of Defence. Awide range

of separate contracts are entered Into with
these customers by different Ultra businesses
through different project offices and project
teams. The Group also contracts with nuimerous
suppliers across the world and manages

these arrangements to ensure that Itis not
over-dependent on a single supplier Thisis
normally achieved through dual sourcing of
specialist components.

Purchase of own shares

During the year Ultra purchased nil ordinary
shares (2020: nil). Further information regarding
the Company’s share capital and share schemes
can be found In note 26 to the financial
staternents

i Apnual General Meeting (AGM)
i Aseparate crcular providing the Notice of Annual

General Meeting and details of the resolutions
be put to the meeting will be sent to shareholders
in due course, All Direclurs will submit themselves
for election ar re-election at the AGM

Substantial shareholdings

As at 9 February 2022, being the latest practicable
dare prior to the approval of this repart, Ultra had
been notified of the following votng nghts as
shareholders of Ultra:

' TOP10 HOLDERS AS ATY FEBRLARY 2022

G February 2072

kg Cumes

[rwested  nvested

Sharehaolder Shares capitat cap tal

Goldman Sachs

collateral account . 3,480,485 487 487
. Aviva Investors 3379025 473 960
v Vanguard Group 3,207,833 449 1410

UBS collateral

account 3173314 4 44 1854_

Bark of Mew York

stocklending

collateral account 2,851,686 3499 2253

Blackrock 2843113 359 2652

Invesca 2587513 382 3014

santander

collateral account 2500000 350 3384

Sociétd Générale

collateral account 2,158,791 302 3667
MFS Investment
Management 2145494 300 3967

Capital structure

Details of the authonised and 1ssued share
rapital, together with details of the mavements
in Ultra’s issued share capital during the year,
are shown in note 26. Ultra has one class of
ordinary shares which carry no nght to fixed
income and each share carries the right to

one vote at general meetings of Ultra, There

are no specific restrictions etther on the size of
aholding or on the transfer of shares, which are
hoth governed by the general provisions of the
Company’s Articles of Assodiation and prevailing
legislation. No persen has any specal rights

of control over Ultra's share capital and all
1ssued shares are fully paid With regard to

the appaintment and replacement of Directors,
Ultra is governed by its Articles of Associaton,
the UK Corporate Governance Code, the Act
and related legislation. The Articles of Association
themselves may be amended by special resolution
of the shareholders, The Directors operate

n accordance with a Schedule of Matters
Reserved for the Board, which 15 available

from the Investors section on the Group
website (ultra.groupl.
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The following infarmation which is required to be induded i the Directors' report and farms part of this report may be found elsewhere in the Annual Report

as follows.

Information

Location

Business review

Strategic report:gages 21-23

Future developments ]

Strategic report: page 11

Corporate social responsibility

Strategic repart: pages 24-41

Workfaorce engagerment

Strategic report: page 12 and Governance report: page 64

Customer and supplier relationships

Strategic report: page 13

The environment and greenhouse gas emissions

Strategic report: pages 26-31

Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group

Strategic report: pages 42-£7

NON-HINANCIAL INFORMATION STATEMENT

The Group has complied with the requirements of section 414CB of the Companies Act 2006 by
including certain non-financial information within the strategic repert. This information is intended
to provide an understanding of our develapment, performance and position on key non-financial
matters. The Lable below sets out where information relating to non-financial matters can be located.

Reporting requirement Dur policies and stanrarris

Our cunmngtindr y

Environmental matlut s +znvirenmental policy

-

Prulectong our planet
=i 20 3 |

Employees +{nde nf Conduct

1 Health and safety policy

Suppul Ly uur pecple - page 39
Supporting our people
- pdijes 3o-3/

Himan rights +Human nghts policy

+Data privacy policy*

+[nformation secuily pulicy*

+Modern slavery staternent*

+Ant-slavery and rraffirking
staterment™

Doing the right thing - pages 40-41

Social responsibility +Corporate Social
Responsibility policy™
+A Prsitive Forco: Qur

Lurnmitmeant to a sustainable

A Pusitive borce pages 24-41

fuiure
Anti.corruption and bribery  + Anti-bribery and corruptien  Doing the right thing - page 39
policy Audit Committee report - page 71

Principal risks and impact
on business activity

F‘wrir:cipal 1isks and uncertanties
- pages 42-47

Business model

Our business model - pages 18-17

Nen-financial key
performance indicators

Key performance indicators
- pages 18-19

*  Avalaple to download on the Company's website.

Auditor
Each of the Directors at the date of approval
of this report confirms that:

{1) so far as the Director 1s aware, there 1s no
relevant audit mtormarion nfwhick Uleras
auditol 15 uigwdle, and

{27 the Lirector has taken all the steps that he/
shie ought to have taken as a Diractor to
make himseli/herself aware of any relevant
audit ntermanon and to establish thar | ra's
auditor 15 aware of that information

Thus confirmation is given and should he
Interpreted in accordance with the provisions
of section 418 of the Act.

Thig Lirectors’ report was approved by the
Board on 23 March 2022 and signed on 1ts
| el MIH_\:,t;

I nuise Ruppel
Leneral Counsel and Company Secretary

Registered office:

35 Portrnan Square London
WL LR

Registered number: 02830337
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Directors’ report
continued

Directors’ responsibility
statement

The Directors are respaonsible for preparing the
Annual Report and the financial staterments in
accordance with applicable law and regulaticns.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare
financial staternents for each financial year. Under
that law, the Directors are required to prepare the
Group financial statements in accordance with
IFR5s as adopted by the UK and Article 4 of the
[nternational Accounting Standards Regulation
{IAS) and have elected to prepare the Company's
financial statements N accordance with UK
Generally Accepred Accounting Practice (UK
Accounting Standards and applicable law)
inclucing FRS 101 Linder company law, the
Directors must not approve the accounts unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state o* affairs and of the profit or loss of the
Company, as well as the undertakings included in
the consolidation for that period.

In preparing the Company's financial statements,

the Directors are required to.

+Select suitable accountng policies and then
apply them consistently

+Make jJudgements and accounting estimates
that are reasonable and prudent

+State whether appiicable UK Accounting
Standards have been followed subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained
Inthe financial statements

+Prepare the financal statements on the going
concern basis unlessit|s inappropriate to
presume that the Company will not continue
inbusiness

In preparing the Group financial statements,

International Accounting Standard 1 requires

that Directars:

+Properly select and apply accounting policies

+Present information, including accounting
policies, in a manner that provides relevant,
rellable, comparable and understandable
information

+ Provide additicnal disclosures, when compliance
with the specific requirements in [FRS are
insufficient, to enable users to understand the
impact of particular transactions, ather events
and conditions on the entity's finanaal position
and financial performance

+Make an assessment of the Company's ability
to contiNUe as & going concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are sJfficientto
show and expiain the Company's transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the
financial position of the Company and enable
them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for taking reascnable steps for the
prevantion and detection of fraud and other
Irreguiariues.

The Directors are responsiole for the maintenance
and intagrity of the corparate and financial
infarmation ncluded on the Group’s website
www.Llrra.group. Legislation in the UK gaverning
the preparatian and dissemination of financial
staternents may differ from legislation i other
Jurisdictions.

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge,

taken as a whole;

+The finanaal statements, prepared in
accordance with the relevant financial reporting
framework, give a true and fair view of the
assets, liabilities, financial position and profit
or loss of the Company and the undertakings
Included in the consclidation taken as a whole

+The strategic report ncludes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business
and the position of the Company and the
undertakings included in the consolidanion,
together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties that they face.

+The Annual Report and financial statements,
taken as a whole, are faw, balanced and
understandatie and prowde the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the

| Company's posiion, performance, business

model and strateqy.

By order of the Board

Louise Ruppel
General Counsel and Company Secretary

for T\
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Independent auditor’s report
To the members of Ultra Electronics Holdings plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements
1. Opinion
In our cpinign:

+the financial staternents of Jitra Electronics Holdings pic (the “parent company”) and its subsidianes Ithe “(rmup”) give a true and lan view ot the
state of the Group's and of the parent rnmpany's affairs as ot 31 December 2021 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

+ | he Group financial statements have been praperly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom adopted international accounting standards;

+the parent company financial staternents have been properly prepared m accordance with United Kingdam Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
including Financial Reporting Standard 107 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”; and

+the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

We have audited the finanaal statements which comprise:

+the consolidated income statement;

+the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income;

+the consolidared and parent company balance sheets,

+the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity;
+the consolidated cash fiow statement;

+the related notes 1 to 51; and

+the statement of accounting pohcies

The financial reporting framewaork that has teen applied in the preparation of the Groug financial statements 1s apphcable law and United Kingdom adaoptad
nternatronal accounting standards. The financial reporting framewark that has been applied In the preparation of the parent company financial statements
is applicable law and Urited Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 1071 "Reduced Disclosure Framework” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

2, Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} 11SAS {UK)Y) and applicable law. Qur respansibilities under those standards
are further described in the auditor's responsitilities for the audit of the finanaal statements section of our report

we are independent of the Group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant ta our audit of the financial staternents
in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's {FRC) Ethical Standard as applied to listed public nterest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
respensibiliies it accordance with these requirements. The non-audit services provided to the Group and parent company for the year are disclosed

in note 6 to the financial starements. We confirm that we have not provided any non-audit services prohibized by the FRC's Ethical Standard to the Group

or the parent company.

Wea believe thar the audiz evidence we have obrained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opirion,

3. Summary of our audit approach

Key audit matters The key audit matters that we identified in the current year were:
+Revenue and profit recogrution; and
+Vaiuation of goodwll

The risk level of these key audit matters 1s considered to be unchanged from prior periods.

Materiality The materiality that we used for the Group financial statements was £59m (2020: £5 7m) which was
determined on the hasis of 5% of underlying profit before tax.

Scoping We focused our Group audit scope primarily on the audit work at 13 components. Ten of these were subjact
to a full scope audit, whilst the remaining three were subject to an audit of speafied account balances where
the extent of our testing was based on our assessment of the rsks of material misstaternent These

Significant changes in our approach Having reassessed our audit risks and the focus of our procedures, we did not consider Defined Benefit
Pensions Liabilimes to be a key audit matter 1n the current year due 1o the relative lack of compiexity
and judgement in this area.
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Independent auditor’s report
To the members of Ultra Electranics Holdings pic
continued

4. Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting n the preparation of the financiai
statements|s appropriate.

Our evaluation of the Directors’ assessment of the Group's and parent campany’s ability to continuie to adopt the going concenn basis of accounting included:
+Ohtaining an understandny ol relevant conerals over management's going concern models, including the review of the inputs and assumptions usedin
those models;
+Tesning the accuracy of management’s modets, including agreernent to the most recent Board approved budgets and forecasts;
+Challenging the key assumptions of these forecasts by
- Reading analyst reports, Industry data and other external information and comparing these with management's estimates;
- Comparing forecast revenue with the Group’s order book and historical performance;
- Evaluating the historical accuracy of foracasts prepared by management;
- Assessing the sensitivity of the headroom and management's forecasts;
- Consdering the impact of dimate change on management’s forecasts,
+Assessing the credit facility headroom and covenant compliance through review of original agreements and evaluation against bath the year-end position
and forecasts, and
+Assessing the sufficiency of the Group’s disclosures regarding the going concern basis, ncluding in relation to the propased Advent transaceion.

Based on the work we have performed, we have notidennfied any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, ndividually or collectively,
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and parent company's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least 12 manths from when the financial
statements are authorised forissue.

inrelation to the reporting on how the Group has applied the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have nothing matenal to add or draw attention 1o In relation
to the Directors' statement in the finencial statements about whether the Directors considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilines of the Directors with respect to gomng concern are described in the relevant sections of this report

5. Key audit matters

Key audit matters are thase matters tha?, In our professional judgement, were of most significance In our audit of the finanaal statements of the current
period and include the mast significant assessed rnisks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) tharwe identified. These matters included
those which had the greatest effect on: the averall audir strategy, the allocation of resources In the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion therecn, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters
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5.1. Revenue and profit recognition
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Key audit matter description

The Group recognised revenue of E850.7m in 205?(20201 £859.8m), with sales recognised on both an
over-time (£543.5m, 2020 £503.7m) and on a pointin-time (£3Q7 2m, 2020: £356.17m) basis In accordance
with '[FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

The estimation of both overall Jifetime contract margin and the appropriate level of revenue and profit

to recoghise in any single accounting periad requires the exercise of management jJudgement, Within the
Group’s contract portfolio there are a number of programmes where the estimates required in reaching
these judgements are complex and could lead to a matenal error withini the financial statements if reached
incorrectly. Conseguently, we consider that revende and profit recognition reprasents 2 key audit matter.

we focus a greater proportion of audit effort on a number of contracts where we consider there is the
highest degree of management judgement required, and design contract specific procedures to mitigate
the associated nsks.

In order to identify the key contracts where there 1s a sigrificant risk of material misstatement,

we undertaok g contract risk assessment process acrass the Group, based on analysis of potential
“characteristics of audit interest”, such as significant changes in contractual performance, complex
contractual arrangemants, unusual contract terms, and these that might have higher levels of
Judgement associated with the nsk of schedule delivery and/ar technical complexty Tnaddition,
we considered other indicators that could increase the risk of a material mpact on the financial
statements, including any potential chmate-related risks

Our assessment of the Group's contract portfolio included analysis of the latest contract finanaal and
operational information, and review of external information about the market and geo-political conditions.
We also leveraged our understanding of the business, and the results of prior audits.

As aresult of our nsk assessment we identified three contracts where we consider there to be the highest
degree of management judgement required in estimating the outturn margin position. These are:

+US Navy Sonobuoys;

+Huli Mounted Sonar 2150, and

+Underwater Warfare Suite Upgrade (UWSU).

Refer to page 139 (key sources of estmation uncertamty — contract revenue and profit recognition);
page 140 {accounting policies - revenue recognition); page 69 tAudit Committee report - sigruficant
Judgements considered), ard page 108 (note 3 of the Financial Statements).

How the scope of our audit responded
to the key audit matter

We obtained an understanding of the relevant controls in relation ta the long-term contract accounting
process.

To gain assurance over the contract jJudgements and esumates made, our work included:

+Tasting the underlying calculations used in the contract assessments for accuracy and completeness,
incuding the estimated costs to complete the contract alongside assodiated contingencies;

+Confirming the costs to complete, by agreeing to evidence of committed spend, budgeted rates or
actual costs incurred to date when compared to the remaining work to be performed under the contract:

+Inspecting contract risk registers to provide evidence over the judgement taken when providing for the
cost of mitigating technical risks and meeting futura milestones;

+Validating contract value and associated judgements made by management with reference to signed
contract terms and latest project status reports;

+Making inquines of contract engineers and project managers with regard to contract progress, future
risks and the existence of any unusual contract terms or side agreements separate to the anginal contract,

+Testing a sample of bilings and costs incurred to date to third party data,

+Assassing the reliability of management estmates through consideration of the historical accuracy
of prior period management estimates and understanding the reasons for movements or changes;

+ Considering whether there were any indicators of management override of controls or bias in arriving
at the reported position; and

+ Considering any potential impact of dimate change on the contracts.

Key observations

We consider the costs to camplete on long-term contracts and therefore the revenue and margin
recognised o be appropriate.

We consider the jJudgements made by management in racognising revenue and profit (o e reasonable.
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Independent auditor's report
To the members of Ultra Electronics Holdings plc
continued

5. Key audit matters continued
5.2. Valuation of goodwill

Key audit matter description The Group held £362.7m (2020: £363.0m) of goodwill arising on its acquisitions as ar 31 Necernber 2021,
Thera s a nisk that inappropate jJuggements relating to future cash flow forecasts and discount rates are
utilised, leading to an overstatement of the value in use of the assaciated assets.

In planning our audit, we determined there to be a heightened level of mpairment risk n relation to the
carrying value of gacdwill associated.with the Energy cash generating unit {CGU). This was due ta the high
growth rate forecast in the strategic plan despite the current year negative performance aganst budget.
This CGU had goodwill of £18m at 31 December 2021 Through our risk assessment we determinad that
the key assumption in the value in use assessment was the cash flow forecast adopted for the CGU.

Refer to page 140 {accounting policies - goodwill); page 69 (Audit Committee repart - significant
judgements considerad); and page 114 {note 13 of the Financial Statements)

How the scope of our audit responded We obtained an understanding of the relevant controls over the monitoring and valuation of the carrying
to the key audi¢ matter value of goodwill, Our procedures performed included:

+Challenging the 5-year growth rate assumgptians (n the strategic plan period with reference to market,
industry and economic data, considering any contradictory evidence;

+Challenging forecast performance based on recent CGU performance and the assessment of
management's historical forecasting accuracy;

+ Testing the long-term growth rate assumption with reference to the long-term economic outlook, current
contracts, and benchmarking it agamnst the rates used by peers;

+With the iInvalvement of cur valuation specialists, benchmarking the discount rate against independently
available data and performing peer group analyss;

+Tesung the integrity of management’s model to determine whether it was both arithmetically accurate
and had been prepared on a basis consiszent with management's assumptions;

+Challenging the appropriateness of management's sensitivities to determine the completeness of risks
and opporturities modelled;

+ Assessing additonal sensitised scenarios based on our own interpretaticn of reasonable worst-case
scenarios, incuding both {i) the loss of a key customer, and (i} a severe scenario of no growth fram FY21
actuals; and

+ Considering the potential impact of climate change on the revenues and profit margins induded in the
strategic plan.

With regards to the disclosures within the finandial statements, we assessed whether they appropriately
reflect the facts and circumstances within management's assessment of impairment over goodwill,

Key observations We are satisfied that headraom exists over the carying value of the Energy CGU and therefore no
impairment has been recognised.

6. Our application of materiality

6.1. Materiality

we define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes it probable that the economic decisians of a reasonably
knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced, We use materiality both in planming the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results
of our work.

Based on our prafessional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group ﬁnan:ialstatements ) Parent company financial statements o
Materiality £5.5m (2020: £5.7m) F27m(2020: £2.3m)
Basis for determining materiality 5% (2020 586 of underlying profit before tax. Parent company materiaiity equates to 0.3%

20: 0.4%) of the parent ary net assets.
Undertying profit before tax is recanciled (2020 g ’ company

to statutory profit hefore tax in nate 2
of the financial statements.

Rationale for the benchmark applied Under\ymg-profit before tax is considered to The parent company is non-trading, and we
be the key performance measure for the Group thersfore consider that net assets is the most
and the users of the finangal siaterments, and apgropriate metric to determine matenanty.

therefore an appropriate basis on which to
determine rmateriality.
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Underlying PBT

T Group materiality £5.5m

_Underlying PBT  £116.6m 4
® Group mazeriality

Camponent performance
materiahty range £1.7mto £2.1m

Audit Committee reporting
threshold £0.235m

6.2. Performance materiality
we set performance materiality at a level lower than materiality to reduce the: prabability that, in aggregate, uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceed
the materiality for the financial statements as a whole.

Group financial statemeints Parent company financial statements
Performance mateﬂriaifit; - 65%(202(-): 7_‘0'3/%) of G_lro_up_m_aténality 65?;@026: 50%] of parent company materi-aHt_y o
Basis and rationale for determining In determining performance rh:é.ter\aliry, we cansidered the followng factors:
performance materiality + The impact of the planned acquisition of the Group on the level of nisk,

+Qur pastexpenence of the audit and our nsk assessment, including our assessment of the Group's
overall control environment;

+The lack of changes to the business and macroeconamic environment i the parad, and the level
of stabdity within the Group's management team, and

+The relatively low level of uncorrected and corrected misstatements in prior periods, anc
management's willingness to investigate and correct such misstatements identified

6.3. Error reporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £295k (2020: £285k), as well as differences below
that threshald that, in our view, warranted reporting on rualitative grounds. We also report to the Audit Committee on disclosure matters that we identifiec
when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements

7. An overview of the scope of our audit

7.1. Identification and scoping of components
Our Group scoping was performed taking account of the following considerations:

Following a restructure, the Group 1s divided mto 20 operating components (2020 25) spread predominantly across four key territories - the UK, USA, Canada
and Australia. Each component sits within one of three operating segments, with central oversight provided from management located in the UK and all resulis
are consolidated at the Group level,

Scoping has remained broadly consistent with the prior year. Through our audit we have performed 30 (2020: 12) full scope audits, three audits of specified
account balarices (2020: four specdified procadure audits), along with seven (2020: nine) components being reviewed centrally at the Group level

Components were selected based on therr contribution to the consolidated revenue and underlying profit before tax for the Group Ofthe 10 full scope audits
(2020. 12), three ware considered to be signficant components {2020 three) to the Group based on their revenue and underlying profit before tax contribution.
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Independent auditor’s report
To the members of Ultra Electronics Holdings plc
continued

7. An overview of the scope of our audit continued

Revenue Profit before tax

iutliauicihtrscope 74%

® Spedfied audit procedures  21%
Review a: Group level 14% Review at Group level 18%

# Specified audit procedures 8%

7.2. Our consideration of the control environment
The Group operates a range of [T systems which underpin the finanaiat reporting process. These vary by business and by geography

i the current year our controls approach was principatly designed m inform our risk assessment and we did not place reliance on the conrrols for the purposes
of our testing As part of this work, we also assessed relevant general 1T controls at component level, and in respect of the Group's consohdaton systern,

As part of our controls workn the prior and current vear, we identified a number of Improvements which could be implemented to the control environment
Management s in the process of implementing these impravements.

7.3. Our consideration of climate-related risks

As hughlighted n management’s Task Force on Chirmare-relatad Financial Disclosures (TCFD) on pages 29 to 31, the Group s exposed to tha impacts of dimate
change on its business and operations. We obtained management's chmate-related rnisk assessment to understand the process o identifying chimate-related
risks, the determunation of miigating acnons and the impact on the Group's financial staternents We considerad the risks assocated with climate change when
determining our scope and audit approach, In particular, we dentfied potential nsks assodiated with cimate change for revenue recognition onlong-term
programmes and goodwill impairment, as described in the key audic mattersin sections 51 and 5.2 above, however the Group does not consider climate
change to represent a principal risk as discussed in more detall on page 29 of the Annual Repaort.

Our consideranon of cimate-related risks also extended to our work n respect of going concern and fong-term vizbility

We have read the Group's disclosures on dimate-related information in the strategic report and considered the consistency with the financal statements
and our knowledge obtained in performing the audit

7.4. Working with other auditors

Each component in scope was sabject to an audit perfarmance matenality level between £1.7m and £2 1m (2023 £* &mand £2.2m). This auditwork on
all compenents was performed by Deloitte member firms under the direction and supervision of the Group audit team. At Group level we also tested the
consalidation process ard performed analyzical procedures to assess whether there were any significant risks o rnaterial misstatement within the
aggregared financial information of the remaning components, nat subject to full scope audit or sudit of speafied account balances

We communicated the resdlts of our risk assessment exercise to the component au ditors and mstrucied them on the areas of significant nsk, the procedurey
to be performed and timing of their reporting ta Ls. We also provided direction on enquines made by the component auditors through online and telephone
conversations. For UK and overseas components i scape for our audit, a file review was performed to verify the work performed by the teams was in line with
bioth the scope and standard required by the Group audit team Al the findings identfied were discussed with the component auditor in detail and further
procedures to be performed were 1ssued where relevant,

Travel restrictions imposed as & result of Covid-19 meant that visits to business unit sites in the UK and overseas have continded to be imited during 2021
Howaver, we were still able to perform sufficient Group oversight, direction ard supervision via regular virtual communication and remate review of component
auditworking papers

We are sazsfied that the level of involvement of the Group audit partner and ream in the component audits has baen extensie and has enabled us to conclude
that sufficient appropriate audit evidence has been obtained in support of oLr opinion on the Group financial staternents as a whole.
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8. Other information B

The gther information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the financial We have nothing to report in this regard.
staternants and our auditor's report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the ather infarmation

contained within the Annugl Report. Lur opinion on the financia! statements does not cove Uhie other

inforination and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon

Our respensibility 1s to read the other informarinn and, in doing sa, consider wligiher the other
information 1s materialty inconsistent with the finanrial sratements or cur knawidye oliained
i the course of the audit, or ulherwise appears to be materially misstated

Ifwe identity such matenal inconsistancies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whethar this gives nse to a material misstatement in the financiat statements themsgives
If hasad on the worlwe have peiloimed, we conclude that there is a matenad misstarement of this
other information, we are requied to report that fact.

9. Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully In the Directors’ responsibilities statemeng, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
starernents that are free from matenal misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the parent company's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclasing as applicable, matters relazed to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Dwectors either intend to liguidate the
Group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but ta do so.

10. Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to abtain reasanable assurance about whether the financial statemaents as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due

1o fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditar's report that Incdudes our opinion Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not a guarantee that an
audit conducted In accordance with ISAs (UK) wiil always detect a material risstatement when it exists, Misstatements can anise from fraud or error and are
considerad material If, ndwidually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic dedsions of users taken on the basis
of these financial staterments

Afurther descripuion of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 15 located on the FRO's website ar www.fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
This description forms part of our auditor's report.

11. Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irragularities, including fraud, are instances of nan-comphance with laws and regulations We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, cuthned
abave, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregulariies,
including fraud 1s detalled below.

11,1, Identifying and assessing potential risks related to irregularities
In identfying and assessing nisks of material misstatement in respect of irregulanities, ncduding fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we
considered the following:
+The nature of the industry and sector, control ervironment and businass performance iIncluding the design of the Group's remuneration policies, key drivers
for Directars’ remuneration, bonus levels and performance targets;
+Results of our anguines of management, Internal audit and the Audit Comimittes about their own identfication and assessment of the risks of irregularines;
+The latest information regarding the requlatory Investgations nto business conduct within the Group, as discussed by management on page 4% and note 33;
+Any matters we identfied having ohtained and reviewed the Group's documentation of their policies and procedures relating to:
- [dentifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and whether they were aware of any Instances of non-compliance;
- Detecting and responding to the nsks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud;
— The internat controls established ra mitigate risks of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations; and
+The matters discussed armong the audit engagement team, incuding significant component audit teams and relevant internal specialists, :induding tax,
valuations, pensions, [T and Industry specialists regarding how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements and any potential indicators of fraud.

As a resuit of these procedures, we considered the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud and identified the greatest
potential for fraud in the level of judgement involved in estimating osts t complete on long-term contracts and the subsequent Impact on revenue and profit
recagnition. [n comman with all audits under [SAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk of management override.

We also obtained an understanding of the legal and requlatory frameworks that the Group operates in, focusing on provisions of thase faws and regulations
that had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures m the financial statements. The key laws and regulations we considerad in
this context included the UK Companies Act, Listing Rules, pension and taxation legislation.

n addition, we considered prowisions of ather laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the finanaal statements but comphance wath which may
be fundamental te the Group’'s abllity to operate or to avoid a material penaity including in raspect of export controls (International Trade Law and International
Traffic in Arms Regulations), defence contracting and anti-bribery and corruption legisiation.
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11. Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including
fraud continued
11.2. Audit response to risks identified

As aresult of performing the above, we identfied revenue and profit recogrition as a key audit matter related ro the potental risk of frand The key audit
mattars section of our report explains the marter in more detail and also desunibes the speaitic procedures we performed in response to that key audit matter

In addimion to the above, our procedures to respond to risks identified included the following.

+Reviewing the finanaial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentatian to assess compliance with prowvsions of relevant laws and regulations
described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

+Enquiring of management, the Audit Committee and external legal counsel concerning actual and potential itigation and claims;

+Performing analytical procedures to identfy any unusual or unexpected refationships that may indicate risks of matenal misstatement due to fraud;

+Reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing internal audit reports and reviewing correspondence with relevant regulatory
authorities; and

+In addressing the risk of fraud through management overnide of cantrols, testing the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessing
whether the jJudgements made in making accourting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluating the business rananale of any significant
transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business

We also communicated relevant identified laws and reguiations and potential fraud nsks to alt engagement team members including internal specialists
and significant component audit teams, and rerained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulanons throughout the audit,

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

12. Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the gart of the Directors' remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+The information grzen in the strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the finandial statements are prepared is consistent
with the financal staternents; and

+The strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirerments.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the parent company and their environment obtamed in the course of the audit, we have
not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the Directors' report,

13. Corporate Governance Statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the Directors’ staterment in relation to going concern, langer-termn viability and that part of the Corporate Governance
Statement relating to the Group's compliance with the provistens of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review

Based on the wark undertaken as part of our audit, we have concluded that each of the following elements of the Corporate Governance Statement is materially

consistent with the finanaal statements and our knowledge obtained during the audit:

+The Directors' statemeant with regards to the appropriateness of adapting the gomng concern basis of accounting and any matenal uncertainties identified,
set gut on page 46,

+The Drrectors’ explanation as 1o 1ts assassment of the Group's prospects, the period this assessment covers and why the penod is appropriate, set outon
page 47,

+The Directors' statement on fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 71,

+The Board's confirmation that it has carned out a robust assessment of the emerging and prinaipal risks, set oLt on page 62,

+The section of the Annual Repart that describes the review of effactiveness of risk management and internai control systems, set out an page 68, and

+The section describing the work of the Audit Committee, set out on page 67
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14. Matters on which we are required to report by exception

14.1. Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records We have nothing to reportin respect
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, 'n cur cpinion. of these matters.
+We have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
+Adeguare accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adeguate
for our audit have not been received from branches notvisitad by us; or
+The parent company finandal statements are not in agreement with the accounting records
and returns.
14,2, Directors’ remuneration We have nothing to repertin respect
Uinder the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to reportif in our opirion cartain disclosures of these matters.
of Directors' remuneration have not been made or the part of the Directors’ Remuneration report
¢ be audited is netin agreement with the accounting records and returns,

15. Other matters which we are required to address

15.1. Auditor tenure

Following the recammendation of the Audit Committee, we were appolnted by the Board of Directors on 17 Aprit 2003 to audit the financial staternents
far the year ending 31 December 2003 and subsequent finandial perods. The period of tatal uninterrupted engagement including previous renewals
and reappeointments of the firm s 19 years, covering the years ending 31 December 2003 to 31 Decernker 2021,

15.2. Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the Audit Committee
Qur audit apnion 15 consistant with the additional report to the Audit Committee we are required to provide in accordance with 15As (Uk),

16. Use of our report

This report is made solely ta the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006, Our audit work has been
undertaken s that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are raquired to state to them in an auditer's report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extant permitted by law, we do not accapt or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Cormpany and the Company's members as 2 body,
for aur audit work, far this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

As required by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA} Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rule (DTR) 4.1 14R, these financial statements form part of the
European Single Electronic Format (ESEF) prepared Anrwal Finandial Report filed on the National Storage Mechanism of the UK FCA n accordance with the ESEF
Regulatory Technical Standard (ESEF RTS). This auditor's report provides no assurance over whether the annuel finandial report has been prepared using the
single electronic farrrat specified in the ESEF RTS.

DocuSigned by:

A9ODBF9IBIBFEE3
Jon Thamson FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

Ltondan, UK

23 March 2022
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2026
Note £m £~

Revenue o 3 250.7 8598
Cost of sales (597.3) 1609.0)
Gress profit - - i 2534 250.8
Other gperating income 4 6.5 09
Administrative expenses {138.8) {139.9
Other operating expenses 5 {1.2) (15
Acquisition and disposal related costs 2 (7.8) (1.1
Sigruficant tegal charges and expenses 2 6.1y (3.3)
Operating profit B o 6 o ;tES.Q B 1063
{Loss¥gain on disposals 30 (2.4) 5.6
Investment Income 8 01 37
finance Costs 9 (20.9) {11.9)
Profit before tax T o o 827 103.7
Tax 10 (158} (199
Profit for the year ’ 66.9 838
Attributable to

Owners of the Company 66.9 838

Non-controlling Interests - -
Earnings per ordinary share (pence)
Basic 12 93.83 11580
Diluted 12 93.5 177

The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of this consolidated incorme statement. All res.its are derived from continuing operatons,
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2021
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2021 2020
Mote £m im

Profit for the year ’ 66.9 3.3
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benefit pension schemes 29 25.7 93)
Tax relating to tems that will not be reclassified 10 (3.5) 29
Tatal items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 22.2 {64y
Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 33 (11.2)
{Lossygaln on loans used i net Investment hedges (0.3) 1.5
Total items that are or may he reclassified to profit ar loss 3.2 9.7
Other comprehensive income/{expense) for the year 254 (16 1)
Total comprehensive income for the year o 92.3 67.7
Attributable to:

92.3 67.7

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated statement of comprehensive income
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Consolidated balance sheet

As at 31 December 2021

2021 3020
[ Not:e_ e £l o T
Non-current assets _
Goadwill 13 362.7 363.0
Other intangible assets 14 688 522
Property, plant and equipment 15 73.4 6566
Leased assets 16 359 336
Deferred tax assets 24 14.7 136
Derwvative financial nstrurnents 22 1.0 271
Trade and other recewvables - 19 135 125
o - 570.1 5740
Current assets '
Inventaries 17 929 1036
Trade and other recevables 19 207.6 1885
Current tax assets 6.6 23
Cash and cash equivalents 22 138.8 1144
Derivative financial instruments 22 1.4 58
Assels classified as held for sale 30 6.8 -
454.1 4214
Total assets e i 10242 995
Current liabilities o . -
Trade and other payahles 20 (215.7) (199.3)
Current tax habihties {5.3) {5.5)
Derwatve financial instruments 22 (1.1) (0.2)
Borrowings 21 {12.1) (383}
Liabihties classified as held for sale 30 {1.2) -
Short-term provisions o - 25 {23.3) {19.6)
. S (258.7) (263.3)
Non-current liabilities o
Retirement benefit obligations 2% {34.8) (7313
Other payables 20 (11.4) (12.0)
Deterred tax habilities 24 {21.5) (15.0%
Derrvative financial instruments 22 (1.5) {0
Borrowings 21 (166.7) e19:
Long-term provisions . B 25 (2.8) RG]
(238.7) (267 1)
Total liabilities N (497.4) ’ {5304)
Net assets i i 526.8 464.7
Equity
Share capital 26 36 36
Share premium account 208.1 2055
Capital redemption reserve 0.4 0.4
Reserve for own shares {0.3) 1.4
Translaton reserve 35.7 325
Retaned earnings 279.3 2241
Equity attributable to owners of the Company - 526.8 4647
Nan-controlling Interests ~ T -
Total equity 526.8 464.7

The financial statements of Ultra Electronics Holdings ple, registered number 02330397 were approved by the Board of Directors and authensed for issue
on 23 March 2022. The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated balance sheet

W e AL

On bhehalf of the Board,

S. PRYCE, Chief Executive Officer
J. SCLATER, Chief Fi 1al Officer

L
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Note £m £m
iil;:;zash flow from cperating activities T - 27 121.5 130.0
Investing activities
Interest recerved 0.1 03
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (22.2) (13.4)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 2.1 02
£xpenditure on product development and other intangibies {2.5) 8.7
hspasal of subsidiary undertakings 30 1.2 53
Net cash used in investing activities o - o {21.3) o (1637
Financing activities
Equizy-settled employee share schemes 2.6 23
Disposal of own shares 16 -
Dividends pad {(41.1) (387}
Dividends paid to non-controling interest - 0.1
Repayments of borrowings {70.0) {76.2)
Proceeds from borrowings 70.0 111
Principal payment on leases (8.3) 19.0)
Net cash used in fin';;‘acing activities o S {45.2) M O.ET
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 27 55.0 31
Net cash and cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at beginning of year 27 241 822
Fffact of foreign exchange rate changes (o4 11.2)
Net cash and cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at end of year 27 138.7 841

Bank overdrafts are netted with cash and cash equivalents because they form an integral part of the Group's cash managemeint wathin the cash pooling
arrangements, The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated cash flow statement.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

Share Capital Non-
Share premium  redemption  Reserve for  Translation Retained  controlling Total
capital account reserve  own shares reserve earnings interest equity
o Em £m £m £m ) AE‘r_n_ Em £&m £m

Balance at 1 January 2020 35 203.2 04 (1.4) 422 182.6 0.1 430.6
Profit for the year - - - - - 338 - 838
Other comprehensive expense for the year - - - - (9.7) (6.4) - (16N
Total comprehens:’vé—iﬁcome for the year L - - - (9.7) 77.4 - 6;.7_—
Equity-settled employee share schemes 01 23 - - - 25 - 5.0
Tax on share-based payment transactions - - - - - 02 - 02
Nan-cantrafling interest distribution - - - - - - (0.1) a.n
Dindend to shareholders - - - - - (38.7) - (33.7)
Balance at 31 December 2020 36 2055 0.4 (1.9 325 2244 - 1647
Profit for the year - - - - - 56.9 - 66.9
Other camprehensve income for the yaar - - - - 32 22.2 - 25.4
Total comwp;é%ensive income for the year - - - - 3.2 891 - 923
Disposal of own shares - - - 1.1 - 0.5 - 1.6
Equity-settied employee share schemes -~ 26 - - - 5.9 - )
Tax on share-based payment transactions - - - - - 0.2 - 0.8
Diidend to sharehofders - - - - - {41.1) - {411}
Balance at 31 December 2021 T i 3.6 208.1 B 0.4 {0.3) 357 279.3 - 526.8
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Notes to accounts - Group
For the year ended 31 December 2021

1 Segment information

For management purposes, the Group is organised inta three operaung segments: Martime, [nteligence & Commurucations and Cntical Detection & Control.
The operating segments are consistentwith the internal reporting as reviewed by the CEQ who 1s deemed to be the Chief Operating Decision-Maker, See the
Business Unit reviews on pages 21-23 for further information.

2021 2020

External —wlnter- External Inter- N

revenue segment Tatal revende segent* Total

£Em £Em £m £m £ £
Revenue T -
Maritime 3954 0.3 3957 3918 0.8 3926
[ntelligence & Communications 2413 0.2 2415 241.0 0.6 2416
Critical Detection & Control 214.0 03 2143 2270 09 2279
Eliminations - {0.8) (0.8) - 123) 2.3
Consolidated revenue T 8s07 - 850.7 850.8 ~ 898
Al inter-segrment trading is at arm’s length.
2021
7 eritical o
Intelligence & Detection &
Maritime Communications Control Unallocated Total
£m £m £m . _£_rn £m

Underlying operating profit - 59.4 379 323 ) - 129.6
Amortisanon of intangibles arising on acquisition (0.4} (7.0} (2.4} - (9.8)
Sigruficant legal charges and expenses jeenote 2) - - - (6.1) (6.1}
Acquisition and disposal-related Costs (see note 23 {0.7) - {0.2) - (6.9) {7.8)
Operating profit/(loss) W" " ss3 30.9 297 (13.0) 105.9
Loss ondisposals (2.4)
Investrment INcome 0.1
Finance cosis {20.9)
Profit before tax o o ) 82.7
Tax o (15.8)
Profit after tax o B 66.9

Significant legal charges and expenses are the charges ansing from investigatons and settlements, or provisions for settlements, of lingation that are notin the
normal course of business. Unallocated items are specific corporate level costs that cannot be allocated to a specific operating segment; in 2021, the unallocated
acquisition related costs primarily relate to those incurred in relation to the proposed acquisition of Ultra by Cobham Ultra Acquisitions Limited

* 2023 oatances for nternsl revenue have heen restared 1o anty aresent 'nter segment feveriLe and natintarnal revends within a segmant
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Notes to accounts - Group
For the year ended 31 December 2021
continued

1 Segment information continued

2020
Inteligerce & Cr tl:jl")erect.on
tartime Cormanicgtions & Cantrol Lnallocated Totzl
£ £~ im £m £m
Underlying aperating profit T 586 335 U0 - 1zea
Amortisation of mtangibles anising on acquisition 10.5) {8.9) 3.2) - (12.6}
Significant legal charges and expenses fsee nore 7 - - - (3.3) (3.3
Acquisition and disposal-related costs e note 2; 2 19) - - nn
Restructuring costs related to disposal (see neta 2 1204 - 08 - (2.8
Operating profit/(lass) T 555 237 30 (33) 106.2
Gain on disposals ) 56
Invesiment Income 37
Fimance coss 1.9
Prafitbeforetax T T 103.7
Tax 199
Profit after tax - o 838
Capital expenditure, additions to intangibles and leased assets, depreciation and amortisation
Capital expenditure and
additions to leased assets and
intangibles {(excluding goadwill Depreciation and
and acquired intangibles) amoertisation
20 w1 7022
o £m i ;m £
Mertme S o 177 150 187 105
[ntelligence & Communications 8.2 24 15.7 17.8
Critical Detection & Control 10.7 50 113 _ 91
Total o T 366 284 350 375
The 2021 depreaation and amortisation expense includes £16.1m of amorusation charges (2020: £18.6m), £10.9m of property, plant and equipment
depreciation charges (2020: £10 4mj and £8.0m of leased asset depreciation charges (2020: £8.5my).
Total assets by segment
2021 20290
Em Er
Mariume - w00 | 2602
Intelligence & Communications 3231 336.2
Critical Detection & Contral 239.6 2540
o o 8617 8504
Unallocared 1625 144.7
Consolidated total assets T o 1,024.2 T gest

Unallocated assets represent current and deferred tax assets, derivatives at fair value and cash and cash equivalents.
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1 Segment information continued
Total liabilities by segment

2021 2020
Em £

Maritime T " 1518 1268
Intethgence & Communications 974 923
Cntical Deteciion & Control i 63.2 669
” T 3124 2860

Unallocated 185.0 244.4
Consalidated total liabilities ) o 4974 7530.4

Unazllocated habilities represent dervatives ar fair value, current and deferred tax labilities, retirement Genefit obligauons, overdrafts, bank loans and loan notes

Revenue by destination
The fallowing rabie provides an analysis of the Group's sales by geographical market:

2021 20290
£m £m

North America o ' 5347 545.5
Urited Kingdom 166.2 1584
Rest of World 89.5 899
Mainland Europe______ o 60.3 EY
o 250.7 859.8

During the year, there was ane direct customer (2020: one) that individually accounted for greater than 10% of the Group's total turnover. Sales to this customer
In 2021 were £242.1m (2020: £203 2m) across all segments

Other information (by geographic location)

Capital expenditure and
additions to leased assets and
intangibles (excluding geodwill

Non-current assets Total assets and acquired intangibles)
2021 2000 2021 Caan 2021 Tamn
£m M Em £m £m F
Untted Kingdom o 1509 1592 2655 2987 100 a5
USA 3103 3091 4452 4120 2.9 145
Canada 859 843 140.0 1318 15.8 3.1
Rest of World 7.3 5.7 1.0 7.9 0.9 0.3
T T 554.4 5583 8617 3504 366 284
Unallocated 7 B 15.7 15.7 162.5 1447 - -

570.1 5740 1,0242 9951 36.6 204
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MNotes to accounts - Group
For the year ended 31 December 2021
continued

2 Additional non-statutory performance measures

To present the adjusted performance of the Group on a consistent basis year on year, additional non-statutory performance indicators are used. This analysis
of the Group's operating results is presented to provide readers with additional performance indicators that are prepared on a non-statutory basis. [tincludes
the key performance indicators (KPIs) for return on invested capital (ROIC} and organic growth in erder book, revenue and underlying operanng profit. This
presentation s regularty reviewed by management to 1dentify irems that are unusual and ullier nems relevant ta an understanding of the Group's performance
and lony-Lenm trends with reference to their materiakty and nature, This additional information 1s not uniformly defined by all companies and may not be
comparable with similarly titled measures and chsclosures by other organisations, The non-statutory disclosures should not be viewed in 1solation or as an
alternative to the equivalent statutory measure See pages 145 and 146 for further detalls and defimtions The non-statutory performance measures are

calculated as follows

2021 202
£m £
OEe?ating profit T 105.2 1063
Amaortisation of intang bles ansing on acquIsSItion ises acrz 12 98 126
Significant legal charges and expenses’ 6.1 33
Acguisiton and disposat-related costs™ 7.8 11
Restructuring costs related to disposal see nowe 1) - 28
Underlying operaﬁng profit - o 129.6 1261
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment sze note 15) 10.2 104
Depreciation of leased assets (see nore &1 8.0 85
Amortisation of internally generated intangible assets see ore 2 12 14
Amortisation of software, patents and trademarks isee note 4 51 46
Adjusted EBITDA T 1548 1510
Profit before tax 827 1037
Armortisation of Intangibles arising on acguisItion see note “4; 9.8 126
Acquisition and disposal related costs™ 78 1.1
LossAgain) on fair value movernents of dervatives see nors 22: 7.8 3.4
Loss/(gain) on disposals net see aate 30) 24 (28)
Significantlegal charges and expenses’ ) 6.1 B 33
Underlying proﬁt hefore tax o 116.6 T 1145
Cash generated by aperations (see note 27) 134.2 1426
Principal payments on finance leases (8.3) 9.0
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {22.2) 134
Proceeds on disposal of property, plantand equipment 2.1 02
Expenditure on product development and other intangibles (2.5) 8.7
Significant legal charges and expenses’ 14 15
Dispasal-related restructuring costs ses nome 30) - 1.6
Acquisition and disposal-related payments™ 6.8 13
Underlying operating cash flow S 1115 116.1
Underlying operating cash conversion (KPI) 86% 92%

* Signiicant legal cnarges and expenses are the tharges ars ng frominvest ganons and sertlements, or prov sions for settlements, of iigation that are nof inthe nornal course of gusiness Tne assoc ¢red

casn mpact sreflected in the reconc hation to underly ng operating £asn Aow

e 1 2027, this primarily relates to costs ncrrad, and relared cash ourflow, connected to the proposed acguisit on of Litra sy Colsham Ulra Acques nons Lirited
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2021 2020
£m £m
Net cash flow from operating activities see note 27) T T 4215 1300
[nlerest received 0.1 03
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (22.2) (13.4)
Proceeds on disposal of praperty, plant and equipment 21 D2
Expenditure on product developrment and other intangibles {2.5) BN
Principat payments on finance legses {8.3} 9.0
Free cash flow T T 90.7 95.4
Netassets I 5268 4647
Net debt rsee nate 27; 40,0 85.8
Retirement benefit obkgations izee note 26 34.8 FEN
MNet dervative financial INStruments see nore 22! 0.2 (7 6)
Met tax iabihnesfassets) 55 (15
Total invested capital T h B 607.3 6145
K\;a’age invested capitai o h 610.9 6303
Underiying operating profit T B B T 1208 126.1
21.2% 20.0%

ROIC (KPI)

Earnings per share

The reconclliation from statutory earnings to underlying earnings, as used for the underlying earmings per share metric, 15 set out in note 12.

Organic measures

Orgaric growth for arder book, revenue and underlying operating profit is calculated as follows.

Qrder book Revenue Underlying operating profit

£~ S 1T pact £ % rpact £m Y% ITpact
2020 o 1,064.2 8598 1261
Currency translation 43 +1.5 1370 4.4 4.8 238
Disposals (2.4} 02 (5.6} 056 11.3) 10
2020 (for organic measure) 1,066.7 T 8165 1200
QOrganic growth (KPI) 234.2 +22.0 342 +4.2 96 +2.0
2021 T 13008 +222 850.7 R 1296 +2.8
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Notes to accounts - Group
For the year ended 31 December 2021

continued
3 Revenue
An analysis of the Group's revenue 15 as follows
2021 . - 2520
fritical Critical
Intelligence & Detection & ntell gence & Cetecron &
Maritime Communications Control Total Mar e COMmMJmICar ans Control Tatal
e £m £m Em £m Em . i £ im
Raint In tme 84.5 978 124.9 3072 100.4 1190 1367 3561
Over ime L 3109 1435 39.1 5435 2914 1220 90.3 5037
395.4 241.3 214.0 850.7 3918 241.0 2270 859.8

The estimate of future costs on over-time contracts s a critical accounting estimate as set out on page 139, Across the aggregated portfolio of over-

time contracts open at 31 Decernber 2021, a 1% increase in estimated costs to complete the portfolio equates o £6.8m (2020: £5.2m). The impact on revenue
would depend an the margin and percentage of completion of any given contract within the portfolia, however, when taken in aggregare, it 15 not likely to
exceed £6.8m.

£1.8m of revenue (2020. £ril) was recognised duning the year ended 31 December 2021 in respect of perfarmance obligations saosfied or partially sausfied
in grevious periods.

The table below notes the revenus expected 1o be recognised in the future that 1s relsted to performance obiigations that are unsazsfied (or partially
unsatisfied) at the reporting date

2024 and
2022 2023 beyond Total
o - . £m £m _Em o 7$
Pointin time revenue 2521 84.8 34.3 371.2
Over-time revernue 460.3 230.3 239.1 929.7
4 Other operating income
Amounts induded in other operating tincame were as follows:
2021 2079
. m_ Emr
Foreign exchange gains o 6.5 ] 09
6.5 0.9

Foreign exchange gains and losses are impacted by gans or losses on foreign exchange transactions and revaluation of currency assets and hatties.

5 Other operating expenses
Amounts included In other operating expenses were as follows:

2021 2020
£m £
Foreign exchange losses 1.2

s
1.2 15
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6 Operating profit

Operating profitis stated after charging/(crediting)
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2021 2020
£m L
Raw materiais and ather bought-in Mventories expensed i the year 267.3 3036
Staff costs (see 1ote 73 296.1 2865
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment see note *Si 109 10.4
Depreciation of leased assets (see rote 15; 8.0 85
Amortsation of internatly generated intangible assets isee nate 41 1.2 14
Amorusation of software, patents and trademarks see note 14 5.1 46
Amortisation of acquired mtanqible gssets see note 14 9.8 126
Government grant income fsee note 23; {0.5) 10.2)
Net foreign exchange gan {0.1) 2.1
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equiprment 0.1 0.1
Short-term lease rentals 01 0.1
Low-value asset lease rentals 0.1 02
Income from property subletting (0.6) 0.7)
Research and developrmens costs 335 315
Auditor's remuneration for statutory audit work {including expenses) 18 1.4
Analysis of auditor's remuneration .
2021 2022
Em £
Fees payable for the audit of the annual accounts 0.6 05
Fees payable for the audit of subsidiaries 1.2 09
Total for statutory Group audit services - 1.8 T4

Total non-audit services in 202 | were Frul (2020: £3,000). The Company-only audit fee included in the Group audit fae shown abave was F23,000 (2020 £20,000).

7 Staff costs
Particulars of employees (including Executive Directors) are shown below. Employee costs during the year amounted to
2021 2020
£m £Em
Wages and salaries 2569 2508
Social security costs 27.8 246
Pension costs™ 1.4 1.1
T B 296.1 2865
The average monthly number of persons employed by the Group during the year was as follows:
2021 2320
Mumber Mu~ber
Production - o a - - 1,727 1813
Engineering 1,618 1463
Selling 261 208
Support services ] 768
o T 4531 4253

Infarmation an Owectors’ remuneration is giveri in the section of the Dreciors’ Remuneration report described as having been audited and those sfements

required by the Campanies Act 2006 and the Financial Conduct Authority form part of these accounts.

* 2020 pension Lasts navwe heentestated following a review of the pension-relared ¢narges to e ncame stare~ entw 2020
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Notes to accounts - Group
For the year ended 31 December 2021
continued

8 Investment income

2021 2020
£m £
Bank \ntereér o - - 0.1 03
Farvalue rmovernent unt derlvatives see note 22; - 34
- B T o 37
9 Finance costs
2021 2020
£m £
Amaortisation of ﬂﬂancgcé;?s of debt - ) 0.6 06
Interest on loans and overdra‘ts 5.4 54
Financial iabilines at FVTPL - net change i fair value see nore 73) 47 29
Finance charge on leases 14 17
Total bgrwro_\zxmg costs B 121 106
Retirement benefit scheme finance cost 1.0 13
Falr value movement on denvatives tsee nate 21 7.8 -
C T 20.9 19

The Canadian Government loans are measyred at fair value to profit and loss (FVTPLY Bank loans, loan notes and overdrafts are recorded at amortised cost

10 Tax
2021 2020
£m im
UKtaxes o o
Corporation tax (1.3) 5.2
Adjustmentin respact of prior years 0e (0.5}
o - T i 0.4) 47
Overseas taxes B
Current taxation 14.3 1.9
Adjustment m respect of prior years (0.6 (5.2)
T o - 13.7 6.7
Total current tax 133 11.4
Deferred tax ) o
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 19 75
Recognition of deferred tax liability on overseas retained earnings - 08
UK tax rate change N ’ 0.6 0.2
Total deferred tax charge T - 25 85
Tatal tax charge - 15.8 15.9

Corporation tax in the UK is calculated at 199 (2020: 19% of the estmated assessable profit for the year. UK deferred tax at the balance sheet date has heen
calculated at 25% (2020: 19%) on those emporary differences that are expected to reverse after 1 April 2023; this has added £0.6m to the deferred tax charge
for the year, In other territonies current tax s calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective junisdictions and deferred fax has been calculated ar enacted
tax rares that are expected to apply to the period when assets are realised or habilities are settled. US deferred tax balances at 37 December 2021 have been

calculated at 249% (2020: 249%),
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10 Tax continued

In addition to the amount charged to the Income statement, the following amounts relating to tax have been recognised directly in other comprehensive
ncome:

2021 022
Deferred tax £m £m
Arising on income and expenses recogméed n other comprehensive Income: T
Actuanal gain/{loss) on defined henefit pension schemes 4.5 1.8}
Tax rate changes ] (1.0} .1
Total deferred tax charge/(éf;d?{i recognised directly in other comprehensive income T 35 29

in additian ta the amount charged to the Income statement and other comprehensive income, the following amounts relating o tax have been recognised
dectly In equity:

2021 2020
Em o

Deferred tax o T

Change in estimated excess tax deductions related to share-based payments (0.8) (0.2)

Total deferred tax credits recognised directly in equityﬂ T o (0.8) 0.2)

The difference betwean the tatal tax shown above and the amount calculated by applying the standard rate of UK corporation tax 1o the profit before tax s as
follows

2021 2320
Em £
Grcﬁj profit before tax T o B - 827 103.7
Taxon Group profit at standard UK corporation tax rate of 19.0% {2020: 19.00) 157 197
Tax effects of:
Expenses that are not allowable in determining taxable prafits 20 16
Effect of change intax rates 0.6 0.3
Expenses for which no deferred tax asset is recognised {0.1) 10.5)
Different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in ather jurisdictions 4.7 38
CFC exemption (4.4) 1.8
Current and deferred tax nn intra-Group dividends 0.8 12
Innovanon incentives {22) 0.8
Adjustments in respect of prior years {1.4) {4.0)
QOther . L 0.1 _04
Tax expense for the year T } 15.8 199

within the tax reconciliation the effect of the change in the UK tax rate s a non-recurring item and further deferred tax liabilities for the vathholding tax thatwil
be ncurred on future dividends from our Canadian subsidiaries may not arise annually. The differences attributable o the UK and US innovation incertives and
higher overseas tax rates are expected to recur in the furure. The benefit of the CFC exemption is anticipated to reduce to between £2.5m and £35m in 2022.
Several factors including the level of profits in oversaas jurisdictions, changes to the UK and overseas tax rates, the possible implementation of internationat
tax reforms in 2023-2025, and other factors not under our control will affact the size of these differences m future.

The Group is subject to enquires and audits by tax authorities in the jurisdictions in which it operates. The Group considers material tax uncertainties on ther
individual merits i accordance with IFRIC 23 and, where appropriate, makes provisions in respect of the potential tax habilities or restriction of tax benefits that
ray arise. As at 31 December 2021, the Group holds provisions for such potential 1ssues of £1.1m (2020: £3.4m). These provisions relate to muluple issues,
across the jurisdictions inwhich the Group operates. As the outcome relating to tax matters can be uncertan until a conclusion is reached with the relevant

tax authority or through a legal process, the amount ulnmately paid may differ materially from the amount accrued
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11 Dividends

Amaunts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year

2021 2020
. £m _ £T

Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 of 41 5p per share, addittonal interim dividend of 39 2p per share {equivalent

to the postponed final dividend for the year ended 31 Decermnber 2019) 29,5 278

intenm dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 of 16.2p (2020: 15.4p) per share L 1.6 09

- L L 41.1 387 _

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 of nil (2020: 41.5p) per share - 295

Under the terms and conditions set out in the announcement dated 16 August 2021 (relating to the recemmended cash acquisiion of Ultra by Cobham Ulzra
Acquisitons Limited), no final dividend will be pad to shareholders while the acquisition remains conditional on obtaining certain clearances, including UK

Government approval. Consequently, the total full year dradend 1s unchanged from the intenm dividend of 16 2p (2020: 56 9p full year)

12 Earnings per share

2021 2020
pence pernice
Basic underlying (see below) ST T o 135.7 1306
Cilted underlying (ses below) o T 382 1303
Basic— T T - 93.8 11 85
Diluted o - o 93.5 1_1—7?_
The calculation of the basic, underhang and diluted earnings per share 1s based on the following data:
2021 7024
_ Em ) £m
Earnings T
Earnings for the purposes of basic earnings per share being profit for the year 66.9 838
Oﬁaeﬁging earnings T o N o
Profit for the penod 66.9 838
Amornsation of ntangibles ansing on acquistion (et of tax) 7.5 9.4
Acquisition and disposal-related costs (net of tax) 7.5 0.7
Loss/(gain) on fair value movements of derivatives {net of tax) 6.3 {2.8)
Loss/lgain} on disposals, per note 30 inet of tax) 23 {1.7)
Significant legal charges and expenses (net of tax} B 6.1 30
Earnings for the purposes of underlying e-a-;hings pershare o N 96.6 928
Recondcihation of tax charge for the year to underlying tax charge as used in the deterrmination of undarkying earnings per share:
2021 2020
£m £
:I'a-;ﬁhérge for the year iee nase 12) o T 15.8 199
Amortisation ofintangibles arising on acquision 24 2.8
Acquisiton and disposal-related costs 0.3 04
Loss/tgain) on fair value movemenits of derivatives 15 (0.6)
Loss/{gain) an disposals (net of restructunng costs in 2020) - .M
Significant legal charges and expenses - - 03
Tax charge for the purposes of underlying earnings pzf share ) 20.0 217
2021 2020
Em £m
Underlying profit before tax :5&; rote 2; o h 116.6 1145
Tax rate applied for the purposes of underlying earnings per share 17.1% 18.0%

The adjustments ta profit are explained in note 2.
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The weighted average numker of shares 1S given below:
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2021 2020
Number Murier
of shares of shares
Number of shares used for basic éarmn-g;per shara 71234315 71,026,681
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares - share options 244,736 179,001
Number of shares used for fully diluted earnings per share T 71479051 71205682
During 2021, the Company purchased and cancelled nil (2020 nil} shares See note 26
13 Goodwill
2021 2020
£m fa]
Cost o
A1 january 410.8 4243
Exchange differences 25 7.9)
Disposals - 2.9
Reclassified (toy/from held for sale tsee nore 33 {2.8 33
At 31 December o 410.9 4108
Accumulated impairment losses
At 1 January (47.8) 1584
Disposals - 3.9
Exchange differences [(1X:4] 1.7
E\t3‘l December T (48.2) h 147.8)
Carrying amount at 31 December 362.7 363.0

The Group's SBUs, which represent CGU groupings, are: PCS, Energy, Forensic Technology, [ntelligence & Communications and Mariame These representthe
lowest level at which the goodwill is morutored for internal management purposes. Goodwill s allocated to CGU groupings as set out below:

PCS
Energy
Forensic Technology
Inteligence & Communications
Maritime

Total - Ultra Electronics

2021 022

Pre-tax Pre-tax
discount rate d scount fare 2021 2020
% k. £m £m
10.6-10.7 102-112 30.2 325
10.6-10.7 10.2-11 2 18.0 179
10.7 0.y 26.1 256
10.6-10.7 10.2-11.2 179.2 V32
10.6-10.9 102-11.2 109.2 108.8
362.7 2630
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13 Goodwill continued

Goodwill 1s imtialty allocated, in the year a business 1s acquired, to the CGU group expected to benefit from the acquisiton. Sabsequent adjustments are made
to this allocation to the extent that operations, o which goodwill relates, are transferred berween CGU groups. The size of a CGU group vanes but is never
larger than a reportable nperating segmenr

The raecoverable amounts of CGiJs are determined from value-in-use calculations, In determinmg the value-in-use for each CGU, the Group prepares cash
flows derived from the most recent financial budgets and strategic plans, representing the best estimate of future per formance. These plans, which have
been approved by the Board, include detalled finanaal forecasts and market analysis cavering the expected development of each CGU aver the next five years
The cash flows into perpetuity are also included and assume a growth rate of 2.0% per annum {2020 2.0%).

The key assurmnpuions used in the value-in-use calculations are those regarding the discount rate, future revenves, growth rates, farecast gross margins,
underlying operating profit” and underlying operating cash conversion™ Managerment estmates the discount rate using pre-tax rates that reflect current
market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the Group, being the Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) The WACC 1s then risk-
adjusted to reflect risks specific to each business. The pre-tax discaunt rate used during 2021 was UK 10.6% (2020: 10.2%), Canada’ 10 7% (2020: 10.7%), USA:
10.7% (2020: 11.2%) and Austraba: 10.5% (2020 11.2%) Future revenues are based on orders already recelved, oppartunines that are known and expected ar
the nme of setting the budget and sirategic plans and future growth rares. Budget and strategic plan growth rates are based on a combination of histencal
experience, avallable Government spending data, and management and industry expectations of the growth rates that are expected to apply in the major
markets in which each CGU aperates, and included consideration of Covid-19 impacts during the budget review cycle, Farecast gross margins reflect past
experience, factor in expected efficiencies to counter inflationary pressures, and also reflect ikely margins achievable in the period. Longer-term growth rates,
applied intc perpetuity at the end of the strategic planning period, are set at 2.0% (2020: 2.0%). Ultra considers the long-term growth rate to be appropriate
for the sectors in which it operates, taking into consideration greater defence spending uncertamnty and the possibie iImpacts of cimate change.

wWithin each of the strategic plans, a number of assumptions are made about business growth opportunities, contract wins, product development and availlable

markets. A key assumption is that there will be continued demand for Ultra’s products and expertise from a number of US Government agendies and prime
contractors during tha strategic plan period, and hence continued prafit and cash generation

Sensitivity analysis, which included consideration of the potential iImpacts of Brexit, has been perfarmed on the value-in-use calculations to:
(N reduce the post-2026 growth assumgtion from 2 0% ta nil,

{n)ncrease the discount rares by 3 0%;

{1y apply a 20% reduchion to forecast aperating profits in each year of the modelied cash inflows; and

{iviconsider specific market factors as noted above

The value-in-use calculations exceed the CGU carrying vaiues after applying sensitivity analysis.

* Sesnotel?
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14 Other intangible assets

internally
Acquired intangibles generated
T capitalised Software,
Cusluner Incellectual Protitin Other  development patents and
relatignships property order hook acquired costs trademarks Total
£m £m £m = £m £m £m e £m

Cost o S
AL T January 2020 2024 1012 2584 7.6 299 436 4141
Foreign exchange differences (34 (18 (04 {01} (0.4 Q7N (6.8)
Additions - - - - 0.2 85 87
Reclassified fram held far sale - - - - 03 - 03
Reclassification from tangible fixed assats wee nore *m - - - - - o4 04
Dlsposalsﬁ - - - - (04 2N {2.5]
At 1 January 2021 o 199.0 %94 290 7.5 296 497 414.2
Foreign exchange differences 12 06 .1 - 0.2 0.2 21
Additions - - - - - 25 25
Reciassification from tangible fixed assers rsee note "5 - - - - - 16 1.6
Disposals 6.0 (10 285) - 0.9 10.6) (37.4)
At 31 December 2021 - 1942 99.0 - 75 289 “534 383.0
Accumuiated amartisation
At1 january 2020 {1558} (79.7) (294) (5.6) (22.3) 128.6) (321.4)
Foreign exchange differences 28 1) 04 0.1 04 05 58
Reclassified from held for sale - - - - 0.2 - 0.2}
Disposals - - - - 0.4 20 24
Charge (7.3) 4.7 - 086 (.4 (4.6) (18 8)
At 1 January 2021 o {160.3) (828) {29.0) (6.1) {23.1) (307 (332.0)
Foreign exchange differences 0.8} (0.6} 01 - {0.2) 0.1 {16)
Disposals 6.0 10 285 - - a5 364
Reclassified from tangible fixed assers (sae nota 15, - - - - - (0.8} ()
Charge (5.4 “43) - 0y (1.2) 54 e
At 31 December 2021 T e0s) @87 - 621 (245 36.2) (314.1)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2021 337 12.3 - 13 4.4 17.2 68.9
At 31 December 2020 387 16.6 - 1.4 65 19.0 822

Ofthe £33 7m net hook value within customer relationships, £18.9m related to Herley and £8 2m related to Forensic Technology, with estimated weighted
average remaining lives of 9.1 years and 6.5 years respectively Ofthe £12.3m net hook value within intellectual property, £6.4m related to Herley and £3.4m
related to Forensic Technology, with estmated weighted average remaining Iwves of 4.0 years and 5.0 years respectively. OF the £17.2m (2020: £19.0m) net book
value withun the software, patents and trademarks category, £0.1m (2020 F0.1m} related to patents and trademarks. The amortisation of intangible assets
charge s included within administrative expenses. Intangible assets, other than goadwill, are amortised over their estimated useful lives, typically as follows:

Customer relationships 5to21 -years
[ntellectual property o o 5to 10 years
Prafit in acquired order beok o o ' 110 3 years
Other écquired T i 1105 yeg
@e\opment COsts S _" 2t 10years

Other Intangibles: L )
Software 3o Syears
Patents and trademarks 10to 20 years
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15 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings

Short Plant and Assets under
Freehold leasehold machinery  censtruction Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost T o
AT January 2020 427 245 965 - 164.1
Foreign exchange differences 0.6) 04 ("4 - 24
Additions 06 1.3 115 - 124
Disposals on - ('3.2} - {133}
Reclassified ta software i.ee note an - - {0.4) - 04
Reclassified from held for sale - C1 15 - 16
At 1 January 2021 S 426 255 949 - 163.0
Foreign exchange differences 03 0.1 06 - 10
Additions 30 2.1 123 48 2272
Dispasals (5.0) (1.5) {18) - (83)
Reclassified to software rsee more 143 - - {18 - (16)
Reclassfications 4 - 0.4 - -
At31December2021 N 405 262 1043 48 1763
Accumulated depreciation
AL 1 January 2020 @8 n2d (717 - 59.9)
Foreign exchange differences 02 04 03 - 14
Charge (1.1} (1.9} (74 - {104)
Disposals 0.1 - 129 - 130
Reclassified from held for sale - - Q.5) - (0.5)
At1January 2021 - } (10.6) {19.9) (65.9) L (@8
Foreign exchange differences 0.2 on 0.4 - (e}
Charge (1.0) (20 (7.9 - (109
Disposals 0.5 16 22 - 43
Reclassified to software isee note 12 - - 08 - 08
Reclassifications 0.7 07 - - -
At 31 December 2021 (12.0) (19.7) 71.2) - T o2y
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2021 285 6.5 336 4.8 734
AL 31 Decernber 2020 320 56 280 - £66.6

Freehold land amounting to £4.1m (2020: £7.4m) has not been depreciated.
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The Group's leases relate 1o raal estate, vehicles, printers & copiers, and other equipment. The Group therefore splits the leases between the following

categories: land and buildings, and plant and machinery.

117

Land and Plant and
Buildings machinery Total
£m m £m

Cost - o
At 1 January 2020 4312 14 44.6
Foreign exchange differences (1.0} - (o
Additions 61 02 63
Disposals (13t - (1.3}
Reclassified from held for sale B 14 - 14
At1January2021 T - 48.4 16 500
Foreign exchange differences 03 - 03
Additions M7 02 119
Impairment 0.7) - 0.7
Disposals (2.2} (4R D] (2.3)
At31December2021 o o 575 17 592
Accurmnulated depreciation
AL 1 January 2020 (7.9} 0.6) (35)
Foreign exchange differences 03 - 03
Charge (8.0} (0.5) (8.5)
Disposals 0.5 o1 08&
Reclassified from held for‘s_a_le 103) - 03
At 1 January 2021 - T ' (15.4) RIS (16.4)
Foreign exchange differences 0.1 - 0.
Charge 76 04} (8.0)
Msposals T 01 1.2
At 31 December 2021 {22.0) {1.3} (23.3)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2021 355 0.4 359
At 31 December 2020 330 06 336

As permitted under IFRS 16 paragraph &, the Group has elected not to recogrise leases that are less than one year inlength or are for a low-value asset {<£3.5k)
an the balance sheet These leases are expensed on a straight-line basis as short-term leases or leases of low-value assets. This expense is induded in note 6.
The finance charge on leases s included in note 9. Cash outflow n relation to leases s included in note 27. Some of our property that we lease 1s sublet to

external parties; sublet income received on any of the above leases ts also included in note 6
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17 Inventories

2021 2520

£m £m
Raw marer\awi—s a-r:nd consumables - ST EGI o 58.3
Work in progress 291 350
Finished goods and goods for resale 7.4 103
o o 92,9 1036

The amount of any write-down of inventary recogrised as an expense in the year was £1 6m (2020: £3 1m).

18 Over-time contract balances

Amounts recevabie from over-ime contract customers relates to work performed and revenue recognised on agreed conracts prior to the customer
being invoiced,

The movementin the year of amaunts recervable from over-time contract customers was as foilows:

Total

n Em

As at 1 January 2020 - T o 90.7
Foreign exchange differences (1.5
Revenue earmed net of billings 65)
Other (3.3)

Asat1 J;nuary 2021 - o 794
Faoreign exchange differences (0.1}

Revenue earned net of billings o 79
As at 31 December 2021 S o 812

Other movements relate to adjustments fo revenue recognised in a prior period.

Amounts payable ta over-time contract customers relate to payments received from custorners in relation 1o the contract prior to the work being completed
and the revenue recognised.

The movement In the year of amounts payable to over-ime contract customers was as follows:

Total

N ) L £m

As at 1 January 2020 T ©73)
Foreign exchange differences 05
Cash advances net of revenuie recognised (124}
Other 05
Reclassified to deferred income 23
Asat1january2021 S T (76.4)
Fareign exchange differences (0.4)
Cash advances net of revenue recognised (5.1}
Other 1.8
Reclassified to held for sale o o 1.2
As at 31 December 2021 ' T h ' 78.9)

Within the opening 2021 balance of £76.4m (2020: £67.3m), £57 0m was utiised during the periad (2020: £59.7m)
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2021 2070
S ) £m £m
Non-current T B
Amounts recervable from over-fime conact CUSLOmers (es note 18) 135 12.9
T o 13.5 129
2021 2070
Em Fm
Current T -
Trade recevables 106.5 1015
Loss allowance against recawables (2.0) (1.4
Het trade recaivables o T 104.5 1001
Amounts recavable from over-ime contract CLUSTOMers ses note 18 737 66.5
Other receivables 36 6.2
Prepayments 186 106
Accrued mcome 7.2 51
T 2076 185
Trade recevables do not carry nterest. The average credit period on sale of goodsis 44 days (2020%. 31 days).
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables appraximates to therr fair valua.
The ageing profile of trade recevables was as follows:
Related Relared
2021 loss allowance Total 2070 loss aliowance Tozel
£m £m £m o Frr £m £r-
Current T 831.2 - 812 783 - 783
1 to 3 months 184 - 184 202 - 202
4to & months 3.2 - 3.2 1. - 1.1
7 to 9 months 1.5 {0.1) 14 04 [(ORD) 03
Over 9months 22 {1.9) 0.3 15 1.3 G2
Total o 106.5 (2.0) 1045 1015 (1.4 1001

The Group makes 10ss allowances aganst 1S trade recewables and amounts recevable from over-ime contract customers based on expected credit losses at
an amount eqgual to ifetime expected credit losses based on prior experience and relevant forward-leoking factors.

The Group recogrises 4 foss allowance of 100% against all receivabies over a year past due. For amounts receivable from over-ime contract customers, accrued

ncome, and other racewables the expected credit loss allowance s immatenal.

Mavermnent in the loss allowance for trade receivables was as follows:

Current
Balance at beginming of year

Increase 1n loss allowance for trade recewvables regarded as potentally uncollectable

Decrease In loss allowance for trade receivables recovered during the year or pravision utiised

Balance at end of year

2021 2020
Em £
1.4 18
11 04

{0.5) (0.8)
20 1.4

~  The averzge Jredit per od on sales of goeds for 2540 nas peen restated on 3 consistent basis T the currentyear, sased 90 5 504 Monta olling caicaizbon
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19 Trade and other receivables continued
Credit risk

Credit risk 1s defined as the nsk that a counterparty will default on irs contractual obligatons resulting in financial loss to the Group. The Group mitigates this

risk of financial 1ass by only dealing vath creditworthy counterparties.

While the Group has elements of roncentration of credit risk, with exposure to a number of large counterparties and customers, the customers are mainly
Government agencies or multinational organisations with whorm the Group has long-term business relationships The Group's assessment is that credit risk in
relation ro five-eyes’ Government customers and leading defence primes or subcontractors to Governments is extremely low as the probability of default 15 not

significant, for example the non-current partion of amounts receivable from over-time contract custamers, The provision for expected creditfosses is

immatenal in respect of receivables from these customers.

Ongoing credit evaluation s performed on the financial condition of accounts recervable and, when apgpropriate, action 1s faken 1o minimisa the Group's credit risk.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements (see note 22), net of any allowances for losses, represents the Group’s maximum

exposure to creditrsk.

20 Trade and other payables

2021 020
£m T
Amourts included in current liabilities: o T
Trade payables 316 44.4
Ameounts due 1o over-ime Cantract CUStOMers (see note '8 711 682
Other payables 15.4 199
Accruals 71.8 46,2
Deferredincome ~ 25.8 206
) B 2157 1993
Amounts inciuded in non-current liabilities;
AMounts due to over-tme Contract CUSTOmEers (see nore *8) 7.8 82
Deferred income 36 38
o ) 14 120
The Directars consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximartes to therr far value
21 Borrowings
2021 2078
£m £m
Amounts due in less than one year: — B o
Bank loans and overdrafts 0.1 303
Government [oans see note 73) 3.7 -
Lease lability 83 8.0
’ o RETY 383
Amounts due after more than one year: -
Bank loans 193 190
Unsecured ioan notes 101.4 101.0
Government 1oans (see nate 231 13.6 122
Lease habiity 324 29.7
e T B 166.7 1619
Total borrd;{ngs: T o
Amaunt due for settlement within 12 maonths 121 333
Armount due for settlement after 12 months 166.7 1619
- 1783 2002

The Government loans are statad at fair value, bank loans, unsecured loan notes and overdrafts are stated at amortised cost.

Included in total barrovwangs are syndication costs of £0 9 (2020: £1.4m), which are amarused over the duration of the loan. The Group's main financial
covenants are that the ratio of net consolidated total borrowings to adjusted EBITDA is less than three, and that the net interest payable on borrowings is

covered at least three tirmes by underlying operating profit For covenant purpases, net debt does not include pension obligations and allimpacts of [FRS 16 are
removed from adjusted EBITDA and net debt, and adjusted EBITDA is amended to remove the EBITDA generated by businesses up to the date of their dispesal,
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22 Financial instruments and financial risk management

Derivative financial instruments
Exposure to currency and interest rate risks anses in the normal course of the Group's business. Derivative finanaal instruments are used to hedge exposure
to all significant fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and interest rates

Fair value measurements recognised in the balance sheet

The fallowing table provides an analysis of financial nstri:ments that are measured subsequent to nitial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1to 3

based on the degree to which the fair value s abservable:

+Level 1 fair value measurements are those denved from guoted {unadjusted) active markets for identical assets or labilines

+ Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are okservable for the asset or lability,
erther directly (i.2. as prices) or Indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

+Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techriques that iInclude inputs for the asset or hability that are not based an observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

All of Ultra's financial instruments have been assessed as Level 2 or Level 3 Further details on the Canadian Government Strateqic Aerospace and Defence
Irvtiative (SADI foan, which is classified as Level 3, are set outin note 23

2021
Level 3 Level 2 Total
£m £m £m
Financial assetsv:étﬂfair value ’ o -
Fareign exchange derivative financial instruments (through profit and {oss) - 24 2.4
Total '___ o - 24 24
Financiai liabilities at fair value
Government l0ans see naie 23 173 - 173
Foreign exchange derrvative financial instruments (through profit and loss) - 26 26
Total S ) 173 26 T
2020
Lavel 3 Level 2 Total
£ £m Er
Financial assets at fair value o T T
Foreign exchange dervative financial instruments (through profit and loss) - 79 9
Total o T T 79 79
Financial liabilities at fair value
Government [aans zee note 23 122 - 122
Foreign exchange derivative financial instruments {through profit and loss) - 03 03
Total ' ' T 122 23 125
Current {liabilities)/assets Non-current (liabilities)/assets
2021 o 2021 020
7 Em_ . . tm £m L £m
Financial (liakilities)/assets carried at fair value through p::a?or loss )
Foraign exchange currency liabllities ) (1.1} 0.2) (_1 5) Q.1

Foreign exchange currency assets 14 58 1.0 21
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22 Financial instruments and financial risk management continued

Financial assets
The financial assets of the Group were as fallows:

2021 2020

tm Em
Cash and cash equivalents o o 138.8 1144
Currency derivatives used for hedging 24 79
Trade receivables 104.5 1001
Accriued income 76 5.1
The Directors considar that the carrying amount for all financial assets approximates to their far valle
Financial liahilities
The financial habiities ofthe Group were as follows:

2021 2029

£im Em
Currency derivatives used for hedging ' i ‘ 26 03
Bank loans and overdrafts 19.3 493
Unsecured loan notes 101.4 101.0
Government loans 17.3 122
Lease labifities 40.7 377
Trade payables 316 444
Deferred consideration 23 23
Accruals and other payables 63.2 383

The Directors consider that the carrying amount for all financial liabiities, excepr for the unsecured loan notes, approximazes to their fair value. For the
unsecured ioan notes, the derived fair value has been determined as £107.4m (2020: £110.6m} which compares with the carrying amount of £101 4m (2020:
£101.0m), The fair value of the unsecured loan notes has been derved from indicative quotes for borrowings of similar amounts, terms and maturity periods
and s classified as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy

Liguidity risk

The Group maintains committed banking faciites with core banks to provide prudent levels of borrowing headroom.

The Group's banking facilities are provided by a small group of bariks, led by The Royal Bank of Scotland. On 7 Novermnber 2017, the Group obtained a

£300m revolving credit facility, £50m has an expiry date of November 2023 and £250m has an expiry date of November 2024. The faclity incorporates an
uncommitted £150m accordion. The fadility is denaminated in Sterling, US Dollars, Canadian Dollars, Austrahan Dollars and Euros and 1s used for balance
sheet and operational needs.

All bank kaans are unsecured. Interestwas predominantly charged at 0.65% (2020 0.65%) over base or contracted rate. At 31 December 2021, the Group
had available £280m (2020: £280m) of undrawn, committed revolng credit facilities.

At 31 December 2021, the Group also has unsecured loan notes i issue to Prudential [nvestment Management Inc (Pricea) of £50.0m with an expiry date
of October 2025 (2020 £50m), US$40m with an expiry date of January 2026 and US$30m with an expiry date of January 2079 (2020: US$70m;.

The Group 1s strangly cash-generative and the funds generated by operating companies are managed regionally to fund short-term local working capital
requirements, Where additional funding is required, this 15 praovided centrally through the Group's commisted banking facilities.

The Group, through its Canadian subsidianes Ultra Electronics Tactical Cornmunication Systems (TCS) and Ultra Electronics Maritime Sysiems {UEMS),
participates in Canadian programmes that provide Gavernment support in relation to the development of certain of its products, Further disclosure is provided
nnote 23

The Group has access to an overdraft faality of up to £5m net, £75m gross, across its UK GBP bank accounts; the balances across these accounts are notionally
pooled. Cash and averdrafts are only presented nat when there s a right and intention to settle on a net basis, otherwise overdrafts are presented as current
liabilities. No amounts have been prasented natin the current or priar year, The Group also has a separate US$2.5m overdraft allocated against one account.
The averdrafts are available for short-term working capital requirements

Credit risk

The credit risk on liquid funds and dervative financal nstruments 15 considered 1o be limited because the counterparties are banks with Investment-grade
ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies. The credit risk on Government loans, which are both from the Canadian Federal Government, is
considered to be negligible. Cash 1s deposited acrass a number of different investment-grade banks in the main terrtories inwhich the Group s based,



Wtra &rnual Report /l 2 3
31 Financial statements and Accounts 20021

Afef O 2 T

22 Financial instruments and financial risk management continued
The table telow sets out the credit ratings of the counterparties for the Group’s derivative assets and cash and cash equivalents:

Derivative Cash and cash
assets equivalents
£m £m
2021 o o
AA- - 423
At 2.0 47.6
A 04 43.9
Total 24 138.8
The following table detalls the Group's remaining undiscounted contractual maturity for its financial habiites:
Within 1 year 110 2 years 2to S years Over 5 years Total
£m £m £m £m £m
021 ‘
Barik laans and overdrafrs 0.9 212 - - 222
Unsecured loan notes 3.8 3.8 g79 243 119.8
Government loans 3.7 4.7 48 4.1 17.3
Trade payables 31.6 - - - 31.6
Currency dervatives used for hedging - cash outflow 35.0 303 214 - 257
Currency derivatives used for hedging — cash (inflow) (33.9) {29.5) (20.8) - (34.2)
Deferred consideration - 23 - - 23
Accruals and other payables 63.2 - - - 63.2
Within 1 year 1to 2years Zto5years QverSyears Total
£Em £m £m £m £m
e T e S
Bank loans and overdrafts 304 0.1 205 - 511
Unsecured loan notes 38 38 509 54.4 1229
Government loans 34 0.1 50 37 12.2
Trade payables 44.4 - - - 44.4
Currency dervatives used for hedging - cash outflow 111 38 05 - 154
Currency derivatives used for hedging - cash (inflow) (10.9) (37 05) - (151
Deferred consideration - - 23 - 23
Accruals and other payables 383 - - - 383

The contractual maturity of currency derivatives stated above 1s the gross outflow relating to the derivative habilities, per the requirements of IFRS 7 paragraph
B110. To enable readers to understand the overall position, the gross cash inflow assooiated with these labilities 1s also presented.

The following table detalls the Group’s contractual undiscounted cash inflows/(outflows) for its lease liahiiities and lease subletting:

Within 1 year 1to 2years 2toSyears Over 5 years Total
£m £m £m £m £fm
2021 ) ' o
l.ease lliabilines 9.7 (9.2) {184) (7.3) {44.8)
Subtetting iIncome 0.3 - - - 0.3
2020
Lease liahiities 19.6) [€39)] {17.8) (7.2 142.4)

Sublettung incame 05 02 - - a7
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22 Financial instruments and financial risk management continued

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concerns while maxirmising the return to stakeholders
through the opomisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Group consis=s of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 21,
cash and cash aqulva\ems and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising 1ssued capital, reserves and retained earnings as disdased in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

Currency risk

The Group uses currency derivatives In the form of forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency transaction nisk. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily US Dollars and Canadian Dailars The majority of the expasure arises from USD denaminated revenue from the UK PCS business, primarily in
the aerospace sector

AL31 December 2027, the net fair value of the Group's currency dervatives is estimated to be a labilicy of approsimately £0.2m (2620: asset £7.6m), comprsing
£2.4m assets (2020; £7.9m) and £2.6m liabilities (2020 £0.3m} The loss on dernvative financial instrurnents included in the Group's consalidated income
staternent for the pericd was £78m (2020 gain £3.4m).

The net notional or net contracted amounts of fareign currency-related forward sales contracts, dassified by year of matunty are shown below.
g ¥ Yy Y

Weightad Not Between
average exceeding 1year and Qver
hedge 1year 5years 5 years Totai
7 Vrate Em £m £m _ £m
2021
Sell US Doliars, purchase GBP ) 1.35 746 1193 - 193.9
Other currencies n/a 1_4,5 {0.6) - 139
Total 891 118.7 - 207.8
2020
Sell US Doliars, purchase GBP ) 1.29 928 364 1292
Other currencies o n/a - {1.2) {1.4) o __(2_6)_
Total 916 350 - 126.6

The notional amountis the Sterling equivalent of the net currency amount purchased or sold by Jltra. Ultra s net seller of USD.

Net investment hedges

Of the Group's US denominated borrowings of $70m, $19m (2020 $29m) was designated as a net investment hedge at the year end The net value of the
external LS borrowings does not exceed the net investments in the US companies and meets the canditions required to qualify as an effective hedge

The hedging Iass taken to ather camprehensive Income In the year was £0.3m (2020 £1.5m gan). The total cumulative amount recorded within the translation
reserve at 31 December 2027 1n respect of ongoing net investment hedges 1s £(55.3)m (2020; £{55.0)m). Na hedge ineffectiveness was recognised in the
ncome statement.

Interest rate risk
The Group has US$70m of fixed rate debt with Pricoa at an interest rate of 4.54%, which is due for repayment in January 2026 and January 2029, and £50m of
fixed rate debtwith Pricoa at an interest rate of 2.87%, which is due for repayment in October 2025. The revolving credit facility 1s at floating rates of interest.

The effective mterest rates and repricing dates of the Group's financial assets and liabilities were as follows:

Effective Total  Within 1 year 1to2years 2to 5 years 5+years

interest rate _Em £m £m £m Em
2021 o N
Cash and cash equivalents net of bank overdrafis 0.13% 138.7 1387 - - -
Loan notes 3.71% 101.4 - - 79.5 219
Unsecured bank loans 0.70% 19.3 - 19.3 -
Government loans 4.43% 17.3 37 4.6 4.9 4.1
2020 o o o
Cash and cash equivalents net of bank overdrafts 0.27% 84.1 2341 - - -
Loan notes 371% 101.0 - - 50.0 510
Unsecured bank loans 067% 19.0 - - 190 -
Governmentleans 4.43% 12.2 34 0.1 5.0 37

Bank sverdrafts arz netted with casn and casn equivalents oecause they forr annreqial parr of the Gro.p s casn Management w thin rhe ¢ash cochng arrangemenrs, the nterest expes.Jre s un the
ret alance
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22 Financial instruments and financial risk management continued

Market risk sensitivity analysis

Interest rate risk

During 2021, the Group's net borrowings were predominantly at fixad interest rates. The Group has estimated the impact on the iIncome statemant of a 1%
increase In market Interest rates, from the average rates apphcable during 2021, There i1s no sigrificant difference between the amaunt recharged to the income
statement and equity in the year

The Group has clasely monitored the market and the output from the various Industry working groups managing the transition to newy benchmark interest
rates, during December 2021, the terms of the revalving credit facility were amended to replace UK LIBOR with SONIA and US LIBOR with SOFR, the impact
of this change on the Group is neghgible

Profit before tax

£m
2021 1% change
Interest rate sensitivity B (0.2)
2020

Interest rate sensitivity 07

Currency risks

The Group's main sensitivity Is to changes in the exchange rate between the US Dollar and pound Sterling. The Group has estimated the impact on the income
staternent and equity of a 10% and 25% strengthening or weakening of average actuaf and transactional currency rates applicable during the year anda 10%
and 25% change m the foreign exchange rates applicable for valuing foreign exchange derivative instruments. The analysis covers only financiat assets and
liabilities held at the balance sheet date and 1s made an the basis the net investment hedge remains effective,

10% weakening of GBP 10% strengthening of GBP 25% weakening of GBP ) 25% strengthening of GBP
Profit before Profit hefore Profit before Profit before

tax Equity tax Equity tax Equity tax Equity

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m - _El
2021 B B o o
Transaction 89 - 8.9 - 26.6 - {26.6) -
P&L translation 95 (5.2) (9.5) 5.2 238 {12.9) {23.8) 12.9
Foreign exchange derivatives (22,5} - 17.9 - (67.8} - 395 -
Total foreign exchange - 1) 52 ©.5) 52 (174 (12.9) (10.9) 129
2020*
Transaction 118 - 1118y - 353 - {353) -
P&L translanon 82 50 9.2) 5.1 230 [12.8) (230 12.8
Fareign exchange derivatives 33) - 166 - (25.1) - 27.4 -
Total foreign exchange 177 51} @4 e 332 (12.8) E09) 128

= The 2820 equty colur-n has been reststed 1o reflens that the only mpact tc equity anses frem te net nvestent nedges

23 Government grants and loans

The Group, through its Canadian subsidiaries Ultra Electronics Tactical Communication Systems (TCS) and Ultra Electronics Mantime Systems (UEMS),
participates In three Canadian programmes that provide Government support in relation to the development of certain of its products.

Under the Strateqic Aerospace and Defence Initiative (SADI), the Canadian Federal Government pravides a long-term funding arrangement in respect

of certain eligible research and development project costs. Under this arrangement:

+C$31 8mwas pravided to TCS and will be rembursed over the penod fo 2032,

+Up to C$8m will be provided to UEMS up to the end of 2023 and reimbursed over the geriod 2G24 to 2039 The UEMS grogramme was extended by three
years during 2021. The benefit of the below-market rate of interest has been calculated as the differance between the proceeds received and the fair value
of the loans and has been credited to profit in the year. As at 31 December 2021, C$5.4m {2020: C34 0m) had been received by UEMS.

The fair value of the loans has been calculated using a market interest rate for a similar iNstrurnent. The valuation used the discounted cash flow method

and considerad the value of expected payments using a risk-adjusted discount rate; the discount rate used was 18% for TCS and 15% for UEMS.

+For TCS, the amount repayable depends on future revenue growth of the TCS business to 2032 and will be up to x1.5 of the amounts recerved up to a
maximum of C3477m (£27 8m). C55.4m (£3.2m} has been repaid to date, with 3 further C36.3m (£3.7m) repaid in earty 2022.

+For UEMS, the amount repayable depends on future revenue growth af the UEMS business from 2024 ta 2039 and will be between x1.0 and x1.5 of the
amounts received up until the end of the funding period
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23 Government grants and loans continued

The significant unobservable Inputs for this Level 3 finencial instrument are: (1ywhether, and by how much, TCS/UEMS revenues wili grow duning the penods

0 203272039, and (i} the specific years in which revenue will grow. There are significant inherent uncertainties in management's abiiity to forecast revenue over
future years, particularly in fater years. For TCS., if the compound annual revenue growth rate over the period from 2021 to 2032 was 3.0% higher than assiimerd
In the valuation model, then the net present value of the liability a5 at 31 Deceinber 202 | would increase by C$0.4m (£0.2m). If the forecast revenue growth
occurs inearlier years than envisaged, then the net present value of the liability will increase; if the revenue growth increases were to occur one year earlier

than assumed in the valuation model, then the net present value of the lability as at 31 December 2021 would increase by C34.0m (£2.5m)

TCS has also benefitad from an Investissement Quebec (1Q) research and development programme, whereby 1Q shared in the cost of research and
development of certain specified new products. Under this arrangement, fram 2010 to 2014, [Q financed C$& 8m of eligikle costs associated with these
specified projects. The funding was repayable under a royalty arrangement over the period of 2014 to 2621, based on sales of specified products A final
payment of C$2.1m was paid during the year Royalties repaid have also been included as costs in the income statement 1n the peniod where they have

been incurred.

Amounts recagnised in the finanaal statements in respect of these programmes were as follows:

20621 700
£&m Em
Fair vélue of loan brought forward - ) 122 a5
Contributions 0.3 -
Nat change in fair value to profic and loss (FYTPL) 1ee note 4.7 29
Foreign exchange differences 0.1 02
Fair value of loan carried forward - - 17.3 12.2
Government grants credited to profitin the year
2021 2020
£m £
Canadian Government B 0.5 nz

The amount recorded In other comprehensive income (FVTOCH), relating to changes in credit risk, was £l {2020: Znil).

24 Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax habiiues and assets recagnised by the Group and rmavements thereon during the current and prior reparting period.

Accelarated Employee Retirement
tax shareoptions benefit

depreciation” costs Derivatives obligations Goodwill Other Total

£m £m Em £m Em £m £m

AU January 2020 T 13 © 7 125 {129 101 25
{Charge)/credit to iIncome 0.4} 01 10.6) (1.8) (3.5) 2N 2.3)
Credtt to other comprehensive income - - - 29 - - 25
Credit direct to equity - 0.2 - - - - 02
Exchange differences 04 - - - 03 0.2} 05
Effect of change In tax rates 0.2) ol 0nn 04 - (0.4} 0.2
At 1 January 2021 7.0) 17 T a4 14.0 16.1) 74 (1.4)
{Charge)/credit to incorme (0.4 0.6 15 (19 3.5 13 (1.8
Charge to other comprehensive Income - - - (3.5} - - (3.5
Credit diract to equity - na - - - - 08
Exchange differences 0.2 - - - 0.1 - 0.3)
Effect of change in tax rates 07 - - 0.3 - 0.2 0.6)
Reclassifications 09 - - - 10.2) 0.7 -
At 31 December 2021 7.4 31 0.1 29 (19.9) 84 (6.8)
2021 21120

£m £m

Non-current assets B N 14.7 1368
Non-current iabilities (21.5) (15.0)
(6.8) 4

© Relates to property, plant and eqaipment and Rtangicle assets
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24 Deferred tax continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Group has a legaily enforceable right to da so.

All deferrad tax assets and liabilivies are presented as non-current in accordance with 1AS 1 56, There are deferred tax assets attributable to current items
of £12.8m (2020 £9.5m) and deferred tax liabilities attributable to current iterns of £1.0m (2020 £1 7m)

Unrecogniscd deferred Lax dssets
Deferred tax assets, in excess of offsetung deferred tax habilities, are recognised for loss carry forwards and deductible temporary differences to the extent that
the uthisation aganst future taxable profits is probable. UK deferred tax assats of £1.7m (2020: £1.7m} have not been recognised as their recovery 1s uncertan.

25 Provisions

Cantract-
related
Warranties provisions Other Total
£m Em Em £m

AL January 2027 D s 95 72 246
Reclassifications - 2.2) 22 -
Created 19 31 6.3 1.3
Reversed {1.9 (35) (13 3]
Utilised 0.6) a7 (1.0 133)
Exchange differences - - 0.2 0.2
At 31 December 2021 6.9 56 136 26.1
Included in current liablines 6.7 47 1.9 233
Included in nan-current iabilities 02 09 1.7 28
o o - 6.9 56 126 261

Warranty prowisions are based an an assessment of future claims with reference to past experience. Such costs are generally incurred within two years after
delivery Contract-related prowisions - for example, including provisions for agent fees and costs relating to contract execution and delivery - are utilised over
the period as stated In the contract to which the spealfic provision relates. Other provisions include recrganisation costs, casts inrelation to settlement of legal
matters, deferred consideration and dilapidation costs. Reorganisation costs will be incurred over the period of the reorganisation, whichis typically up to twa
years. Deferred consideranion 1s payable when earnings targets are met. Dhlapidations will be payabie at the end of the contracted Iife, which 1s up 1o 15 years.

26 Share capital and share options

2021 2020

No. em e £
Authorised: ST T
Sp ordinary shares 90,000,000 45 90,000,000 4.5
Allotted, called-up and fully paid: o -
Sp ordinary shares 71,410,205 36 71,122,599 3.6

The Caompany did net purchase or cancel any shares in the year.

287,606 ordinary shares having a nominal value of £14,380 were allotted during the year undar the terms of the Group's various share option schemes
The aggregate consideration received was £2.6m.

The share premium account répresents the premium arising on the issue of equity shares

The "own shares reserve” represents the cost of shares in Ultra Electronics Holdings plc purchased n the market and held by the Ultra Electronics Emplayee
Trust to satisfy options under the Group's Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) share schemes. At 31 Decemnber 2021, the number of own shares held was 28,045
{2020: 108,494).

Share opticns

The Group's equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the daze of the grant. The fair value determined at the grant date 15 expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest. The Group recognised total expenses of £59m
{20201 £2.6m} in relation to equity-settled share-based payment transactions. Expected volatility was determined by calculating the histonical volality of the
Group's share price
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26 Share capital and share options continued

During the year to 31 December 2021, the Group operated the following equity-settled share option schemes.

1. Savings-Related Share Option Schemes, Company Share Option Plan and Executive Share Option Scheme
A Savings-Related Share Option Scheme 1s open to all UK, US, Canadian and Australian employees and prowvides for a purchasce price equal ta t e average of the
dally average market price before the grant less 20% in the UK, Lanada and Australia and 15% in the USA. Prior to 2027, the option price discount was 10% for all
schemes. The vesting period Is two ta five years, 1 the options remain unexercised after a period ranging from three ta six months from the date of maturity, the

options expire. Opuons are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group before the options vest

The Company Share Option Plan prowides share optons for nominated employeas inthe UK The purchase price 1s set at a mid-market price on the date of the

grant Thisis an approved scheme and vesting is unconditional. Options vest after three years and lapse after 10 years from the date of the grant

The Executive Share Option Scheme provides share options for nominated employees in the UK, the USA and Canada. The purchase price s set at a mid-marker
price on the date of the grant. This is an unapproved scheme and vesiing s unconditional. Options vest after three years and lapse after seven years from the

date of the grant

The number and weighted average exercise price of share options for all share-based payment arrangements (excluding LTIP) are as foliows.

Weighted Weagated

average dverage
exercise price Number exBerose price Mumber
(E) of options () ot agtions
_____ 2021 o021 2320 2020
Beginning of year 16.44 717,780 1653 970,757
Granted dunng the year 16.42 253,087 - -
Exercised during the year 16.51 {260,057} 1694 {161.405)
Expired during the year 16.98 {68,663} 1632 (91,322)
Outstanding at the end of the year 16.34 642,147 16.44 717,780
Exercisable at the end of the year 16.96 174,942 16.04 180,626
) 2021 2020
Range of exercise price of outstanding options (£) 14.45-21.91 1445-2191
Weighted average remaining contracted life {years) 3.29 373
weighted average fair value of options granted (£) 521 -

2. Long-Term Incentive Plan

Detalls in relation to the Ultra Electromics Long-Term Incentive Plan 2017 awards to Executive Directors are induded in the Directors' remuneration report
on pages 72-85. In April 2021, LTIPs were also awarded to nominated employees and are subject o the same four performance metrics (see page 95) as the
Executive Director awards. The awards will vest In Aprit 2024 upon achievernent of those performance targats and are conditional upon continued employment.

The number of the LTIPs are a5 follows:

Number Mumper

of options of options

2021 2020

Beginning ofyear 1,106,422 903632

Granted durning the year 483,353 426153
Exerased during the year {133,276) (32,246}
Expired during the year (316,718) (190417}

Outstanding at the end of the year ) 1139781 1105422
2021 20
Weighted average remainlng_égnf.:acted life (years) o - 133 1 SST

Weighted average fair value of options granted (£} 18.38 15.09
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2021 2020
e o _ £m m

Operatin'g profit 1059 063
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment 109 104
Amortisation of intangible assets 16.1 186
Amortisation of leased assets 80 85
Cost of equity-settled employee share schemes 59 25
Defined benefit pension scheme funding (11.2) {11.0
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.1 0.1
[ncreasa in provisions 13 02
Operating cash flow hefore ﬁbbeﬁ;ﬁtgﬁﬁorking capital o 137.0 1356
Decrease/increase) In inventories 35 (13.8}
(Increase)/decrease In recewvables {19.0) 14.3
Increase in payables 127 15
Cash generated by operations _ o __ N 1342 1426
[ncome taxes paid o 5.7) 54
Interest paid (5.6) (5.5)
Lease llabiiity interest paid o - (1.4) (1.7
Net cash from operating activities N 1215 1300

The total cash outflow in 2021 relating to leases was £8.7m {2020 £10.7m), of which £01m (2020 £0.2m) related to low-value or short-term teases not recognised

on the balance sheet.

Reconcihation of net movemnent in cash and cash eguivalents to movements in net debt:

2021 2020
£m £m
Net increase in cash and cash eduﬂ';}élen:s _____ ~ ss0 3.1
Cash inflow from maovemnenit in debt - 63.1
Em;ﬁ-h;{agﬂ?;risiﬂg from cash flows B 55.6 682
Lease lability movement (3.0 35
Fair value adjustments and changes in interest accruals (4.6) 2.7}
Amortisation of finance costs of debt (0.6) 10.6)
Disposat of business 0.2 -
Translation differences (1.2) 0.6
Movementin net debtin the year o i o 488 690
Net debt at start of year (85.8) (154.8)
Net debt at end of year (40,0) {85.8)
Net cash and cash equivalents and overdrafts comprised the fallowing.
2021 2025
R _ £Em Em
Cash and cash equivalents 138.8 1144
Overdrafts - {0.1) (30.3)
Net cash and cash equa‘va\ent-smér_w-c;i bank overdrafts 1387 84.1

Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash at bank and short-term depasits with an onginal maturity date of three months or less
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27 Notes to the cash flow statement continued

Met debt comprised the following:

2021 270
£m s
Cash and cash agquivalents o T 1382 1144
Borrowings (178.8) (200.2)
T o (40.0) 858)
Recenahation of changes in finanang labihnes:
2021
£m
Borrowings at start of year o - {200.2)
Less overdraft at start of year 303
Liabilities arising from financing activities at star;f_afyear T {169.9)
Repayments of borrowings 70.0
Proceeds from borrowings (70.0)
Other non-cash movemants (4.6)
Amorusation of finance costs of dabt (0.6)
Principal payment on leases 83
Lease labilizy non-cash mavements (11.3)
Disposal of business 0.2 -
Translaton differences N (0.8) 18
Liabilities arising from f}hanéiﬁg activities at end of year I ) (178.7) (169.9)
Add averdraft at end of year o (0.1) (30.3)
Borrowings at end of year ] o } - - (178.8) 1200.2)
28 Other financial commitments
Capital commitments
Atthe end of the year capital commitments were:
2021 2020
£m ) £m
Contracted buznot provic};d' ) o 8.0 28

29 Retirement benefit schemes

Some UK employees of the Group are members of the Ultra Electronics Limited defined benefit scherne which was established on 1 March 1994. The scherne
was closed to new mermbers in 2003, The scheme 15 a final salary scheme with the majority of members accruing 1/60th of their final pensionable earnings for
each year of pensionable service; however, the scheme was closed to future benefit accrual from 5 April 2016. A defined contribution plan was introduced for
other employees and new joiners 1n the UK. The latest full actuarial valuation of the defined benefic scheme was carried out as at 5 April 20138 The Group also
operates twa defined contribution schemes for overseas employees. In addition to these schemes, the Group's Tactical Communication Systems business
based in Montreal, Canacda, has three defined benefit schemes. The Swiss business of the Forensic Technology group, which had a defined benefit schame,
was sold in the year and the liability has been derecognised.

Defined contribution schemes
The total cost charged to income in respect of the defined contribution schemes was £11.4m (2020 £11.1m}.

Defined benefit schemes
All the clefined benefit schemes were actuanally assessed at 37 December 2021 Lsing the projected unit methad.

In the UK, Ultra Electronics Limited sponsars the Ultra Blectronics Pension Scheme, a funded defined benefit pension scheme The scheme is administered
within a trust which is legally separate from the Company Trustees are appointad by both the Company and the scheme's membership and act in the
interests of the scheme and all relevant stakeholders, including the membkers and the Company. The Trustees are also responsible for the investment

of the scheme’s assets.

This scheme provides pensions and lump sums to members on retirement and to ther dependants on death.

* 2020 defined ronn Bunion schere costs nave seen restated followng a review of fne pension-related charges to tne ncome state~ gl n 2020
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29 Retirement benefit schemes continued

The Trustees are required 1o use prudent assumptions to value the habilites and costs of the scheme whereas the accounting assumptions must be best
estimates.

Responsibility for making good any deficit within the scheme lies wath the Company and this introduces a number of nisks for the Company. The major nsks
are: interest rate risk, inflation risk, Investmant rsk and longevity risk. The Company and Trustees are aware of these rnisks and manage them through
appropriate Investment and funding strategies. The Trustees manage governance and operational nsks through a number of internal contrals poicies,
including a nsk register,

Investment strategy

The investment strategy 1s set by the Trustees of the scheme. The investment strategy is targeting a level of Investment return above that assumed under
the Recovery Plan and slightly higher than the reguired return to achieve full funding on a self-sufficiency basis by 31 March 2030, with an appropriate level
of diversification across assets and interest rate and inflation hedging o manage Investment risks.

The UK Scheme's investment strategy Is 1o invest broadly 54% in retum-seeking assets and 46% in matching assets, with the aim of mowving to 20% growth
and 80% matching by 2030. This strategy reflects the UK Scheme's flabiliry profile and the Trusrees' and Company's attitude to risk.

The Trustees' investiment strategy includes investing in habiiity drven investment (1), the value of which will ncrease with decreases in interest rates, and will
move with inflation expectations. LDI primarnily invalves the use of Government bonds and denvatives such as interest rate and inflatian swaps. The main sk is
that the investments held move differently to the liability exposures; this risk is managed by the Trustees, their advisers and the scherme’s LDI manager, who
regularly assess the position.

The assets held are also well diversified, across asset classes and investment managers. This reduces the nisk of drops in the value of individual asset classes, or
a particular nanager underperforming its Investment objectives, having 2 negative impact on the funding position of the scheme. The iInvestment performance
and habilty expenence are regularly reviewed by the Trustees, and the Trustees will consult with the Company aver any changes to the invesiment strategy.

Rather than holding the underlying assets directly. the scheme invests in pooled investment vehicles managed by professional external investment managers,
wham the Trustees have appointed with the help of therr investment adwisers.

GMP equalisation

Following a High Court jJudgment on 26 October 2018, 1t became apparent across the UK pensicn industry that equalisation was required with respect to
Guaranteed Minimum Pensions (GMPs). Schemne benefits earned in the period 17 May 1950 to 5 April 1997 may be affected by the requirement to equalise
GMPs. Tt will take a considerable time for trustees and employers to deaide on the approach for GMP equalisation, gather data, calculate the new benefits and
cost, and ultimately make payments to members Thenitial estimate for the Ultra Blectronics Limited defined benefit scheme was that the impact was £3 2m;
this was recorded as a debit to the income statement in 2018 with a corresponding increase in scheme habilities. There have been no material changes in
estmates in subsequent years

Valuation

The scheme is subject to regular actuanal valuations, which are usually carried out every three years The last actuaral valuation of the schemea was on 5 April
2019. The next actuarial valuation is due to be carned out with an effective date of 5 April 2022. These actuarial valuations are carried out in accordance with the
requirerments of the Pensions Act 2004 and so include deliberate margins for prudence. This contrasts with these accounting disclosures, which are determined
using best estimate assumptions

The results of the S April 2019 valuation have been projected to 31 December 2021 by a quahfied, independent actuary. The figures in the following disclasure
ware measured using the projected unit method

£2 3m of retirement benefit obligation was derecognised in the year when the non-core Forensic Technology business in Swirzerland was sold (see note 30).

Key financial assumgptions used N the valuation of these schemes were as follows

UK Canada LK Canada S tzerland

2021 2021 2020 2020 2020

Discount rate T 190% 2.75% 1.45% 2.25% 020%
Inflation rate - RPI 330% 3.00% 2.95% 3.00% 0.60%
Inflation rate - CPI 2.75% 220% 2.35% 2.20% 0.60%
Expected rate of salary increases n/a 3.45% n/a 345% 1.0084
Future pension increases (pre 5/4/03) 3.10% n/a 2.85% n/a 1.00%
Future pension increases (post 6/4/08) 2.05% nfa 1.95% tE] 0.00%

For each of these assumptions there is a range of possible values. Relatively small chianges in some of these vanables can have a significant imgact an the level
of the total obligation For the UK scheme, a 0.5% increase in the inflation assumption to 3.8% and a 0.5% decrease in the discount rate to 1 4% would increase
the scheme’s lizbdities by £21.5m and £36.8m respectively. [f the life expectancy of members was to increase by one year, the scheme liabilities would increase
by £19.0m. The average duration of the scheme liahilities is 17 years (2020: 18 years).

The assumptions used are provided by Willis Towers Watson as Company advisers, and alse by reference to the Bank of England gilt curve, ata duration
appropriate to the scheme’s liabilities.
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29 Retirement benefit schemes continued

The key demaographic assumgption used was in relation to the mortality rates of current and future pensioners. Due to the size of the scheme the mortality rates
were based on standard tables, namety:

Current pensioners -males 95% of SAPS S3PMA with CMI 2020 projecnons and a 1.25% floor from 2013 (UK only)
Current pensioners - females 101% of SAPS S3PFA with CMI 2020 projections and a 1.25% floor from 2013 (UK only)
Future pensioners - males 958 of SAPS S3PMA with CMI 2020 projections and a 1 25% floor from 2013 (UK only)
Future pensioners - females 101% of SAPS S3PFA with CMI 2020 projections and a 1.25% floor from 2013 (UK only)

The mortahty assumptions usad in the valuation of the UK scheme make approprate aliowance for future improvementsin longeviey and are set out below:

2021 2023
Current pensioners (ar'655 - males ) - 23 years 22 years
Current pensianers (at 65) - females 24 years 24 years
Future pensioners {at 65) - mates 24 years 24 years
Future pensioners (at 65} - females 26 years 26 years
Amounts recognised in the income statement i respect of the Group's defined benefit schemes were as follows:
UK Canada Switzertand Totad LK Canada Swatzerland Total
2021 2021 2021 2021 2023 2021 2077 2020
£m £m £Em £m £m £ £m £r
Current service cost - o - 01 - 0. 04  os
Administration expenses - 01 - 0.1 - 01 - 2
[nterest on pension scheme habrites 6.1 0.2 - 6.3 74 02 - 78
Past service cost - - - - 01 - - 0.1
Expected return on pension
scheme assets {5.1) (0.2) - 5.3 1) G2 - {h.3)
~ Gain on settlements - - (2.3} {2.3) - - o - -
Charge T T 0.2 2.3) R 14 02 04 20

Of the current service cost for the year, Enil (2020 £0.1m) has been included in cost of sales, and £0.1m (2020: £0.4m) has been included in administrative
expenses.

Actuanal gains and losses have been reported in the statement of comprehensive Income.

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Group's ebligations in respect of its defined benefit retirement schemes 1s as follows:

UK Canada Switzerland Total LK Canaria Switzerland Total

2021 2021 2021 2021 2020 2023 2020 2020

o Em £m £m £m Eer £ Frr ) ?m

Fair value of scheme assets 369.1 84 - 3775 3533 B 8.1 369.5

Present value of scheme llabilities {403.9) (8.4} - (4123) (423.2) S.0) (19;4) (442.6)

Scheme deficit (34.8) - - (34.8) 69.9) 0% 2.3) (73.1)
Related deferred tax asset . 79 1.0 - 8.9 133 o 03 04 140

Net pension liability (26.9) 1.0 - (25.9) (56.6) (0.6 (1.9) 159.1)
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29 Retirement benefit schemes continued
Movements In the present value of defined benefit abligations during the year wera as follows:

UK Canada Switzaerland Total UK Canada Swotrerland Tatal

2021 2021 2021 2021 2320 2020 7020 2020

o £m £m £m £m £ £ £ £m

Present value of Ob-hganom at 1 january (423.2) 00 (16.4) (442.6) 13836.4) (8.411 8.2} 403.0)

Current service cost - (0.1) - (0.1) - 01 04y 0.5)

Interest cost (6.1) (0.2) - (6.3) 02) - (7.6)

Actuzariatgains and losses 114 0.5 - 119 1433} (0.8) 0.1y (44.2)

Exchange difference - - - - - 07 106} (0.5)

Past service Cost - - - - [0k N} - - Q.1

Liabilities extinguished an settlements - - 10.4 10.4 - - - -

Benefits paid 14.0 0.4 - 14.4 14.0 04 (11 133
Present value of abligation T T

at 31 December (403.9) (8.4) - (412.3) (423.2) (9.0) (10.4) 1442.6)

Movements.n the fair value of scheme assets during the year were as follows:

UK Canada Switzerland Total UK Canada Switzerland Tatal
2021 2021 2021 2021 2020 2020 2023 2070
£m £Em £m £m £m . o £m ER
Fair value at 1 january 3533 81 a1 369.5 3152 80 65 3297
Interestincome 5.1 0.2 - 53 6.1 02 - 6.3
Return on assets 13.7 0.1 - 13.8 351 0.1 (03 349
Exchange differences - 0.1 - 0.1 (0.1 (0.1 04 02
Employer contrbunans 11.0 04 - 114 1.0 04 04 118
Assets distnbuted on settierments - - {8.1) &.1) - - - -
Administration expenses - 0.1 - {0.1) - on - 0.1
Benefits paid (14.0) (0.4) - {14.4) 4.0 (0 1.1 N33
Fair value at 31 Dacember 3691 8.4 - 3775 3533 8.1 81 3695
Scheme assets were as follows:
UK Canada Total UK Canaids Swatreriand Tatat
2021 2021 2021 2020 2029 2020 2020
Em £m £m £r £m T £mr
Fair value; o o T
Equities 67.2 31 70.3 82.5 24 27 876
Bonds - 51 5.1 - 55 2. 75
Property 416 - 416 381 - 16 397
Other assets 11.4 0.2 11.6 9.4 02 1.4 110
Other investrnent funds:
Absolute return 53.0 - 53.0 89.6 - D4 0.0
LDI 106.0 - 106.0 1015 - - 1015
Multi-asset credit 8%.9 - 899 322 - - 322
' ‘3891 84 3775 3533 8.1 81 695

The scheme’'s investments are In pooled funds which are Lnguotad.
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29 Retirement benefit schemes continued

The analysis of the actuarial gainfloss) in the consotidated staterment of comprehensive Income was as follows

UK Canada Total UK Canada Switzerland lotai

2021 2021 2021 2027 2320 2020 7090

o Em £m £m £m =M [ ,_m
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value

of the scheme liabilities 14.6 05 15.1 (47.4) 0.8) 03 419

Experience gains/(losses) ansing on scheme liakilities (3.2) - (3.2) {1.9) - (0.5 (2.4

Actual return less expected return on pension
scheme assets 13.7 0.1 13.8 351 071 0.2 350
25.1 0.6 257 (8.2) 07 0.4 3.3}

Cumulative actuarnial losses, net of deferred tax, recognised in the consolidated stazement of comprehensive meome at 37 December 2021 were £61.6m {2020:
£83 8my). The five-year histary of expenience adjustments is as follows:

2021 2020 2079 2018 FE
£m imr . £m £m Z‘“
Present value of def\nedgénefit abligations {412.3) {442 6} i 1403 0) 3707 (389 OY
Far value of scheme assets 3775 3695 3.7y 297.7 3063
scheme defict - (34.8) 731 (733 )
Experience adustments on scheme habiliies i (3.2} z 9 73) 38 (08)
Percentage of scheme liabilines 0.8% 0.5% 1 8% 1.0% 02%
Experience adustment on scheme assets 138 350 317 1n2.n 153
Percentage of scheme assets 3.7% 9.5% 95% {4.1%) 5.0

The amount of contributions expected to be paid to defined benefit schemes per annum 1s £11.0m until March 2025

30 Acquisitions and disposals
Disposals

In June 2021, certain nan-core assets from our contract electromics manufactuning business in the Critical Detection & Control SBU were disposed of and in
August 2021, certain non-core assets from our Forensic Technology business in Switzerland, also part of the Crincal Detection & Control SBU, were disposed of.

The assets and liabilities disposed of were as follows:

2021

£m

Other intangible as;ét_s ) T B 08

Property, plant and equipment 1.8

[nventories 37

Trade and other receivables 0.4

Net cash 0.4
Trade and other payables (1.3)
Retirement ohhgation 2.3)
Tatal B - o 36
Proceeds received {1.2)

Loss on disposal - o 24
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30 Acquisitions and disposals continued

Classified as held for sale

As at 31 December 2021, gssets and liabilities have been classified as held for sale for net assets planned to be dispased of in the following 12 months, which are
shown in the table below at their fair value. All of these assets and liabllities related to non-core aerospace assets to be divested to help facilitate the closure of
our Greenford PCS site and were held within the Critiral Nerection & Control SBU. The dispasal of thiesw gssels comipletad on 24 January 2022, for cash
consideration of £34 8m; the gain on disposal recorded in FY22 was £29.2m.

2021
- an R £m
Goodwill Z4
[nventories 4.4
Total assets classified as held for sale 6.8
Tracte and other paya?lei ) o ] (1.2}
Total liabilities claf_sifﬂas held for sale o (1.2)
Net assets classified as held for sale 56
31 Related party transactions
Rernuneration of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management persannel, which includes the Directors of the Group, 1s set out below In aggregate for each of the categories
specified in TAS 24: Related Party Disclosures, Further information about the remuneration of indadual Directors is pravided in the audited part of the
Directors’' remuneration report on page 76
2021 2620
o - . £m £m
Short-term emgloyee benefits 5.9 55
Post-employment benefits 0.3 03
Termination benefits - 04
Share-based payments 3 34 31
9.6 93

32 Non-controlling interests

There s 8 5% non-controlling nterest in the Group's CORVID Holdings Limited subsidiary Before any ntra-Group eliminations, the consolidated revenue of the
subsidiary In the year was £3.1m (2020: £2.7m), the gain was £48,000 (2020: £5,000 gain} and the net assets were £1.8m (2020: £4.1m). Sales to Group companies
were £2.4m (2020 £2.1m)

During 2021, dividends toralling £nil (2020: £820,000) were issued. £nil (2020: £41,000) dividend was paid to the non-controlling interest holder.
33 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are potential future cash outflows which are erther not probable or cannot be measured reliably, or will be confirmed only by the
occurrence of an uncertain future event not wholly withan the contrel of the Group.

The Group has entered Into a2 number of guarantee and performance bond arrangerments in the normal course of business, totalling £41.5m (2020: £37.3m).

As previously announced, investigations assocated with conduct of business issues are ongaing, and Ultra continues 1o cooperate with the relevant authorities
A provisian has been booked with respect to ane matrer where the IAS 37 provision recognition criteria have been deemed to have been met. On the other
matrer, taking into account all available evidence, Ultra concluded that the amount of any pessible obligation cannot be measured with sufficient rehability
Conseguently, the timing and armount, if any, of financial effects (such as fines, penaluies or damages) or other consaguences from the investigation are not
possikble to reliably predicr or estimarte.

Future habilines contingent on deal completion; costs already incurred in relaticn te the proposed acquisition of the Group by Cobham Ultra Acquisitions Limited
have been expensad in 2021. However, certain costs associated with the proposed acquisition are contingent upon the acquisition becoming effective, an
uncertain future event not wholly in the control of the Group, consequently they do not meetthe [AS 37 cnteria to be provided for as at 31 December 2021
These costs will comprise financial and corporate broking advice of £26.0m and retention bonuses for certain employees of £5.5m.
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34 Additional information as required by Listing Rules Requirement 9.8.4

+Long-term incentive plans - see Directors' remuneration repor:
+Allocation of equity securities for cash - see note 26

= Election of ndependent Directors - see Directors' repert on page 86
+ Contractual arrangements - see Dircctars' report on page 86

+ Details of Independent Directors - see Chairman’s governance repoert on pages 54-55

+5ubstantal shareholders - see Directors report on page 86

No profit forecasts are issued by the Group and no Directars have waved any current or future emaluments. No shareholders have waived or agreed to wave

dividends None of the shareholders are considered to be a Controling Shareholder (as defined in Listing Rules 6.7 243

35 Post balance sheet events

The Group completed the sale of some legacy aerospace product lines from the Crincal Detection & Control SBU realhsing net cash proceeds of £34.8mon 24

January 2022 (see note 30).

36 Related undertakings

The Company owns either directly ar indirectly the ordinary share capizal of the following undertakings:

% Direct/Indirect
Company name Country incorporated owned {Group interest)
3e Technologies Intemém_oogl [r?c T United States 100% 7Iodirect {Group interest)
AEP Networks Lmited ) B Ireland 100% " Direct
CORVID Holdings Lirmited i Guernsey 5% ) Direct o -
CORVID Protect Holdings Limited o ’ Guernsey 95% Indirect (Group interest)
DF Group Llrnlted ) i United Kingdom 7 100% Direct .
EMS Deve!opment COrporanon United States 100% Indhrect (Group interest)
ERAPSCO - "United States 50% Indiract (zjroup mierest)
Flightline Electronics .nE - o United States 100% Indirect (Group Interest) B
Forensi Technology (Fis sropg) Limited reland 100% . Direct T
Forensic Technology AEC Thailand Limited a Thailand 100% Direct
Forensic Technology Ine. United States 100% AVD\rect _
Forensic Technology Mexica 5. de RL de CV - T Mexico N 100% Indirect (Group interest) )
Farensic Tegxooloég—i-mo{ogia Forenseltda Brazil 100% Indiract {Group interest)
Giga Communications Limited o “United Kingdom 100% Drect 3
GIGASAT, INC. T T United States 100% " Direct T
Gigasat. Asia Pacific Ptyfl_'iﬁted T Australia 100% Indiract {Group mter"es-gk
Herley Indﬁétnes Inc. - anited States 7;00% Tndlrec* {Sroup interest)
Herley-CT! Inc. o United States 100% B Indirect {Group interest)
Prologic Inc. - 7 Urited States 100% [ndirec (Group nterest)
Ulra Electranics (USA) Group Inc. - Unized States 100% _ Indirect(Group interest)
Ultra Blectronics Advanced Tactical SYS’GFHS Inc. United States 100% Indirect{Groupg Interest )_g
Ultra Electronics Aneirg Inc. B United States 100% Indirect (Grougp Interesy
Ultra Electronics Australia Pty Linited ] Austraha 100% Direct
Ultra Electronics Avaion Systemns Pty Limiced Australia 100% ] Indirect 1Group interest)
Uitra Electromcs Canada Inc. T Canada 100% © Direct -_-VW B
Ultra Electronics Connecticut LLC o United States 100% Indirect (Group mté}est)
Ultra Electronics Defense Inc. United States 100% Indirect (Group nterast)
Ultra Blectronics DNE Technologies Inc. ‘United States 100% Indiract (Gr oup interest)
Ultra Blectronics Enterp?s%g (USATLLC T United States 100% Indirect (Group interest)
Ultra Electronics Flﬂ_ﬂ?ehmmed T o Jersey 100% o Indirect (Group interest) )
Ultra Electranics Forensic Technolagy Inc./ o Canada 100% Direct

Les Technalogies Ultra Electronics Forensic [nic.
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% Direct/Indirect
{empany name Cuuntry incorporated awned (Group interest)
Ultra Electronics Hong Kong Holéﬁhég Lirnited Hong Konigii 130% Direct o
Ultra Electronics fCE, nc. ~ United States 100% - _InmcilFéc‘ (;;(;upimTS‘[)
Ultra Electronics in collaboration with ~ Oman 70% Drect
Orman Investment Corporation LLC (in ligudation)
Lltra Electronics Inc. h United States B 100% Indirect (Group interest)
Ultra Electronics Investments (USA) LLC T Unired States ) TOO% Indirect (Group mtﬂr H
Ultra Electranics Limited ) Uruted Klngdom B 100% Direct o
Ultra Electronics Maritime Systems Inc. o Canada o 100% Indirect (Group Interes: )"_-
Ultra Electronics Measuger;ergsjstems inc. Un:ﬁéd States 100% ) Indirect {Group interest
Ultra Eleetronics Ocean 'S_y-s;éms Inc. “United States 100% T Indirect (Group interess)
Uttra Electronics Pension Trustee Company Limited T United Kingdom 100% Indirect (Group interest)
Ultra Electronics Precision Air and Land Systemsinc United States T 00% Indirect (Group nterest)
Ultra Electronics Secure Intelligence Systemsmg United States 100% Indirect {Group Interest)
Ultra Electronics Swiss Holdings Comgpany Lrmiced Urited K[r?gd—ofn 100% Indiract (qup Interest)
Uitra Electroniuc-s 'T—CS Inc. - Canada WOO%d [ndirect {Group mterest)
Ultra Electranics TopScentific Aerospace Limited o Hong Kong " 0% Direct B
UnderSea Sensor Systems [nc. o United Stafes ) 100% [nd|r_eEE {Group Interest)
Weed Instrument Companyinc o United States 100%  Indirect (Group interest)

The princpal activity of the trading subsidiary undertakings is the design, development and rmanufacture of electronic systems for the internauonal defence and

aerospace markets

Registered Office: Ultra Blecironics Holdings plc, 35 Portman Square, Marylebone, London W1H 6LR, England
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Statement of accounting policies

in respect of the Group’s consolidated financial statements

Asurmimary of the Group's principal accounting golicies, all of which have been
applied consistently across the Group throughout the current and preceding
year, uniess otherwise stated, is set oLt below:

Basis of accounting

The tinancial statements have been prepared in accordance with international
accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 and International Finandial Reporung Standards (IFRSs) as adopred
by the UK

The consclidated financial nformanon has been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value, see note 22,

Adoption of new and revised standards

During the year, the Group revised 115 accounting policy i relation to upfront
configuration and customisation costs incurred N ImMplementing 5aas
arrangements In response to the IFRS Interpretations Committee agenda
decision clarifying how [FRS Standards apply 1o these types of arrangements
The new accounting policy 1s presentad below The impact to pror periods
was not material

Software-as-a-Service (SaaS) arrangements

SaaS arrangemenis are service contracts providing the Group with the nght
ta access the doud provider's application software over the contract penod
Costs incurred to configure or customise, and the ongoing fees to abtain
access io the cloud provider's application software, are recognised as
operating expenses when the services are received. Some of the costs
incurred relate to the development of software code that enhances or
modifies, or creates additional capability to, existing on-premise systems and
meets the definition of, and the recegnition criteria for, an intangible asset
These costs are recognised as intangible software assets and amortised over
the useful life of the software on a straight-ling basis. The useful lives of these
assets are reviewed at least at the end of each financial year, and any change
accounted for prospectively as a change In accounting estumate

Capitalisation of configuration and customisation costs in 5aaS
arrangements

Part of the custormisation and configuration activities undertaken in
implementing Saas arrangements ray entall the development of software
code that enhances or modifies, or creates addimonal capabllity to the existing
on-premise software to enable 1t to connect with the cloud-based software
apphications (referred to as bridging modules ar AP1s) Judgement was applied
In determining whether the additional code meets the definitien of, and the
recognition ¢riteria for, an intangible asset in [AS 38 Intangible Assets. During
the year, the Group recognised £nil as intangible assats in respect of
customisation and configuration costs incurred inimplementing Saas
arrangements.

Determination whether configuration and customisation services are
distinct from the Saa5 access

Costs incurred to configure or customise the cloud provider’s application
software are recognised as operating expenses when the services are
received. In a contract where the cloud provider provides both the Saas
configuration and customisation, and the Saas access over the contract term,
the Directors applied judgement to determine whether these services are
distinct from each other or not, and therefore, whether the configuration

and customisation costs incurred are expensed as the software 1S

configured or customised (i e upfront), or over the Saas contract term.

Spedifically, where the configuration and customisation activities significantly
madify or custormise the cloud software, these activities are not distinct from
the access to the cloud software over the contract term. Judgement has been
applied in determining whether the degree of customisation and modification
of the cloud-based software 15 significant. During the year, the Group
recognised £1.1m as prepayrments in respect of customisation and

configuration activines undertaken inimplementing $aas arrangements

. which are cansidered not to be distinct from the access to the Saas access

over the contract term.

Other

- Thie futlowinig IFRIC Interpretations, amendments to existing standards and

rew standards have been adopred in the current year but have not impacted

the reported results or the financial positton:

+Amendment to [FRS 16 - COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyand 30
june 2021

+Amendments to [FRS 9 and [FRS 7 —imital application of Interest Rate
Benchmark Refarm

Al the date of authonsation of these financial statements, the following

standards and intergretations, which have not been applied in these financial

staternents, were in issue but not yet effective:;

+[FRS 17 (including the June 2020 Amendments to IFRS 17) Insurance
Contracts

+Amendments to [FRS 10 and [AS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and I1ts Assaciate or jont Venture

+Amendments to 145 1 Classification of Liabiliies as Current or Non-current

+ Amendrments to [FRS 3 Refarence to the Conceptual Framework

+Amendments to 1AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before
Intended Use

+Amendments to [AS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

+Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle - Amendments to
IFRS 1 Frst-ume Adoption of International Fingncial Reporting Standards,
IFRS 9 Finandial Instruments, [FRS 16 Leases, and 1AS 41 Agriculture

+ Armendments to [AS 1 and [FRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

+Amendments to [AS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

+Amendments o [AS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilties arising
from a Single Transaction

The Directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above
wiil have a marerial impact on the financial statements of the Group in
future pericds.

Going concern

The Directors have, at the ime of agproving the financial statements.

a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue
o adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial
staterments. Further detail 1s contained in the Strategic Repart on pages
46-47.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of

the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidizriesymade

up to 31 December each year Control s achieved when the Company

+Has the power over the investee;

+ s exposed, or has rights, to vanable returns from its Involvement with the
investee; and

+ Has the ability to use Its power to affectits returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elernents of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Campany obtains cantrol over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
dunng the year are included in the consolidated statements of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Company gains control
until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary
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Basis of consolidation continued

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive iIncome are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the nen-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive Incame of subsidiaries 1s attributed to the owners of the
Cormpany and to the non-contrafiing interests even «f this results in the
non-controling interests having & defiat balance

When necessary, adjustments are made o the financial statements of
subsidhianes to bring their accaunting policies into line vath the Group's
accounting policies,

Allintra-Group assets, liabiities, equity, Income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on conselidation.

Changes inthe Group's interest In a subsidiary that do notresuitin & loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s Interests and the non-contraling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in therr relative interests in the subsidiary Any difference berween
the armount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attnbuted to the awners of the Campany

when the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is
calculated as the difference between: (1} the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration recerved and the fair value of any retained interest; and (i) the
previgus carrying amount of the assets (inctuding goodwill) and labilities

of the subsidiary and any non-controlling nterests. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary

are accounted for (1.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to
retained earnings} in the same manner as would be requiredf the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of. The fair value of any Investment retained
in the forrmer subsidiary at the date when conitrod is lost s regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition far subsequent accounting or, when applicable,
the cost on indtial recognimion of an Investment 1n an assocdiate or jaintly
controlled entity.

Critical accounting judgements and
key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the Directors are
required to make judgements (other than those involving estimations)

that have a significant impact on the amounts recagnised and to make
astimates and assumptions about the carnang amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
astimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewad on an
ongoing basis and included consideration of the potential engoing impacts
of Brexit and Covid-19. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estirmate 1s revised if the revision affects only that
period, or In the period of the revision and future penods if the revision
affects hoth current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

[n the course of preparing the financial statements, no judgements
have been made n the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies, other than those involving estimates, that have had a significant
effect an the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerming the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabiiities within the next financial year, are discussed below
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Contract revenue and profit recognition

A significant proportion of the Group's activities are conducted under
long-term contract arrangements and are accounted for in accordance with
IFRS 15 Revenue from Cantracts with Customers. This revenue is derived from
alarge number of iIndividual contracts across the Group. Revenue and profit
recognition on these contracts is based on estimates of future costs as well
as an assessment of contingencies for technical risks and other nisks; for
example, assessment of the time and cost required to design, build, integrate
and test a new product where the technology invobved is currently at a fow
technotogy readiness level, and other risks such as the ability to obtan the
necessary customer specification approval, or requlatory approvals. There
are no individual contracts where the estimation uncertainty is considered

to have a signifcant risk of resulting in a material adjustment within the next
financial year; however, 2 quantification of the iImpact across the aggregated
portfolio of over-ime contracts of a 1% increase in estimated costs to
complete isincluded in note 3

Retirement benefit plans
The Group accounts for its post-retirament pension plans in accordance
with IAS 19 Employee Benefits

The crinical estimates and assumprions used in determining the defined
benefit postretirement obhigation include the discountrate used In
discounting scheme liabilities, the mflation rate and future mortahty
assumptons. For each of these assumpuans, there is arange of possible
values. Relatively small changes in some of these variabtes can have a
significant impact on the level of the total obligation.

The valuation of pension scheme assets and habilities at a speafic point
In time rather than aver a perad of time can lead to significant annual
movements in the pension scheme deficit as calculated under [AS 19,
butit has no impact on short-term cash contributions since these are
based upon separate Independent actuarial valuations.

Details of the pension scheme estimates, assumptions and obligations
at 31 December 2021 are pravided in note 29.

Contingent liabilities

As set outin note 33, the Group concluded, with respect to a conduct
of business matter, that the amount of any possible obligation cannot
be measured with sufficient reliability. This has been disclosed as a
contingent hahility.

Proxy Board

Certain Group companies in the USA undertake work of importance to

1S national security; consequently activines are conducted under foreign
ownership regulations, which require operation under a Proxy Agreement.
The regulations are intended to insulate these activities from undue foreign
influence as a result of foreign ownerstup The entity that is operated under
the management of 3 Proxy Board 1s Uftra Electronics Advanced Tactical
Systems Inc. (ATS).

The Directors consider that the Group has controf over the operating and
financial policies and results of this entity and therefore they are consolidated
in the Group consolidated accounts in accordance with IFRS 10 Consohdared
Financial Statements.

Business combinations

Acguisitions of subsicharies and businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition methad. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured a: fair value, which 15 calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, labilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interest issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred
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Statement of accounting policies
in respect of the Group's consolidated financial statements
continued

Business combinations continued

At the acquisition date, the 1dentifiable assets acquired and the liabilitres

assumed are recognised at their far value at the acquisition date, except that:

+ Daferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or lahilines related to employee
benefit arrangements are recegnised and measured in accordance with
[45 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively, and

+Assets {or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance
with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Cperations
are measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill 1s measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amaunt of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the far value of the acquier's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any} over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the lizbilities assumed. 1F, after reassessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and llabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount

of any non-cantrelling interests in the acquiree and the fawr value of the
acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess

1s recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination
includes an asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration 1S measured at its acquisition-
dare fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in fair vaiue of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurernent period adjustrnents are adjusted retrospectively,
with corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustrments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the ‘'measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one year from

the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date

The subsequent accounting for changes i the fair value of the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration 1s classified. Contingent
consideration that 1s classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reparting dates and 1ts subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Conungent consideration that s classified as an asset or a liability
is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with IFRS 9,
or 1AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, a5
appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being recogrised

in profit or loss

When a business combination 1s achieved in stages, the Group's previously
held interests in the acquired entity are rermeasured ta their acquisition-date
fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, I1s recagnised in prafit or loss
Armounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition-date
that have previously been recognised In ather comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss, where such treatment would be appropriate If
thatinterest were disposed of.

If the iniual accounting for a business combination 1s iIncompiete by theend
of the reporting period i which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting s incomplete
Those provisional amounts are adjusted dunng the measurement period
{see above), or additional assets or liabdities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and arcurnstances that existed as of

the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recogrmsed as of that date.

Goodwill

Goodwillis initially recognised and measured as set out above, Goodwill
15 not amarnsed butis reviewed for impairment at least annually Any
impairment is recognised immediately in the iIncome statement and 1S
not subsequently reversed.

For the purpase of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units o
which goodwill has been allocated are tested for imparment annually, or
more frequently when there 1s an indication that the umit may be impaired. If
rhe recoverable amount of the cash-generatng unitis less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment [oss 1s allocated first to reduce the
carmying armnount of any goodwill aliocated to the unit and then to the ather
assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. Animpairment [oss recognised for goodwill 1s not reversedin

a subseguent period.

Goadwill arising on acquisitions before the date of transition to [FRSs has
been retained at the previous UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
{GAAP) amounts subject to being tested for impairment at that date.

Goodwall written off to reserves under UK GAAP prior 10 1998 has not been
rainstated and will not be incuded in desermining any subsequent profit
or lass on disposal

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue from the sales of goods and from long-term
contracts, Revenue 1s measured based on the consideration specified ina
comract. Revenue s recognised etther when the performance abligation in
the contract has been performed, Le. ‘pointin time' recognition, ar, over time,
as control of the performance obligation is transferred to the customer
Under a book-and-hold agreement with a customer, the Group may have
ohysical possession of an asset that the customer controls, tharefore the
revenue Is recognised whert the custorner has control of the asset. The Group
follows the ‘five step’ model as set outin I5RS 15 to ensure that revenue is
recognised at the appropriate point whether over time or ata point in trme,
the five steps are:
Identify the contract(s) with a customer,
. Identify the performance obligations.
. Determine the transaction price.
. Allocate the transaction price to the perfaormance obligations

Recognise revenue as performance obligations are satisfied.

(R e U R

For each performance obligation, the Group determmes if revenue will be
recognised over ime or at a point in time

Over time

Performance obiigations are satisfied over time If one of the following criteria

is satisfied'

+ The customer simultaneously receves and consumes the banefits provided
by the Group's performance as it performs.

+The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the custamer
controls as the asset s created or enhanced.

+The Group's performance does not create an asset with an altarnative use
to the Group and ithas an enforceable right to payment for performance
completad to date.
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Revenue recognition continued

Revenue that is recognised over tme 1s determined by reference to the

stage of completion of the performance abligation For each performance
obligation 10 be recognised over ume, revenue and attnibutable margin are
caleulated by reference wielable eslinndles of lansaction price and total
expected costs, after making suitable allowances for technical and other risks,
exceptin irmited scenarios where the proportion of costs incurred wauld not
be representative of the stage of completion. Owing to the complexity of
some of the contracts undertaken by the Group. the cost estimation process
and the allocanion of costs and revenue o 2ach performance obligaton are
carried aut using the experience of the Group's engineers, project managers
and finance and commercial professionals. Cost estimates are reviewed and
updated on a regular basis. Some of the factors impacting cost estrmatas
include the availability of suitably qualified labour, the nature and complexity
of the work to be performed, the technology readiness level, the availability of
matenals and the performance of sub-contractors. Revenue and associated
margin are recognised progressively as costs are incurred and as risks have
been mitigated or retired.

For contracts with multiple activities or deliverables, management considers
whether those promised goods and services are (1) distinct - to be accounted
for as separate performance obligations: [} not distinct - to be combined with
other promised goods or services until a bundle is identified that s distinct;
or (i) part of a senes of distinct goods and serwvices that are substantally the
same and have the same pa:tern of ransfer to the customer Goods and
services are distinct if the customer can benefit from them on their own

or together with other resources that are read/ly availabte to the customer
and they are separately identifiable in the contract For example, certain

Ultra contracts might be w design and bulld a system as one performance
obligation when the criteria above are assessed Other Ultra contracts might
contain ane performance obligation to design a system and a separate
obligation te bulld therm: these are required to be treated as separate
performance obligations If, for example, the customer obtains control

of the design and could ask another contractor to build them,

At the start of a contract, the total transaction price is estimated as the
amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitied in
exchange for transferring the promised goods and services to the customer,
exciuding sales taxes. The transaction price is allocated to each performance
obligation based on relative standalane selling prices of allitems 1 the
contract. This could be based on hist prices, external market evidence or,
where indvidual tailored products are concerned, hased on the estimated
expected costs to produce the item or deliver the services, plus a reasonable
margin to reflect the nsk of delivering the product or service. Vanable
consideragon {for example, discounts dependent on sales levels, returns,
refunds, rebates and other incentives) is included hased on the expected
value, or mast hkely amount, only ta the extent that it is highly probable that
there will not be a reversal inthe amount of cumulative revenue recognised

The transaction price does not include estimates of consideration resulting
from contract madifications, stich as change orders, until they have been
approved by the parties to the contract. A contract modification exists when
the parties to the contract approve a modification that either changes
ex|sting or creates new enforceable rights and obligations.

Payment terms vary from contract to contract but will typically be 30 days
from tha date of Invoice. The Group's contracts are not considered to include
significant financing compenents on the basis that there is no difference
between the consideration and the cash selling price.

Incremental costs of abtaining a contract are capitalised to the extent that
they are recoverable from the customer and the anticipated contract periog
will be more than cne year, Incremental costs are those that would not have
arisen if the cantract had not been chtained. Unconditional bid or proposal
costs would not be capitalised as costs to obtain a contract because they are
incurred whether the contract 1s obtained or not. Ultra has not capitalised any
such costs 1o dare. The effect of a contract modification on the transaction
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price and the Group’s measure of progress towards the satisfaction of the
performance obligation is recogrised either as: (1) an additional separate
contract; (i} as a terrmination of the existing contract and creation of a new
contract; or (iii} as part of the original contract using a cumulative catch-up.

where the outcome of a long-term contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that
it 1s probable will be recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses
in the period in which they are incurred

When it 1s probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue,
the expected l0ss 15 recognised as an 2xpense immediately.

Point in time

If performance obligatons de not meet the Critena (o recognise revenue over

tirne, then revenue from the sale of goods or serwces Is recognised at a pont

N time This s measured at the fair value of the consideration receved or

receivable and represents amaunts recevable for goods or services provided

in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales-related

taxes. Revenue is normally recognised when control of the goods or services

has transferred to the customer This may be:

+ At the point of physical delivery of goods and acceprance by the customer,

+When the customer has legal title to the asset;

+When the customer has the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset, or

+When customer-specific acceptance criteria have been met, e.g. when
product testing has been completed

In the majonty of cases, revenue 1s recognised at the point of physical delivery
and acceptance by the customer, and the Group has the right ro payment.

Contract assets and liabilities

The timing of payments received from customers, relative to the recording
of revenue, can have a significant impact on the contract-related assets and
habihties recorded on the Group's balance sheet.

The majority of developrment programmes have payment terms based an
contractual milestones, which are not necessarily aligned to when revenue
1s recognised, particularly for those contracts with revenue recognised over
tirne by reference to the stage of completion. This can lead to recognition of
revenue n advance of customer billings; 'amounts receivable from ovar-time
contract customers' relates to work performed and revenue recognised on
agreed contracts prior to the custamer being invoiced. On other
developmernit programimes, a proportion of the transaction price 1s received
in advance and conseguently a contract lability arises; ‘amounts payable to
over-time contract customers’ relates to payments received from customers
Inrelation to the contract prior to the werk being completed and the revenue
recognised.

For contracts where revenue 15 recognised at a point in time, 'deferred
income' recorded on the balance sheet represents payments received from
customers prior to the work being completed and the revenue recognised,
and ‘accrued income’ recorded on the balance sheetrepresents any revenue
recognised on agreed contracts priar to the customaer being invoiced.

When a good or service provided 1s returnad or to be refunded the revenue s
reversed equal to the amount ongnally recognised as revenue for that good
or service, Consideration of returns and refunds is made when calculating the
transaction price to be allocated ta the perfarmance obligation

Awarranty may represent a separate performance obligation ifit s

distinct from the other elements of the contract (i.e. it can be sold separately
and provides additional goods and services beyond the agreed-upon
specifications), otherwise it s treated as a provision. Most warrantes are
treated as provisions If itis a separate performance obligation, then the
revenue s recognised when the control of the additonal good or service
under the warranty 1s passed to the customer.
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Statement of accounting policies
in respect of the Group's cansolidated financial statements
continued

Research and development

Expenditure on research actmities is recognised as an expense in the pencd
nwhich it is incurred.

Any internally generated mtangible gsset anising fram develnpmenr actvanies
15 recognised only If an asset s created that can be identified, itis probable
that the asset created will generate future economic benefit and the
development cost of the asset can be measured reliably

[nternally generated assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over
their useful hves. Where no internally generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an expense in
the period inwhich itis incurred

Other intangible assets

Costs associated with producng or maintaining computer software
programmes for sale are recagnised as an expense as incurred. Costs

that are directly associgted with the development of identifiable and unigue
software products controlled by the Growp, thatwill generate economic
benefits exceeding costs beyond one year and that can be measured reliably,
are recagnised as intangible assets. Capitalised software development
expenditure is stated at cost less accurnulated amertisation and iImpairment
losses. Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimared
useful ife of the related asset (see note 14)

Acquired computer saftware licences for use within the Group are capitalised
as ntangible assets on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to
use the speafic software.

Patents and trademarks are stated initially at historical cost. Patents and
trademarks have definite useful lives and are carred at cost less accumulated
amortsation and impairment losses.

Intangible assets arising from a business combination whose fair value can
be reliably measured are separated from goodwill and amaortised over their
remaining estimated useful lves.

Impairment of fixed assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
rangible and intangible assets to determine whether there 1s any indication
that those assets have suffared an imgairment loss. If any such indication
axists, the recoverable amount of the asset 1s esumated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss. Where the asset does not generate cash
flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the
recaverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
An inzangible asset with an indefinite useful life is tested for imparment
annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount 1s the higher of fair value less casts to sell and value
inuse, In assessing the value in use, the esumated future cash flows are
discountad to their present value, [f the recoverable amount of an asset
15 estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

where an impalrment loss subsequently reverseas, the carrying amount of the
assel is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the iIncreased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recogrised
for the asset In prior years. A reversal of an imparment foss is recognised as
ncome Immediately, except for goodwill.

Property, plant and equipment

Praperty, plant and equipment 1s shown at original historical cost, net
of depreciation and any grovision forimpairment.

Nepreciation s provided a1 rates calcalated towrite off the cost, tons
estimated residual vaiue, of each asseton a straight-line basis over its
expected useful life as follows:

Freehold bulldings
Short leasehold improvements

40to 50 years

over remaining period of lease

Plant and machinery 3to 20 years

Freehold land and assets under construction are not depreciated,

Leases

IFRS 16 reguires that all leases and the related rights and obhgations should
be recognised on the lessee’s balance sheet, unless the lease 15 less than one
year in length or is for a low value asset. Leases that do not meet these criteria
are expensed on a straight-line basis.

For each lease, g hability for lease obligations to be incurred in the future must
be recognised. Correspondingly, a right-of-use asset s capitalised. The asset
and liability are initially measured at the present value of all future lease
payments plus directly attributable costs.

The Group's leases relate to real estate, vehicles, printers & copiers and other
equipment Leases are dlassifiad in the following categeries: Property and
MNon-property.

The Group's property leases range from one year to 25 years inlength and
are based primanly in the UK, USA and Canada. The Group's non-property
leases range from one year to seven years.

The Group recognises a right-of-use assaet and a lease hiability at the lease
commencement date The asset and liability are initally measured at the
present value of all future lease payments plus directly attributable costs
Payments made before the commencement date and incentives {e.g. rent free
pernods) recerved from the lessor are also included in the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset. The asset 1s then amortised over the useful Iife of the
lease on a straight-line basis. Further details on the valuation of the nght-of-
use asset and the lease lability and the discount rate applied in calculating
the present value are discussed below

Interest on the lease liability is expensed withm financing charges. The cash
Impact of the lease s split between the principal and interest.

Short-term leases and leases of fow-value assets

As permitted under [FRS 16 paragraph 6, the Group has elected notto
recognise leases that are less than one year inlength or are for a low-vaiue
asset (<F3.5k) on the balance sheet. These leases are expensed on a
straight-line basis as short-term leases or leases of low-value assets

Valuaticn of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets

[FRS 16 requires the Group to make Judgements that impact the ininal
valuation of the lease liakilities and the right-of-use assets. These judgements
include determirmg what contracts are in scope of IFRS 16, determining the
lease contract term and deterrmining the iaterest rate used for discounting
future cash flows

The lease term is the non-canceilable penod of the lease contract It can also
he iImpactad by penods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Group
is reasonably certan that iILwill exercise that opnion. For lease contracts with
an indefinite term, the Group estimates the length aof the contract to be equal
to the economic useful Iife of the asset or typical market contract term. The
lease term 13 used to determine the depreciation rate of right-of-use assets.
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Property, plant and equipment continued

The lease liability 1s measured at amartised cost using the effective Interest
method. The present value of the leass payment is determined using the
discount rate. The discount rate 1S determined based on: 1) the risk-free rae
an Government bonds in the locaton and currency of the lease over a similar
term as the lease; 2 the Group's borrowing rate; and 3) an asset-specific
premium Discount rates rernain the same throughout the lease unless

the lease term ar renewal assumptions change and range between

0.5% and 10.5%.

The lease liability and right-of-use asset are remeasured when there
is a change In the future lease payments arising from a change in the
expected lease term, or a change in the estimated rotal cost of the lease

Subletting

The Group sublets some property space o third parties. For these sublets,
the Group first determines if the sublet lease 1s an operatng or finance lease.
This is determined as a finance lease if substannally all of the risks and
rewards of the properiy are transferred to the lessee through the lease,
otherwise IT15 classified as an operating lease.

When the sublease s considered as a finance lease, the discounted value of
the cash income from the sublet is deducted from the nght-of-use asset and
liatility of the Group's lease (head lease”) for that property unless the head
lease is a shortlease or a low value asset lease,

If the sublease 15 considered an operanng lease, then the payments received
fram the lease are recogrised as Income on a straight-ine basis.

Inventories

Inventortes are valued at the lower of cost (derermined on a first-in, first-out
basis and including an appropnate proportion of overheads incurred in
bringing the inventones <o their present location and condition) and net
realisable value Prowision is made for any obsolete, slow-moving or
defective items.

Trade receivables

Trade recevables are ininially measured at trransaction price (being the same
as far value) then subseqguently remeasured at amortised cost less any
impairment. An appropriate provision is recorded for expected creditlosses
in accordance with the simplified approach permitted under IFRS 9. The
Group measuras the provision a7 an amount equal to ifetme expected
credit losses, estimated by reference to past experience and relevant
forward-locking factors.

Amounts receivable from over-time
contract customers

For a contract recognised over time under IFRS 15 the cantrol of the product
may be passed to the customer before the customer Is invoiced. Atthis point,
revenue Is recognised and an asset is recorded on the balance sheet as

an amount recewatle from over-time contract customers. The amount
recelvable fram over-time contract customers is classified as a current asset
when it is to be iInvoiced within 12 months, otherwise it s recorded as a
non-current asset. This asset is transferred to trade receivables once the
customer is invoiced, following which cash is expected 1o be received per

the agreed contractual terms. Refer to note 19 for detalls on the average
debror days.

Amounts due to over-time contract customers

For a contract recognised over time under IFRS 15, a payment may be
received from the customer before the control of the product 1s passed to
the customer. AT this point a hablity is recorded on the balance sheet as an
amount dug to over-ime cantract customers, which is recognised net of any
refunds expectad to be paid. This liability s derecognised when the control 1s
passed to the customer and revenue can be recorded. Amounts due o over-
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time contract customers is recorded as a current hability when the revenue is
expected to be recognised within the nex: 12 months, atherwise it 1s classified
as a non-current hability.

Cash and cash equivalents

Lash and kank balances cormprise cash atbank and in hand and short-term
deposits with an original matunity date of three months or less. Cash and
averdrafts are only presented netwhen there 1s a nght and intention ta settle
on a net basis, otherwise overdrafts are presented as current lighilities For
the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist

of cash and short-term deposits, less overdrafts, which are repayable

on demand

Assets and liabilities held for sale

Assets and Iabiities classified as heid for sale are measured at the lower
of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell

Assets and liabilities are classified as held for sale if thewr carrying amount will
be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition 1s regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and
the asset s avallable for immedate sale in its present condition. Management
must be committed io the sale which should be expected to gualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification

Foreign currency

Transactons denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in the local
currency at the actual exchange rates at the date of the transactions.
Monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
halance sheet date are reported at the rates of exchange prevailing at that
date Any gain or loss arising fram a change in exchange rates subsequent
to the date of the transaction is included as an exchange gan or loss N
the Income statement

The trading results and cash flows of overseas undertakings are translated
nto Sterhing, which is the functional currency of the Company, using the
average rates of exchange during the relevant financial period. The balance
sheets of overseas subsidiary undertakings are translated into Sterling at
the rates ruling at the year end. Exchange differences ansing from the
retransiation of the opening balance sheets and results are classified as
equity and transferred to the Group's translation reserve The Group does
not hedge exposure ansing from the retranslation of the resulzs of

fareign subsidiaries.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on the acquisition of fareign enfities
are treated as assets and habilities of the foreign entity and transiated at
the closing rate. The Group has elected to treat goodwiil and fair value
adjustments arising on acquisitions before the date of transition to [FRSS
as Sterling-denominated assets and habilities

Borrowing costs

Borrawing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period inwhich they
are meurred, except where they relate to qualifying assets, in which case
thay are capitalised.

Government grants .

Government grants are recogmsed in the income statement so as to match
them with the expenditure towards which they are intended to contribute,
to the extent that the conditions for receipt have been met and there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be receved.

Government aszistance provided inthe form of below-market rate of interest
lgans are treated as Gavernment grants The benefit of the below-market rate
of interest 1s calculated as the differance between the proceeds received and
the fair vaiue of the loan and is mafched against the related expenditure.

The fair value of the loan is caiculated using prevalling market intarest rates
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Statement of accounting policies
in respect of the Group’'s consolidated financial statements
continued

Retirement benefit costs

The Group provides pensicns to 1ts employees and Directors through defined
benefit and defined contribution pension schemes. Tha schemes are funded
and their assets are held independently of the Group by Trustees

For defined benefit reurement schemes, the cost of providing benefits is
determined using the projected unit Credit method, with actuanal valuations
being carried out at each balance sheet date The actuarial gains and lasses
are recagnised in full In the period inwhich they occur They are recagmsed
ourside the income statement and presented in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Past service Cost Is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits
are already vested, and otherwise 1s amortised on a straight-line basis over
the average period until the benefits becomea vested

Curtallment gans or losses are recognised immediately in the ncome
statemeant.

The retirement henefit obligatton recognised in the balance sheet
reprasents the present value of the defined benefit gbligation as adjusted
for unrecognised past service cost, and as reduced by the fair value of
scheme assets.

Payrments to defined contribution retirement schemes are charged as
an expense as they fall due.

Trade payables

Trade payabies are inmally measured at fair value then subsequently
remeasured at amortised cost.

Loans and overdrafts

Loans and averdrafts are recognised intially at fair value, being proceeds
received less directly attnbutable transaction casts. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and averdrafts are stated at amortised cost with any
transaction costs amortised to the incame statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Any difference between the
armount initially recognised and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statemenit over the period of the borrowings.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees
Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of
grant. The fair value determined at the grant date is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vestng pericd, based on the Group's esumate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market-related
condttions.

Fair vatue is measured by use of a Black-Scholes madel for the share option
plans and a stochastic model for awards made under the 2017 Long-Term
Incentive Plan.

The credits in respect of equity-settled amounts are included in equity.

Provisions

Provisions, including property-related and contract-related provisions,
are recognised in the balance sheetwhen the Group has a fegal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and where it s
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be reguired to
settle the obligation.

Provision is made for the anticipated cost of repar and rectification of
products under warranty, based on known exposures and historical
occurrences, Provisions for restructuring costs are recognised when
the Group has a detalled formal plan for the restructuring that has
been commurnicated to affected parties.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
recetved, net of direct 1Issue costs.

Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of the current tax payable and
deferred tax.

The current tax payatle 1s based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable

profit differs from net proft as reported in the iIncome statement because

it excludes items of incame or expense thar are taxable or deduciible in
other years and 1t further exdudes items that are never taxable or deductible
The Group's liability for current tax s calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax s the tax expected te be payable or recoverable on differences
between the carrying ameunts of assets and habilities in the finanoal
statements and the corresponding tax bases used In the computation of
taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabllities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that itis
probable that taxable profits will be available againstwhich deductible
temparary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilites are not
recognised if the temporary difference anses from gaodwill or from the inital
recognition {other than in a business combination) of other assets and labilites
in & transaction that affects neither the rax profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax labilities are recogrised for taxable temporary differences
ansing on mvestments in subsidiaries except where the Group s able to
control the reversal of the temparary difference and 1t is probable that
the temporary differance will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at each balance sheet
date and reduced to the extent that itis no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply inthe
period when the liability 1s settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is
charged or credited in the Income statement, except when it relates toitems
charged or credited directly ro equity, n which case the deferred tax is also
dealt with n eguity

Deferred tax assets and liabiities are offset wher there is a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax habilities and when they
relate to Income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group
intends ko settle its current tax assets and liabilites.

Derivative financial instruments

IFRS 8

Ultra uses dervative financial instruments, principally forward foreign
currency contracts and interest rate swaps, to reduce its exposure to
exchange rate and interest rate movernents Ultra does not hold or
1ssue derivatives for spaculative or trading purposes.

The Group's hedging strategy under IFRS 9 1s to mimimise Income statement
volatiity arismg frorm re-valuation of US Dollar assets and liabilities held on the
UK baiance sheet. The nat investment hedge offsets the value of the external
US Dollar borrowangs with the net investments in US companies and net US
Dollar assets held on the UK balance sheet.

Classification and measurement

All financial instruments are nitially measured at fair value plus or minus,
N the case of a finanaiai asset or financial hiability not at fair vatue through
profit or loss, transaction costs
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Derivative financial instruments continued

IFRS 2 divides all financial assets that were previously in the scope of [AS

39 1nto two classifications - those measured at amortised cost and those
measured at fair value. Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and
Insses are either recognised entirely in profit or loss (fair value through profit
or loss, FYTPL), or recognised in other comprehensive incame (fair value
through other comprehensive income, FYTOCT),

Adebtinstrument is measured at amortsed costif: a) the chjecuve 1sto

hold the financial asset for the collection of the contractuat cash flows; and b)
the contractual cash flows under the instrument solely represent payments
of principal and interest, A debt instrument is measured at FVTOCT if: a} the
objective is to hold the financial asset both for the collection of the contractual
cash flows and seling financial assets; and b} the contractual cash flows under
the instrument solely represent payments of principai and interest. All other
debt instruments must be measured at =VTPL. For financial labilities
designated FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
llability attributable to changesin credit risk is recognised in other
comprehensive income. The Canadian Government loans are measured

at FYTPL, see rote 23, with the net change m fair value reflected in

finance costs. Any change ansing from credit risk would be FVTOCL

Hedge accounting

Hedge accounting wili not generally be applied W transactional hedging

relationships, such as hedges of forecast or committed transactions.

However, hedge accounting will be applied to translational hedging

refationships where it 1s permissible under [FRS 8. When hedge accounting s

used, the relevant hedging relationships will be classified as fair value hedges,

cash flowhedges or net investment hedges In order to qualfy for hedge

accounting, the hedge relationship must meet the following effectiveness

criterta at the beqinning of each hedged period.

+There 1s an economic relationship between the hedged item and the
hedging nstrument.

+ The effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result
from that economic relationship.

+The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship s the same as that actually
used inthe economic hedge.

If a hadging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectivenass requirement
relating to the hedge rato but the risk management cljective for that
designated hedging relationship remains the same, the hedge ratio of the
hedging relationship is adjusted so thatit meets the qualfying cnteria

Where the hedging relationship 1s classified as a fair value hedge, the carrying
amount of the hedged asset or fiability will be adjusted by the ncrease or
decrease in the fairvalue attributable to the hedged risk and the resulting gain or
loss will be recognised in the income staterment where permissible under [FRS 9.

Where the hedging refationshup i1s classified as a cash flow hedge or as a net
investment hedge, ta the extent that the hedge 1s effective, changes in the
fair value of the hedging instrument will be recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive mcome and accumulated in equity.

Ariy gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion 1s recognised immediiately
in the ncome statement, For ¢cash flow hedges of forecasted future
transactions, when the hedged item s recognised in the financial staternents,
the accumulated gains and losses recognised in equity will be etther recycled
to the Income statermneant or, if the hedged items result in a non-financial asset,
will be recognised as adjustments ta its initial carrying amount

Income statement

Additional line items are disciosed in the consolidated income statement
when such presentation is relevant ta an understanding of the Group's
financral performance.
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Operating profit

Operating profit is stated after charging restructuring costs but before
Investment iIncome and finance costs.

Exceptional items

When items of Income or expense are matenal and they are relevant to
an understanding of the entity's financial performance, they are disclosed
separately within the fnancial statements. Such exceptional items include
material costs or reversals arising from a restructuring of the Group's
operations, rmatenal creation ar reversais of provisions, and matenal
Itigation settlements.

Underlying and non-statutory performance
measures

Management monitors the underlying financial performance of the Group
using alternative performance measdres. These measures are not defined in
IFRS and are considered to be non-statutory. This addimonal information 1s
not uniformly defined by all companies and may not be comparabile with
similarly titled measures and disclosures by ather arganisations. The
non-stazutory disclosures should not be viewed inisolation ar as an
alternative to the aguivalent statutory measure,

The underlying prasentation is regularly reviewad by management to
identify items that are unusual, due to thew materiality and nature, and other
iterms relevant to an understanding of the long-term trends of the Group's
performance. The non-statutory performance méasures are consistent

with how business performance is planned and reported within the internal
management reporting to the drasional management teams, Exacutive
Committee and to the Board. Some of the measures are used for setung
rernuneration targefs.

The reconchations between underlying and statutory measures are shown
innote 2. The related tax effects of these items, reflected when determining
urnderhying earnings per share, are set outinnote 12,

Undertying profit s used by the Board to monitor and measure the

underlying trading performance of the business using a measure thatis

comparable over time. lterns exciuded from underlying profit are treated

ronsistently with the financial covenant treatment as defined in the Group's

committed finanang facilities Undertying profit excludes:

+Costs associated with mergers & acquisitions (M&A), including the costs
associated with the proposed acquisition of the Group by Cobham Ultra
Acquisitions Limited, disposals or closures: delivery of the Group's straregy
has included investment in acquisitions that enhance Ultra's partfolio of
capabilities, as well as disposal or closure of non-core businesses, facilives
or product fines. The exclusion of significant items arising from this activity
1510 align short-term cperational decisions with this longer-term strategy.
Itemns excluded are directly attributable external leqgal and adviser costs,
adjustments ta the fair value of cantingent consideration and acquired
inventory, payment of retention bonuses, restructuring costs refated to
disposals and dlosures, and gains ar losses made upon the disposal or
closures. Similarly, amortisation and impairment of goadwill or intangible
assets arising on acquisition are excluded from underlying profit because
they are not related o the In-year operational performance of the business,
being driven by the timing and amount of historical nvestment in acquired
businesses. The directly attnbutable external costs associated with the
proposed acquisiion of the Group by Colbham Ultra Acquisitions Limited,
such as adviser costs incurred on bid-defence and subsequent adviser and
legal costs, have been excluded from underlying profit as these costs are
not related to the n-year operational performance of the business or
execution of the Group's sirategy
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Statement of accounting policies
in respect of the Group's consolidated financial statements
cantinued

Underlying and non-statutory performance
measures continued

+Significant legal charges and expenses: these are the charges arising from
investigations and settlement of litigation that are not in the normal course
of business Tlhies= wosls are notrelared to the in-year operational
performance of the business and are excluded,

+Mark to rmarket gains or losses from foreign exchange financal instruments:
there Is volatility in the valuation of outstanding instruments as exchange
rates move over tme. This has minimal impact on profit over the full term
of the instruments, but can cause significant income statement volatility n
particular periads. These gains or losses are excluded to ensure appropriate
and imely commercial decisions are made regarding mitigating the Graup's
foreign currency exposures.

Underlying operating cash flow is used by the Board t0 monitor and
rmeasure the underlying cash performance of the business using a measure
that1s comparable over ume. The Group 1s cash-generative and reinvests
funds to meet its strategic objectives, Management believes that using cash
generated by operatons, after principal payments on leases, net expenditure
on property, plant and equipment, outflows for capitalised product
developmen® and other intangitles, and adding back the operating cash
impacts arising from M&A, disposals & closures, and significant legal charges
& expenses Is the appropriate underlying metnc of the cash cost of sustaining
a growing husiness

Underlying operating cash conversion s the rano of underlying operating
cash flow to underlying operating profit.

Free cash flow s used by management to montor utilisation of cashin line
with the Group's capital allocation policy. Itis defined as net cash flow from
operating actmties, after interest received, purchase of property, plant

and equipment, proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment,
expenditure on product development and other intangibles, and principal
payments on leases

Organic growth (of revenue, profit or orders) excludes the impact of
currency translation, acquisitions, disposals and closures of businesses.

It 1= calculated as the annual rate of Increase that was achieved at constant
currency exchange rates, assuming that acquisitions made during the
prioryear were only included for the same proportion of the current year,
and adjusted for closures or disposals to reflect the comparable period of
operation or ownership The constant exchange comparison retranslates the
prior year reported results from the prior year's average exchange rates into
the currentyear's average exchange rates. See note 2 for reconcliations
between absolute growth and organic growth

Other metrics and definitions used by management to monitor the
performance of the business are defined as follows:

Adjusted EBITDA s the underlying operating profit for the vear, befare
depreciation charges and before amortisation arising on non-acquired
intangible assets. Net debt used in the ‘net debt to adjusted EBITDA metric
cormprises borrowings incuding pension obligations and lease liabilities, less
cash and cash equivalents For covenant curposes, net debt does not incfude
pension obligations and all impacts of iFRS 16 are removed from adjusteg
EBITDA and net debt, and adjusted EBITDA is amended to remove the
EBITDA generated by businesses up to the date of their disposal

ROIC is calculated as underlying operating profit as a percentage of invested
capttal (average of opening and closing balance sheets). Invested capital is
defined as net assets of the Group, excluding net debt and lease liability,
nension obligations, tax and denvatives. This allows ROIC to be calculated on
the operating assets of the business within the ranrral of management The
calcdation for ROIC is shown in nate 2. ROIC under the previous measure,

as used in the LTIP targets for the 2017-2019 issuances, is calculated as
underlying operating profit expressed as a percentage of invested capital
{average of opening and closing balance sheets). Invested capital is calculatad
as net assets of the Group (after adjusting for exchange rate fluctuations and
to eliminate the impact of the 2017 equity raise and subsequent buy-tack)
adjusted for amortisation and impairmen: charges arising on acquired
intang ble assets and goodwill, and the add-back of other non-underlying
performance items, such as tax, fair value movements on derivatives, the 33
programme, acquisition and disposal-related costs and the ithra (Oman)
contract, impacting the balance sheet

Average Working Capital Turn (AWCT) s the ratio of the 12-month average
maonth-end working capital {definad as the total of inventory, recevables and
payables excluding lease liabilities) to gross revenue, calculated at constant
FXrates.

Interest cover 1s the ratio of underlying operating profit to finance costs
associated with borrowings, excluding lease finance charges (total borrowing
costs per note 9, excluding the finance charge on leases, adding back bank
nterest per note g),

Underlying tax is the tax charge on underlying profit before tax The
underlying 1ax rate 1s underlying tax expressed as a percentage of underlying
profit before tax. This metrnicss used to calculate the underlying earnings per
share. See note 12,

Net finance charges exclude fair value movements on dervatives.

Order intake is the value of new contractually commutted customer orders
{and amendments to existing orders) booked in the year.

Order book s the value of partially satisfied and unsatisfied performance
abhgations from contractually committed customer orders.

Order cover is the ratio of the 31 December 2021 closing order book due
for execution in 2022, to consensus revenue for 2022
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Company balance sheet
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2022 204
2021 rastated restared
Feote £m £rm Em
Fixed assets o
Property. plant and eguipment 37 1.0 25 1.8
Other intangible assets 38 1.5 - -
[nvestments* 39 10764 107886 7853
Leased assets 40 17 2.1 25
'—V 1,080.6 10832 7895
Current assets o o T o
Trade and other recevables 41 949 30 75
Cash and cash equivalents 1.1 52 38
D 20.1 82 iy
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year T 43 (1210 a1, c400
Net current liabilities T (1009 (102.8) (128.3}
Total assets less current liabilities 9797 950.4 661.3
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 44 {124.5) (122.7) (188 8)
Provisions for abilities 45 (6.1) - -
Net assets T 8491—“ B857.7 4725
Capital and reserves
Share capital 47 36 38 35
Share premium account 43 208.1 2055 2032
Capital redemption reserve 48 0.4 a4 04
Retained earnings™ 43 6373 645.6 2668
Own shares 43 {0.3) (14 (1.4
Shareholders' funds T 849.1 857.7 4725

The Company only profit for the year was £22 6m (2020%: £418.0m). The financial statements of Ultra Electronics Holdings plc, registered number 02830397,
were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 23 March 2022

0 behaif of the Board,

S. PRYCE, Chief Executive Officer
1. SCLATER, Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this balance sheet.

Ultra Electronics Haldings plc 15 a company incarporated in England & Wales The registered office is 35 Portman Square, London W1H 6LR

¥ The 31 December 2015 and 31 Decernper 2020 nvestr-ent oalances nave oeen restated for the eversal of imoairment Insses recogmsed n prevous years tollowirg a review of tne carry'ng value o4 the
Companys nvesteient.n OF Group Lirited £35 8 has beenveversed as at 31 Decemcer 2019 ang £291 3 has cean roversed af 31 December 2023 1 addition, £2 5m afhanihnies previgasly preserted
ntne 3t Decer-ber 2020 galarce snestwithin‘Creditars am ounts faling dug wathin ang gear were not e legal lamlity of e Corpany and nave been rerroved fror the halance sheet See note 31
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Company statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Share Capital
Share premium redemption Retained own

capital account reserve earnings shares Total

£ £m £m £m £m £m

Restated balance at 1 janary 2020+ T 203.2 n4 T ee8 (14) 72.5

Restated retained profiz for the year* - - 4180 - 4180

Total comprehensive income for thé;reé; T - - 4180 T 4180

Equity-settled employee share schemes 01 23 - 26 - 50

De-recognimion of deferred tax on share based payments - - - 09 - 09
Dividends paid - - - (33.7} - (38.7)
Restated balance at :;‘.1"Eécember 2020% T 3.6 205.5 6.4 649.6 (1.4) E?'f

FEaFed_proﬂt for the year - - - - 226 - 226

Total co-;ﬁrehensive income for the year . - - - 226 - 26

[hsposal of own shares - - - 05 1.1 16

Equity-settled employee share schemes - 26 - 59 - 85
Tax on share based payments - - - (0.2} - 0.2
Dividends paid - - - 410 - {41.1}

Balance at 31 December 2021 S 36 2081 0.4 6373 (0.3) 849.1

* The 31 Decamber 2009 and 31 Decareger 2020 retained zarmings balences tave been rostated for e reversal of impairment los 383 1ecognsed npravous yesrs folowing 4 rev ew of the carrying value
of e Cor-pary 5 neesiment n OF Group Lmited £35 8 has geen reversed at 31 Decenaer 2009 and £291 8m 1as oean reversed ar 3 Decer-ber 2020 The 37 Decemoer 2020 rera ned earn ngs balance
l1ay dko pEEn restated for L7 90~ of hacil res prev ously prasented .n the 3° Decermaer 2020 balance sheat wethin'Zreditors amounts fall ng dae witain one year wn chwere Aot the legaliaeil ty afthe

Cnmpary Ses note 5
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Notes to accounts - Company
For the year ended 31 December 2021

37 Property, plant and equipment
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Total

£Em
Cost T - B )
At 1 January 2020 26
Additions 10
Disposals -
A1 Jgﬁuary 2021 - EYS
Additions 0.1
Reclassification to other intangible assets (1.5)
Disposals 10.6)
At 31 December 2021 B B - ] 16
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 fanuary 2020 (.8}
Charge (0.3)
Disposals -
At 1 January 2021 o - - a1
Charge 0.4
Reclassification to other intangible assats 08
Disposals or
At 31 December 2021 o T (0.6)
Net book value
At 31 December 2021 1.0
At 31 December 2020 75
38 Other intangible assets

Total

£m
Cost ) -
At 1]anuary 2021 -
Additions 05
Reclassification fram property. plant and equipment 1.5
At 31 December 2021 o ] 24
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 january 2021 -
Charge 1
Reclassification fram property, plant and equipment (0.8)
At 31 Decemberiaziw - - - {0.9)
Net book value

1.5

At 31 December 2021

AL 31 December 2520
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Notes to accounts - Company
For the year ended 31 December 2021
continued

39 Investments

a) Principal subsidiary undertakings
The Company owns either directly or indirectly 100% of the ordinary share capital of a number of substdiary undertakings as set out In note 36.

b} Investment in subsidiary undertakings

Total

£m

At 1}anuary 2021+ o o 107856

Addinons 27
Disposals @

At 31 December 2021 T o 1,076.4

* The gpening nvestmerLbalante has been sestated for the reversal of £327 6m mpa rment los sy
Group Lrted See nota 57

40 Leased assets

2 i arev ous years fodow ng = rev ew ot me carry ng 2l e of the Company's nvestment n DF

Total

o Em
Cost - B B
AL T January 2020 23
Additions -
At 1 January 2021 - ) 2.8
Additions -
At31 December2021 B - 28
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2020 (0.3)
Charge 04
Att)anuary2021 o T 0.7
Charge B 04
At 31 December 2021 T i B (1.1
Carrying amount
At 31 Decernber 2021 17
At 31 December 2020 2.1

The Company’s leased assets relate to real estate
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Amounts falling due after more than one year anzr:m ;3
Deferred rax assets see nara 421 2.1 15
21 15
2021 7320
Amounts falling due within one year £m fre
Amounts due from subsidlar;l;aertakmgg 4.0 04
Other recevables 0.9 04
Prepayments 2.0 0.7
T o 69 15
Total trade and other receivables 9.0 30
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings are unsecdred and repayable on demand.
42 Deferred tax
Movermnants in the deferred tax asset wers as follows:
2021 2020
£m Zm
Beginning of year T 0.7 0.1
{Charge)/credit to the profit and loss account {0.2) 0.6
{Charge)/credit direct 1o equity 0.2) -
End of year o3 0.7
The deferred tax balances are analysed as follows.
2021 2020
£r|_a £m
Employee share opticn costs o 21 -
Other temparary differences relating to current assets and liabilities (1.8) 0.7
Deferred tax 0.3 07
These balances are shown as follows:
2021 2020
£m Em
Debtors: amounits falling due after more than one year 21 15
Creditors: amounts faling due after more than one year (1.8} )]
Deferred tax B 0.3 0.7

Deferred tax assets, in excess of offsetting tax habilities, are recognised for loss carry forwards and deductible temporary differences to the extent that the
utilisation aganst future taxable profits is probable. At the balance sheet date the Company had deferred tax assets of £1.7m {2020: £1.7m) that have not been

recognised as their recavery 1s uncertain.
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Notes to accounts - Company
For the year ended 31 December 2021
continued

43 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2020
2021 resrared
7 B B £m £m
Borrowings tsee note 46) 0.4 10.7
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 103.2 825
Other payables 0.8 14
Accruals™ 16.6 164
121.0 111.0
The bank loans hetd in borrowangs above are unsecured Interest was predominantly charged at 0.65% (2020, 0.65%) over base or contracted rate.
Amounts owed to subsidary undertakings are unsecured and repayable on demand.
* £23mof hag ! nes previoasly preserted in the 31 Decer-ber 2020 balznee sneel within accruals were not the 'egal lisbiity of e Co~pany 45 54cn, 115 has cern cofrected w L the assoc ated 1ability
rerroved fro~rhe calaace saeet Se= note 52
44 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
2021 2020
. £m S
Borrowings isee nate 461 1227 1219
Deferred tax llability isee note 421 . 18 0.8
124.5 1227
The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Comparniy are managed at a Group level; further information Is set outin note 22
45 Provisions for liabilities
Contract-
reiated and
other Total
£m £m
At 1)anuary 2021 - -
Created 61 6.1
At 31 December 2021 6.1 6.1

Contract-related and other provisions comprise provisions relating to contract execution and delivery which are utihsed over the period as stated in the contract

to which the specific provision relates, and provisions for costs in relatton to settlement of legal mazters.



46 Borrowings

Borrowings fall due as analysed below:
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Lease liability

Bank loans

Lease hakbility

2021 2020
£m £m

Amounts due within one year o o
Bank loans and overdrafts - 101
' 04 08
- B o4 107

Amounts due after mare than one year o

193 188
Unsecured loan notes 101.4 107.0
20 21
1227 VIR

Interest on unsacured [0an notes was charged at 3.71% (2020° 3.71%j); £79.5m (2020: £50.0m;) of notes are repayable in 2-5 years and £27 9m (2020 £51.0m} are
repayahle after five years. Refer to note 22 for more details.

47 Called-up share capital

The movernents are disclosed in note 26

48 Equity reserve

The profit and loss account includes £65.4m (2020: £65.4m) which is not distnibutable. A net foreign exchange gain of £0.4em was taken to reserves in the year
(2020: £2 1m gain). Further details in respect of dividends are presented in note 11 and in respect of share-based payments in note 26

The Compainy holds 28,045 gwn shares (2020. 108,494),

49 Related parties

Transactions with Corvid Holdings Limited are set out in note 32.

50 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities relating to Ultra Electronics Holdings ple are as set out in nate 33
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Notes to accounts - Company
For the year ended 31 December 2021
continued

51 Prior year restatement

Areview of the recoverability of the Company's investment in DF Group Limited has teen performed in the year. Dunng the review, it was identified that
the value-in-use exceeded the carrying value of the Investment by £35.8m in 2019 and £454 Zm in 2020. The cumulative impairment losses that had been
recognised In previous years totaling £327.6m should have therafare been reversed partially in the 2012 finanaal statements and the remaining reversal
in the 2020 financial sfatements. In ling with TAS 8 Accounting Policics, Change in Accounbing Pulicies and Errors the prior year tnancial statements have
therefare been restated. £35 8mhas been reversed in the 2019 financial staterments, and the remaining iImpairment toss of £297.8m has been reversed in
the 2020 finanaial statements. This has resulted in an increase of £35.8m in retained earmings, investments and net assetsin 2018, and a further £291.8m

increase in retained earnings, investments and net assets in 2020.

[ addition to the above, £2.5m of kabihties previously presented n the 37 December 2020 balance sheet wathin ‘Creditors: amounts falling due within one year'
were not the legal hability of the Company. As such, this has been carrecred with the associated liability removed from the balance sheet, and an associared

entry recorded in the retaned earnings as at 31 December 2020

Areconchanon of the 201% and 2020 balance sheet as previously reported to the restated positioi 15 provided below:

Lmpa rment

2012 2020 reversal and
A3 previously frenarment 2019 As praviously  der2cogn tonof 2020
reported reversal Asrasrared repurted habil.ay As rostated
£ m £ £ £ Em
ﬁ;e_d assets
Property, plant and equipment 18 - 18 25 - 25
Investments 7495 358 7853 751.0 3276 10786
Leased assets 25 - 25 2.1 - 2.
- T 7538 338 7895 7556 3276 10832
Current assets - B e
Trade and other recevables 79 - 75 38 - 30
Cash and cash equivalents 38 - 38 52 - i
1.7 - 1.7 82 - 82
Credrtors amounts faling due within one year {14Q.0} - {140.0) {1 35) 25 (1110)
Net current liabilities o 1283 - 283 {1053) 25 (1028
Total assets less current liabilities 6255 e 6513 6503 3301 980.4
Creditors, amounts falling due after more than one year {183.8) - {188.8) 122.7) - {122.7)
Net assets 4367 358 4725 5276 330.1 857.7
Capital and reserves
Share cagital 35 - 35 36 - 3.6
Share premium account 2032 - 2032 2055 - 2055
Capital redemption reserve 04 - 04 0.4 - 0.4
Retaned earnings 2310 358 266.8 3395 3301 5456
Own shares 14y - (1.4 _(_W 4 - .4
Shareholders' funds T 4367 358 4725 5276 330.1 857.7
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Finarca statements

Statement of accounting policies
For the Company accounts

A summary of the Company’'s principal accounting policies, all of which have
been applied consistently throughout the year and preceding year, unless
otherwise stated below, in the separate finandial information presented for
the Company, are set aut below

Basis of accounting

The Campany accounts have been prepared under the historical cost
convention and in accordance with FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework
Mg profit and lass account s presented for the Company, as permitted

by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006. As permitted by FRS 107, the
Cormpany has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions avallable under
that standard in relation to share-based payments, fnancial nstruments,
capital management, presentation of a cash flow statement and certain
related-party transactions. The Cornpany’s retained profit for the year 1s
disclosed in the Company statement of changes 1IN equity

Fixed assets and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are shown at original historical cost, net of
depreaation and any provision for impairment. Depreaation is provided at
rates calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value, of each
asset on & straight-ine basis aver its expected useful ife as follows:

Short feasenald Improvements

over remaining pericd of iease

Plant and maﬁwinery 3to 20 years

Leases

IFRS 16 requures that all leases and the related rights and abligations should
be recogrised on the iessee’s balance sheet, unless the lease is less than one
year in length oris for a low-value asset. Leases that do not meet these
criteria are expensed on a straight-line basis.

For each lease, a hability for lease obligations to be incurred in the future must
be recognised. Correspondingly, a night-of-use assetis capitalised The asset
and liability are inmally measured at the present value of all future lease
payments plus directly attributable costs.

The Company’s leases relate to real estate, vehucies, printers and coplers and
other equipment. The Company therefora chose to split the leases between
the following categories property and non-property.

The Company's property lease s eight years in length and 1s based in the UK.
The Company’s non-property feases range from one year to three years.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The asset and liability are initially measured at the
present value of all future fease payments plus directly atzrbutable costs
Payments made befare the commencement date and incentives received
from the lessor are also included in the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asser, The asset s then amartised over the useful Iife of the leaseon a
straight-tine basis. Further details on the valuation of the right-of-use asset
and the lease liability and the discount rate appled in calculating the present
value are discussed below.

Intereszon the lease hability is expensed within financing charges.
The cash impact of the lease 1s split between the principal and interast.

Short-term leases and leases of low-vaiue assets

The Company has electad not to recogrise leases that are less than one
year in length or are for alow-value asset (<£3.5k) on the balance sheet.
These leases are expensed on a straight-line basis as short-term laases
or leases of low-value assets

Uitra Arual Report
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Valuation of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets

[FRS 16 requires the Company to make judgements that impact the initial
valuation of the lease liabilities and the nght-of-use assets. These judgements
include. determming what contracts are in scope of IFRS 16, determining the
fease contract term and determining the interest rate used for discounting
fuiture cash flows

The lease term)s the non-cancellatle period of the lease contract It can
also be impacted by periods covered by an option to extend the fease If the
Company is reasonably certain that it will exercise that option. For lease
contracts with an indefinize term the Company estimates the length o the
rontract to be equal to the economic useful life of the asset or typical market
contract term. The lease term is used ro determine the depreciation rate of
right-of-use assets.

The lease ability 1s measured at amortised cost using the effective interes:
method. The present value of the lease payment is determined using the
discount rate. The Company has used two discount rates; one for property
and one for non-property leases The discount rate is determined based on:
1) the risk free rate on Government bonds 1n the location and currency of the
lease over a similar term as the lease; 2) the Company's borrowing rate, and
3)an asset-specific prermiurn. Discount rates remain the same throughout
the lease unless the lease term or renewal assumptions change and range
between 19% and 2.5%.

The lease liability and nght-of-use asset are remeasured whenthereis a
change In the future lease payments arsing from a change in the expected
lease term, or a change in the estimated total cost of the lease

Taxation

UK corporation tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recoverad)
using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantally enacted
by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax 1s recognised in respect of all trming differences that have
onginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where transactions or
events that result in an chligation ta pay more tax in the future, or anght to
pay less tax i the future, have occurred at the balance sheet date. Temporary
differences are differences between the Company's taxable prafits and its
results as stated in the financial statements. These anse from ncluding gains
and losses in tax assessments in different periods from those recognised in
the finanqal staterments, A net deferred tax asset is regarded as recoveratle,
and therefore recogrused, only when, on the basis of all available evidence,

it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable
profizs from which the future reversal of the underlying timing difference
can be deducted. Deferred taxis measured at the average tax rates

that are expected to apply in the perods in which the timing differences

are expected to reverse based on taxrates and laws that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred

tax is not discounted.

Retirement benefit costs

The Company participates in a defined benefit plan that shares risks between
entities under common control The detalls of this UK scheme, for which Ulira
Electronics Limited is the sponsoring emplayer, are set out in note 29. There
is no contractual agreement ar stated policy for charging the net benefit cost
to Ultra Electronics Holdings plc
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Statement of accounting policies
Far the Company accounts
continuad

Investments

Fixed asser investments are shown at cost less provision for impairment.
Assessment of impairments requires estimates to be made of the value-in-
use of the underlying Investments. These value-in-use calculations are
dependent on estimates of future cash flows and long-tarm growth rates.
The crirena nsed in this assessment arc consistent with Lhuse set autin note
13 and the critical accounting estimates and assumptions as set out below

Going concern

The Directors have, at the time of approving the finandal statements, a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the finanaal

statements. Further detail 1s contained in the strateqic report on pages 46-47.

Share-based payments

The Compariy 1ssues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
employees. Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair
value at the date of the grant. The fair valde determined at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-ine basis over the vesting period, based onthe
Company's estimate of shares that will eventually vest. Further disclosure
In relation to share-based payments is given in note 26

Related parties

The Remuneration of the Directors, who are considered to be the key
management personnel of the Company, is disclosed in the audited
part of the Directors' remuneration reporton page 72.

Loans and overdrafts

[nterest-bearing loans and overdrafts are recarded as the proceeds are
received, net of directissue costs where there is a facilhty commitment
In these circumstances, 1ssue costs are deducted from the value of the

facility commitment, issue costs are written off as incurred. Finance charges
including premiums payable on settlement or redemption are accounted for
on an accruals basis in profit or loss using the effective interast rate method
and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that
they are not settled in the period in which they arse

Critical accounting judgements and
key sources of estimation uncertainty

[n the apphcation of the Company’s accounting pohaes, the Directors are
required to make judgements {other than those involving estimates) that have
a significantimpact on the accounts recognised and to make estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilihes that are

not readily apparent from other sources The esbmates and associated
assumprions are based on historical expertence and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumpnons are reviewad 0n an ongoing
kasis, Revisions to accounting estimates are recogrised in the period in which
the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, er in the period
of the revision and future penads If the revision affects both current and
furure periods.

Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Company’s accounting policies

There were no cnitical accounting Judgements that would have a
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Parent Company
financial statements.

Critical accounting estimation and
assumptions

There are no major sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant
risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

loan and amortised over the life of the commitment Where there is no

Footnote

Areconal 310N & 58t out N aote 2 betweaen operatng profit
underlying operat ng proft and adwsted E817DA, between prokit
before tax and Jnderlying grofit before tax, hetween cash
generated by operat ons and under lying operat ng cash flow,
and hetwaen net casn flow frar- operanng act wties snd free
casn flow

“ne calculat ons for organic measures ale also set oulm nos 2
“ne calcalat on tar undarlying ezrmings per shase 5380 autin aore
12 Further detal onnon-stafatory performance ~essures s set
nut on pages 145-148

Underlying operating profit s before smartsauan of
inzangibles arsing an acgd sition, Scquisition end dispasal related
costs ard sign ficant legal charges snd expenses See aote 2
Adjusted EBITDA s the underly ng uperatng prafit for the year,
nefore depracigtion charges and before amortisat an aris ng

on non-acq.Jired mtgngble assers See note 2

Underlying operating margin s the underlyng oparat rg
profic as 2 percentage of revende

Underlying profit before tax s before arortisaz on of
ntangibles ar sing 01 acquisition, fair valae mova—ents an
dervatwes, acquisition and disposdl-related costs, gain ar ‘oss
an disposal net of related ~estractur ng £osts and 5 graficant
fegal cnarges and expenses Seenote 2

Underlying tax s tne tax cnarge on anderlyng profthefore tax
Tne Jndery'ng tax rate s undertying tax exciessad as 3

cercentage of rderlying profit oefore tax This metng s used
ta calculate the underlying earrungs ger share Seg nota °2

Underlying operating cash flow i3 czsh generated by
aperzhians, less princpal payments n f nance leases, less net
capiral expenditare snd R&D, and excluding the casn out flaws
fror- acquis.£ on and d sposal-elated payments and significant
legal charges and expenses Seanore 2

Operating cash conversion s underly ng eperanng casn flow
as a percentage of undertyrg operating profit See ngta 2

Netdebt ised nthe net debrto adjusted ERTDA retnic
compr ses porrowings ncluding pensicn ohligatons ard
Iease | sbilities, less cash and cash egurvalents

Interest cover s tne ratio of Jnderlying operatng rofit iy
finance costs assoc ated with bon Gwings, excluding lease finance
£nal ges [total oo owing costs per nate 9, excluding tne f nance
cnarge on leases, adding bac« bank mterast par note 8}
Organic growth (of revenue, prof ror arde: <)is the annaal rate
of norease thatwas achieved at constant currency transkation
when compares to the prior year results as adjusted for any
Acglesinons or d sposals 1o reflect the comparace genod of
ownersig Seenate 2

Order intake s ‘nevalue of new cantractually zormirred
custorer arders (ard ar-endments ro ex st ng orders; bocsed
nmMevyear

and liabilities withun the next finanaal year.

Order book s the valde of part ally seusfied and .insausfied
performance obl.gauons flom contractusily corritted
customer arders

Order cover s tne 1 atin of the 21 Decerber 2021 Uosing order
hook due for execauonin 2022, to tonsesus reven e for 2022

Underlying earnings per share 15 tefore amort saton
ofintangibles ansing onéuqa s, far value ~overents

on derivat ves, acqu sil on and disposal related costs net

of contnge At considerar on ad,ustments, gain or losson
disposal and sign ficant legal cnarges énd expenses See note 12

Average Working Capital Turn 5 e rano of the * 2-monin
average montn end wor<nyg capetal {defined astne total of
Inventary, reca vables and payables excluding lease hsbilities)
to gross revenug, calgated at constant FX rates

ROIC 15 caig ulared 35 underlying operatng profit expressed as
apercentage of invested capital (average of spaning and clgs ng
balancg sneets) Ivested cap tel s defined as net aszets of the
Group, excluding net dett and lease 2l ty, pens'on chiligations,
zax and dervatyves Seenote 2

Total sharehelder return 3 asnual sharenolder ratuen (capital
growth plus dradends pard, assuming dwdends rernvested) cver
arolling five yaar per od
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Definitions
Acronym Definition Acronym Definition - -
ADSI _Arr Defence Systems Integrator o MDIS Multi-domain incelligence systerns
AGR Active Guard and Reserve MIS Managementinformation systems
Al Artfiaal Intelligence ML Machine learning
ASW Ant-submanne warfare _ MSC/ECP Main static converter/electric cruise propulsion
ATCS _Amphibious Tactical Communications Systems NATO North Atlantic Treaty Organisation B
AWCT Average working capital turn NCSC National Compuser Security Center
BAME Black, Asian and Minonty Ethnic Net zero Decarbonisation target whereby greenhouse gases emitted
BEIS Department for Business, Energy & industral Sirategy (U) into the atmosphere are fully offset by removal of emissions
g o from the atmosphere. The corporate standard followed by
€21 Command, Control and Intelligence Ultra is set by the Science Based Targets initiative.
C4ISR/EW Command, Control, Communications, Computers (C4) NGSSR Next Generation Surface Search Radar
Inteligence, Survelllance and Reconnaissance (ISRVElectranic — e e —
Warfare (EW) OBU Operating Business Unit
CAGR Compound annual growth rate Orderbook  Order book 15 the velue of partially satistied and unsatisfed
—_— — - performance obligations from contractually committed
Cal ~ Crime Gun Intelligence L customer orders -
GsC . _Canadian Surface Combatarit - ORION Uitra ORION s a family of mulnchannel, multband, poini-to-
C5R Corporate Social Responstbility point (PTP} point-to-multipoint (PMP} and mesh rado systems
DARPA Defense Advanced Research Projects Agency PBT Profit before tax _
ECURP End Crypto Unit Replacement Programme PCs Precision Control Systems - o
EPS Earnings per share P5sC Preasion Strike Sensor Core
ER-DIFAR Extended Range Directional Frequency Analysis REAP Rosetta Echo Advanced Payloads B
and Recording - RF ___ RadioFrequency -
ErP Enterprise resource planning ROIC Rewrn on Invested capital ~
ESG .. Envronmental Sodial and Governance Sales pipeline  Sales pipeline is defined as new awards which we anticipate
EW Electronic Warfare bidding on and the cpportunities within the programmes
FIPS Federal Information Processing Standards we are currently delvering on — ,,
FTR Flight Termination Receiver sBu Strategic Business Unit -
HMS Hull mounted sonar T ssA US Sacial Security Administration )
HPPAG High pressure pure air generapon: o SSNR Spectral signal to naise ratio
HSM Hardware security modules 55T surface Ship Torpedo Defence .
1AMD Integrated Air and Missile Defence SwaP  Size,Weight and Power
BlS ’ 'Ialt‘égrated Ballistic Identfication Systern - TRILOS US &rmy network modernisation pragramme, Terrestrial
ol ndefinite-del def . p— Transmission Line of Sight Radio
finite-delivery/indefinite-qu —= -
IFR’E [n ente [::v yl, T tg ag itydcondrac LAy Unmanned aerial vehicle
nternational Financial Repaorting St _—— =
- T ellectual P . P g ~iancards UGy Unmanned ground vehicle
ntellectual Proper e
fR&D — I Dh yd—d—---—l—w : ULAUX User experience/user interface
earch and develo -
A resear velbpmen - —  IFF Micra identifier friend or foe
1S Information systems - e - - -
T— e [ —r m 3 e USAF United States Air Force
ntelligence, surveillance and reconnaissance —— —
= s g - - ! UsSMC United States Marine Corps
ntegrated sonar system —
9 —- e y. USMDA United States Missile Defence Agency
ITAR International Traffic in Arms Regulations i -
—_— — LISN S&T United States Navy Science and Technology
ITN Integrated tactical network — - U
e - - B sy Unmanned surface vehicle iwater-based)
JADC2 Joint all-domain command and control - - —
0 Moltiole moutmiele oyt Uuv Unmanned underwater vehicle
MM lultiple input/multiple outpu - _
: P p_ preovp VDS variatle depth sonar
MBI Multi-domain Integration -
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Shareholder information
Five-year review

Financial highlights

2607 2018 2019 2920 2021

f m £ FR £m
Revenue o -
Mariurme 3765 379 3530 M8 3954
Intelhgence & Communications 2005 211 2248 2410 241.3
Cnitical Detection & Control L 2454 2377 2476 2270 2140
Total revenue - T 7754 7567 8254 o B39s 850.7
Underlying operating profit' ) o
Mariime 563 528 525 S8 6 594
Intellgence & Commurnications 1338 216 302 335 3749
Critical Detection & Conitrol 420 333 355 34.0 323
Toral uriderlying operating profit T 120.1 1127 1182 1261 1296
Underlying operating margim’ T T 155% 14.7% 14 3% 147% 15.2%
Profit before tax T T e0e 426 910 1037 82.7
Profit after tax 43.9 324 746 83.8 66.9
Underlying operating cash flow? - 116.5 893 363 a1 Mms
Free cash flow* 053 676 A7 554 90.7
Net debt at year end* L {74.5) [157.5) 1154.8) (85 .8) (40.0
Underlying earnings per share {p)® T 1167 1095 . 119.5 1306 1357
Dividend per share (p) 456 516 542 ) 569 **16.2
Average employee numbers T 4,1727. S 4,119 4,089 - 4,253 4,531

The aperat ag segrment sph e for 2007 1o 2019 has Deeq restated o reflecr the new segmentstnat became erfect ve for 1 January 2020
Lndertying operating prafitis cefare amortsahon of intangibies ar sing 21 azquisbon, acgwstien and disposal related costs, s gnif cant tegai chaiges and expenses and, for 2018 and earher,

the 33 program e and mpairments See note 2 Lnderlying operating margin s the anderlying sperating arofir s a percentage of revenue

]

relatad payrrents and s.grifvant legal charges and expenses and, for 20" S ardeail er. the 83 program e Saennte 2
Free cash flow §before dnadends pa d. acquisitions, disposzls and Fnanc ng
4 Nevdebr sloens, guerdrafts and France lease igbilit es less cash and £ash equ valeats see note 27

w

wn

Lnderlyng operating cash flow s casn generatad by operatons, less princ pat paymerts o finerice l2«sps, less net cap tzl exgenditure and R&D, and exciucing cash outfllows froim coquis ton and dispasal

Underly ng earnings per share 1s before smodtsanan ef ntangibles aris mg on 3cgd sition, (3 r value movements on denvatives acqu sition and d sposal related costs net of cont ngent consideraton

adiustrenrs, gan ar loss on disposal, sanif cant legal cnarges and expenses and, for 2015 and earler, Me 52 program me. 1mpa rmenrs, GMP eguelisat on and defined benghit peision finance charges

andn 2018 the loss on clos.ng out d foreign currency dervatve contract See note 12
*otprepared under IFRS 15
Not prepared under IFRS 16

*

Wheninctuding the 2018 finai dividend that was welhdrawn s 4 precautionary meas.are due to the Covid-18 pandeie, ¢nd pa d o 18 Septerroer 2020 as &n scdibonalinter m dividend
** Linder the terrs and conditions set out 'n the amnouncement dated *6 August 2021 jreletng to the recomrmended casn acquist on of Ultra by Cobham Litra Acgu s rons L rritadi, no 2021 Fral d wdead well
ne paid to sharenolders wh la the acqu sifion 18 mains condit onal an eotaining certan cledrances, ncud ng UK Governmanrapproval Consequaently, re totel full year div dendis uncnanged from the nter:—

dwidend of "6 2p

Annual General Meeting

A separate crcular providing the Notice of Annual General Meeting

and details of the resolutions to be put t¢ the meeurng will be sentto
shareholders in due course Proxy votas lodged for each Annuat General
Meeting are announced at the meeting and published on the Group's website
{www ultra.group). Electronic communication with shareholders is preferred
wherever possible since this 1s bath mare efficient and environmentzally
friendly However, shareholders may opt 1 receive hard copy
communications if they wish
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Contacts

Company Secretary

Loulse Ruppel

Emal information@ultra-electronics. com
Phone: +44 (0} 20 8813 4321

Head of Investor Relations

Gabriella Colley

Email: investar relations@ulra-electranics.com
Phone: +44 (0) 7891 206 239

Joint Brokers
Numis Securities Lrd.
10 Paternoster Square, London EC4M 71T

JP Morgan
25 Bank Street, Canary Wharf, London E14 5P

Auditor
Delatte LLP
1 New Street Square, London, ECAA 3HQ

Tax Advisers
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
10 Bricket Road

StAlbans

Herts ALT 3|X

Registrars

Equiniti

6, Broadgate Tower, 20 Primrose Street,
London ECZA 2EW

PR advisors
MHP
6 Agar Strest, London WC2ZN 4HN
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Other Critical Detection
& Control business units

Precision Control Systems
WMike Clayton - President

Forensic Technology
Alvaro Venegas - President

Energy
Qgnjen Starovic - Pres dent

Other Group
support functions

Global Business Services.
T

wo o leAd Sevanbayang,
Corvid-EET %
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Business addresses

Maritime

Ultra Sonobuoy Systems

4368 tast Park 30 Drive, Columbia City
Indiana 46725-8861, USA

Tel: +1 260 248 3500

Ultra Sonar Systems
A0 Atlantic Street, Darcmouth

Mova Scotia B2Y 4N2, Canada
Tel: +1 902 466 7491

Knaves Beech Business Centre, Loudwater
High Wycombe, Buckinghamshire HP10 SUT
England

Tel. +44 {0)1628 530000

12 Douglas Drive Technotogy Park, Mawson Lakes
Adelaide

South Australia 5095, Australa

Tel. +61 ()8 8169 1200

Ultra Naval Systems & Sensors
115 Bay State Drive, Braintree, Massachusetts

02184-5203, USA
Tel +1 781 848 3400

Ultra Signature Management & Power
95 Horseblock Road, Umit 2 Yaphank
New York 11880, USA

Tel: +1 631 345 6200

Towers Business Park
Wheelhouse Road, Rugeley
Staffordshire W15 1UZ, England
Tel: +44 (011889 503300
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